
 

Meeting of the  
 

OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

________________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 4 March 2008 at 7.00 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
M71, 7th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, 

E14 2BG 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 

Chair: Councillor Marc Francis  
Vice-Chair:Councillor Alexander Heslop   
  
  
Councillor Shahed Ali 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
Councillor Mohammed Abdus Salique 
Councillor Salim Ullah 
 

Councillor Louise Alexander, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Stephanie 
Eaton) 
Councillor Tim Archer, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Peter 
Golds) 
Councillor Lutfa Begum, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Ahmed 
Hussain) 
Councillor Abjol Miah, (Designated Deputy 
representing Councillor Shahed Ali) 
Councillor Fozol Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Shahed 
Ali) 
Councillor Oliur Rahman, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Ahmed 
Hussain) 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Shahed 
Ali) 
Councillor A A Sardar, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Marc 

 



 
 
 

Francis, Alibor Choudhury, Alex Heslop, 
Mohammed Abdus Salique and Salim 
Ullah) 
Councillor Bill Turner, (Designated Deputy 
representing Councillors Marc Francis, 
Alibor Choudhury, Alex heslop, 
Mohammed Abdus Salique and Salim 
Ullah) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 4 voting Members]. 
 
Co-opted Members:  
  
Mr Azad Ali – Parent Governor Representative 
Terry Bennett – Church of England Representative 
Mr D McLaughlin – Roman Catholic Diocese of Westminster 

Representative 
Mr H Mueenuddin – Muslim Community Representative 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Kweku Quagraine, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4877, E-mail: kweku.quagraine@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 4 March 2008 
 

7.00 p.m. 
 

 SECTION ONE 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

  
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 16  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 5th of February 2008. 
 

  

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

6. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section One reports ‘Called in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on Wednesday 5th February 2008. 
 

  

7. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT: LEADER OF THE 
COUNCIL  

 

  

 (Time allocated 60 Minutes) 

 
The leader of the Council, Councillor Denise Jones will 
attend to report on her portfolio. 
 

  

8. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 

  



 
 
 

 No items to consider. 
 

  

9. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK  
 

  

 (30 Minutes) 

 
  

9 .1 Youth Justice Plan   
 

17 - 74  

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to submit 
comments on the attached report to the Cabinet. 

  

10. SCRUTINY  MANAGEMENT  
 

  

 (30 minutes) 

 
  

10 .1 Use of Consultants Scrutiny Review Report   
 

75 - 96  

10 .2 Revisiting Youth Services Scrutiny Review Challenge 
Session   

 

97 - 104  

10 .3 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation 
Tracking Report   

 

105 - 212  

11. VERBAL UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  
 

  

 (Time allocated – 15 minutes) 

 
  

12. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE 
(UNRESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

 (Time allocated – 15 minutes) 

 
  

13. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO 
BE URGENT  

 

  

  
 

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the agenda the Committee is 

recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 

“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press and 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting for the consideration of the Section 
Two business on the grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972.” 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain information, which is commercially, 
legally or personally sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish 
to retain these papers after the meeting, please hand them to the Committee Officer present. 
 



 
 
 

  
 

15. SECTION TWO REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section Two reports ‘called in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 5th February 2008 
 

  

16. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION TWO 
(RESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

 (Time allocated 15 minutes). 
 

  

17. ANY OTHER SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
URGENT  

 

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\5\7\AI00013754\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
FOR MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\5\7\AI00013754\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
There are particular rules relating to a prejudicial interest arising in relation to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 
 

• You will have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
or sub committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met:- 

 
(i) That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken 

by the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) or another of the Council’s committees, sub 
committees, joint committees or joint sub committees 

 
(ii) You were a Member of that decision making body at the time and you were present at 

the time the decision was made or action taken. 
 

• If the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is conducting a review of the decision which you were 
involved in making or if there is a ‘call-in’ you may be invited by the Committee to attend that 
meeting to answer questions on the matter in which case you must attend the meeting to 
answer questions and then leave the room before the debate or decision.   

 

• If you are not called to attend you should not attend the meeting in relation to the matter in 
which you participated in the decision unless the authority’s constitution allows members of 
the public to attend the Overview & Scrutiny for the same purpose.  If you do attend then you 
must declare a prejudicial interest even if you are not called to speak on the matter and you 
must leave the debate before the decision. 

 

Page 2



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 5 FEBRUARY 2008 
 

M71, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, 
LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Marc Francis (Chair) 
Councillor Shahed Ali 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Alexander Heslop (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
 Councillor Mohammed Abdus Salique 
 Councillor Salim Ullah 
  
 
Other Councillors Present: 
Councillor Shiria Khatun 
Councillor Joshua Peck 
Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
Mr H Mueenuddin – Muslim Community Representative 

 
 

Officers Present: 
 
Suki Binjal – (Interim Head of Non-Contentious Team, Legal 

Services) 
Afazul Hoque – (Acting Scrutiny Policy Manager, Scrutiny and 

Equalities, Chief Executive's) 
Sara Williams – (Assistant Chief Executive) 
John Williams – (Service Head, Democratic Services) 
Kweku Quagraine – (Democratic Services) 
Edmund Wildish  – (Scrutiny Policy Officer, Scrutiny and Equalities, 

Chief Executive's) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

2 

 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Co-opted member Mr Terry 
Bennett and Michael Keating, Service Head Scrutiny and Equalities.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 
Councillor Alex Heslop declared a personal interest in relation to item 5: 
‘Deputation made by Tower Hamlets Unison’ as he is a member of Unison. 
 
Councillor Shiria Khatun declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
relation to item 6.1 ‘Call-In: Review of Street Market Fees and Charges 
2008/2009’ as an Executive Councillor who had participated in the Cabinet’s 
decision on this matter. 
 
Councillor Joshua Peck declared a personal and prejudicial interest in relation 
to item 6.1 ‘Call-In: Review of Street Market Fees and Charges 2008/2009’ as 
an Executive Councillor who had participated in the Cabinet’s decision on this 
matter. 
 
Councillor Abdal Ullah declared a personal and prejudicial interest in relation 
to item 6.1 ‘Call-In: Review of Street Market Fees and Charges 2008/2009’ as 
an Executive Councillor who had participated in the Cabinet’s decision on this 
matter. 
 
 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
 
The minutes of the Meeting held on 8th January 2008 were confirmed as a 
true and accurate record subject to the following amendments being made: 
 
Councillor Tim O’Flaherty to be included in the list of attendees at the 
meeting. 
 
Page 10, Minute 7 (Scrutiny Spotlight, Lead Member) 
 
A new first paragraph to be added: 
 
‘Councillor Stephanie Eaton enquired as to progress made regarding the 
identification of young carers within the borough. Councillor Hawkins 
explained that this issue would be addressed in the near future through the 
process of commissioning.  Councillor Eaton asked further questions 
regarding respite care for children with disabilities in the borough; young 
people as secondary victims of domestic violence and young people in police 
custody. Councillor Hawkins confirmed that these were issues high on the 
agenda adding that Tower Hamlets had recently signed up to the Charter of 
Every Disabled Child Matters’.  

Page 4



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

3 

 
 

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 
No petitions were received. 
 

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 
 

5.1 DEPUTATION REGARDING AGENDA ITEM 9.1-GENERAL FUND 
REVENUE BUDGET:BUDGET REQUIREMENT AND COUNCIL TAX 
2008/09  
 
John Davies on behalf of Unison presented his case in relation to item 9.1 on 
the agenda (General Fund Revenue Budget: Budget Requirement and 
Council Tax 2008/09) regarding the implications of proposals for Adult 
Services.  He explained that Unison viewed the cuts as part of a nationwide 
series of attacks on adult social care services, with services for older people 
being the most severely affected.  He added that the cuts would have a great 
affect on the quality of service provided by Tower Hamlets Adult Social 
Services. 
 
Mr Davies stated that Unison were particularly concerned with the 
restructuring of the in house Home Care Service into two teams, stating that 
the deletion of supervisors and management posts in the service would lead 
to a reduction in the quality of supervision of home care staff.  He further 
expressed his concern in relation to the job cuts in the Royal London Hospital 
social work team.  
 
Mr Davies understood that the proposed reduction of 12.5 posts cuts are 
based on the assumption that apart from the City of London, Tower Hamlets 
were the only local authority in London that carries out assessments on out of 
borough patients.  He stated that Unison had found this assumption to be 
incorrect from their liaison with other Unison branches across London.  
 
Questions were then posed to Mr Davies from the Committee.  Councillor 
Stephanie Eaton enquired whether the proposed move from higher qualified 
staff to lower would increase staff turnover.  Mr Davies informed her that 
Tower Hamlets provides a high level of service and across the country adult 
services funding was in decline.  He added that the borough currently has a 
high number of qualified staff therefore the service would suffer. 
 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain sought further information on the assumption that 
two social workers were responsible for the entire out of borough 
assessments, carried out on behalf Tower Hamlets Council.  Mr Davies 
explained that this had been the case and the social workers were 
unqualified.  He added that In house homecare provides a higher level of 
service, as quality is provided through supervision of untrained home carers.  
He explained that supervising would become harder and more problematic as 
all new care packages have gone out to agencies. 

Page 5



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

4 

 
Councillor Marc Francis referred to the analysis that showed a  three month 
period that 115 out of 310 assessments were out of borough cases and asked 
whether this was typical. Mr Davies explained that the analysis was taken 
over the period of summer 2007.  Summer was a period where more surgical 
work was planned; and the time of year would have an affect but other factors 
were also relevant. 
 
 
 

5.2 DEPUTATION REGARDING AGENDA ITEM 6.1 'CALL IN' REVIEW OF 
MARKET FEES AND CHARGES 2008/09  
 
George Gladwell on behalf of Columbia Market Residents Traders and 
Shopkeepers association presented his case in relation to item 6.1 on the 
agenda (Call in Review of Market Fees and Charges 2008/09) in connection 
with the proposed fees and charges increase.  He requested that the proposal 
to increase the Fees and Charges at Columbia Road Market be postponed 
until a later date in order that all consultation and consideration could take 
place. 
 
In informing the Committee of the increases Mr Gladwell stated that an 
increase of a 25% charge per market pitch was proposed for Columbia Road 
Market, a 39% increase charge per isolated pitch and an administration charge 
of £25.00 for refunds of unused purchased pitch vouchers.  There was a 
disparity between the markets and the traders saw the refund charge as 
especially.  

 
Mr Gladwell additionally expressed his concern at what he felt was a lack of 
consultation the market traders had received from the Head of Markets and 
other Council officers. As a result he has been unable to keep track of the 
street trading account along with other issues concerning the market.  Access 
to the account was only granted (after a number of requests), at a Finance 
Meeting in November 07 at which he was informed of the proposal to increase 
the pitch charges.   
 
Questions were then posed to Mr Gladwell from the Committee.  Councillor 
Ahmed Hussain asked when the last increase of fees occurred.  Mr Gladwell 
informed him that this occurred in July 2007 from £32 to £36. Councillor 
Hussain further requested to know the amount of consultation traders have 
had in the past three years. Mr Gladwell stated that only three meetings had 
occurred in this period. 
 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton asked Mr Gladwell, if it was proven that the 
additional income raised from the increase charges, would be spent on direct 
services beneficial to the local traders, examples being street cleaning and 
trading enforcement, would the charges be justified? Mr Gladwell responded 
that he was currently satisfied with the cleanliness of the area, and that 
enforcement could be increased at no extra cost.  He did not feel that market 

Page 6



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

5 

administrators were currently supporting market inspectors in the fight against 
illegal traders. 
 
 
 
 

6. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 
 

6.1 Review of Street Markets Fees and Charges 2008/2009  
 
The Chair invited Councillor Ahmed Hussain on behalf of the Call in Members 
to present his reasons for the Call in. He outlined the key issues that they held 
against the recommendations of the report.   
 
Councillor Hussain expressed concern at the Council’s perceived failure to 
consult market stakeholders adequately.  This was coupled with the sixty six 
per cent increases in fees for Whitechapel weekday traders, agreed by the 
Cabinet (though not recommended in the report); he viewed that as excessive 
and not based on factual evidence members could review.  Councillor 
Hussain also highlighted the potential outcome of discouraging market trading 
if the fees were not meaningfully assessed. He further requested on behalf of 
the Call In members, that the Council outline a clear strategy for advertising 
and promotion of all markets subject to be affected by the increases. 
 
Committee members put their questions to Councillor Ahmed Hussain.  
Councillor Alex Heslop queried whether he was concerned that a uniform 
pricing policy for all markets in the borough, would lead to a decline in the use 
of the markets. He additionally asked if Councillor Hussain was concerned 
market traders would pass on the additional cost to the consumers.  
Councillor Ahmed responded that these were matter of concern but he did not  
believe flat rate fees would have a detrimental effect as a problem, as it 
occurs frequently in business. 
 
Councillor Salim Ullah endorsed the rise in fees.  He commented that 
Whitechapel Market in his ward had become a very busy market and he did 
not believe that a raise in charges would see a downturn in traders.  He 
further referred to the level paid in fines by illegal traders.  Councillor Hussain 
responded arguing that the fines should be at a high level to discourage 
people from trading illegally. 
 
In response to the Call-In Councillor Abdal Ullah, accompanied by the Head of 
Markets David Saunders, outlined the reasons for the proposed increase of 
the fees.  Councillor Ullah explained that income was reviewed on a monthly 
basis. Some Markets were doing well in others there was a pattern of decline 
in the number of market traders, which in turn led to a reduction in income to 
the street traders account.  In regards to the fees increase in Whitechapel 
David Saunders remarked it would bring an additional 40k a year for re-
investment in Whitechapel Market.  
 

Page 7



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

6 

Questions were then posed to Councillor Abdul Ullah and Mr Saunders.  
Councillor Mohammed Abdus Salique asked why Petticoat Lane Market had 
seen a decline and what was being done to combat illegal trading within the 
area.  Councillor Ullah explained the success of Spitalfields market and the 
congestion charge were possible reasons.  He advised that work was 
currently being done to kick start the markets fortunes again.  In relation to 
policing Councillor Ullah explained that there was an ongoing operation, but 
further work with Councillors and the police was required.  
 
Councillor Peter Golds asked how often market fees.  Mr Saunders informed 
him that the charges are reviewed annually, adding that the money raised 
from the fees were transferred into the traders account.  Councillor Golds did 
not feel that the proposed New Market of Billingsgate would have a positive 
affect on the existing markets. 
 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton enquired if Councillor Abdul Ullah disagreed with 
any of the points made in the alternative course of action.  She additionally 
endorsed the need for further enforcement in the marker areas.  Councillor 
Ullah accepted that the frequency of meetings with traders had not been as 
he would have liked it to be, but explained in 2007 frequent meetings had 
been held and that a 28 day consultation period would take place on the new 
proposals. 
 
Councillor Marc Francis requested clarification on whether the post of Market 
Custodian would be a paid post; he additionally as to the position regarding 
parking income around the Columbia Road Market.  Councillor Ullah 
explained that the position of the Market Custodian was to be a champion of 
markets and that consultation was still ongoing as to its status. In regards to 
parking that the council was in the process of an ongoing review. 
 
Following the debate the Committee voted on whether to refer the item back 
to the Cabinet for further consideration.  It was RESOLVED: 
 
That the alternative course of action proposed in the Call-In be not pursued 
and the item not referred back to Cabinet. 
 

After considerable discussion the Committee agreed to confirm the 
decision of the Cabinet. However, there were a number of points of 
concerns which the Committee hoped the Cabinet would consider and 
address.  These included: 
 

• That the Market Services should establish regular and standard 
consultation with the traders; 

• That the service should look at how enforcement could be 
improved to push out illegal traders; 

• That proposed increases need to be justified clearly. For example 
the Cabinet report does not outline what the increase in Columbia 
Road market fees will be used for. 

 

Page 8



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

7 

It is felt that Cabinet should take ownership of this decision rather than 
delegating this to officers. In particular Cabinet should received a further 
report outlining the results of the consultation with traders and then 
make a decision based on that.  
 
 
 

7. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT:LEAD MEMBER  
 
Councillor Shiria Khatun, Lead Member for Culture opened her presentation 
informing the Committee of what her Portfolio entailed. This included; Idea 
Stores and Libraries, sports and physical activities as well as arts and events.  
The Committee were then made aware of The National Outcome and 
Indicator legislation, which guided the work of the Council in this area. 
 
 Councillor Khatun explained that this was found under the heading Creating 
Stronger Communities.  She informed the panel of the key areas in which 
work was being carried out, these included; adult participation in sport, use of 
public libraries, visits to Museums and Galleries and Engagement of the Arts.  
The presentation was concluded with Councillor Khatun outlining the key 
challenges for her Culture portfolio in 2008.  These included reviewing the 
Idea Stores Strategy, the creation of a CSPAN to support the Obesity 
Strategy, the Delivery of a Playing Pitch Strategy, the Commissioning of a 
new Leisure Facility Strategy as well as Delivering a 5 borough Cultural 
Olympiad programme and the Delivery of a Public Art Strategy. 
 
The Committee then posed questions to Councillor Khatun. Councillor Ahmed 
Hussain asked what was being done to stem the decline in the use of the 
Canary Wharf Idea store. Councillor Khatun explained that there were no 
plans to Change the Canary Wharf Idea Store and added that it was currently 
doing well. Councillor Hussain further enquired about the five boroughs 
Olympiad.  Councillor Khatun explained that it was a celebration of all cultural 
festivals that go on within the five boroughs. She advised that more 
information would be publicised in the forthcoming weeks. 
 
Councillor Alex Heslop asked about the likely effect of the Olympic Aquatic 
Centre proposed on the plans for Poplar Baths.  Councillor Khatun informed 
him that in the coming years Tower Hamlets and Greenwich Leisure would be 
monitoring population growth and supply facilities, she added that Greenwich 
Leisure were doing well in terms of measurement on the national bench 
marking exercise. 
 
Councillor Shahed Ali inquired about the current position regarding the Mela.  
Councillor Khatun stated that the previous service level agreement had been 
terminated and interested Community groups had until 11th February to 
register their interest in staging the 2008 event. 
 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton sought more information on the links between 
Councillor Khatun’s portfolio and those of other Lead Members, as well as the 

Page 9



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

8 

progression with the anti-obesity strategy.  She also referred to the Public Arts 
Strategy.  Councillor Khatun reported that an audit would be carried out on all 
public art in the borough and the strategy would seek to maximise section 106 
funding. 
 
Councillor Peter Golds expressed his concern that 500 year old borough 
archives rich in local history could be effectively destroyed and dispersed 
around London. He requested information from Councillor Khatun on what 
was being done to prevent this.  Councillor Khatun assured Councillor Golds 
that the archives would not be destroyed and reported that discussions were 
under way with a number of interested bodies to safe guard the collection. 
 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury queried how Tower Hamlets were progressing on 
the usage of leisure facilities by older and younger members of the public.  
Councillor Khatun explained that children’s targets had been set and all 
targets had been achieved apart from the target of increasing the usage of 
Ideas stores by younger people at the rate of 5%. 
 
The Chair thanked Councillor Shiria Khatun for her attendance and for her 
responses to the questions raised by members of the Committee. 
 
 
 
 

8. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 
 

8.1 Tower Hamlets Index - Monitoring Report October-November 2007  
 
Councillor Joshua Peck introduced the end of November Tower Hamlets 
Index 2007/08 monitoring report.  He explained that the set of indicators that 
constituted the Index reflected the strategic plan 2006 to 11, along with the 
Local Area Agreement.  He highlighted that appendix one provided an 
overview of performance and comments on each indicator, with appendix two 
providing charts for a better overview of the performance trends overtime. In 
relation to the performance indicated in the report Councillor Peck explained 
that of the possible 39 applicable indicators, 16 were on track to achieve their 
end of year target and a further 17 had actions in place to ensure they get 
back on track to meet that target. 
 
Councillor Peck drew particular attention to Indicator SP306 where the 
number of young people within education, employment or training had now 
reduced to 437; and SP111 where although the challenging target of 22% 
would not be achieved, Performance in January had increased to 15.8%. 
 
Questions were then posed to Councillor Peck regarding the index.  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton enquired who the Performance Review Group 
were and when they met.  Councillor Peck informed her that they met on a 
monthly basis to discuss performance issues; the next meeting was due to 
take place on the 6th of February 2008. He added that the group was made up 

Page 10



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

9 

of the Tower Hamlets Chief Executive Officer, a corporate director and 
himself.  Councillor Eaton also sought clarification on the preferred outcome 
column which was provided. 
 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain asked in relation to the PI reference number 
SP212 (Percentage of Adult and older clients receiving a review), why the 
target was not 100 per cent.  Councillor Peck explained that Targets were 
based on out turn last year what was known about need, in the population 
Tower Hamlets 86% target placed the council in the top band respectively. 
 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain referred to SP516 and felt this should monitor the 
percentage of the top 1% of council staff who were from an ethnic minority.  
Councillor Peck considered that 5% was a more useful measure. 
 
 
Councillor Heslop sought further information on PI reference numbers SP404 
A and B (Improved overall attendance rates at primary school and secondary 
schools).  Councillor Peck explained that persistent absence was the current 
focus and Tower Hamlets was doing well in regards to this. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That subject to the comments above the performance information highlighted 
in the report be noted. 
 
 
MOVED by Councillor Marc Francis and duly AGREED by the Committee: 
 
That in accordance with Council procedure Rule 9, the meeting be extended 
by up to 30 minutes to enable the completion of remaining business. 
 

9. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK  
 
 

9.1 General Fund Revenue Budget:  Budget Requirement and Council Tax 
2008/09  
 
The Committee were presented with the 2008/09 budget proposals Councillor 
Joshua Peck highlighted the proposed Council tax increase of 3.5%, the 
equivalent of 50p more a week. 
 
Committee members posed questions to Councillor Peck in relation to figures 
set out in the document. 
 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain enquired if the Adult Health and Wellbeing 
Directorate could make its 5% saving through any other means than by 
cutting the 12.5 jobs, for example reducing senior salaries on consulting 
costs.  Councillor Hussain felt that residents would suffer the affects of the 
proposed job cuts.  The Committee discussed the proposed savings within 

Page 11



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

10 

Adult Health and Well Being and the matters raised by the deputation earlier 
in the meeting.  
 
 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton enquired in relation to the consultation summary, 
the number of residents that participated in the budget consultation process.   
Councillor Peck responded stating that it was desired that more members of 
the public participated in the process as well as detailing their responses, in 
acknowledgement that the process was not highly representative, he 
explained that a lot of work during the year went towards addressing it.  
Councillor Eaton felt that the poor response from members of the public were 
a result of poorly structured questions, and requested further information into 
the process that lead members are involved.  Councillor Peck explained that 
the process goes to discussion at Cabinet in August, there directors are given 
objectives to convey to Budget sub-groups; this period takes two to three 
months and lead members are involved throughout. 
 
Councillor Marc Francis welcomed the Budget report and stated that it was a 
very good budget overall.  He commended the extra investment on the 
Environment and additional investment on CCTV for estates.   
 
After discussion and a vote, the Committee  
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
To welcome the budget proposals, in particular the proposal that the level of 
Council Tax would increase by only 3.5% the efficient savings and additional 
investments proposed. 
 

9.2 Capital Programme 2008/09 to 2010/11  
 
This item was considered together with item 9.1 
 

10. SCRUTINY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT  
 
 

10.1 Scrutiny Challenge Session Report - Determination of Major Planning 
Applications  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the outcome of the Scrutiny Challenge Session on determination of 
Major Planning applications be noted. 
 

11. VERBAL UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  
 
Scrutiny Lead members submitted there updates on paper as time had run in 
the allocated meeting time. 
 

Page 12



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

11 

Councillor Alex Heslop’s statement reported on the progress made at the 
Choice Based Lettings Review. It stated that the session was attended well by 
members, with a presentation by Capital Moves on Pan London Lettings. 
Members raised their concerns in particular at the 30% allocation of new 
builds into the scheme.  The next review session will take place on the 6th of 
February 2008, where members will be visiting the East London Lettings 
Company which advertises social housing available for rent in East London 
for Redbridge, Newham, Waltham Forest, Hackney and Havering Councils. 
 
Councillor Mohammed Abdus Salique’s statement reported on the progress of 
the Use of Consultants Review.  It stated that the final meeting of the review 
was held on the 17th of January 2008, with the meeting producing some useful 
suggestions for the final recommendations.  A final report is expected to come 
to the March Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Councillor Salique’s 
statement further explained the provision for Translation and Interpreting 
services in the borough.  This is in light of new local authorities’ guidance, on 
publishing translated materials and supporting more people to take up 
English.  Tower Hamlets will be working with the London Borough of Hackney 
on some aspects of the new guidance, to consider methods to communicate 
with the respective Communities in the borough. 
 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury’s statement reported on the evaluation of NRF 
Funding.  It explained that the first review session had successfully taken 
place on the 23rd of January 2008, where members were given a brief 
overview of the NRF and the partnership role.  The next review session is 
scheduled for Thursday 14th February with Anna Kavalla invited from the 
Government Office for London (GOL) to give members a briefing on what 
GOL expected the NRF funding to be spent on.  In relation to the 
determination of major planning applications challenge session, the scrutiny 
Team are working with the department to draw up an action plan.  This is set 
to be monitored through the Overview and Scrutiny tracking report on a six 
month basis. 
 
Councillor Salim Ullah statement reported on the evaluation of tackling Anti 
Social Behaviour(ASB).  It explained that the draft scoping document had now 
been finalised.  A very successful review session had taken place on 
Thursday 10th January 2008, which looked at what Tower Hamlets was doing 
to combat ASB.  The next review session had been scheduled for Thursday 
7th February 2008, with the agenda focusing on the youth service, the police, 
Tower Hamlets Partnership with RSLs working together to combat ASB.  In 
response to the effectiveness of Safer Neighbourhood Teams Challenge 
Session, an action plan had now been sent for officers to implement. This 
would be monitored through an Overview and Scrutiny Committee tracking 
report. 
 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain’s statement reported back on the Youth Service 
Challenge session.  It explained that the final report from the scrutiny 
challenge session was currently being commented on, with the subsequent 
report being presented at the next Overview and Scrutiny meeting.  In relation 
the Scrutiny Review of Young Peoples participation in sports leading up to the 

Page 13



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

12 

Olympics, it was revealed that two sessions had taken place.  The first looked 
strategies and partnership working and the second session the Working 
Group visited Mile End Park Leisure centre and York Hall.  Councillor Hussain 
stated that he had attended the Boccia competition at Mile End Leisure centre 
to observe young disabled people young disabled people take part in 
Paralympics sports.  He iterated the point that young people were consulted 
through surveys, but the desired feedback was currently less than 
encouraging.  Schools of the borough had been invited to engage in the 
consultation and a visit to Marion Richardson School was scheduled to film a 
consultation.  
 
Councillor Eaton’s statement reported on the progress of her review on 
Tobacco Cessation. It was noted that work was underway on the final report 
and this would be reported to the Committee soon. There were two planned 
sessions to be held on for Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel. On 19th 
February the Panel will undertake a Challenge Session on revisiting the 
progress on implementing the recommendations from last year’s scrutiny 
review on Access to GP/Dentistry Services. This will also be an opportunity 
for Members to tour the new Barkantine Centre. A workshop will also be held 
on 28th February 2008 to prepare Members for the forthcoming Annual Health 
Check for our local health trusts. Finally, it was noted that the next Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be hosted by Tower Hamlets on 22nd 
February 2008.  

 
 

 
 

12. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
CABINET PAPERS  
 
 
The Committee considered thoroughly the proposed questions to submit to 
Cabinet and agreed that the following will be referred: 
 
Agenda Item 6.1 Reviews of Parking Services’ Fees and Charges (CAB 
117/078) 
 

1. Will the Cabinet consider the creation of a consumer co-operative to 
run a possible Community Car Club in Tower Hamlets? What is the 
likely cost of establishing a Community Car Club? 

 
 
Agenda Item 10.5 Housing Revenue Account 2008/09 Second Budget 
Report(CAB 127/078) 
 

1. What representations has the Cabinet made to the Department of 
Communities & Local Government about the impact of its rent 
restructuring regime leading to above-inflation rent increases on 
tenants on low fixed incomes? 

Page 14



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

13 

 
2. What is the total amount held in the Housing Choice Reserve and how 

much has been placed in it in each year since its creation? 
 
 
Agenda Item 12.1 Annual Performance Assessment of Adult Social Care 
2006/07 (CAB 129/078) 
 
1. What is the timescale for delivering the planned improvements in telecare 

and extra care housing? 
  
2. What steps are being taken to reduce waiting times for major 

adaptations? 
  
3. What actions are planned to increase the percentage of assessments for 

older people completed within two weeks? 
  
4. What measures are being taken to improve the quality of commissioned 

homecare services? 
  
 
 
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
 
Nil Items 
 

14. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  
 
 
The Chair Councillor Marc Francis took the opportunity on behalf of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to thank the departing Assistant Chief 
Executive Sara Williams, for her contribution and hard work over the past few 
years with the Committee, other Committee members echoed these 
sentiments. 
 

15. SECTION TWO REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 
 
Nil Items 
 

16. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) CABINET 
PAPERS (IF ANY)  
 
Nil Items 
 

17. ANY OTHER SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS URGENT  

Page 15



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
05/02/2008 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

14 

 
 

The meeting ended 
At 10.45pm 

 
 

Page 16



1 

Committee: 
 
CABINET 
 

Date: 
 
5th March 2008 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 
 
 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 

9.1 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director: Kevan Collins, 
Corporate Director Children’s Services 
 
Originating officer(s): Mary Durkin, 
Service Head Youth and Community 
Learning, Children’s Services, Stuart 
Johnson, YOT manager 
 

Title:  
 
Youth Justice Plan 2008 –2009: Key Proposals 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The annual Youth Justice Plan (YJ Plan) must be submitted to the Youth Justice 

Board for England and Wales at the end of April 2008. The Council is required by 
statute to produce an annual YJ Plan, setting out how youth justice services are to be 
provided and funded. The Plan is written to a template provided by the national Youth 
Justice Board (YJB). The template for 2008-9 has not yet been made available, but is 
not expected to change significantly from last year.  

 
1.2 The YJ Plan is based around the (current) 15 performance areas and 21 Key 

Performance Indicators against which the Youth Offending Service (YOS) is 
assessed. In developing the plan we will seek to focus on: 
� Local priorities for tackling youth offending 
� Areas for improvement as identified through the Youth Offending Team (YOT) 

inspection 2005 the Joint Area Review and benchmarking against our previous 
years performance. 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
  

Brief description  
Name and telephone number of holder 
and address where open to inspection. 

Strategic Plan and Community Plan Year 7 
– 2007-08 

Alan Steward x4981 

Children and Young People’s Plan Kevan Collins x4953 
Crime and Drugs Reduction Strategy Andy Bamber x6061 
Youth Justice Plan 2007/08 Stuart Johnson, x1144 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 17



2 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Cabinet is recommended to: 

 
2.1 Endorse the key proposals for the 2008/09 Youth Justice Plan, set out in the body of 

the report, and the associated Delivery Plan, attached at Appendix C to this report, as 
the basis for improved performance in relation to reducing youth offending in Tower 
Hamlets, and recommend that Council approve these. 

 
2.2 Authorise the Corporate Director of Children’s Services to make amendments to the 

2008/09 Youth Justice Plan and associated delivery plan, prior to submission to 
Council for approval in April, to reflect additional performance information and funding 
guidance, as these become available. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The YOT is a statutory multi-agency body set up by the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

Its primary aim is to prevent offending by young people, and it has responsibility for 
the delivery of all sentences imposed by the youth court, as well as preventative and 
rehabilitative work with young people between the ages of 10 and 17. The YOS has 
jurisdiction over Tower Hamlets and the City of London and works with between 390 
and 630 young people each year, out of a total 10 – 17 year old population of 21,761 
(2001 Census). The YOS is part of Children’s Services and comprises 36 staff, 
including secondees from Children’s Services, Police, Health, Probation, Connexions, 
Drug Action Team and “Lifeline”. Among the 36 staff are grant funded project 
workers. In addition, the Youth Offending service deploys around 50 sessional 
workers and volunteers.  

 
3.2 The work of the YOS is overseen by a cross-agency YOS Management Board. The 

Board is a fully accountable sub-group of the Living Safely CPAG. It has expanded its 
statutory remit beyond overseeing the direct work of the YOT to look at the wider 
agenda of tackling youth offending, involving all areas of the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership. (See Appendix A for targets) This widening of scope was reflected in the 
2005-6 YJ Plan which sought to align the planned work of the YOT with wider 
partnership work (including the Children and Young People’s Plan - CYPP) and the 
Local Area Agreement (LAA)) on local priorities. The Management Board also sought 
to ensure that the YOS’s priorities were reflected in wider service development, for 
example the re-tendering of the youth service contracts, and Children’s Service’s 
work with parents and families. 

 
3.3 The YOS’s priorities for action will be set in the light of: 
 

� Areas for improvement identified by the 2005 joint inspection of the YOT. This included 
strengthened performance management, victim and restorative justice work, and 
equality issues.  

� Areas for improvement identified by assessment of performance. In 2007-8 this 
highlighted as strategic issues parenting interventions, victim work, education, 

Page 18



3 

employment and training and over-use of custody (in addition to the operational issues 
identified below). 

 
� The outcomes for Children outlined in Every Child Matters, emerging agendas under 

Care Matters, Targeted Youth Support, and the forthcoming legislation related to 
children, young people and crime 

� Partnership priorities in tackling youth offending, as identified by Members in the 
discussion of the previous year’s YJ Plan, and through consultation on the YJ plan with 
CPAG, the YOT Management Board and more widely with partners, including the third 
sector, through YOS development sessions. This is set against a predicted large 
increase of young people resident in the Borough.  

� GLA population predictions of increases of over 14,000 14-18 year olds by 2010 
across the borough. Since 2003-4 the numbers of young people receiving a conviction, 
or admitting guilt and receiving a reprimand or final warning has risen from 435 to 543 
in 2004-5, 573 in 2005-6 and 586 in 2006-7. 
 

 
3.4 Accordingly, the YOS Management Board will identify key priorities for the delivery 

plan. Last year’s priorities were: 
� Early intervention 
� Strengthening families with a focus on parenting 
� Working with victims 
� Supporting partnership action on ASB and the government’s respect agenda 
� Tackling disproportionate representation of some ethnic groups in the Youth 

Justice System – a new objective set in 2005 by the YJB. 
� In addition, we continued to develop the structures for planning, management, 

delivery and evaluation of work on this agenda to ensure the activity of the YOT is 
effectively coordinated with other partnership work, particularly around the CYPP. 
This includes responding to the localisation agenda: ensuring that services 
respond to local needs. 

 
3.5 The YJ Plan, in addition to the 16 YJB performance areas, will contribute to the 

delivery of the following strategic objectives: 
� All of the CYPP priority outcomes, but particularly: Staying Safe, Making a Positive 

Contribution and Achieving Economic Wellbeing 
� Emerging Partnership priorities on a Safer, more Supportive Tower Hamlets, a 

Prosperous Tower Hamlets, and One Tower Hamlets. 
� The Crime and Drugs Reduction Strategy 

 
4. OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 
 
4.1         The performance of the YOT is measured annually against 21 key performance 

indicators (KPIs) set by the YJB. The table below gives a summary of: 
� The 2007/08 YOS performance data which relates to the first nine month period of 

the current financial year (1st April to 31st December) on which the 2008-9 Plan will 
be based. A comparison with YOT family borough areas will not be available until 
the third week of February 2008. 
 

Page 19



4 

� The ‘traffic lights’ in the table are allocated by the YJB on a points basis. 
The table will illustrate some areas where performance improved or worsened in 
the first nine months compared to the previous year 

 
PERFORMANCE DATA 
 

2006 - 2007 Apr - Dec 2007 
Key Performance Indicator 

Preferred 
Outcome 

LBTH YOT  LBTH YOT  
YOT 

Family 

    % No. Target % No. Target % 

Reduction in First Time Entrants to the youth 
justice system: target 5% lower than 2005/06 

Lower 
1.7% 
(red) 

357 -2% 
7.7% 

(red and 
worse) 

260 -5% n/a 

Final Warnings with interventions as % of 
number of final warnings where young person 
meets national standards defined risk 

Higher 
100.0% 
(green) 

46 95% 
100.0% 

(green and 
better) 

25 95% n/a 

Custodial remands as % of all remands 
excluding conditional and unconditional bail 

Lower 
41.7% 
(amber) 

50 <30% 
20.9% 
(red and 
better) 

38 <9% n/a 

Custodial sentences as % of all disposals 
Lower 

8.0% 
(amber) 

47 <5% 
5.6% 

(amber 
and better) 

23 <5% n/a 

2006/07: Victims offered restorative justice as 
% of all victims identified.  2007/08: Victims 
participating in a restorative process as % of 
closed offender interventions 

Higher 
96.3% 
(green) 

183 75% 

13.2% 
 red 

(change in 
indicator) 

32 25% n/a 

Victims satisfied with restorative justice 
process as % of all victims commenting on 
process 

Higher 
90.9% 
(green) 

10 75% 
100.0% 

(green and 
better) 

8 85% n/a 

YOT disposals ending and supported by 
parenting programmes as % of all disposals 
ending 

Higher 
1.9% 
(red) 

7 10% 
9.5% 

(red and 
better) 

16 20% n/a 

2006/07: Parents satisfied with programme as 
% of all parents commenting on programme.  
2007/08: Prevention programmes ending and 
supported by parenting programmes as % of all 
programmes ending 

Higher 
100.0% 
(green) 

9 75% 
20% 

(green and 
better) 

5 20% n/a 

DTO plans completed within national standard 
timescales as % of all DTO plans required 

Higher 
69.2% 
(red) 

27 95% 
85.7% 
(amber 

and better) 
18 95% n/a 

Young people in suitable ETE at the end of their 
order as % of all young people ending orders 

Higher 
72.5% 
(red) 

256 90% 
81.7% 
(amber 

and better) 
181 90% n/a 

Young people in suitable accommodation at the 
end of their order as % of all young people 
ending orders 

Higher 
95.5% 
(green) 

362 95% 
95.5% 

(green and 
better) 

235 95% n/a 

Young people with acute mental health 
concerns assessed by CAMHS within national 
standard timescales as % of all young people 
with acute mental health concerns referred to 
CAMHS 

Higher 
100.0% 
(green) 

1 95% None 0 95% n/a 

Young people with non-acute mental health 
concerns assessed by CAMHS within national 
standard timescales as % of all young people 
with non-acute mental health concerns referred 
to CAMHS 

Higher 
100.0% 
(green) 

39 95% 
100.0% 
(green  

and better) 
24 95% n/a 

Page 20



5 

2006 - 2007 Apr - Dec 2007 
Key Performance Indicator 

Preferred 
Outcome 

LBTH YOT  LBTH YOT  
YOT 

Family 

Young people assessed for substance misuse 
within national standard timescales as % of all 
young people screened for substance misuse 
who required an assessment 

Higher 
100.0% 
(green) 

83 85% 
100.0% 
(green) 

59 90% n/a 

Young people receiving treatment for 
substance misuse within national standard 
timescales as % of all young people assessed 
as requiring treatment 

Higher 98.9% 92 85% 
96.6% 

B 
57 90% n/a 

 
4.2 COMMENTARY ON PERFORMANCE 

 

Of most concern are the areas in which the service is showing red, or failing against 
the KPI targets: First Time Entrants (FTE), Custodial Remands, Victims Participating 
in Restorative Justice and Parenting Support. With the exception of FTE, our 
performance against all KPI targets has improved from 2006-7. 

 
 Analysis of performance and actions for improvement  
 

• As an overall issue, the rapidly rising youth population is very significant. According to 
GLA population predictions, increases of over 14,000 14-18 year olds are predicted 
by 2010 across the borough. 

• In response to the increase of First Time Entrants (FTE) to the Youth Justice System, 
we are undertaking detailed examination of the data. The pattern so far for the year 
is: 
Apr-Jun 07 FTE = 112. 

 Jul-Sep 07 FTE = 68. 
 Oct-Dec 07 FTE = 80.  
 No single reason has been established with certainty as to the cause of the large 

Quarter 1 figure.  There has been national press coverage on police outcome and 
reduction targets and the effect of this on the numbers of young people arrested. 
We are collating information on the young people themselves and on the offences, 
to see if patterns emerge.  

• Custodial Remands: A new target of under 9% of all remand episodes was 
introduced in April 2007 (from under 30% in the previous year), following a change 
in the YJB Counting Rules.  The percentage figures for 2007-08 and 2006-07 are 
not therefore directly comparable with one another. Analysis of those remanded to 
custody show some indications of an increase in serious cases (for example, 
alleged murder, rape, robbery at knife point, repeat violent offending, possession of 
drugs with intent to supply, breach of order and absconding) Nevertheless, the trend 
over the last year is down quarter by quarter: 

• Apr-Jun 07 = 17 - 23.94% of total remands 
 Jul-Sep 07 = 13 – 23.64% of total remands 
 Oct-Dec 07 = 8 – 14.29% of total remands 

• Victims participating in Restorative Justice: A new target of 20% was introduced in 
April 2007, following a change in the YJB Counting Rules.  The percentage figures 

Page 21



6 

for 2007-08 and 2006-07 are not therefore directly comparable with one another. 
The preferred outcome is higher. 

 Apr-Jun 07 = 5 – 5.6% of interventions closed 
 Jul – Sep 07 = 8 – 10.1% of interventions closed 
 Oct – Dec 07 = 19 – 25.7% of interventions closed 
 The direction of travel is positive.  The target was met in the third quarter, and 

robust systems are in place to ensure that this target is met in the fourth quarter.  
However, due to the poor performance earlier in the year, the full year cumulative 
figure may not meet the 20% target. 

 
 
 

Parenting Support: Plans to improve this area of performance are in place and 
involve a concerted corporate approach, outlined in section 5 of this plan, and 
centre around working with the families of offenders, the “Think Family” initiative and 
our efforts in respect of the prevention of re-offending. This indicator replaced the 
previous indicator which measured parental satisfaction with parenting interventions.  
The target of 20% was introduced in April 2007.  The percentage figures for the 
measure for 2007-08 and 2006-07 cannot be compared with one another. 
Nevertheless an upward trend can be seen, especially in the figures for prevention 
work. 

 
4.3 The YJB sets performance targets for YOTs on an annual basis. The targets set for  

next year will be reviewed to ensure they reflect our local objectives and where 
necessary, more ambitious targets will be set locally to reflect the priorities 
assigned to work with children and young people in Tower Hamlets.  

 

5. LOCAL PRIORITY INITIATIVES 
 
5.1      The priorities outlined in this plan are part of a new thrust from Youth Offending    

Services to engage with the families of offenders and to expand our targeted early 
intervention work in partnership with other areas of Children’s Services and our 
statutory partners. It is an approach that will have some immediate effect but the impact 
on youth crime will be realised over the medium and long term. In order to achieve our 
aims we need interventions for children and young people of all ages which clearly 
cannot be provided by the YOS alone.  

  
 

A high rate of criminalisation not only damages victims and community life, it is deeply 
detrimental to the welfare of the offender, threatening family breakdown, disrupting 
education and damaging prospects of employment and weakening positive factors in a 
young person’s life   We aim to establish a referral system for the children in offenders’ 
families, the siblings of young offenders, parenting support for their parents, and for the 
children of adult prisoners. We are developing closer links with inclusion work in 
Children’s Services, broadening our early identification capacity, for example through 
assessment and referral of the children of adult prisoners, and aim to establish 
localised initiatives in conjunction with the LAP co-ordinators. 

 

Page 22



7 

 
 5.2      Priority initiatives for this year’s Youth Justice Plan have been drawn from those of the  

 Police, The Youth Justice Board, an extraordinary YOT management Board focussed 
 on developing the Youth Offending Service, and consultation with members and 
 partners. They have been aligned to the emerging Tower Hamlets Community Plan 
 Refresh themes. The work of Youth Justice services and the partnership working 
 around the priorities set out in the annual will make a particular contribution to: “A 
 Supportive and Safe Community”,  “One Tower Hamlets”, and “A Prosperous 
 Community”. Some of the YJ Plan priorities will cut across these themes 
  
 
6.       A SUPPORTIVE AND SAFE COMMUNITY 
 
6.1 The vision is of a borough that fosters supportive and safe communities across Tower  

Hamlets, providing a responsive approach to support the most vulnerable people with 
targeted services of the highest quality. This will include the provision of holistic 
services, jointly across organisations in the public and third sector. Services which will 
provide choice to empower vulnerable people to take control of their lives and those of 
their families, by investment in the capacity of residents to avoid the causes of 
vulnerability and to remove the causes of crime, prevent re-offending and make people 
feel safer by using an early intervention, preventative approach. 

 
Key priorities: 
 

• Ensuring an effective response to the diverse needs of all key groups, including older 
people, ex-offenders, people with a disability, carers, refugees and asylum seekers, 
children at risk, victims of domestic violence, those with long term conditions, homeless 
people and victims of crime  

• Recognising and addressing multiple needs such as health, drugs, alcohol, education, 
skills, employment, accommodation, mental health, debt, benefits etc.  

• Addressing the needs of the family rather than just the individual and recognising 
intergenerational issues  

• Building preventative services with a focus on addressing issues before they become 
problematic  

• Delivering effective and value for money services which address root causes and not 
just effects 

• Removing the causes of crime, bringing offenders to justice, preventing re-offending 
and making people feel safer 

• Delivering appropriate, proportional and holistic approaches to preventing crime based 
on the Offender – Victim – Location problem analysis triangle  

• Challenging perceptions and promoting successes effectively to reduce debilitating 
fear of crime 

• Mainstreaming crime prevention across all agencies in the partnership so it is a natural 
consideration in all strategic planning 

• Addressing the causes of crime through early intervention with at-risk groups 

• Reducing re-offending through holistic intervention with all who become involved with 
the criminal justice system  

Page 23



8 

 
 The Youth Offending Services two main initiatives to support this theme are work with 

the families of offenders and the focus on offending and re-offending. Actions in 
support of these priorities are set out below. 

 
6.2 The YOT is currently managing work with families engaged in anti-social behaviour    

(ASB), nuisance and harassment with significant social problems, and where statutory 
agencies are failing to have an impact or secure engagement. This is showing 
promising success with the majority of over 40 family cases accepted, many of which 
have included young people known to the YOS.  

 
We aim to link with work across services building on the parenting agenda – ranging 
from the Family Nurse partnership, Family Welfare Association and Family Support 
Workers in Children’s Centres, Strengthening Families Strengthening Communities 
programmes through extended schools, to more intensive work supported by Coram 
Families and our social care teams. FISP work provides an additional tool for intensive 
work with chaotic families. DCSF have announced a Family Pathfinders scheme 
following on from the Families at Risk Review and the “Think Family” report. This has 
the scope for 13 Local Authorities to bid for 3 year funding in order to deliver services to 
excluded groups and to review their delivery around family. We intend to bid, in 
conjunction with the Community Safety Service to expand the work of the FISP with the 
families of offenders.  

 
 
6.3       The Social Exclusion Unit’s figures produced in 'Reducing the Risk of Re-offending by  

Ex-prisoners', 2002, show that a staggering 65% of children of the adult prison 
population go on to offend themselves, and further to that, boys with a convicted father 
are 3.3 times more at risk of being convicted of a crime than those with a non-
convicted father. As a result, we intend to target these families for preventative 
services, and also to make referrals on the families of youth offenders where the YJB 
assessment tool ASSETT shows family issues as significant in causing them to offend. 

 
6.4       The Council has launched a bid for Beacon Status for Reducing Re-offending and over  

the coming year we will work closely with the “Looking Out” initiative by Community 
Safety to work with adults being released from prison and their re-settlement into the 
Borough, the family work enabled under FISP will be key, but also a focus on 
Prevention and on reducing the use of Custody, which often results in escalated 
offending rates and dislocation of individuals from their family and community. 

 
6.5       Actions planned in respect of improving KPI performance in respect of Custodial  
             Remand figures: 

 

• The spot purchase of Remand Fostering [and Police and Criminal Evidence Act 
beds] is now established and the in house Remand Fostering Scheme is in an 
advanced stage of development with the first recruitment drive for carers launched 
in January 2008. This resource, particularly in targeting more vulnerable young 
people, will assist in reducing remands into custody as it becomes embedded into 
practice and through publicising it with the Courts. 

Page 24



9 

 

• The Race Audit is raising the profile of the over-representation of BME young 
people in certain stages of the Criminal Justice System among the agencies 
involved at Thames Youth Court. Implementation of the Race Audit Action Plan is 
progressing well and the agenda will be pushed ahead during the coming months. 
Tasks include highlighting the profile of over-representation with sentencers and 
encouraging other agencies e.g. the Police, to use their resources in identifying in 
more detail why there is an over-representation and how this might be addressed at 
different points in the system including in Court and in relation to remands in 
custody.  

 

• A new protocol between YOT and Children’s Social Care [CSC] has been 
completed and will be fully implemented in the coming year. This will ensure 
smoother working processes particularly in relation to the interface between 
services in relation to remand/custody.  

 

• A Transition protocol for young people will be fully implemented in the coming year, 
and the YOS has inputted to its creation. 

 

• The remand management/bail support scheme has been rewritten and awaits 
approval and implementation. 

 

 Returns indicate a trend of a significant number of custodial remands happening in 
other Borough Courts at Thames Magistrates Court and at Highbury Corner 
Magistrates on Saturdays and Bank Holidays. Remedial actions will include having a 
duty Bail/Remand worker in the office on a daily basis and improving attendance at 
Court to ensure a hands-on approach. In relation to Highbury Corner there will be a 
renewed drive with our cluster colleagues to improve the exchange of information 
outside office hours. 

6.6  We wish to build upon our effective rates of crime reduction via Preventative and Early 
intervention work. The YISP has expanded the cohort of young people it works with 
and of the 316 referrals 82% have not re-offended. Our Referral Order Panel is also 
producing good reduced re-offending rates, of the 2005 cohort, after 12 months 
tracking 61% did not re-offend at all, of the remaining 39%, 35% re-offended less 
seriously, and 61% re-offended less frequently. We aim to introduce work with the 
Local Area Partnerships to ensure there is an even geographical spread of referrals 
across the Borough and a much more joined up approach across the laps on 
identifying vulnerable young people. 

 

6.7  A new post of Police Inspector for Youth is to work with the Head of Youth Offending 
Services to achieve this and to establish strong links between YOT, Safer Schools and 
Safer Neighbourhood Police officers and staff, we hope to therefore improve 
enforcement and intelligence sharing on those youth offenders returning to the 

Page 25



10 

community and also those who are Youth Prolific Priority Offenders, subject to ISSP 
and curfew, with face to face contact with their community policing team  

 

6.8  Police and YOS will develop project work to focus on those young people that are 
vulnerable to radical views, and Project Nicole work will be run in 2008, engaging key 
members of the Islamic community in an interactive session to discuss terrorism and 
the impact it has on communities, the police and the government .We will evaluate the 
event to explore the organisation of a similar event for youths  

7 ONE TOWER HAMLETS 
 
7.1  The vision is of a Borough of diverse, dynamic communities, with a history of 

welcoming new communities and a place where no-one is isolated and where people 
from all backgrounds choose to live. The vision acknowledges that inequalities and 
deprivation still exist, and are to be tackled. 

 
 
 

Key priorities: 

• Reducing inequalities focusing on both priority issues (e.g. employment, education) 
and their dimensions (e.g. geographic area, age, socio-economic group, ethnicity, etc.) 

• Building community cohesion. Understanding the contribution that all make to 
cohesion, mainstream services, businesses, faith and community groups, and 
individuals 

• Fostering shared values – respect, responsibility, ambition, working together 

• Breaking down territorialism – targeted action in areas and with groups 

• Creating stronger relationships between young people and the wider community – 
 building bridges, intergenerational understanding and mutual respect 

 
 The main contribution to this theme will be delivered by the YOS and its partners 

focusing on youth gangs and violence. Most of the victims of these crimes are other 
young people, and they are territorial and divisive.  

  
7.2     Relationships with other children’s service areas are to be developed to ensure that the 

PSHE, Citizenship and emotional health programmes in schools address these key 
issues. We have made further progress in meeting the health needs of young people 
receiving our service, maintaining excellent performance against the YJB targets in 
relation to mental health, and extending the physical heath screening offered to young 
people attending the Pupil Referral Unit to those within the Youth Offending service. 

7.3 We will establish a commission to explore what can be done to improve the public 
safety of young people in Tower Hamlets. It will sit for a three month period and hear 
information from all agencies with information to give, and services to provide, it will 
consult with young people themselves via the Youth Parliament and other youth 
forums, and produce a plan for the way forward which will secure the commitment and 

Page 26



11 

engagement of all concerned. 
 

7.4   In partnership with the Police and the Community Safety Unit, we will seek to reduce 
serious youth violence linked to gang activity or group association by: 

• The effective management by all agencies of those young people vulnerable to 
escalating offending by rejuvenating and strengthening the Youth Prolific Priority 
Offenders scheme. 

• Effective support and diversionary activity for vulnerable young people through 
supportive work by youth workers and the voluntary sector around culture, association 
and citizenship  

7.5  With regard to youth violence we will:  

• Work with a range of  organisations to support mediation and challenge pre- conceived 
ideas and to divert young people away from violence and gang culture.   

• Work with LB of Hackney in respect of vulnerable youths entering Tower Hamlets - to 
develop a cross border information sharing partnership meeting to ensure that youths 
entering Tower Hamlets for schooling do so in the safest environment and that those 
most vulnerable and those that offend are identified and appropriately supported or 
targeted. 

• Work with schools on crime reduction and Good Citizenship, following the successes 
of Operation Curb 

• Involve and engage  schools by planning safety zones around them, and through the 
joined up schools programme, ensuring that the delivery of key messages to young 
people about their safety is timely and strategically planned.  Youth crime statistics 
show that robbery talk programmes will be most effective in the Autumn, and those on 
ASB in the Spring, we aim to work with school improvement teams and the Humanities 
Education Centre to support the school curriculum.  

• Follow any serious incident of violence in/around a school, we will convene a strategy 
meeting with key leads to minimise risk, provide reassurance and target the young 
people involved. 

• Use the extended school cluster change teams to emphasise and discuss the needs of 
targeted young people including ex-offenders and those considered vulnerable to 
entering the youth justice system. Within the broad programme of extended services 
delivered in and around schools, diversionary activities can be established and 
provided within each of the four cluster localities. 

• Work with the  borough's 14-19 Partnership and Youth and Community Services who 
are currently undertaking a project with schools, Transport for London, young people 
and other stakeholders in developing a strategy and recommendations for safe travel 
around the borough. 

8 PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

8.1  The Vision is of a borough of immense opportunities with young people skilled and 
ready to access the employment opportunities that are available, where all of our 
young people make use of the leisure, cultural and community assets of the community 

Page 27



12 

to widen their horizons and lead healthy and fulfilled lives. Our wealth in terms of 
opportunity, diversity and location on the City Fringe, housing Canary Wharf, hosting 
the Olympics and as part of Thames Gateway should be fully exploited. 

 
Key priorities: 

• Establishing a continuous learning offer including second, and third chances for 
those who don’t achieve the basics in education by 16 to do so later in life and for 
adults to “retrain” and enhance skills for future labour market  

• Better workforce planning that aligns learning (skills etc) to current and future 
business structures and trends and the needs of vulnerable young people 

• High quality flexible childcare so those that want to work can work 

• Working with the 14-19 partnership to provide flexible and personalised curriculum 
pathways including better access to vocational education 

• Using the opportunity of the Building Schools of the Future investment to raise 
standards of achievement and promote active and engaged learning 

• Incentives to encourage entrepreneurship, social entrepreneurship and business 
relocation into our most deprived communities 

 
 
YOS initiatives in support of this theme are set out below. 
 
8.2  The borough is currently developing its arrangements for establishing an Integrated 

Youth Support Service. The YOT is an integral part of the Targeted Youth Support 
arrangements and the Head of Youth Offending Services sits on the Integrated Youth 
Support Board. A key element of the delivery will be Targeted Youth Support and the 
development of area based teams to focus on young people at risk of not achieving the 
five Every Child Matters outcomes (including those at risk of falling into crime or anti-
social behaviour).  They will provide: 

  

• A single point of contact to support and challenge - a lead professional;  

• A support package that draws on mainstream and specialist services of 
 sufficient quality and quantity;  

• A single route of referral to extra support from different agencies as soon as 
 risks emerge;  

• Help to access support earlier on; and  
 
  Support to live in a stronger family environment. 
 
8.3  We will target young people in the Youth Justice System for youth work from Positive 

Activities for Young People (PAYP) which is being re-orientated to a year- round 
service rather than one for school holidays, and provide a PAYP link worker to target 
those in the YJ system. Integrated Youth Support will be offered to ensure that 
offenders’ leisure time is used constructively and a young person’s interests are 
developed. Building on success with volunteers in the Referral Order Panels and 
subsequent effective re-offending reduction rates above, the YOS is to establish a 
Volunteering Co-Coordinator to recruit, train and deploy volunteer adults to mentor and 

Page 28



13 

assist offenders. It is our experience that young people often respond better to unpaid 
workers from their community than to trained professionals. 
 

8.4  Our target to ensure 90% of young people ending their order with the Youth Offending 
Team are in Education Training and Employment will also make a major contribution to 
this theme, and we will, under the FISP Extension work, connect adult members of 
their families to regeneration initiatives on workless families and to Lifelong Learning. 
We will work with other areas of Children’s Services and parenting support services to 
target the parents of those less than 5 years of age considered vulnerable. Tower 
Hamlets partnership has a Parental Engagement and Family Support Strategy and 
Board which co-ordinates the commissioning of work with parents. The YOT links with 
this and is therefore able to support families to access the full range of parenting 
programmes available across the Borough. 

 
8.5  The YOT is an active member of the SIP panel, both receiving and making referrals to 

other agencies, and agreeing lead professional and team around the child 
arrangements for each young person. 

 
8.6  We will work with the 14 19 strategy to help those who do not achieve the basics in 

education by age 16, using New Start, Connexions and the services of the YOS 
Keeping Young People in Education (KYPE) worker, funded by the Youth Justice 
Board to help young offenders become “job ready”. 
 

 
9 DELIVERY PLAN PROPOSALS FOR COMMENT 
 
9.1  The Delivery Plan attached as appendix B provides an overview of: 

� Performance in the previous year; and 
� How we will meet the KPI targets set by the YJB for 2008/09 (Revisions to the 

targets are awaited). 
 

Underpinning the Delivery Plan is a detailed action plan setting out the activities the 
partnership will undertake under each of the 16 YJB themes. 

 
9.2  The draft Delivery Plan and action plan will be developed by the YOT Management 

Board in consultation with internal and external partners and stakeholders. Officers 
will further develop the plan in the light of comments before submission to Full 
Council in 2008. In addition, we continue working on the Race Audit Action Plan, 
which will set out activities to meet the new YJB objective to reduce disproportionate 
representation of certain ethnic groups in the youth justice system. We have 
established a multi-agency Race Audit Action Group which is currently finalising a 
multi-agency action plan arising from the audit and two subsequent statistical and 
analysis reports that have been commissioned. 

 
9.3  Under each theme, Cabinet is requested to consider whether the proposed activities 

reflect the partnership’s priorities for tackling youth offending. 
 
10  OVERVIEW OF RESOURCING 

Page 29



14 

 
10.1  It is currently anticipated that all the delivery plan proposals listed above will be catered 

for within the 2008/09 budget. A number of historical grants have been incorporated 
into the new Area based Grant (ABG) and the level and scope of some activities will be 
determined following the distribution of the new grant. A risk assessment has been 
completed to evaluate the impact of different options and this will be used to inform 
discussions, as the allocation of the grant is determined.  

 
The 2007/08 budget for the YOT consisted of the following*:      ( * National YJB Template) 

Agency Staffing costs (£) Payments in kind – 
revenue (£) 

Other delegated 
funds (£) 

Total (£) 

Police 96,900  6,489 103,389 

Probation (from 
Table A2c) 

30.982  10,300 41,282 

Children’s 
Services 

307,734   307,734 

Education 96,516   96,516 

Health (from Table 
A2b) 

35,020 20,600 5,279 60,899 

Local Authority 
Chief Executive  

320,330 187,460  507,790 

Additional Funding 
(from Table A2a) 

  1,040,289 1,040,289 

Total: 887,483 208,060 1,062,357 2,157,900 

 

 
11. TIMETABLE FOR SUBMISSION OF THE YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 
 

 
11.1 The YJB in 2007 brought forward the timescale for the submission of this statutory 

plan to align it with the Children and Young People’s Plan and the Annual 
Performance Assessment. The revised timetable means that only three-quarters of 
performance information are available to inform planning. 

 
11.2 The ambitious submission timetable aims to secure full Council agreement of the draft 

plan in time to incorporate any agreed additions or amendments before the YJB 
deadline for submission at the end of April 2008.  

 
12.. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
 
12.1 The Youth Justice Plan detailed in this report is to be funded from a number of 

sources such as central government grants and funding from partners.  In 2007-08 
the Council’s contribution is fully funded from the Children’s Services Directorate.  
Please note that the table at paragraph 6.2 indicates separate elements for Council 
funding as Children’s Services and Education, this is not a reference to the source of 
funding but a differentiation in the national YJB template, with the latter element 
indicating the educational nature of the expenditure.    

 

Page 30



15 

12.2 In 2008-09, the Council’s contribution will be contained within the Children’s Services 
Directorate on the basis of the continuation of the external funding sources that are to 
be included in the Area Based Grant. If funding via these sources are not forthcoming 
then the activity currently funded will cease. 

 
 
12.3 All funding sources are cash limited.  The Service must ensure that all funding 

streams are fully and correctly utilised in achieving the Plan.   
 
13. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Legal) 
 
13.1 Pursuant to Section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 the Council is required to 

submit the Youth Justice Plan to The Youth Justice Board for England and Wales on 
an annual basis. The plan is prepared in accordance with a template provided by the 
Youth Justice Board and is prepared in partnership with the Police, Probation and 
Health Service. This report is asking Cabinet to consider, comment and endorse the 
draft Youth Justice Plan for 2007/2008 and also asks for Cabinet to recommend the 
plan to Full Council. 

 
13.2 Under Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution the plan is a Policy Framework document 

and subject to the procedure set out in the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules.  It is for the Cabinet to take account of the responses to consultation, including 
any response from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to submit 
recommendations to Council. 

 
 
14. ANTI-POVERTY  IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 Evidence shows that young people from impoverished backgrounds are more likely to 

be both victims and perpetrators of youth crime. By ensuring effective partnership 
working between agencies to provide a holistic response to young people at risk, the 
Youth Justice Plan seeks to address that discrepancy.  

 
15 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS   
 
15.1 The Youth Justice Board recognises that nationally, black and minority ethnic (BME) 

children and young people continue to be disproportionately represented throughout 
the youth justice system. The YOT has undertaken a full Race Audit to identify 
differences between the YOT cohort and the youth demographic of the Borough. This 
has identified over-representation by certain groups. A Race Audit Action Group has 
been set up to respond to this and this work has been incorporated into the attached 
draft 2006/07 Delivery Plan. The Group will conclude with a multi-agency (Court 
Clerks, Youth Court sentencers, Police, Crown Court Prosecution Service, YOT) 
action plan and will meet quarterly in 2008-9 to monitor progress. An amended in-
depth report on key issues arising from the audit, commissioned from Social 
information Systems Ltd, who amalgamated all Race Audits into a national paper on 
behalf of the YJB, was appended to the Youth Justice Plan 2007-8, and the work of 
the Group was informed by an in-house report on local issues for the Borough. 

Page 31



16 

 
15.2 An Equalities Impact Assessment of the Crime and Drugs Reduction Partnership 

Strategy was undertaken in 2006 which identified a number of activities to be 
undertaken by the YOT including: 
� Production of a standard protocol to ensure appropriate race equality policies are 

in place when working in partnership with external organisations 
� Provision of gender appropriate support packages to truly reflect the offending 

rate of each gender group.  With regard to this requirement, the YOT provides 
group work and one-to-one programmes using support packages such as 
“Pathways” (Cognitive behavioural programme) , “Teen-Talk” and the Violent 
Offender Programme, which cater to the requirements of both genders and which 
can be adapted for gender specific group or one-to-one sessions.  A male only 
group of young offenders has completed a 12 week “Pathways” programme.  
Gender specific work is also delivered on a one-to-one basis, especially with 
female young offenders who often require work which is personalised to their 
individual requirements.  Prevention work delivered by the YISP Team via 
programmes such as the ongoing Health Defence programme, “Green Visions”, 
which comprises both a taster programme and a full 4 session programme, and 
PAYP school holiday activities cater for both sexes, with gender specific activities 
for the young people where appropriate.  A 5 session “Staying Cool” violent 
offender programme for girls was run in a local school in January 2007. 

 
 

16. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  
 
16.1 The Youth Justice Plan is not expected to have major implications in this area. 

However, community reparation schemes contribute to partnership work on the 
environment, including the “Re-Cycle” scheme which receives unclaimed stolen 
bicycles from the Tower Hamlets Police Service and old or unwanted bicycles from 
the community, repairing and rebuilding them for shipping to Health and Charity 
workers in Africa, and will also help children’s projects in the Borough.  This scheme 
runs from Lea-side wood recycling project at no rental cost from the operators from 
two converted shipping containers. Its electricity is also free, being generated from 
used cooking oil from restaurants in Canary Wharf.  

 
16.2 Several other schemes involve offenders in work on community farms and in 

cleaning, clearing and replanting neglected or disused parts of the Borough.  
 
17. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 
17.1 A number of risks to the delivery of the 2008/09 Youth Justice Plan have been 

identified, including loss of funding and failure to meet targets. As such, a risk 
analysis is to be undertaken on each action contained within the action plan. 

 
18 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
18.1 The process of developing the YJ Plan has included reviewing the current allocation 

of resources across the Crime Reduction Partnership and Children’s Services to 

Page 32



17 

tackle youth crime. This has identified scope for streamlining and coordination which 
will result in more effective and efficient services. Example of how this has been 
included in the Delivery Plan include the proposal for a single parenting charter for the 
partnership and the alignment of assessment and referral processes, both of which 
avoid duplication and have the potential to deliver economies of scale. 

 
 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – YOT Management Board TH Partnership Targets 
Appendix B – YOS Management Board Chair’s Overview 
Appendix C – YJ Plan 2008-9 Delivery Plan (as a separate document) 
 
             

Page 33



1
8
 

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
: 

Y
O

T
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
 T

H
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
N

o
. 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

In
 

L
A

A
?

 

In
 3

 
Y

e
a

r 
P

la
n

?
 

B
a

s
e

li
n

e
 

(0
6

/0
7

 u
n

le
s

s
 s

p
e

c
if

ie
d

) 
0

8
/0

9
 

0
9

/1
0
 

1
0

/1
1
 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

N
I 

1
6

 
S

e
ri

o
u
s
 a

c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 r

a
te

 –
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 
s
a

n
c
ti
o
n

e
d

 d
e

te
c
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
a

 p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
r 

u
n
d

e
r 

1
8

  
Y

e
s
 

Y
e

s
 

T
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 
-1

.5
%

 
-1

%
 

-1
%

 
S

te
v
e

 
B

e
n

d
in

g
 

A
C

4
 

R
o

b
b

e
ry

 C
o

m
b

in
e
d

 –
 w

h
e

re
 t
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
a

n
c
ti
o

n
e

d
 

d
e

te
c
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
a

 p
e

rp
e

tr
a
to

r 
u
n

d
e

r 
1

8
 

 N
o

 
Y

e
s
 

T
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 
-7

.5
%

 
-2

.5
%

 
-2

.5
%

 
 

N
I 

2
2

 
P

e
rc

e
p
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
p

a
re

n
ts

 t
a
k
in

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 
 N

o
 

Y
e

s
 

7
7

%
 (

0
6

/0
7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

),
 7

3
%

 (
0

7
8

/0
8

 
ta

rg
e

t)
 

7
1

%
 

6
9

%
 

6
7

%
 

 

N
I 

1
5

 
S

e
ri

o
u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 
c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

  
–
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
a
n

c
ti
o

n
e

d
 

d
e

te
c
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
a

 p
e

rp
e

tr
a
to

r 
u
n

d
e

r 
1

8
 

Y
e

s
 

Y
e

s
 

1
.3

9
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 (

h
ig

h
e

s
t 

in
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
6

%
 

3
%

 
2

%
 

S
a

n
d

ra
 

L
o

o
b

y
 

N
I 

2
8

 
K

n
if
e

 c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

  
–
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
a

n
c
ti
o
n

e
d

 d
e

te
c
ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

a
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 
 N

o
 

Y
e

s
 

2
.1

6
 P

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

-5
%

 
-2

%
 

-1
%

 
 

N
I 

2
9

 
G

u
n

 c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

  
–

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
a
n

c
ti
o

n
e
d

 d
e
te

c
ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

a
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 
 N

o
 

Y
e

s
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 

 
 

 
 

N
I 

2
0

 
A

s
s
a
u

lt
 w

it
h

 i
n

ju
ry

 c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

  
 –

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
s
a

n
c
ti
o
n

e
d

 d
e

te
c
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
a

 p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
r 

u
n
d

e
r 

1
8

 
 N

o
 

Y
e

s
 

 A
w

a
it
in

g
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 

-6
%

 
-3

%
 

-2
%

 
 

N
I 

1
9

 
R

a
te

 o
f 
p

ro
v
e

n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 o
ff
e

n
d
e

rs
 

Y
e

s
 

Y
e

s
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 M
a

r.
 0

8
 (

N
e

w
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

r)
 

 
 

 
S

tu
a

rt
 

J
o

h
n
s
o

n
 

N
I 

4
3

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p
le

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 S
y
s
te

m
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 

a
 c

o
n

v
ic

ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
o

u
rt

 w
h

o
 a

re
 s

e
n

te
n
c
e

d
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 

 Y
e

s
 

Y
e

s
 

8
%

(0
6

/0
7

 O
u

tt
u

rn
),

 5
%

 (
0
7

/0
8
 

ta
rg

e
t)

 
 

 
 

S
tu

a
rt

 
J
o

h
n
s
o

n
 

N
I 

4
4

 
E

th
n

ic
 c

o
m

p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 o
n

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e

 
S

y
s
te

m
 d

is
p
o

s
a

ls
  

 N
o

 
Y

e
s
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 M
a

r 
0

8
 (

N
e

w
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r)

 
 

 
 

S
tu

a
rt

 
J
o

h
n
s
o

n
 

N
I 

4
5

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 s
u

it
a
b

le
 e

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
 Y

e
s
 

Y
e

s
 

7
2

.5
%

 (
O

6
/0

7
 o

u
tt
u

rn
),

  
9

0
%

 (
0

7
/0

8
 

T
a

rg
e

t)
 

 
 

 
S

tu
a

rt
 

J
o

h
n
s
o

n
 

N
I 

4
6

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

 Y
e

s
 

Y
e

s
 

9
5

.5
%

 (
0

6
/0

7
 O

u
tt
u

rn
) 

9
5

.5
%

 
(0

7
/0

8
 T

a
rg

e
t)

 
 

 
 

S
tu

a
rt

 
J
o

h
n
s
o

n
 

N
I 

1
1

1
 

F
ir

s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e

 S
y
s
te

m
 a

g
e

d
 1

0
 

–
 1

7
 

Y
e

s
  

Y
e

s
 

3
3

4
 (

0
6

/0
7
 a

c
tu

a
ls

),
 3

1
8

 (
0

7
/0

8
 

ta
rg

e
ts

) 
 

 
 

S
tu

a
rt

 
J
o

h
n
s
o

n
 

L
A

A
S

1
0

1
 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 Y

o
u

th
 C

ri
m

e
 

 N
o

 
T

B
C

 
6

4
4

 (
0
7

/0
8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

),
 5

7
0

 (
0

7
/0

8
 

ta
rg

e
t)

 
5

%
 

3
%

 
2

%
 

 

  

Page 34



Item 9.1 

Appendix B 

 

YOS MANAGEMENT BOARD CHAIR’S Overview: 
This is the second year in which the Youth Offending Service (YOS) Management Board has formally 
been a fully accountable sub-group of the statutory Crime and Disorder Partnership (known locally as 
the Living Safely CPAG). It has expanded its statutory remit beyond overseeing the direct work of the 
Youth Offending Team, to look at the wider agenda of tackling youth offending, involving all areas of 
the Tower Hamlets Partnership. This widening of scope is reflected in this year’s Youth Justice Plan, 
which seeks to align the planned work of the YOS with wider partnership work on local priorities 
(including through the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) the Community Plan refresh and 
the Local Area Agreement (LAA)). The Management Board has also sought to ensure that the YOT’s 
priorities are reflected in wider service development, for example Children’s Service’s work with 
parents and families. There have also been positive learning and developmental aspects of the YOS 
being fully involved in our preparations for the Joint Area Review (JAR) The Local Area Agreement 
has given a strong boost to this work by identifying all six Youth Justice Board proposed youth justice 
targets as objectives.  
 
The Youth Justice Plan for 2008/09 assesses the YOT’s performance in 2007/08 and details its plans 
for the next financial year to meet the targets for the 15 priority themes set by the Youth Justice 
Board (YJB).   
The performance table in the report gives a summary of performance against the 15 KPIs: 
 

� The 2007/08 YOS performance data which relates to the first nine month period of the 
current financial year (1st April to 31st December) on which the 2008-9 Plan is based. A 
comparison with YOT family borough areas will not be available until the third week of 
February 2008. 

� The ‘traffic lights’ in the table are allocated by the YJB on a points basis. 
 
The table illustrates progress on performance in the first nine months compared to the previous year. 
With the exception of First Time Entrants (FTEs) KPI, our performance against all KPI targets has 
improved from 2006-7.  Of most concern are the areas in which the service is showing red, or failing 
against the KPI targets namely; FTEs, Custodial Remands, Victims participating in Restorative 
Justice and Parenting support.  

Analysis of performance and actions for improvement are as follows; 
 
As an overall issue, the rapidly rising youth population is very significant with the largest growth in 
youth population in London predicted in the next five years. (According to GLA population predictions, 
increases of over14,000 14-18 year olds are predicted by 2010 across the borough) 

 

• It is evident that where the service targets weak performance year on year, although those 
areas of performance improve, other KPI areas can become vulnerable 

• Nowhere in Youth Justice Services is this more evident than in the increase of First Time 
Entrants (FTE) to the Youth Justice System, and in response we are undertaking detailed 
examination of the data we have, to determine whether this is as a result of inadequate 
targeting of young people vulnerable to offending, or poor results of intervention with those 
that have been identified for preventative or diversionary services thus far. Initial findings 
suggest that good systems are in place, and good interventions too, but that the wider 
services of the Local Authority, its statutory partners and those of the voluntary and private 

Page 35



Item 9.1 

sector need to be better aligned in order to ensure that performance improves  

• Custodial Remands: A new target of under 9% of all remand episodes was introduced in April 
2007 (from under 30% in the previous year), following a change in the YJB Counting Rules.  
The percentage figures for 2007-08 and 2006-07 are not therefore directly comparable with 
one another. Nevertheless the trend over the last year is down quarter by quarter (see 
Delivery Plan)  

• Victims participating in Restorative Justice: A new target of 25% was introduced in April 2007, 
following a change in the YJB Counting Rules.  The percentage figures for 2007-08 and 2006-
07 are not therefore directly comparable with one another. 

 The direction of travel over the three quarters from April to December 2007is positive.  
Achievement of the target was narrowly missed in the third quarter, and robust systems are in 
place to ensure that this target is met in the fourth quarter.  However, due to the poor 
performance earlier in the year, the full year cumulative figure may not meet the 25% target. 

• Parenting Support: Action to improve this area of performance are in place and involve a 
concerted corporate approach, outlined in the Delivery Plan for Parenting in Section D of this 
plan, and centred around working with the families of offenders, the “Think Family” initiative 
and our efforts in respect of the prevention of re-offending.  Again this indicator replaced the 
previous indicator which measured parental satisfaction with parenting interventions.  The 
target of 20% was introduced in April 2007.  The percentage figures for the measure for 2007-
08 and 2006-07 cannot be compared with one another. Nevertheless an upward trend can be 
seen, especially in the figures for prevention work. 

 
SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE 
Apart from the four KPIs discussed above, seven KPIs have been met; one was not applicable and 
three were amber indicators which all represent an improvement on last year’s performance.   
 
The YJB sets performance targets for YOTs on an annual basis. The targets set for next year will be 
reviewed to ensure they reflect our local objectives and where necessary, more ambitious targets will 
be set locally to reflect the priorities assigned to work with children and young people in Tower 
Hamlets. 
 
We continue to demonstrate improvement in the quality and effectiveness of our practice in the 
ratings achieved in the first four areas to be assessed through the Effective Practice Quality 
Assurance (EPQA) process.  The implementation of our improvement plans has resulted in an 
improved rating of ‘3’ for Resettlement.  Of the EPQA areas inspected in 2006, Substance Misuse 
and Remand management, we achieved a rating of 3 and 2 respectively. In relation to the Substance 
Misuse area, the London Regional Monitor commented as follows “The service provided by the YOT 
to young people with SM needs is of a very good level.” In respect of the Remand management area, 
the London regional monitor said, “The validation visit confirmed both the positive work already 
delivered by the YOT for young people on bail/remand as well as areas for development already 
identified by the team. The plan proposed by the YOT is quite detailed and consistent with the 
identified areas for further development.” 
 
The delivery plan proposals will be catered for within the 2008/09 budget, which is anticipated to grow 
slightly with inflation from the 2007/08 budget. However, some areas of work will be determined 
following the allocation of the new Area Based Grant, which replaces many current funding streams, 
Children’s Fund, Stronger Communities Fund (SSCF), Borough Command Unit Fund (BCU), 
Neighbourhood Renewal Fund, or other grant streams. Those areas have been prioritised. 
 
 

Page 36



Item 9.1 

 
Key Objectives for 2008/09 
The YOT’s priorities for action next year have been set following consideration of: 
 

• Areas for improvement identified by assessment of performance. This highlights as strategic 
issues parenting interventions, victim work, education, employment and training and over-use 
of custody  

• Strategic Partnership priorities, in particular the Community Plan Refresh, LAA objectives 
CYPP priority outcomes; and 

• Partnership priorities in tackling youth offending, as identified through consultation on the YJ 
plan with CPAG, the YOT Management Board and more widely with partners, including the 
third sector. 

Accordingly, the YOT Management Board has identified key priorities for the delivery plan (outlined in 
Section 5 of the report) 
 
We will continue to develop the structures for planning, management, delivery and evaluation of work 
on the coming year’s agenda to ensure the activity of the YOT is effectively coordinated with other 
partnership work, particularly around the CYPP. This includes responding to the “localisation 
agenda”: ensuring that services respond to local needs, and contributing to the Council’s Local 
Priority Initiatives. 
 
The priorities outlined in this plan are part of a new thrust from Youth Offending Services to engage 
with the families of offenders and to expand our targeted early intervention work in partnership with 
other areas of Children’s Services and our statutory partners. It is an approach that will have some 
immediate effect but the impact on youth crime is expected to only be fully realised over a ten year 
period. In order to achieve our aims we need interventions for children and young people of all ages 
which clearly cannot be provided by the YOS alone.  
As part of the Local Priority Initiatives, in order to reduce and decrease this rate of criminalisation 
which apart from the damage to victims and community life, is deeply detrimental to the welfare of the 
offender, threatening family breakdown, disrupting education and damaging prospects of employment 
and weakening positive factors in a young person’s life, we aim to establish a priority referral system 
for the children in offenders families, the siblings of young offenders, parenting support for their 
parents, and for the children of adult prisoners. We are developing closer links with inclusion work in 
Children’s Services, broadening our early identification capacity, for example through assessment 
and referral of the children of adult prisoners, and aim to establish localised initiatives in conjunction 
with the Local Area Partnership co-ordinators. 

We will establish a Commission to explore what can be done to improve the public safety of young 
people in Tower Hamlets. It will sit for a three month period and hear information from all agencies 
with information to give, and services to provide, it will consult with young people themselves via the 
Youth Parliament and other youth fora, and produce a plan for the way forward which will secure the 
commitment and engagement of all concerned. This will help the YOS and its partners focus on youth 
gangs and violence. Most of the victims of these crimes are other young people, and they are 
territorial and divisive. 

The YJ Plan therefore, in addition to the performance indicators for the 15 YJB performance areas, 
will contribute to the delivery of the following strategic objectives: 

• All of the CYPP priority outcomes, but in particular: Staying Safe, Making a Positive 
Contribution and Achieving Economic Wellbeing 

• LAA priority outcomes, especially those of the Safer Stronger Communities block, in particular 

Page 37



Item 9.1 

Reducing Youth Violence, Tacking ASB and the associated LPSA targets. 

• The Community and Strategic Plans, in particular the following key themes of Tower Hamlet’s 
Community Plan: “A Supportive and Safe Community”, “One Tower Hamlets”, and “A 
Prosperous Community”. 

• The Crime and Drugs Reduction Strategy 
 

Overall, partnership and strategic planning for all aspects of work with vulnerable children and young 
people in the Borough have never been stronger, and we anticipate that the YOT’s performance will 
benefit from the strong preventative partnerships in place during the coming year. 
 

Dr Kevan Collins, Chair of Tower Hamlets and City of London YOS Management Board, 
Corporate Director of Children’s Services 

 

Page 38



 

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 

*
 

  

D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
 

 

Page 39



2
 

P
R

E
V

E
N

T
 O

F
F

E
N

D
IN

G
 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
  

T
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

t 
(F

T
E

) 
fi
g
u

re
 o

f 
2
6

0
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

th
re

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 o

f 
2
0

0
7
/0

8
 i
s
 7

.7
5

%
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 a
d

ju
s
te

d
 2

0
0
5

/0
6
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 
fi
g
u

re
, 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

5
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
. 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e

 t
h

re
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 A
p
ri
l 
to

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 w
a

s
 A

p
r-

J
u

n
 0

7
 

F
T

E
 =

 1
1

2
; 

J
u

l-
S

e
p

 0
7
 F

T
E

 =
 6

8
; 
O

c
t-

D
e

c
 0

7
 F

T
E

 =
 8

0
. 
 N

o
 s

in
g
le

 r
e

a
s
o
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

it
h

 c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 a
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

rg
e

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 f

ig
u

re
. 

 T
h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

re
s
s
 c

o
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
n

 p
o

lic
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
is

 o
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
rr

e
s
te

d
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 f
a

c
to

r 
th

a
t 

h
a
s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 t

h
e

 L
B

T
H

 f
ig

u
re

s
 i
s
 d

o
u

b
te

d
. 
T

h
e

 r
is

in
g
 y

o
u

th
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 m

e
n

ti
o
n

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
u
m

m
a

ry
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 f

a
c
to

r.
 

In
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t

o
 t
h

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

, 
w

e
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
ta

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

, 
to

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 

o
f 

in
a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 t
o
 o

ff
e

n
d

in
g
, 

o
r 

p
o

o
r 

re
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

fo
r 

p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
r 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n

a
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
u

s
 f
a

r.
 I

n
it
ia

l 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

th
a

t 
g
o

o
d

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 g

o
o

d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

o
, 

b
u

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 w

id
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
it
s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 a

n
d
 t

h
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
 P

a
n

e
l’s

 (
Y

IS
P

) 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 

n
o

te
w

o
rt

h
y
 –

 i
t 

h
a

s
 e

x
p

a
n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
h
o

rt
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
t 

w
o

rk
s
 w

it
h

 a
n
d

, 
o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e

 3
1

6
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
, 

8
2

%
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
t 

o
ff

e
n

d
e

d
/r

e
-

o
ff

e
n

d
e
d

. 
 M

o
re

o
v
e

r,
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 1
5

0
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 Y
IP

s
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
to

 D
e

c
e

m
b
e

r 
 2

0
0

7
 8

5
%

 d
id

 n
o

t 
o
ff

e
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 Y

IS
P

’s
 a

n
d

 Y
IP

s
’ 
w

o
rk

lo
a

d
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

T
h
e

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 Y

IS
P

 o
v
e

rs
e

e
s
 t

h
is

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 8

 a
n

d
 1

6
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
, 

b
u

t 
w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 n
o
t 

y
e

t 
e

n
te

re
d
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
, 

a
n
d

 w
h

o
 a

re
 e

n
g
a
g
e

d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ri
ly

. 
T

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 
re

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
fr

o
m

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

P
o

lic
e

, 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 A
S

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
te

a
m

, 
S

c
h
o
o

ls
, 

th
e

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 P

a
n
e

l,
 t

h
ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

lf
-r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 b

y
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 Y
IS

P
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
ts

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
s
k
, 
e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
  

th
o

s
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 A
S

B
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 r

e
p

ri
m

a
n

d
s
 (

th
e

 Y
O

T
 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t
a

k
e

 a
n

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
o

s
e
 r

e
p

ri
m

a
n

d
e
d

, 
w

e
 d

o
 s

o
 o

f 
o

u
r 

o
w

n
 v

o
lit

io
n

).
 T

h
e

 Y
IS

P
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 
c
lo

s
e

ly
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
th

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
o

n
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
g
e

n
d

a
. 
A

 k
e
y
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
la

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
a

s
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

a
n

e
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 5

0
 m

o
s
t 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 i
ts

 p
a

ir
e

d
 L

A
P

 a
re

a
 i
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 t

w
o

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 Y

IP
S

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 Y

IP
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
th

e
 y

o
u

th
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 t

e
a

m
s
, 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

g
e

n
d
a

. 
T

h
ro

u
g
h

 o
u

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 w

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d

 w
id

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a
m

 y
o

u
th

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
A

n
o

th
e

r 
k
e
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
g
e

n
d

a
 i
s
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 

Page 40



3
 

o
f 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
, 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 “

R
e

s
p

e
c
t”

 a
g
e

n
d
a

 a
n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
Y

J
B

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 g

ra
n

t 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

a
t 
w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
m

e
. 
W

e
 i
n

te
n
d

 t
o
 b

id
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 D
C

S
F

 F
a
m

ily
 P

a
th

fi
n

d
e

rs
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

in
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 e
x
p

a
n
d

 t
h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 F

IS
P

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 W

e
 

a
im

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
’ 
fa

m
ili

e
s
, 
th

e
 s

ib
lin

g
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e

n
d
e

rs
, 

p
a
re

n
ti
n

g
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
 p

ri
s
o

n
e

rs
. 
T

h
e

 i
n

te
n
d

e
d

 Y
O

S
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 “

L
o

o
k
in

g
 O

u
t”

 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

 b
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 a
d

u
lt
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d

 f
ro

m
 p

ri
s
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
-s

e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

in
to

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
w

ill
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 p

e
rs

p
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
a
m

ily
 w

o
rk

 e
n

a
b

le
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
F

IS
P

 w
ill

 b
e

 k
e

y
 t

o
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t.

  
W

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 

c
lo

s
e

r 
lin

k
s
 w

it
h

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

b
ro

a
d

e
n

in
g
 o

u
r 

e
a

rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e
fe

rr
a

l 
o
f 

th
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
 p

ri
s
o

n
e

rs
, 

a
n
d

 a
im

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 l
o

c
a

lis
e

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

L
A

P
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
. 

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 y

o
u

th
 w

o
rk

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
o
n

e
 S

e
n

io
r 

Y
o
u

th
 W

o
rk

e
r,

 w
h

o
 s

it
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 D
iv

e
rs

io
n

 T
e

a
m

. 
T

h
e

 m
a

in
 

fo
c
u

s
 o

f 
y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 Y
IS

P
, 
b

e
c
o
m

e
 s

o
le

ly
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
e

a
rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
, 
fo

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 Y

J
S

. 
 

In
 2

0
0

8
-8

9
w

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

 t
o

 r
e

in
fo

rc
e

 Y
O

T
 Y

o
u

th
 w

o
rk

, 
e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d

 P
o

s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o
p

le
 (

P
A

Y
P

) 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
1

:1
 

Y
o

u
th

 W
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 “

E
v
e

ry
 C

h
ild

 M
a

tt
e

rs
” 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 S
y
s
te

m
. 
 W

e
 h

o
p

e
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 a

tt
a

c
h

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
s
 (

Y
W

A
P

’s
) 

a
t 

th
e

 P
re

-S
e

n
te

n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 s
ta

g
e

, 
to

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

e
n
a

lt
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

rt
s
, 

th
u

s
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e

n
te

n
c
e

s
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 y

o
u

th
 w

o
rk

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 a

tt
a

c
h

 Y
W

A
P

’s
 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
rd

e
rs

, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

e
 a

s
 a

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 b
e

in
g
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 c
u

s
to

d
y
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
. 

 

  

Page 41



4
 

     D
a

ta
: 

 

  
0

7
/0

8
 T

a
rg

e
t 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 Y

e
a

r 

A
d

ju
s

te
d

 T
a

rg
e

t 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 Y

e
a

r 
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 Y

e
a

r 
V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

 
fr

o
m

 T
a

rg
e

t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e

 e
n

tr
a

n
ts

 i
n

to
 

th
e

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti

c
e

 s
y
s

te
m

 
5

%
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

n
 

0
5

/0
6

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

=
 3

1
8

 

2
4

1
 

2
6

0
 

7
.7

5
%

 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

0
5

/0
6
 A

c
tu

a
l 

=
 3

3
5
 

5
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
n

 2
0

0
5

/0
6
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 =
 3

1
8

 

 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
fi
rs

t-
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
 b

y
 5

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
, 
c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

, 
b

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 o

r 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

th
ro

u
g
h

 a
 Y

IS
P

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

-b
a

s
e

d
, 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 m
e

a
n

s
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 
re

d
u

c
e

 t
h

o
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

 p
ro

te
c
ti
v
e

 f
a

c
to

rs
 a

s
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

d
 b

y
 O

n
s
e
t 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
e

a
n

s
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
. 

 

Page 42



5
 

IN
T

E
R

V
E

N
E

 E
A

R
L

Y
 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

T
h
e

 1
0

0
%

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0
6

/0
7
, 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 7
7

%
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 2
0

0
5

/6
, 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
to

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2
0

0
7

. 
 A

ll 
w

a
rn

in
g
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
u

lly
 t

ra
in

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 w
a

rn
in

g
s
. 

Y
IS

P
 a

n
d
 Y

IP
 w

o
rk

lo
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 n
o
t 

s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

 K
P

I.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 a

 t
a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 Y
IS

P
 a

n
d

 Y
IP

 t
e

a
m

s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

n
in

e
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
2

0
0
7

/0
8
. 

T
h
e

 w
o

rk
lo

a
d
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o

d
. 

Y
J
B

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
, 

a
n

d
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 A

re
a
 B

a
s
e

d
 G

ra
n

t 
h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
w

a
it
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l.
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
E

v
e

ry
 C

h
ild

 M
a

tt
e

rs
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

e
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 L
A

A
 t
a

rg
e

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 r

e
d
u

c
in

g
 v

io
le

n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 
d
a

m
a

g
e

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l-
s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

  
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 “
H

e
a

lt
h

 D
e
fe

n
c
e

” 
a

n
d

 “
S

ta
y
in

g
 C

o
o

l”
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
“G

re
e

n
 V

is
io

n
” 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t,
 t
h

e
 G

o
o
d

 C
it
iz

e
n

’s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a

n
d

 
“U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 A

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a

v
io

u
r”

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 u

s
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

In
 t

h
e

 
c
o

m
in

g
 y

e
a

r 
w

e
 a

im
 t
o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 (

L
A

P
s
) 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 e

v
e

n
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
s
p

re
a
d

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n
d

 a
 m

u
c
h

 m
o

re
 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
s
 o

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 

P
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 Y

O
S

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 t
h

o
s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o

 r
a
d

ic
a

l 
v
ie

w
s
, 

a
n
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 

N
ic

o
le

 w
o

rk
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

u
n

 i
n

 2
0
0

8
, 
e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 k

e
y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 I
s
la

m
ic

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
n

 a
n

 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

 s
e

s
s
io

n
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t

e
rr

o
ri
s
m

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

it
 h

a
s
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

th
e

 p
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
.W

e
 w

ill
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

to
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
im

ila
r 

e
v
e

n
t 
fo

r 
y
o

u
th

s
  

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

n
d

a
, 
w

e
 w

ill
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
L
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

n
d

 S
a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 T
e

a
m

s
, 

s
o

 
th

a
t 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
a

n
 b

e
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

re
 r

a
is

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 w
e

 a
im

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 t
a

k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 P

o
lic

e
 R

e
p

ri
m

a
n

d
s
, 

d
e

s
p

it
e
 t

h
e

re
 b

e
in

g
 n

o
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
u

s
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

 

A
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
in

 p
la

c
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 t

h
e
 Y

O
T

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n
 a

ll 
c
a

s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n
g
 a

p
p

ly
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
n

 
A

S
B

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

, 
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
y
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

n
 A

B
C

, 
A

S
B

O
 o

r 
A

S
B

 i
n

ju
n

c
ti
o
n

 t
o

 b
e
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

Y
O

T
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 (

in
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 o
f 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
S

u
p
p

o
rt

 O
rd

e
rs

) 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

 C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 D
is

o
rd

e
r 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

A
B

C
s
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
O

s
 a

s
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 t
o

o
ls

. 
T

h
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 

Page 43



6
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 Y
O

T
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
’s

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
n
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
v
e

ry
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 a
n

 A
B

C
 o

r 
A

S
B

O
. 
T

h
e
 A

S
B

C
U

 a
n

d
 p

o
lic

e
 a

re
 t

o
 a

d
o

p
t 
th

e
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 S
o

u
th

 
W

a
le

s
 o

f 
is

s
u

in
g
 a

 w
a

rn
in

g
 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 p
a

re
n

ts
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
s
e

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

is
 o

f 
c
o
n

c
e

rn
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

, 
b

e
fo

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 

a
n

 A
B

C
; 

th
e

 l
e

tt
e

r 
w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 a

 l
e
a
fl
e

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 D
a

ta
: 

F
in

a
l 
W

a
rn

in
g

s
  

  
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 Y
e

a
r 

%
 

0
7

/0
8

 T
a

rg
e

t 
E

P
Q

A
 2

0
0

3
 

ra
ti

n
g

 
E

P
Q

A
 2

0
0

5
 

re
s

u
lt

 

F
in

a
l 

W
a

rn
in

g
s

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 
2

6
 

1
0

0
%

 
9

5
%

 
2

 
2

.8
7

 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n
 a

 F
in

a
l 
W

a
rn

in
g
 a

re
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 
b

y
 a

n
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

 i
f:

 

•
 

th
e

ir
 A

s
s
e
t 

s
c
o

re
 i
s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 o

r 
e

q
u

a
l 
to

 1
2

, 
o

r 

•
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
 h

a
rm

 t
o

 o
th

e
rs

, 
o

r 

•
 

th
e

ir
 s

c
o

re
 i
s
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 1

2
 b

u
t 
a

n
y
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 s

c
o

re
 4

 

 Y
IS

P
 T

e
a

m
 A

p
ri

l 
–

 D
e

c
 2

0
0

7
 

N
o

. 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 f

o
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

0
7

- 
D

e
c

 2
0
0

7
 

1
9

5
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

e
c

li
n

e
d

 t
o

 a
c
c

e
s
s

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

0
7

- 
D

e
c

 2
0

0
7

 
9

2
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0
0

7
- 

D
e

c
 2

0
0

7
 

1
0

3
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 
  

Page 44



7
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 o
n

 A
c

c
e

p
ta

b
le

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 

3
5

 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 i
s

s
u

e
d

 w
it

h
 P

o
li
c
e

 R
e

p
ri

m
a

n
d

s
 

3
9

 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
’s

 S
o

c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 P

a
n

e
l 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c

ie
s

 a
n

d
 s

e
lf

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 
2

9
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

o
 o

ff
e

n
d

 w
h

il
s

t 
b

e
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

7
- 

D
e

c
 2

0
0

7
 

2
 

 Y
IP

 T
e

a
m

 A
p

r 
- 

D
e

c
 2

0
0

7
 

3
/4

 y
e

a
r 

0
7

/0
8

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 Y
IP

 t
e

a
m

 
1

5
0

 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 w
h

o
 d

id
 n

o
t 

o
ff

e
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
ir

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

8
5

%
 

    

Page 45



8
 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

 I
N

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
U

P
E

R
V

IS
IO

N
 

  O
v
e

rv
ie

w
  

 T
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 a

w
a

it
s
 a

 d
a

ta
 u

p
d

a
te

 

 A
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

th
e

 P
re

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 D

e
te

r 
ta

c
ti
c
a

l 
g
ro

u
p

 t
a

k
e
n

 o
n

 3
1

s
t 

D
e

c
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0

0
6

 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 b
e

lo
w

. 
 A

ll 
b

u
t 
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 h

a
d

 a
n

 
in

it
ia

l 
A

s
s
e

t 
s
c
o

re
 o

f 
1
7

 o
r 

m
o

re
 T

h
e

 d
a

ta
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 W

h
it
e

, 
B

la
c
k
 a

n
d

 M
ix

e
d

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 d

is
p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
ly

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 g
ro

u
p

. 
 T

h
e

 W
h
it
e

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e

s
 3

4
.4

%
 o

f 
th

e
 P

P
O

 g
ro

u
p

, 
c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 t

o
 2

6
.1

 %
 o

f 
th

e
 1

0
 –

 1
7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
. 

 T
h
e

 B
la

c
k
 e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u
p

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 2

0
.6

%
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
, 
c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 t

o
 7

.6
%

 o
f 

th
e

 1
0

 –
 1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e

 
m

ix
e

d
 e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e

s
 1

0
.3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
, 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 3

.6
%

 o
f 

th
e

 1
0

 -
1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 
 I

n
 c

o
n

tr
a
s
t,

 t
h
e

 A
s
ia

n
 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 m
a

k
e

s
 u

p
 o

n
ly

 3
4

.4
%

 o
f 

th
e
 g

ro
u

p
, 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 i
ts

 6
0
.5

%
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 1

0
 –

 1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

 

T
h
e

 I
S

S
P

 d
a

ta
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

n
in

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
2
0

0
7
/0

8
. 

 T
h
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

IS
S

P
s
 e

n
d

in
g
 i
n

 b
re

a
c
h

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

’s
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

e
n

a
lt
y
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h
e

 I
S

S
P

 r
e

c
id

iv
is

m
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
p

e
ri
o
d

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 a

 f
u

ll 
2

 y
e

a
r 

re
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 T
h

e
 P

re
v
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
D

e
te

r 
(P

&
D

) 
ta

c
ti
c
a

l 
g
ro

u
p

 w
o

rk
s
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

3
0

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 a

t 
a

n
y
 t

im
e

. 
T

h
e

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 g

ro
u

p
 m

e
e

ts
 m

o
n
th

ly
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

s
 t

h
e
 Y

O
T

, 
P

o
lic

e
, 

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

Y
A

P
 U

K
 (

In
te

n
s
iv

e
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

-I
S

S
P

 p
ro

v
id

e
r)

 A
n

ti
-

S
o

c
ia

l 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
U

n
it
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

It
 i
s
 c

h
a

ir
e
d

 j
o
in

tl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 M

a
n
a
g
e

r 
a

n
d

 D
e

te
c
ti
v
e

 C
h

ie
f 

In
s
p
e

c
to

r 
(I

n
te

lli
g
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
).

 

W
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
e

v
e

ry
 y

o
u

n
g
 o

ff
e
n

d
e

r 
o

n
 t
h

e
 P

re
v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 D

e
te

r 
lis

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lu
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

P
&

D
 t

a
c
ti
c
a

l 
g
ro

u
p

 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 Y

O
T

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
a

t 
c
lie

n
t 

g
ro

u
p
  

W
e
 w

ill
 b

u
ild

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 p

ro
lif

ic
 o

ff
e
n

d
e

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
is

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 b
y
 e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

e
 

S
a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 T

e
a

m
s
. 

 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 a

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

T
h
a

m
e

s
 I

n
te

n
s
iv

e
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n
s
o

rt
iu

m
, 
w

it
h

 C
a

m
d
e

n
 a

s
 l
e

a
d

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
a

n
d

 H
a

c
k
n

e
y
 a

n
d

 I
s
lin

g
to

n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

A
c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 I

S
S

P
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 a
n

d
 l
in

k
a

g
e

s
 t

o
 Y

O
T

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
; 

th
e

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o
f 

g
ro

u
p

 s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 o

f 
Y

A
P

 a
d

v
o

c
a

te
s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
m

a
n

a
g
e

r 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
, 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

b
a

il 
IS

S
P

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

rt
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 h

a
s
 e

n
d

e
d

 i
ts

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h

 Y
A

P
 U

K
 a

s
 I

S
S

P
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

a
n

d
 u

n
d
e

r 
a

 f
o

rm
a

l 
te

n
d

e
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 N

A
C

R
O

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 
a

p
p
o

in
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

in
 p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

IS
S

P
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 a

 f
o

rm
a

l 
s
e

n
te

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
rt

s
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 

Page 46



9
 

p
ilo

t 
p
e

ri
o

d
 a

n
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 c

o
p

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 d
e
m

a
n

d
 f
o

r 
p

la
c
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 w

ill
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

. 
W

e
 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 I
S

S
P

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

is
 f

u
lly

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

re
v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 D

e
te

r 
T

a
c
ti
c
a

l 
G

ro
u

p
. 
  

O
u

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

ll 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
a

d
e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 I

S
S

P
 i
s
 p

a
s
s
e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

e
 P

ro
lif

ic
 a

n
d

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 
O

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

o
ff

ic
e

, 
fo

r 
d

is
s
e

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 P

o
lic

e
 S

a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
 T

e
a

m
s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

. 
S

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
P

o
lic

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

. 
 W

o
rk

 p
la

n
n
e
d

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 
P

o
lic

e
 I

n
s
p

e
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 P
o

lic
e

 S
a

rg
e

a
n
t 
fo

r 
Y

o
u
th

 (
 n

e
w

 p
o

s
ts

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e

in
fo

rc
e

 t
h

is
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 e

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 b
y
  

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 s

tr
o
n

g
e

r 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 Y

O
T

, 
S

a
fe

r 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 S
a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d
 P

o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d

 
s
ta

ff
, 

w
e

 h
o

p
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 s
h
a

ri
n

g
 o

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 y
o

u
th

 o
ff
e

n
d
e

rs
 r

e
tu

rn
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
u

s
to

d
y
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 Y

o
u
th

 P
ro

lif
ic

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 O
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

, 
s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 I
S

S
P

 a
n
d

 c
u
rf

e
w

, 
w

it
h

 f
a

c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

o
lic

in
g
 t

e
a
m

  

  P
ro

li
fi

c
 a

n
d

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 O

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

D
a

ta
 

%
 o

f 
1

0
 –

 1
7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
s

 a
re

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
1
 C

e
n

s
u

s
 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 %

 
A

g
e

 %
 

G
e

n
d

e
r 

%
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 

W
h

it
e

 

A
s

ia
n

 
o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

B
ri

ti
s

h
 

B
la

c
k

 
o

r 
B

la
c

k
 

B
ri

ti
s

h
 

M
ix

e
d

 
1

4
 

1
5

 
1

6
 

1
7

 
1

8
 

1
9

 
M

a
le

 
F

e
m

a
le

 

2
9

 
3

4
.4

 
3

4
.4

 
2

0
.6

 
1

0
.3

 
6

.8
 

0
 

2
4

.1
 

4
8

.2
 

1
7

.2
 

3
.4

 
1

0
0

 
0

 

 

A
g

e
 %

 
G

e
n

d
e

r 
%

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
P

P
O

 
c

a
s
e

s
 

1
4

 
1

5
 

1
6

 
1

7
 

1
8

 
1

9
 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a

le
 

Page 47



1
0
 

2
9

 
6

.8
0

%
 

0
%

 
2

4
.1

0
%

 
4

8
.2

0
%

 
1

7
.2

0
%

 
3

.4
0

%
 

1
0

0
%

 
0

 

 In
te

n
s

iv
e

 S
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 S

u
rv

e
il

la
n

c
e
 D

a
ta

 

S
ta

rt
in

g
, 

E
n
d

in
g
, 

B
re

a
c
h

e
d

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

S
ta

rt
in

g
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

E
n

d
in

g
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

E
n

d
in

g
 i

n
 

B
re

a
c

h
 

IS
S

P
s
 3

/4
 Y

e
a

r 
2

0
0
7

/0
8

 
2

4
 

1
2

 
6

 

IS
S

P
 R

e
c

id
iv

is
m

 

IS
S

P
 R

e
-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 a

ft
e

r 
2

4
 

m
o

n
th

s
 

N
o

. 
in

 
c

o
h

o
rt

 
N

o
. 

re
-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 

N
o

. 
re

-
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 
w

it
h

 l
e

s
s

 
s

e
ri

o
u

s
n

e
s

s
 

N
o

. 
re

-
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 w
it

h
 

s
a

m
e

 o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
s

e
ri

o
u

s
n

e
s

s
 

N
o

. 
re

-
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 l
e

s
s

 
fr

e
q

u
e

n
tl

y
 

N
o

. 
re

-
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 a
s

 
fr

e
q

u
e

n
tl

y
 o

r 
m

o
re

 
fr

e
q

u
e

n
tl

y
 

O
c

t 
- 

D
e

c
 2

0
0
2

 
C

o
h

o
rt

 
3

 
1

 
0

 
1

 
1

 
0

 
O

c
t 

- 
D

e
c

 2
0

0
3

 
C

o
h

o
rt

 
5

 
3

 
1

 
2

 
2

 
1

 
  

Page 48



1
1
 

R
E

D
U

C
E

 R
E

-O
F

F
E

N
D

IN
G

 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
  

 U
p

d
a

te
d

 f
ig

u
re

s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 u
n

ti
l 

fu
ll

 y
e

a
r 

fi
g

u
re

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

  

W
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

re
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

u
r 

re
c
id

iv
is

m
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 i
n

 2
0
0

5
/6

 c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
0

0
4

/0
5

 (
s
e

e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
),

 a
n
d

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

a
 5

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

e
n
a

lt
ie

s
. 

 T
h
e

 P
re

-C
o
u

rt
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

 w
a

s
 o

n
ly

 t
w

o
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 
p

o
in

ts
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 F
ir
s
t 

T
ie

r 
p

e
n
a

lt
y
 r

a
te

 w
a

s
 e

v
e

n
 c

lo
s
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t.
  
W

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

u
s
to

d
ia

l 
c
o

h
o

rt
, 

w
h

o
s
e
 r

e
-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 w

a
s
 1

0
0

%
, 

it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
to

 n
o

te
 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 
fo

u
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 h

o
p

e
fu

l 
th

a
t 
o

u
r 

e
a

rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
t-

c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
P

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h
e

s
e

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r.

 

O
u

r 
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
O

rd
e

r 
P

a
n

e
l 
is

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
d
u

c
in

g
 g

o
o

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
, 

o
f 

th
e

 2
0

0
5

 c
o

h
o

rt
, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
2
 m

o
n

th
s
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 6

1
%

 d
id

 
n

o
t 

re
-o

ff
e
n

d
 a

t 
a

ll,
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 3

9
%

, 
3

5
%

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
e
d

 l
e

s
s
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
ly

, 
a

n
d

 6
1

%
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n

d
e
d

 l
e

s
s
 f

re
q
u
e

n
tl
y
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 o
n

  
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 

o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 q
u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
n

ti
ty

 o
f 

re
s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 h

o
m

e
 t
o

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
; 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 P

o
lic

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 P
re

v
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 D
e

te
r 

g
ro

u
p

 (
2

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 j
o

in
e

d
 

th
e

 u
n

it
, 
o

n
e

 P
C

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

s
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
 d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 a

d
v
o

c
a

te
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

);
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

P
o

lic
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e
 t

o
 Y

O
T

 n
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

rr
e

s
ta

b
le

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
in

g
 f

o
r 

S
N

T
's

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 t
o
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 o
n
 I

S
S

P
. 

A
 m

u
lt
i-
fa

c
e

te
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 w
a

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
6

/0
7

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 -

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
, 
a

n
 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 a

n
d

 v
a

ri
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a
s
e

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

. 
A

ll 
o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 i
n

 2
0

0
8
/9

 a
n

d
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

-b
a

s
e
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
o

ff
e

n
d
e

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 “

P
a

th
w

a
y
s
” 

a
n

d
 “

T
e
e

n
ta

lk
”,

 
a

n
d

 c
o

g
n

it
iv

e
 -

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
ra

l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

S
N

T
’s

 a
re

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 w
it
h

 o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 o
n

 I
S

S
P

 t
o

 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 

T
h
e

s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
. 
T

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 f

a
s
te

r 
re

s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 b
re

a
c
h

e
s
, 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 A

B
C

s
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
O

s
, 

th
e

 I
S

S
P

 c
o

h
o

rt
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
P

re
v
e

n
t 

a
n
d

 D
e

te
r 

g
ro

u
p

 (
s
e

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
 a

b
o

v
e

) 
w

ill
 a

ll 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
is

 K
P

I.
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
o
th

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 a
n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
s
e
d

 P
o

s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 (
P

A
Y

P
) 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
: 

 

•
 

E
n

g
a

g
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a
m

 Y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 o

r 
re

-o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 l
if
e

s
ty

le
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

le
is

u
re

 t
im

e
. 

•
 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 1
:1

 y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n
g
 “

E
v
e

ry
 C

h
ild

 M
a

tt
e

rs
” 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

o
u

th
 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

•
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 a

tt
a

c
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s
 (

Y
W

A
P

) 
a
t 

th
e

 P
S

R
 s

ta
g
e

, 
to

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 p

e
n

a
lt
y
 

Page 49



1
2
 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
o

ry
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

rt
s
, 

th
u

s
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e
n

te
n

c
e

s
 

•
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 a

tt
a

c
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
Y

W
A

P
’s

 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
rd

e
rs

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 r

e
- 

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
e

 a
s
 a

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 b
e

in
g
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 c
u
s
to

d
y
 a

n
d
 e

n
d

in
g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

•
 

D
e

liv
e

r 
a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 
fo

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

n
e

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 

w
it
h

in
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
s
e
tt

in
g
, 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 
fa

c
ili

ta
ti
n

g
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
in

to
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
. 

  

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 w

it
h

 o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 u

n
d

e
rl
y
in

g
 r

is
k
 f

a
c
to

r 
fo

r 
o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

is
 s

tr
o

n
g
ly

 c
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 p

e
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

 a
n
d

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 f
a

c
to

rs
 

In
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 s
e

e
k
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
u

p
o

n
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 y

o
u

th
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 g
a

n
g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

r 
g
ro

u
p

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 b

y
: 

•
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 s
a
fe

ty
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

•
 

T
h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 a

ll 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 t

o
 e

s
c
a

la
ti
n

g
 o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 b

y
 r

e
ju

v
e

n
a

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 P
ro

lif
ic

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 O
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 

•
 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
a

ry
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 w
o

rk
 b

y
 y

o
u

th
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

ro
u
n
d

 c
u

lt
u

re
, 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip
 

Y
o

u
th

 v
io

le
n

c
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 t

a
c
k
le

d
 b

y
: 

•
 

M
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
a

n
g
 f

o
c
u

s
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
n

o
n

-g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t-
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 p
re

- 
c
o
n

c
e
iv

e
d

 i
d

e
a

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
iv

e
rt

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 v
io

le
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 g

a
n

g
 c

u
lt
u

re
. 
  

•
 

P
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 L
B

 o
f 

H
a

c
k
n

e
y
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 y

o
u

th
s
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 -

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

ro
s
s
 b

o
rd

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
y
o

u
th

s
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

lin
g
 d

o
 s

o
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
a
fe

s
t 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

o
s
e

 m
o

s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 
o
ff

e
n

d
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 o
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
. 

W
e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

n
 c

ri
m

e
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 G
o

o
d

 C
it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

 C
u

rb
 

•
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 b

y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 s

a
fe

ty
 z

o
n

e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h
e

m
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 j
o

in
e

d
 u

p
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

k
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 t

o
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
b
o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
 t

im
e

ly
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 

•
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

n
y
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 i
n

c
id

e
n
t 

o
f 

v
io

le
n

c
e

 i
n

/a
ro

u
n

d
 a

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

v
e

n
e

 a
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 l
e

a
d

s
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 r

is
k
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
a

rg
e

t 
th

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
. 

Page 50



1
3
 

•
 

U
s
e

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
c
lu

s
te

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e

 t
e

a
m

s
 t

o
 e

m
p
h

a
s
is

e
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

te
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
-

o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 a

n
d
 t

h
o

s
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o

 e
n

te
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
W

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
ro

a
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 a
n

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

, 
d

iv
e

rs
io

n
a

ry
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

u
r 

c
lu

s
te

r 
lo

c
a

lit
ie

s
 

T
h
e

 p
la

n
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
, 

E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 I
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 

o
f 

F
IS

P
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 s
h
a

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
 r

e
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g
  

     D
a

ta
: 

 

 Y
J

 P
la

n
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 D

a
ta

 

R
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
0
0

3
 c

o
h

o
rt

 a
ft

e
r 

2
4

 
m

o
n

th
s

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
2

 c
o

h
o

rt
 a

ft
e

r 
2

4
 

m
o

n
th

s
 

0
5

/0
6

 A
c

tu
a

l 
%

 
0

5
/0

6
 T

a
rg

e
t 

%
 

0
6

/0
7

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 

P
re

-C
o

u
rt

 
3

2
.7

3
 

3
0

.2
3

 
3

1
.0

8
 

F
ir

s
t 

T
ie

r 
P

e
n

a
lt

ie
s

 
6

1
.4

0
 

5
9

.8
9

 
5

8
.3

3
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

e
n

a
lt

ie
s
 

6
9

.7
0

 
7

6
.7

3
 

6
6

.2
1

 

C
u

s
to

d
y
 

1
0

0
 

9
5

 
9

5
 

 

Page 51



1
4
 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
  

ta
rg

e
t 

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 5

%
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

 f
o

r 
2

0
0
7

/0
8

, 
w

h
e

n
 

c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 2

0
0
2

/0
3
 c

o
h
o

rt
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

to
 p

re
-c

o
u

rt
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 

fi
rs

t-
ti
e

r 
p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s
, 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 p

e
n

a
lt
ie

s
, 

a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e

n
te

n
c
e

s
, 

a
n
d

 
re

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 f

re
q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
re

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
. 

  

Page 52



1
5
 

R
E

D
U

C
E

 T
H

E
 U

S
E

 O
F

 C
U

S
T

O
D

Y
 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

A
 n

e
w

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

u
n
d

e
r 

9
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

re
m

a
n
d

 e
p

is
o
d

e
s
 w

a
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
7

 (
fr

o
m

 u
n

d
e

r 
3

0
%

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r)
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 Y

J
B

 C
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 R

u
le

s
. 

 T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o

r 
2
0

0
7

-0
8

 a
n

d
 2

0
0

6
-0

7
 a

re
 n

o
t 

th
e

re
fo

re
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
b

le
 w

it
h

 o
n

e
 

a
n

o
th

e
r.

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
o

s
e

 r
e
m

a
n

d
e
d

 t
o
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 s

h
o

w
 s

o
m

e
 v

e
ry

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 (

A
lle

g
e

d
 M

u
rd

e
r,

 R
a
p

e
, 

R
o
b

b
e

ry
 a

t 
k
n

if
e

 p
o

in
t,

 
re

p
e

a
t 
v
io

le
n

t 
o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
, 

p
o

s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
d

ru
g
s
 w

it
h

 i
n

te
n

t 
to

 s
u
p

p
ly

, 
b
re

a
c
h

 o
f 

o
rd

e
r 

a
n
d

 a
b

s
c
o

n
d

in
g
) 

w
h

ic
h

 e
v
e

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 r

e
m

a
n

d
 

fo
s
te

ri
n

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
r 

th
e

 I
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 m

ig
h

t 
n

o
t 

s
e

c
u

re
 a

 n
o

n
-c

u
s
to

d
ia

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
, 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 

to
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 
N

e
v
e

rt
h

e
le

s
s
 t

h
e

 t
re

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

is
 d

o
w

n
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
b

y
 q

u
a

rt
e

r,
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
; 

A
p

r-
J
u

n
 0

7
 =

 1
7

 -
 2

3
.9

4
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
re

m
a
n

d
s
; 

J
u

l-
S

e
p

 0
7

 =
 1

3
 –

 2
3

.6
4

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
re

m
a
n

d
s
; 
a

n
d

 O
c
t-

D
e

c
 0

7
 =

 8
 –

 1
3

.7
9

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
re

m
a

n
d

 

P
la

n
n
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

7
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

c
u

s
to

d
y
. 

 
C

u
s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e

n
te

n
c
e

s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 

a
ll 

d
is

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 8
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
6

/0
7

 t
o

 5
.6

%
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o
d

 A
p

ri
l 
to

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
, 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
%

 

Y
O

T
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
c
a

s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 a

 c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e

n
te

n
c
e

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 Y
O

T
’s

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
n

o
n

- 
c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
. 
 W

e
 p

la
n

 t
o
 a

 m
o

re
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 s
e

n
te

n
c
e

rs
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
u

s
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 K

P
I 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

C
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
R

e
m

a
n

d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
: 

•
 

T
h
e

 s
p
o

t 
p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 o
f 
R

e
m

a
n

d
 F

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 [

a
n
d

 P
o

lic
e

 a
n
d

 C
ri
m

in
a

l 
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 A
c
t 
b

e
d

s
] 

is
 n

o
w

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

 i
n

 h
o

u
s
e
 

R
e

m
a
n

d
 F

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 S

c
h
e

m
e
 i
s
 i
n

 a
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

d
 s

ta
g
e

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 a
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
d

ri
v
e

 f
o

r 
c
a

re
rs

 c
o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 i
n

 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 

2
0

0
8

 

•
 

T
h
e

 R
a

c
e
 A

u
d

it
 i
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

th
e

 o
v
e

r-
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

M
E

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 c
e
rt

a
in

 s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

ri
m

in
a

l 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 
S

y
s
te

m
 a

m
o
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

t 
T

h
a
m

e
s
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u

rt
. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 R

a
c
e

 A
u
d

it
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 a

g
e

n
d
a

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

s
h
e

d
 a

h
e
a

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 m

o
n

th
s
. 
T

a
s
k
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

o
v
e

r-
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 
w

it
h

 s
e

n
te

n
c
e

rs
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 e

.g
. 

th
e

 P
o

lic
e

, 
to

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 i
n

 m
o

re
 d

e
ta

il 
w

h
y
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 

a
n

 o
v
e

r-
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 

•
 

A
 n

e
w

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 Y

O
T

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 [
C

S
C

] 
h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

m
o

o
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 i
n

te
rf

a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 

Page 53



1
6
 

re
m

a
n

d
/c

u
s
to

d
y
. 

•
 

A
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
fo

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

in
g
 y

e
a

r,
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 Y

O
S

 h
a

s
 i
n
p

u
tt
e

d
 t

o
 i
ts

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 

•
 

T
h
e

 r
e
m

a
n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/
b

a
il 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
w

ri
tt

e
n

 a
n

d
 a

w
a

it
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

R
e

tu
rn

s
 i
n
d

ic
a

te
 a

 t
re

n
d

 o
f 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
re

m
a

n
d
s
 h

a
p
p

e
n

in
g
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
rt

s
 a

t 
T

h
a
m

e
s
 M

a
g
is

tr
a

te
s
 

C
o

u
rt

 a
n
d

 a
t 

H
ig

h
b

u
ry

 C
o

rn
e

r 
M

a
g
is

tr
a

te
s
 o

n
 S

a
tu

rd
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 B
a

n
k
 H

o
lid

a
y
s
. 

R
e

m
e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 h
a

v
in

g
 a

 d
u
ty

 
B

a
il/

R
e

m
a

n
d
 w

o
rk

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

 o
ff

ic
e
 o

n
 a

 d
a

ily
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e

 a
t 

C
o
u

rt
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 a

 “
h
a

n
d

s
 o

n
” 

a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 
In

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

H
ig

h
b

u
ry

 C
o

rn
e

r 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 r

e
n
e

w
e

d
 d

ri
v
e

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 
c
lu

s
te

r 
c
o

lle
a
g
u

e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 e
x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
ff

ic
e

 
h

o
u

rs
. 

 D
a

ta
: 

 

 P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
S

e
c

u
re

 R
e

m
a

n
d

s
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
a

ll
 

R
e

m
a

n
d

s
 (

e
x
c

l.
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 u

n
c

o
n

d
it

io
n

a
l 

re
m

a
n

d
s

) 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 

Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 

Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
%

 

0
7

/0
8

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 
E

P
Q

A
: 

0
5

 o
r 

0
6

 r
a

ti
n

g
 

S
e

c
u

re
 R

e
m

a
n

d
s

 
3

8
 

2
0

.6
5

%
 

9
%

 
2

.0
6

 

 P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
C

u
s

to
d

ia
l 

S
e

n
te

n
c

e
s

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
ll

 
s

e
n

te
n

c
e
s

 
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 
Y

e
a

r 
A

c
tu

a
l 

 
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 
Y

e
a

r 
A

c
tu

a
l 

%
 

0
7

/0
8

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 

C
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
S

e
n

te
n

c
e

s
 

2
3

 
5

.5
8

%
 

5
%

 

  P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

(n
e
w

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r)
 

 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

s
ta

te
 f

o
r 

re
m

a
n

d
s
 t
o

 9
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
m

a
n
d

 e
p

is
o

d
e

s
, 
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 u

n
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
a

l 
b

a
il,

 a
n
d

 f
o

r 
c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e

n
te

n
c
e

s
 t

o
 n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 5
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

s
e

n
te

n
c
e

s
 i
m

p
o

s
e
d

. 

Page 54



1
7
 

  

Page 55



1
8
 

 
 

E
N

F
O

R
C

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 E
N

A
B

L
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 :

 A
n

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0

7
 

 D
a

ta
 f
o

r 
2

0
0

5
/6

 r
e

v
e

a
le

d
 a

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

m
o

n
g
 o

u
r 

c
a

s
e

lo
a

d
 w

h
o

 u
n

a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

ly
 f

a
ile

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 o

rd
e

r,
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 A

u
d

it
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
n

g
 a

 b
re

a
c
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

8
8

%
. 

 U
p
o

n
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 d
a

ta
, 

it
 w

a
s
 

c
le

a
r 

th
a
t 

c
a

s
e

w
o

rk
e

rs
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o
f 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
T

e
a
m

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
v
ia

te
 f

ro
m

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

 
d

e
c
id

in
g
 n

o
t 

to
 b

re
a

c
h

 o
rd

e
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 r
e

q
u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
. 
A

c
ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

rr
e

c
t 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 i
s
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
. 

W
e
 a

im
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
b

re
a

c
h

 a
c
ti
o

n
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 b

re
a

c
h

 r
a

te
s
 f
o

r 
IS

S
P

 (
a
b

o
v
e

) 
a

t 
2

3
%

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a

t 
a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
is

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

u
ilt

 i
n

to
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 
m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 t
o

 c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e

n
te

n
c
e

s
. 
In

 2
0
0

6
 a

 l
e

tt
e

r 
w

a
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
d
 o

f 
Y

o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

ro
m

 a
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

J
u

d
g
e

 s
it
ti
n

g
 a

t 
T

h
a
m

e
s
 Y

o
u

th
 C

o
u

rt
 c

o
m

m
e

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

’s
 i
n

te
g
ri
ty

 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

rt
s
, 

a
n

d
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
h

e
 

fe
lt
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n

t 
in

 a
c
c
e
p

ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rt
 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 p

e
n

a
lt
ie

s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

rt
s
 f

o
r 

b
re

a
c
h

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 t

o
 b

e
 l
is

te
d

 a
s
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 B
o

a
rd

’s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

b
re

a
c
h
e

s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
a

c
e

 
a

u
d

it
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

to
ry

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 
o
f 

ra
c
e

. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 P
re

v
e

n
t 
a
n

d
 D

e
te

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 o

f 
S

a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 P
o

lic
e
 t

e
a

m
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
p
e

rs
is

te
n

t 
o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
, 

a
n
d

 a
ll 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 I
S

S
P

’s
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
O

’s
  
a

re
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

lo
c
a

l 
te

a
m

s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t.
 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

N
T

’s
 t

o
 Y

O
T

 c
a

s
e

-m
a

n
a
g
e

rs
, 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

a
t 

re
s
p

e
c
t,

 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a

rd
. 

  

Page 56



1
9
 

D
T

O
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 P

L
A

N
S

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
ta

n
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
2

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7

 w
it
h

 8
6

%
 o

f 
D

T
O

 P
la

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
. 

O
u

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

s
ta

te
 f
o

r 
d

ra
w

in
g
 u

p
 i
n

it
ia

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 p

la
n

s
 w

it
h

in
 N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 w

ill
 h

o
p

e
fu

lly
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 2
0
0

8
/0

9
, 
b

u
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
u

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 

 D
a

ta
: 

 

 E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a
ll

 i
n

it
ia

l 
tr

a
in

in
g

 p
la

n
s
 

a
re

 d
ra

w
n

 u
p

 w
it

h
in

 1
0

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s

 
o

f 
s

e
n

te
n

c
e
s

 b
e

in
g

 p
a

s
s
e

d
. 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 

Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 

Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
%

 

0
7

/0
8

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 

In
it

ia
l 

T
ra

in
in

g
 P

la
n

s
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
w

it
h

in
 t

a
rg

e
t 

1
8

 
8

5
.7

1
%

 
9

5
%

 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

in
it
ia

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 D

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 T

ra
in

in
g
 O

rd
e

rs
 (

D
T

O
s
) 

a
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 s
c
a

le
s
 

p
re

s
c
ri
b

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 f
o

r 
Y

o
u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 2

0
0

4
 i
.e

. 
w

it
h

in
 1

0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
s
e
n

te
n

c
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
s
s
e

d
. 

 

Page 57



2
0
 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 Y

O
U

N
G

 P
E

O
P

L
E

 E
N

G
A

G
IN

G
 I

N
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

M
E

N
T

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

T
h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 E
T

E
 K

P
I 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
to

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 t

o
 8

2
%

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
a

 
ta

rg
e

t 
o
f 

9
0

%
. 

T
h

e
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 i
n
to

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 h

a
s
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 t
h

is
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

 F
u

ll 
ti
m

e
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 a

t 
th

e
 P

R
U

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

  

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a
d

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

ll 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d

 i
n

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
rs

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 P
la

n
. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 a
n

d
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
s
 p

la
c
e

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
b

o
th

 P
S

R
 a

u
th

o
rs

 a
n

d
 R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
O

rd
e

r 
P

a
n

e
lli

s
ts

 r
e

p
o

rt
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 i
n

 o
b
ta

in
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

re
g
a

rd
in

g
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
 a

llo
w

e
d

 f
o

r 
C

o
u

rt
 o

r 
P

a
n

e
l 
s
it
ti
n

g
s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

T
h
e

 E
P

Q
A

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n
d

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
, 

n
e

g
o

ti
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 Y

O
T

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 (
P

A
Y

P
) 

a
n

d
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e

 N
R

F
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 T

H
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
“S

te
p

 u
p

” 
c
o
u

rs
e

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

re
- 

E
2
E

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
1

6
+

 y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

 L
E

A
P

 C
o
n
fr

o
n
ti
n

g
 C

o
n
fl
ic

t,
 L

E
A

, 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 F

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 R
e

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 i
n

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
A

ls
o

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

K
e

y
 S

k
ill

s
 4

 i
s
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
o
 Y

O
T

, 
a

n
d

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 N
E

E
T

 W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
, 

i.
e

. 
n
e

w
 P

ri
n

c
e

s
 T

ru
s
t 
a

n
d
 3

rd
 D

im
e

n
s
io

n
 M

u
s
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

W
e
 a

im
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 C
o

n
n
e

x
io

n
s
 P

A
 f
o

r 
e

v
e

ry
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 P

re
v
e

n
t 

a
n
d

 D
e

te
r 

lis
t.

  
A

 l
it
e

ra
c
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 G
A

P
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 a
n

d
 S

h
a

n
n
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 
p

e
e

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
o

c
a

te
s
 f

ro
m

 I
S

S
P

 a
n
d

 m
e

n
to

rs
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 R

A
P

 s
c
h
e

m
e

. 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

ls
 o

f 
Y

O
T

 s
e

c
o

n
d
e

d
 s

ta
ff

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
c
o
n

d
e
e

s
, 
a

re
 n

o
w

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 a

n
d

 p
a

re
n

t 
a

g
e
n

c
y
. 

 
T

ra
in

in
g
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 E
T

E
 a

n
d

 Y
J
B

 I
n

s
e

t 
m

o
ti
v
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 d
is

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 W

e
 s

h
a
ll 

a
ls

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

g
o
o

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
 

T
h
e

 Y
O

T
 C

o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s
 w

o
rk

e
r 

h
a

s
 s

tr
o

n
g
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 N
e

w
 S

ta
rt

, 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

y
 m

e
e

t 
o

n
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
, 

th
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 
s
tr

o
n

g
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 L
S

C
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 Y

O
T

 E
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 W
o
rk

e
r 

a
tt

e
n
d

s
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 t

h
a

t 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 s

k
ill

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
C

o
n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 w

o
rk

e
r 

is
 n

o
w

 s
e

c
o

n
d

e
d

 p
a

rt
 t
im

e
 t

o
 Y

O
T

, 
th

o
u

g
h

 n
o

t 
a

ll 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 t
h

e
 P

re
v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 D

e
te

r 
lis

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

Page 58



2
1
 

W
e
 w

ill
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h

e
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 t
h

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 b
a

s
ic

s
 i
n

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 a

g
e

 1
6

, 
u

s
in

g
 

N
e

w
 S

ta
rt

, 
C

o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
S

 K
e
e

p
in

g
 Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
 i
n

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 (
K

Y
P

E
) 

w
o

rk
e

r,
 f

u
n
d

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e

n
d
e

rs
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 “
jo

b
 r

e
a

d
y
” 

in
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
, 

a
n
d

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 C
o

lle
g
e

, 
a

n
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

e
n

ti
tl
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 E
S

O
L

 

 D
a

ta
: 

 

  
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
(A

d
ju

s
te

d
 f

o
r 

w
e
ig

h
ti

n
g

) 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 Y

e
a

r 
A

c
tu

a
l 

%
 

0
7

/0
8

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 

E
P

Q
A

: 
0

3
 

ra
ti

n
g

 
E

P
Q

A
: 

0
5

 
re

s
u

lt
 

O
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 i

n
 E

T
E

 
1

8
6

.5
 

8
1

.8
%

 
9

0
%

 
1

 
2

.5
6

 

  P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

9
0

%
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e

n
d
e

rs
 s

u
p
e

rv
is

e
d

 b
y
 Y

O
T

s
 a

re
 i
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 f
u

ll-
ti
m

e
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

 

Page 59



2
2
 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 T

O
 A

P
P

R
O

P
R

IA
T

E
 A

C
C

O
M

M
O

D
A

T
IO

N
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
: 

 

In
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

tw
o

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 y
e

a
r,

 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

p
la

c
in

g
 9

5
%

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 o

rd
e

rs
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
h

ir
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
n

ly
 8

9
.7

7
%

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
e

re
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
d

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 t

h
e

 t
h

re
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

a
c
c
u
m

u
la

te
d

 f
ig

u
re

 w
a

s
 9

4
.5

5
%

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 n

a
rr

o
w

ly
 m

is
s
e

d
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 K

P
I 

h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o
n

, 
fr

o
m

 8
8

%
 i
n

 
2

0
0
4

/0
5
 t

o
 9

2
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
5

-6
, 

a
n

d
 o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 n
o

w
 m

e
e

ts
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 9
5

%
%

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

w
o

 p
la

c
e

s
 i
n

 a
 h

o
s
te

l 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 “

S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

” 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r,

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 i
n

v
a

lu
a
b

le
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
. 
T

h
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 p
la

c
e

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
, 

a
n
d
 n

e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 a
llo

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tw

o
 b

e
d

s
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

re
m

a
n
d

 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
, 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 s
p

o
t 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

is
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
fo

r 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 p

o
lic

e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 s

u
it
e

s
 t
o

 L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 P
o

lic
e
 a

n
d
 C

ri
m

in
a

l 
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 A
c
t 
1

9
8

4
 (

P
A

C
E

).
 

T
h
e

 Y
O

T
 h

a
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 Y
J
B

 p
ilo

t 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 w

id
e

 I
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 f

o
s
te

ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 A

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 a
n

d
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 o
n
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e
m

a
n

d
e
d

 i
n

to
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t
o

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 w

ill
 

w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

c
o
n

s
is

te
n
t 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

ff
e

re
d

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

A
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
b
e

tw
e

e
n

 w
it
h

 H
P

U
 a

n
d

 Y
O

T
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 T

h
e

 Y
O

T
 i
s
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 'B

ro
a
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
' b

y
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 T

e
a

m
/H

P
U

 a
s
 b

ro
k
e

rs
 o

f 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 l
o
d

g
in

g
s
 r

e
m

a
n

d
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 D
a

ta
: 

 A
 n

a
m

e
d

 a
c

c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
is

 
in

 p
la

c
e

 
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
%

 
0

7
/0

8
 T

a
rg

e
t 

%
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 
a

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 

2
4

0
 

9
5

.6
2

%
 

9
5

%
 

Page 60



2
3
 

  P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

Y
O

T
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 n

a
m

e
d

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r,

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
, 
o

r 
o

n
 r

e
le

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
u

re
 e

s
ta

te
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
o

 t
o

. 

  

Page 61



2
4
 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 T

O
 M

E
N

T
A

L
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

T
h
e

re
 w

a
s
 o

n
e
 a

c
u
te

 c
a

s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

n
in

e
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
2
0

0
6

/0
7
; 

ty
p

ic
a
lly

 t
h

e
re

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 o

n
ly

 o
n

e
 o

r 
tw

o
 s

u
c
h

 c
a

s
e

s
 i
n

 a
 w

h
o

le
 y

e
a

r.
  

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

N
o

n
-A

c
u

te
 c

a
s
e

s
 (

3
3

) 
c
o
m

p
a

re
s
 t

o
 3

0
 i
n

 s
a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
5
/0

6
, 

a
n

d
 3

9
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 o

f 
2
0

0
5

/0
6

. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 K

P
I 

is
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
tl
y
 s

tr
o

n
g
 w

it
h

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 a
c
u

te
 a

n
d
 n

o
n

 a
c
u

te
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 1
0

0
%

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
a

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

9
5

%
 o

f 
c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

im
e

s
c
a
le

s
. 

 I
n
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 w

e
 s

h
a

ll 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 C
A

M
H

S
 t

o
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 t
h

is
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

 

T
ra

in
in

g
 i
n

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 F

o
re

n
s
ic

 A
d

o
le

s
c
e

n
t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

s
y
c
h

ia
tr

ic
 n

u
rs

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
s
e

n
io

r 
n
u

rs
e

 i
n

 C
A

M
H

S
. 

 A
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 2
0
0

7
. 
T

h
e

 C
A

M
H

S
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o
n

 c
o

u
rs

e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 

T
h
e

 Y
O

T
 n

u
rs

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
fo

re
n

s
ic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 b
re

a
d
th

 o
f 

m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 

Y
O

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
, 

a
n
d

 w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

A
M

H
S

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 e

a
s
e

 o
f 

ta
k
e

-u
p

 o
f 

C
A

M
H

S
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

Y
O

T
 c

lie
n

ts
. 

C
A

M
H

S
 a

re
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
 Y

O
T

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 w

o
rk

. 

T
h
e

 Y
O

T
 n

u
rs

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
rt

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

lie
n

ts
’ 
n
e

e
d

s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e

rs
to

o
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 

p
o

in
t 
o
f 

s
e

n
te

n
c
in

g
. 

A
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ru

s
t 

is
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
v
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
O

T
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
u

rs
e

 
a

n
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
Y

IS
P

 r
e
fe

rr
a

ls
 t

o
 C

A
M

H
S

. 

 T
h

e
 E

P
Q

A
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 a
re

a
s
 f
o

r 
q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 h
a

d
 b

e
e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

h
e
a

d
 o

f 
s
c
h

e
d
u

le
  

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

th
a

t 
a
p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 o
f 

th
e
 Y

O
T

 s
e
c
o

n
d
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

 2
0

0
7
/0

8
. 

T
h
e

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 

h
a

s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 h
e

a
lt
h

 s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 t

o
 Y

O
T

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 

o
f 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

n
d

 t
a

k
e

-u
p

 o
f 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
a

re
 b

y
 t

h
a

t 
g
ro

u
p

. 

   

Page 62



2
5
 

D
a

ta
: 

 R
e

fe
r 

to
 C

A
H

M
S

 f
o

r 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t:
 w

it
h

in
 5

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s

 f
o

r 
a

c
u

te
 c

a
s
e

s
; 

w
it

h
in

 1
5

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s

 f
o

r 
n

o
n

-a
c

u
te

 c
a
s

e
s

 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 

Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
%

 
0

7
/0

8
 T

a
rg

e
t 

%
 

E
P

Q
A

: 
0

5
 o

r 
0

6
 r

a
ti

n
g

 

A
c

u
te

 c
a

s
e

s
 

0
 

n
/a

 
9

5
%

 
2

.3
1

 

N
o

n
-a

c
u

te
 c

a
s
e

s
 

2
4

 
1

0
0

%
 

9
5

%
 

2
.3

1
 

  P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
w

h
o

 a
re

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 A

s
s
e

t 
o

r 
th

e
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
 m

a
n

if
e

s
ti
n

g
: 

•
 

a
c
u

te
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
, 

a
re

 r
e
fe

rr
e

d
 b

y
 Y

O
T

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
 a

n
d

 
A

d
o

le
s
c
e

n
t 

M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 (

C
A

M
H

S
) 

fo
r 

a
 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 f

iv
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 
o
f 

th
e

 r
e
fe

rr
a

l,
 w

it
h

 a
 

v
ie

w
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
a

 T
ie

r 
3

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 C

A
M

H
S

 t
ie

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
is

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

•
 

n
o

n
-a

c
u

te
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
, 
a

re
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 f
o

r 
a

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

g
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 C

A
M

H
S

 T
ie

rs
 1

-3
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 1

5
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l.
 

Page 63



2
6
 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 T

O
 S

U
B

S
T

A
N

C
E

 M
IS

U
S

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
: 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
c
re

e
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 w
a

s
 2

5
9
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
2
0

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
a

n
d

 i
s
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 e

v
e

r 
s
c
re

e
n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 i
n
 a

 n
in

e
 m

o
n

th
ly

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

 T
h
e

 6
4

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

, 
a

s
 a

 
re

s
u

lt
 o

f 
s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 b

y
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

, 
w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
 T

ie
r 

2
, 

3
, 

o
r 

4
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

lly
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
u

c
h

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 a
 n

in
e
 m

o
n

th
ly

 p
e

ri
o

d
 s

in
c
e

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
5

. 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
is

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 m

e
t,

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 o
f 
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
n
e
fi
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

fo
r 

d
ir
e

c
t 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 R
e

s
e

tt
le

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 A
ft

e
rc

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

R
A

P
).

 T
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
id

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 (

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 “

L
if
e

lin
e

”)
 w

e
n

t 
o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0
0

5
 a

n
d

 a
 l
in

k
 

w
o

rk
e

r 
is

 b
a

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 t
w

o
 d

a
y
s
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

In
 2

0
0
7

/0
7

8
 w

e
 s

h
a

ll 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 s
tr

o
n

g
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

Y
O

T
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 e

m
b
e

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
r.

 

R
A

P
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

m
e
n

to
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

is
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 
w

it
h

 m
e

n
to

rs
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d
 d

e
p

lo
y
e

d
. 

 

F
a

m
ily

 g
ro

u
p

 c
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
ta

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 a
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 a

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

R
A

P
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
b
e

e
n

 d
e

c
id

e
d

. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 o
n

ly
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 n

a
m

e
d

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 
re

le
a

s
e

 f
ro

m
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 e

ra
d

ic
a

te
 t
h

is
 p

ro
b

le
m

 a
lt
o

g
e

th
e

r.
 

E
n

g
a

g
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 L
if
e

lin
e

. 
G

o
o

d
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 
fo

r 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
to

 T
ie

r 
3

 a
n
d

 4
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 v

ia
 L

if
e

lin
e

 a
n
d

 C
A

M
H

S
. 
T

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

Y
O

T
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 T
ie

r 
2

 I
n

it
ia

l 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

o
l 
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
, 
a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 A

S
S

E
T

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 (

s
e
e

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 P

la
n

 a
b
o

v
e

) 
h

a
v
e

 h
e

lp
e
d

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 1
0
0

%
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 i
n

 2
0

0
6
/0

7
. 

W
e
 s

h
a

ll 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 t
ie

r 
3

 o
r 

4
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

re
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 R
A

P
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 s

tr
o

n
g
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

ly
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 L

if
e

 L
in

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n

's
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
 w

iz
a

rd
 i
s
 r

e
g
u

la
rl

y
 r

u
n

 o
n
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
e

lig
ib

le
 a

n
d

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
. 

  

Page 64



2
7
 

 D
a

ta
: 

  
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 
Y

e
a

r 
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 Y

e
a

r 
A

c
tu

a
l 

%
 

0
7

/0
8

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 
E

P
Q

A
: 

0
5

 o
r 

0
6

 r
a

ti
n

g
 

S
c

re
e

n
in

g
 (

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

rt
 A

s
s

e
ts

 
c

o
m

p
le

te
d

) 
2

5
5

 
9

7
.3

3
%

 
N

o
n

e
 

3
 

S
p

e
c

ia
li

s
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 5

 d
a

y
s

 
6

1
 

1
0

0
%

 
9

0
%

 
3

 

E
a

rl
y
 A

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 1
0

 d
a

y
s

 
5

9
 

9
6

.7
2

%
 

9
0

%
 

3
 

  P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 s
c
re

e
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u

s
e

, 
th

a
t 

th
o

s
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 f

iv
e

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
. 

  

Page 65



2
8
 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 R

E
S

E
T

T
L

E
M

E
N

T
 I

N
T

O
 T

H
E

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

`T
h

e
 Y

O
T

 M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 h
e

lp
e

d
 s

h
a
p

e
 a

n
d

 f
u

lly
 s

ig
n

e
d

 u
p

 t
o

, 
th

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n

- 
w

id
e

 R
e

-S
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 

P
le

d
g
e

. 
T

h
e

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

w
o

rk
e

d
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 “
L
o

o
k
in

g
 O

u
t”

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
 p

ri
s
o
n

e
rs

, 
a
n

d
 

th
is

 w
o

rk
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 r
e

a
c
h

in
g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
s
ta

g
e

 o
f 

B
e
a

c
o
n
 S

ta
tu

s
 a

w
a

rd
 f

o
r 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 R

e
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 

 D
a

ta
: 

R
e
s

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 

 E
P

Q
A

: 
0

5
 r

a
ti
n

g
 

 

2
 

E
P

Q
A

: 
0

7
 t

a
rg

e
t 

3
 

  

Page 66



2
9
 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

 E
F

F
E

C
T

IV
E

 R
E

S
T

O
R

A
T

IV
E

 J
U

S
T

IC
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

A
 n

e
w

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

2
5

%
 o

f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n
 R

e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 J
u

s
ti
c
e
 w

a
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

0
7

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 Y

J
B

 
C

o
u

n
ti
n

g
 R

u
le

s
. 
 T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o

r 
2
0

0
7

-0
8

 a
n

d
 2

0
0
6

-0
7

 a
re

 n
o
t 

th
e

re
fo

re
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
b

le
 w

it
h

 o
n

e
 a

n
o

th
e

r.
 

T
h
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 f

ig
u

re
s
 f
o

r 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 a
re

: 
A

p
r-

J
u
n

 0
7

 =
 5

 –
 5

.6
%

 o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 c

lo
s
e

d
; 

J
u

l 
–

 S
e

p
 0

7
 =

 
8

 –
 1

0
.1

%
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 c

lo
s
e

d
; 
O

c
t 

–
 D

e
c
 0

7
 =

 1
9

 –
 2

3
.7

5
%

 o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 c

lo
s
e

d
 

T
h
e

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 
is

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
. 

 T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

a
rr

o
w

ly
 m

is
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 q
u
a

rt
e

r,
 a

n
d
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

is
 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 m
e

t 
in

 t
h
e

 f
o
u

rt
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

  
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

o
o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
in

 t
h
e

 y
e

a
r,

 t
h
e

 f
u

ll 
y
e

a
r 

c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 f
ig

u
re

 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 2

5
%

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

 W
h
ile

 v
ic

ti
m

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 h

ig
h

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

n
in

e
 m

o
n

th
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r,

 n
u

m
e

ri
c
a

lly
 l
o

w
, 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

fl
e

c
ts

 t
h
e

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 o

f 
e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 j
u
s
ti
c
e

 w
o

rk
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
s
p

o
n
d

s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 o

v
e

r 
re

c
e

n
t 
y
e

a
rs

. 

T
h
e

 p
la

n
 f
o

r 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 i
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 o

n
e
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 

R
e

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r.

 T
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e
d

 w
a

s
 1

0
0
%

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

7
5

%
. 

T
h
e

 R
J
 f

o
ru

m
 h

a
s
 m

e
t 
re

g
u

la
rl

y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 Y

O
T

 p
o

lic
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 F
in

a
l 
W

a
rn

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 a
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

R
J
 i
n

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 
N

e
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 r

e
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 c

re
a

te
d
 e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r,

 a
n

d
 

w
e

 p
la

n
 t

o
 l
in

k
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e

n
d
e

rs
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
T

e
a

m
s
. 

 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
ti
n

g
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 n

e
e
d

s
, 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

th
e
m

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
’ 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 y

o
u

th
 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 f

o
r 

v
ic

ti
m

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 a

n
d

 w
it
n

e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h
e

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
. 

L
in

k
in

g
 r

e
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 c
lo

s
e

r 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

r 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 t
e

a
m

s
 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 

W
e
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 r

e
p

a
ra

ti
o
n

 s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 a

re
 e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

T
h

e
 R

J
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 

Page 67



3
0
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 n
e

w
 r

e
p

a
ra

ti
o
n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 
th

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

b
e

in
g
 w

it
h

 M
a

rn
e

r 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
g
a

rd
e

n
. 

 

T
h
e

 R
J
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r 
n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 m
o

re
 f

a
c
e

- 
to

- 
fa

c
e

 v
ic

ti
m

-o
ff

e
n

d
e

r 
m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
, 
a

lt
h
o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 i
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
e
n

d
s
 

la
rg

e
ly

 u
p

o
n

 o
u

r 
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 m
o

ti
v
a

te
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 v
ic

ti
m

s
. 
W

o
rk

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 V
ic

ti
m

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 c

a
s
e

- 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

b
u

ild
 o

n
 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 

W
e
 a

re
 e

n
d

e
a

v
o

u
ri
n

g
 t

o
 l
in

k
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 r

e
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

ff
e

n
d
e

r’
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 b
u

t 
th

is
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 l
o
n

g
e

r-
 t

e
rm

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 p
u

b
lic

it
y
 o

f 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 i
s
 i
n

te
n
d

e
d
. 
T

h
e

 R
e

-C
y
c
le

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 f
e
a

tu
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
r.

 

M
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
y
o

u
th

 g
a

n
g
s
 a

n
d
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
re

 o
th

e
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 t

e
rr

it
o

ri
a

l 
a

n
d

 d
iv

is
iv

e
. 

 R
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 
o

th
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s
 a

re
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

S
H

E
, 

C
it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip
 a

n
d
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

s
e

 k
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 w
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 b
e
 d

o
n

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

. 
It
 w

ill
 s

it
 f

o
r 

a
 t

h
re

e
 m

o
n
th

 p
e

ri
o

d
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

a
g
e
n

c
ie

s
 w

it
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
iv

e
, 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
, 

it
 w

ill
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
y
o

u
th

 f
o
ra

, 
a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
 a

 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

a
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 s
e

c
u

re
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
g
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
ll 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
e
d

. 

   D
a

ta
: 

 E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
2
5

%
 o

f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
y
o

u
th

 
c

ri
m

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 a
 r

e
s

to
ra

ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti

c
e

 
p

ro
c

e
s

s
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
8

5
%

 o
f 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 w

h
o

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 s
a

ti
s

fi
e

d
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti

v
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 

Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 

0
7

/0
8

 ¾
 

Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
%

 

0
7

/0
8

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 
E

P
Q

A
: 

0
4

 
ra

ti
n

g
 

E
P

Q
A

: 
0

5
 

re
s

u
lt

 

V
ic

ti
m

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

 
3

2
 

1
2

.9
%

 
2

5
%

 
 

 

V
ic

ti
m

s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 s

a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 
8

 
1

0
0

%
 

8
5

%
 

 
 

 

Page 68



3
1
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

(n
e
w

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r)
 

 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

 2
5

%
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

d
is

p
o

s
a

ls
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 Y
O

T
, 
a

n
d

 8
5

%
 o

f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
. 

 

Page 69



3
2
 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 P

A
R

E
N

T
IN

G
 I

N
T

E
R

V
E

N
T

IO
N

S
 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
  

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 m

ix
e

d
; 

Y
O

T
 d

is
p

o
s
a

ls
 e

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

th
re

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 o

f 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
 w

a
s
 9

%
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d
 w

it
h

 a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
0

%
. 
T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

a
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 r

e
p

la
c
e
d

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 p
a

re
n
ta

l 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 
p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
0

%
 w

a
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

0
7

. 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 f

o
r 

2
0
0

7
-0

8
 a

n
d

 
2

0
0
6

-0
7

 c
a

n
n
o

t 
b

e
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 o
n
e

 a
n

o
th

e
r.

 N
e

v
e

rt
h

e
le

s
s
 a

n
 u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

 c
a

n
 b

e
 s

e
e
n

, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n

 
w

o
rk

. 

T
h
e

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

n
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 w

a
s
 f

la
g
g
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 r
is

k
 f

a
c
to

r 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 a

 m
o

re
 s

y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

A
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

, 
w

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
h

e
 Y

J
B

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 g

ra
n

t 
to

 b
u

ild
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

, 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 2

5
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 w

o
rk

e
r 

to
 j
o

in
 t
h
e

 C
o

ra
m

 F
a
m

ily
 T

e
a
m

 a
t 

th
e

 M
a

ry
 

H
u

g
h

e
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
, 

c
o

s
ti
n
g
 £

4
2

,8
3

5
 (

2
5

.4
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
g
ra

n
t)

. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 m
e
e

t 
g
ro

w
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f
o

r 
p
a

re
n

ta
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
IS

P
 i
n

 d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 A

B
C

s
, 

re
p

ri
m

a
n
d

 c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 b

y
 Y

O
T

 P
o

lic
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 Y
IS

P
, 
a

n
d

 Y
O

T
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
A

S
B

 c
a

s
e

s
. 

P
a

re
n
ti
n

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 t
ri
g
g
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 P
re

v
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 D

e
te

r 
T

a
c
ti
c
a

l 
G

ro
u

p
. 

T
h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
e

a
rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 b

y
 a

n
ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r,

 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

th
o

u
g
h

 m
o

re
 P

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 O

rd
e
rs

 a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 v
ia

 Y
O

T
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

rt
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

, 
w

it
h

 w
e

e
k
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
Y

o
u

th
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

P
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

p
a

re
n
ta

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
s
 t
a

k
e
n

 p
la

c
e

. 

A
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
id

e
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
's

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 s
e
a

m
le

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
ro

m
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 c

ri
s
is

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

. 

Y
O

T
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 a

ll 
p

a
re

n
ts

 a
t 
A

S
S

E
T

 s
ta

g
e

 a
n

d
 o

ff
e

r 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 o

rd
e

rs
 i
f 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

A
 s

e
c
o
n

d
e
d

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

e
r 

fr
o

m
 C

o
ra

m
 F

a
m

ily
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
a

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 Y
O

T
 3

 d
a

y
s
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

T
h

is
 p

e
rs

o
n

 i
s
 b

o
o

s
ti
n

g
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 b

y
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 m

e
a
n

s
: 

 

•
 

A
tt

e
n
d

 t
e

a
m

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

•
 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

lly
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 a

n
y
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 

Page 70



3
3
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e
fe

rr
a

l 
fo

rm
. 

•
 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 ,
 o

r 
to

 d
o
 s

o
 v

ia
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n
e

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 

•
 

A
tt

e
n
d

 p
o

lic
e

 F
in

a
l W

a
rn

in
g
s
 

•
 

C
o

lla
te

 a
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 p

a
c
k
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 p
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

O
rg

a
n

is
e

 a
n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 t
a

s
te

r 
s
e

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 m

o
d

e
l 
‘S

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

in
g
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

in
g
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
’.
 

•
 

D
e

v
is

e
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 l
e

a
fl
e

t 
to

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 b
e

 s
e
n

t 
to

 a
ll 

p
a

re
n
ts

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o

m
in

g
 t
o

 n
o

ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
A

n
ti
-

S
o

c
ia

l 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

P
la

n
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n
d

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 a
 c

o
n

c
e

rt
e
d

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
c
e
n

tr
e

d
 o

n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
, 
th

e
 “

T
h

in
k
 F

a
m

ily
” 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n

 o
f 

re
-o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
. 

 W
e
 a

im
 t
o

 l
in

k
 w

it
h

 
w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 –

 r
a

n
g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

ily
 N

u
rs

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

F
a

m
ily

 W
e
lf
a
re

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 F
a

m
ily

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 W
o

rk
e

rs
 i
n

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
e
n

tr
e

s
, 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 S

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

in
g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
e

x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

to
 m

o
re

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 C

o
ra

m
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 t

e
a

m
s
. 

F
IS

P
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
to

o
l 
fo

r 
in

te
n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 c
h

a
o

ti
c
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

th
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a
n

 5
 y

e
a

rs
 

o
f 

a
g
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 a

 P
a

re
n

ta
l 
E

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 B
o

a
rd

 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

s
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 p
a

re
n

ts
. 
T

h
e

 Y
O

T
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 a

n
d
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
b

le
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 t

o
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 f
u

ll 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 

O
u

r 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 e
n

s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 
P

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
s
 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
, 

in
te

rv
e

n
in

g
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

re
 5

. 
T

h
e

 Y
O

T
 l
in

k
s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
b
o

u
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

a
re

a
. 
A

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 F

a
m

ily
 N

u
rs

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 f

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
fa

m
ily

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 w

o
rk

e
r 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
, 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 F
a

m
ily

 W
e
lf
a

re
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 
 

A
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

p
a

re
n

t 
a

n
d

 f
a

m
ily

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
e

x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 t

ra
in

e
d

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

s
c
h
o

o
l 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 l
in

k
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 4
 e

x
te

n
d
e

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
c
lu

s
te

r 
lin

k
s
. 

 

 

Page 71



3
4
 

   D
a

ta
: 

  

  
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
0

7
/0

8
 ¾

 Y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
%

 
0

7
/0

8
 T

a
rg

e
t 

%
 

E
P

Q
A

: 
0

4
 r

a
ti

n
g

 
E

P
Q

A
: 

0
5

 
re

s
u

lt
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

Y
O

T
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 

2
2

 
8

.8
7

%
 

2
0

%
 

2
.6

9
 

2
.7

5
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 

5
 

2
0

%
 

2
0

%
 

 
 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 0

7
/0

8
 t

a
rg

e
t 

(c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s
) 

(n
e
w

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r)
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
fo

r 
2

0
%

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 a
 F

in
a

l 
W

a
rn

in
g
 w

it
h

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

, 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
-b

a
s
e

d
 p

e
n
a

lt
y
, 

o
r 

D
T

O
, 
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
2
0

%
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

n
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 

th
e

ir
 p

a
re

n
t/

c
a

re
r(

s
) 

re
c
e

iv
e

 a
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
. 

A
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

: 
P

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 

P
le

a
s
e

 e
n

te
r 

th
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 T

o
o

l 

 

Page 72



3
5
 

E
N

S
U

R
E

 E
Q

U
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

G
A

R
D

L
E

S
S

 O
F

 R
A

C
E

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
: 

 

 A
 C

E
N

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e

 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 M
B

 

T
h
e

 R
a

c
e
 A

u
d

it
 A

c
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

 w
it
h

 a
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 (

C
o

u
rt

 C
le

rk
s
, 

Y
o

u
th

 C
o

u
rt

 s
e

n
te

n
c
e

rs
, 
P

o
lic

e
, 

C
ro

w
n

 C
o

u
rt

 
P

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

, 
Y

O
T

) 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 m
e

e
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n

 2
0
0
8

-9
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 

A
n

 a
m

e
n
d

e
d
 i
n

-d
e
p

th
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 k

e
y
 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

u
d

it
, 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

o
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 L

td
, 

w
h

o
 a

m
a
lg

a
m

a
te

d
 a

ll 
R

a
c
e
 A

u
d
it
s
 i
n

to
 a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

a
p
e

r 
o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

J
B

, 
w

a
s
 a

p
p

e
n
d

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 P
la

n
 2

0
0
7

-8
, 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ro
u

p
 w

a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
 i
n

-
h

o
u

s
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 s

e
le

c
t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
’s

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

tt
e

r.
 

A
n

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 D
ru

g
s
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n
 2

0
0
6

 w
h

ic
h

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 
a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 Y

O
T

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

�
 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 r

a
c
e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
h

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

�
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

g
e

n
d
e

r 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
a

c
k
a

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

ru
ly

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 g
e

n
d

e
r 

g
ro

u
p

. 
 W

it
h

 r
e
g
a

rd
 

to
 t

h
is

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

t,
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

ro
u

p
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

-t
o

-o
n

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 u

s
in

g
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
a

c
k
a

g
e

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

“P
a

th
w

a
y
s
” 

(C
o

g
n

it
iv

e
 b

e
h
a

v
io

u
ra

l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
) 

, 
“T

e
e

n
-T

a
lk

” 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 V
io

le
n

t 
O

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
te

r 
to

 t
h
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

b
o

th
 g

e
n

d
e

rs
 a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

d
a

p
te

d
 f

o
r 

g
e

n
d

e
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 o
r 

o
n
e

-t
o

-o
n

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
. 

 A
 m

a
le

 o
n

ly
 

g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e
n

d
e

rs
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
 1

2
 w

e
e

k
 “

P
a

th
w

a
y
s
” 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 G

e
n

d
e

r 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 o
n

 
a

 o
n
e

-t
o

-o
n
e

 b
a

s
is

, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 w

it
h

 f
e

m
a

le
 y

o
u

n
g
 o

ff
e

n
d
e

rs
 w

h
o

 o
ft

e
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 w
o

rk
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

lis
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n

 w
o

rk
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 Y
IS

P
 T

e
a

m
 v

ia
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
D

e
fe

n
c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

“G
re

e
n

 V
is

io
n

s
”,

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

s
 b

o
th

 a
 t

a
s
te

r 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
 f

u
ll 

4
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a

n
d
 

P
A

Y
P

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
b
o

th
 s

e
x
e

s
, 

w
it
h

 g
e

n
d

e
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 
 A

 5
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 “

S
ta

y
in

g
 C

o
o

l”
 v

io
le

n
t 

o
ff

e
n
d

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

g
ir
ls

 w
a

s
 r

u
n

 i
n

 a
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
in

 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0
7

. 

  

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Committee: 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 

Date: 
 
4th March 
2008 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 
 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 
 

Report of: 
 
Sara Williams, Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officer(s): 
 
Shanara Matin, Scrutiny Policy Officer  
 

Title:  
 
Use of Consultants – Report of the Scrutiny 
Working Group for Excellent Public Services  
 

 
 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1  This report submits the report and recommendations of the Excellent Public Services 

Scrutiny Working Group Review on the Use of Consultants for consideration by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
 
2.1  Endorse the draft report. 
 
2.2  The Service Head, Scrutiny and Equalities be authorised to agree the final report 

before its submission to Cabinet, after consultation with the Scrutiny Lead for 
Excellent Pubic Services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) Section 100D 
LOST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

Background paper  
 
 
Scrutiny Review File held in Scrutiny Policy Team  

Name and telephone of and address where open to 
inspection 
 
Shanara Matin 
020 7364 4548 

 

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 75



 2

3. Background 
 
3.1  The Working Group was established in September 2007 to investigate the use of 

consultants within the Council.   
 
3.2 The objectives of the review were to: 

• investigate the reasons for the use of consultants 

• evaluate the effectiveness of the work undertaken by consultants within the 
authority using case studies 

• consider the costs involved in using consultants and to compare these costs with 
other similar local authorities 

• use the findings as the basis for recommendations on further developing policies on 
use of consultants 

• consider the improvement in this area of procurement being implemented by the 
Council and identify any further areas of improvement 

 
3.3 The working group met three times to review financial reports, procurement policies 

and procedures and the results of research into other local authority and public sector 
experiences of using consultants. 

 
3.4 The report with recommendations is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
3.4  Once agreed, the working group's report and action plan will be submitted to Cabinet 

for a response to their recommendations. 
 
4. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
4.1  There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 
5. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1  There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
6. Equal Opportunity Implications 
 
6.1  There are no direct equal opportunity implications arising from this report. 
 
7. Anti-Poverty Implications 
 
7.1  There are no direct Anti-Poverty implications arising from this report. 
 
8. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment 
 
8.1  There are no direct actions for a greener environment arising from the report. 
 
9. Risk Management 
 
9.1  There are no direct risk management implications arising from the Working Group’s 

report or recommendations. 
 
 
Appendix 1 Use of Consultants – report of the Scrutiny Working Group for Excellent Public 
Services 

Page 76



 3

 
 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 

Use of Consultants 
 

Report of the Scrutiny Working Group for Excellent Public Services 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Tower Hamlets Council 
February 2008 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 77



 4

Index 
 
 
 Page 
  

Acknowledgements 5 

Chair’s foreword 6 

Recommendations  7 

Introduction 8 

Findings 10 

Conclusion  21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



 5

Acknowledgements 

 
 
The Working Group would like to thank officers and colleauges for taking part and supporting 
the review. 
 
 
Working Group chair 
Cllr Mohammed Abdus Salique (Labour) 
 
Working Group 
Cllr Helal U. Abbas (Labour) 
Cllr Anwara Ali (Labour) 
Cllr Stephanie Eaton (Liberal Democrats) 
Cllr Abjol Miah (Respect) 
Cllr Lutfur Rahman (Labour) 
Cllr Simon Rouse (Conservative) 
 
Councillors who took part in the Review 
Cllr Alibor Choudhury (Labour) 
Cllr Marc Francis (Labour) 
Cllr Alex Heslop (Labour) 
Cllr Joshua Peck (Labour) – Lead Member for Performance and Resources 
Cllr Salim Ullah (Labour) 
 
Council Officers 
Sara Williams – Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Finance & Procurement 
Alan Finch – Service Head, Corporate Finance 
Nick Walker – Interim Service Head, Procurement 
Richard Parsons – Service Head, Procurement & Corporate Programmes 
Imran Yasin – Strategic Procurement Manager 
 
Strategy & Performance 
Alan Steward – Interim Service Head, Strategy & Performance 
Stephanie Ford – Performance Officer 
 
Development & Renewal 
Anne-Marie Berni - Acting Team Leader, Development Schemes 
Lisa Durban - Major Development Project Planner 
 
Scrutiny and Equalities: 
Michael Keating – Service Head, Scrutiny & Equalities 
Afazul Hoque – Scrutiny Policy Manager 
Shanara Matin – Scrutiny Policy Officer 
 

Page 79



 6

Chair’s foreword 
 
 
I am pleased to present the Excellent Public Services Scrutiny Working Group’s report on the 
Use of Consultants by Tower Hamlets Council.  

The use of consultants by local authorities is an area of local government which is 
controversial and much debated.  There is a need, however, to balance public scepticism 
about the use of resources on consultants against the value external skills and expertise can 
bring to in-house capacity in improving public services.  The Council will continue to need 
and use consultants as and when appropriate, but it is important to ensure consultants are 
procured and managed well.  

Council officers need to have flexibility over when and how to use consultants to best meet 
service needs.  There are for example areas where consultants are required to provide 
independence and objective oversight on issues such as senior levels of recruitment or to 
carry out sustainability appraisals of Local Development Documents.  The case studies 
considered as part of this review also highlighted areas where consultants are used to lever 
in specialist skills and services that bring in innovation and techniques that the Council does 
not currently have.  The key objective of this review has been to ensure that use of 
consultants is appropriate but also that there is robust procurement and management of 
these contracts and that we can demonstrate value for money.  The working group were 
pleased to find that there is no evidence of inappropriate use of resources or that spending 
on consultants in LBTH is out of step with other authorities. 

This report outlines the review process the findings and discussion undertaken by Members. 
It concludes with the recommendations which will be put to Cabinet.  I believe that the 
recommendations the working group have made will further improve the way that consultants 
are engaged and managed by the Council. 

 
I would like to thank all those who have been involved and my colleagues on the review 
working group for the way in which they have contributed to the findings in this report. 
 
I would also like to thank Officers for their help and assistance.  

 
 
 
       Cllr Mohammed Abdus-Salique 
       Scrutiny Lead, Excellent Public Services

Page 80



 7

Recommendations 
 
 
The working group recommendations set out the areas requiring consideration and action by 
the Council to ensure consultants are used more effectively and where possible to reduce 
their use by considering in-house capacity and scope for developing skills amongst existing 
staff first.  The working group recognise that there is ongoing work to improve policies and 
procedures around procuring consultants and have developed recommendations that add to 
existing work streams on the area.  The key areas covered by the recommendations are 
developing a corporate approach to procuring consultants, reducing dependency and 
capacity-building existing staff to take on project work wherever possible.   
 
Based on the findings of the review the working group recommend: 
 
R1 That the following criteria and definition of a consultant to be adopted across the 

Council. 
 

Consultants: 

• Have a defined work scope with deliverables 

• Often provide a report as an output that provides recommendations for further 
action but the consultant is not contracted to deliver at that time. 

• Have payment contingent upon completion of staged completion of the work 

• Do not act as staff members i.e. do not have Tower Hamlets e-mail addresses, 
phone numbers or desks. 

• May be able to provide a substitute to undertake the work 

• Are not in a templated position for the purposes of the Comensura contract – i.e. 
they do not relate to standard jobs within the Council, which could be provided by 
either permanent or temporary staff 

• Are contractually responsible for their outputs 

• Are liable for their own performance and the content of their work 
 
R 2 That future work on the procurement strategy to include programme of activities to 

help disseminate and embed procurement related policies within the organisation, e.g. 
presentations at all Directorate Management Team meetings and officer training.  

 
R 3 That financial reporting on procurement of consultancy services should clearly identify 

source of funding and ring-fenced funding such as Section 106 or Lottery Funds.   
 
R4 That targets for reducing expenditure on consultants should be highlighted as an 

objective in the Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan.  The Corporate Management Team to 
set indicative targets and for progress to be reported back. 

 
R5 That directorates review expenditure on consultants to assess the extent to which they 

are used and to establish a baseline for reviewing their use of consultants.  
Directorates should identify areas and set targets for reducing future spend in 
alignment with the Council’s horizontal savings exercise. 

 
R 6 That directorates should increasingly use internal secondments and graduate trainees 

for one-off projects, tying in with the corporate approach to developing staff. 
 
R 7 That options should be explored to enable the corporate Consultation and 

Involvement team to become a gatekeeper for procuring external consultation 
services. 

Page 81



 8

Introduction  
 
 
1. The use of consultants by the public sector is often treated with suspicion and criticised 

as wasteful of public funds.  It is also an area of interest and concern amongst elected 
Members and local people because of a perceived lack of transparency about how 
expenditure on consultants is prioritised and seen as taking funding away from service 
provision. Nevertheless, in the right circumstances, consultants provide an invaluable 
service to local authorities, allowing specialist skills to be brought in for projects where 
existing staff might not have the capacity or skills to undertake. Thus consultants can 
offer value for money if used appropriately. 

 
2.  The working group to review the use of consultants by the Tower Hamlets Council was 

set up in September 2007.  The intention was to review the context in which consultants 
are engaged, the extent to which they are used within the Council and the policies in 
place to ensure value for money during the commissioning and management of work 
delivered by consultants.  

 
3. It was agreed that this review would not be looking into the use of interim or agency staff 

and professional services used by the Council for example for legal or planning work.   
 
4. The working group agreed the following review objectives: 
 

• To investigate the reasons for the use of consultants 

• To evaluate the effectiveness of the work undertaken by consultants within the 
 authority using case studies 

• To consider the costs involved in using consultants and to compare these costs 
with other similar local authorities 

• To use the findings as the basis for recommendations on further developing policies 
on use of consultants 

• To identify and consider the areas for improvement in procurement and how it 
should be implemented by the Council. 

 
5. The working group recognised that consultants need to be used to lever in additional 

skills and expertise to help improve and deliver the best possible services for local 
people.  They felt however that there needed to be a better understanding of the extent 
to which consultants are used within the council and investigate alternative options to 
bringing in external resources. 

 
6. Members also agreed that the review was an opportunity to further develop Member 

involvement to achieve efficiency targets as part of the efficiency agenda and support it 
to be embedded across the Council.  

 
7. The strategic responsibility for how and when consultants are engaged falls within the 

remit of the Procurement Team within the Council.   Given the introspective nature of the 
review into operational issues within the Council Members were keen to look at regional 
comparisons and wider good practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



 9

8. With these objectives in mind the working group agreed the following schedule of work 
for carrying out the review: 

 
Introductory Review Meeting (October 2007) 

• Introduction to Review topic and focus (agree scope) 

• ‘Setting the context’ discussion with Officers 
- Definition of consultants; 
- Existing policy on use of consultants  
- Results of desk based research on best practice guidance from Audit 

Commission, Officers, London Centre of Excellence, professional bodies 
such as CIPFA 

 
Second Meeting (November 2007) 
 

• National evidence on use of consultants and trends, including benchmarking 
opportunities. 

• Case Study - Master Planning and Business Process Improvement 

• Cost of Consultants: Analysis 

 
 

Final meeting (January 2008) 
 

• Focused discussion with working group Members and key officers on issues 
arising during review 

• Capture learning points and recommendations 
 
9. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the working group’s report and 

recommendations. The Council’s Cabinet will then respond to the report and its 
recommendations and the action plan response which sets out how the 
recommendations will be addressed.   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



 10

Findings  
 
 
Literature Review and Desktop Research 
 
10. In 2005/06 estimated expenditure on consultants across London local authorities was 

£105m an average of £3m per authority.  These figures are from the London Centre of 
Excellence (LCE) local authority expenditure analysis for 2006/07, but the LCE believe 
that this is likely to be an underestimate of the true level of expenditure on consultants.  
The largest areas of spend are property, construction and IT.  With such high-levels of 
spend there is a responsibility on local authorities to improve outcomes and ensure that 
value for money is achieved. 

 
11. The London Centre of Excellence is one of nine regional centres set up by Government 

to deliver the National Procurement Strategy and Gershon Review.  The centre recently 
produced a Commissioning Toolkit for the procurement of consultancy and professional 
services.  The toolkit was used within the scope of the review to provide a comparison to 
Tower Hamlets procedures for engaging consultants as well as being considered more 
generally by the review working group as a toolkit and guide in its own right.  Members 
welcomed the similarities in approach between the procurement procedures within the 
commissioning toolkit and those used by the Council.  The working group felt that it was 
important however, that the Council should develop its own programme of work to 
support the way the Tower Hamlets procurement strategy and policies are disseminated 
within the Council.  Members were keen that any potential toolkit should reflect local 
needs and context and enable and empower officers to make better-informed choices 
when engaging consultants. 

 
12. The National Audit Office Report, ‘Central Governments Use of Consultants’ in 

December 2006 offers a strategic comparison for this review.  The report estimated the 
extent of public sector use of consultants in 2006 at £2.8bn, a figure heavily criticised by 
the media and public sector trade unions.  Much of the debate that followed has 
contributed to a perception of consultancy services as being high cost and low return 
with little to demonstrate the impact of such high levels of expenditure over a period of 
time when satisfaction with public sector services has continued to fall.  

 
13. Although the focus of the report was on central government departments, the review 

includes estimates of expenditure within local government based on figures from the 
consultancy trade association MCA (Management Consultancies Association) and 
industry sources.  These estimates put local government spend on consultants in 
2006/07 at £400m.  This would equate to 14% of all total public sector expenditure which 
is very high compared to figures from other local authorities considered later in this 
report.  This suggests that the MCA figures need to be read with some caution as well as 
the need for a more comprehensive analysis of expenditure on consultants across local 
government. 

 
14. The graph below sets out the increases in public sector use of consultants over the last 

seven years taken from the National Audit Office report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



 11

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
15. The tables below further highlight both the increase and proportion of spend between 

public sector bodies between 2003/04 and 2005/06, with central government 
departments and the NHS making up the majority of expenditure but with significant and 
steady increases in local government expenditure over the last three years.  There have 
also been significant changes in the type of services consultants are providing within the 
public sector with a move away from management and strategy roles to programme and 
project management work.  These changes reflect the increasing complexity of service 
provision for example aims to provide a seamless experience for service users across 
Health and Social care.     

 
             
Public sector spend on consultants  Changes in demand for services 
 

          
 
 
16. The report recommendations were on balance less about driving down daily rates or 

price and more about how to improve the way consultants are commissioned and 
managed to ensure they add value to public sector work.   It highlighted the difficulties in 
equating savings to this area of spend and recognised that there would be a continuing 
need to buy in external expertise to improve services.   They key challenges for public 
sector bodies were around planning and project managing consultant contracts, 
evaluating the learning and factoring in the role of existing staff both in terms of being the 

Public Sectors Use of consultants

-

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Year

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 (

£
m

)

Page 85



 12

first choice for carrying out the work on projects but also around building in scope for 
skills transfer and capacity building internal resources for future work.    

 
17. Findings from the literature review and desktop research helped to further expand the 

scope of the review and to set the context for investigating local practices.  
 

 
Use of Consultants by other Local Authorities 

 
18. During the development of the scope for the review it was agreed that it would be useful 

to look at other local authority experiences of using consultancy services and other 
scrutiny reviews on the subject.  A short research exercise found that the “Use of 
Consultants” is a popular scrutiny review topic with more than twenty recent or ongoing 
reviews currently listed online.  Working group members received a briefing on the 
findings and analysis from seven recent scrutiny reviews on the topic.  The key points 
from the briefing and Member discussion on the issues raised are set out below.  

 
19. Other local authority scrutiny working groups found the most useful approach to a review 

of this kind tended to be where it was possible to frame the investigation within wider 
objectives such as to: 

• redress the lack of trust in why and how consultants are engaged 

• develop a coherent strategy for engaging consultants  

• ensure use of consultants led to value for money. 
 
20. The scope of investigations varied from short reviews assessing the suitability of 

procurement procedures in engaging consultants, to organisation-wide reviews on how 
each directorate had engaged consultants over a number of years. 

 
21. The most common terms of reference across reviews were to: 

• identify the context of when and why consultants are used 

• investigate the procedures used to engage consultants 

• assess the procurement procedures and the performance management of 
consultants 

• investigate the extent of use or cost of consultants; year on year trends, as a 
proportion of total expenditure and in benchmarking against other local 
authorities 

 
22. Members welcomed the opportunity to use the learning from other local authorities in 

carrying out the review in Tower Hamlets.  The key themes and recommendations from 
the other local authority reviews are summarised below.   

 
23. Scrutiny reviews on the use of consultants can risk becoming reviews of management.   

The working groups which focused on promoting public confidence and developing more 
transparent procedures reported a more collaborative Member-Officer approach to the 
investigation.  It was also important to define the term “Consultant” early on in the review 
process to distinguish between consultants who provide management support, advice 
and guidance, as opposed to professional services such as lawyers and engineers 
contracted to provide advice or support on for example capital build projects.  

 
24. Working group members agreed that there was a need to agree a criteria that defined 

the role of a ‘consultant’ within Tower Hamlets.  This would provide greater clarity to 
officers and members and promote transparency and knowledge of how the organisation 
uses consultants in a way that would build public confidence and trust.  

Page 86



 13

 
25. All but one of the other local authority scrutiny reviews found that the reasons for 

engaging a consultant, were essentially sound in principle and in the right circumstances.  
In most cases the contract had resulted in securing additional funding or awards.  The 
one instance where the scrutiny review found use of consultants to be excessive was 
where the authority was a poorly performing Council and subject to Voluntary 
Engagement, which are emergency measures where a council seeks support from 
Government to recover from weak performance.  

 
26. A number of the reports identified problems with cost codes and distinguishing between 

expenditure on consultants and on professional fees.  Recommendations included 
ensuring expenditure on consultants was noted by a unique cost code and to improve 
officer training on financial procedures.   Some of the reviews explored how expenditure 
on consultants was budgeted for and found that the source of expenditure was often 
unclear or not noted.  This would be important in the case of S106 contributions or for 
example Lottery Funding which are often ring-fenced. 

 
27. In many authorities there were no specific policies to guide officers on the use of 

consultants.  Often the procurement strategies fell short of relevant advice such as the 
level of management sign-off required to engage consultants.  Officers at two authorities 
referred to the “Approved Officers Register” in Contract Standing orders which provide 
guidance on the tendering procedures depending on the financial scale of the contract.  
However, these exclude mechanisms for performance management or evaluation of the 
contracts once they are in progress.   

 
28. In discussing the briefing on other local authority experiences of using consultants 

working group members asked questions about the current policies and procedures in 
place in Tower Hamlets and were informed that officers follow financial regulations and 
the procurement policy to engage consultants.  A fuller presentation on current policies 
and procedures would be provided at a future meeting.  

 
29. The briefing also identified that a vacuum in policies and procedures to deal with 

consultants resulted in poor value for money in the longer term.  Thus, whilst the contract 
may have delivered the right outputs and outcomes, the skills and experience gained 
from delivering a project was lost by the organisation.  This highlighted the importance of 
a taking strategic approach to the way consultants are used across an organisation. 

 
30. Most reviews recommended that authorities should develop a corporate approach and 

have approved mechanisms for engaging consultants, including Member notification or 
sign-off in the case of significant contracts.  This would ensure uniformity across the 
Council and develop transparent systems better suited to withstand any public questions 
over the use of consultants. 

 
31. All of the scrutiny reviews put forward recommendations to encourage the use of 

alternatives before considering consultants, in particular by developing internal staff and 
their skills.  Specific recommendations included a review of policies to give greater 
flexibility to use existing employees and resources for special projects across the Council 
and for procurers to consider in-house capacity ahead of putting a contract out to 
consultants.   Contracts were to include and define the role of existing staff to ensure 
skills and knowledge transfer beyond the life of a project. 

 
32. There was limited comparable information on the cost of consultants within the reports 

with considerable variations in the types of expenditure included in the figures.  Wide 
differences in level of expenditure and in procurement and financial reporting practices 

Page 87



 14

make further meaningful comparison between authorities difficult. The table below uses 
the data from the reviews to provide some insight into the scale and trends behind the 
use of consultants in local government.  Most working groups were surprised however at 
the low proportion of spend on Consultants. 

 

*96 separate payments, excludes contracts worth less than £10,000 
**% Some of these figures have been worked out retrospectively and were not included in the original Scrutiny report.  Please 
allow for a margin of error as these were calculated using a range of online sources on Council budgets. 

 
33. The information that is available suggests that there is no evidence that spending on 

consultants in Tower Hamlets is out of step with other authorities.   Whilst Members 
welcomed the information on expenditure on consultants by other local authorities they 
felt that it was difficult to draw appropriate comparisons with authorities of such different 
profiles.  The fact that the figures are drawn from other scrutiny reviews on the use of 
consultants further suggests that in carrying out the reviews these Councils may have 
been responding to an area facing performance challenges or public concern.  Working 
group Members felt that information from other similar authorities to Tower Hamlets may 
highlight different issues.   

 
34. The literature review and research exercise highlighted that even at a wider or regional 

level there is very limited public data on the use of consultants by other local authorities 
with only the London Centre of Excellence carrying out a regional project on the issue, 
and with restrictions on sharing information with authorities outside of the programme.  
Members suggested that benchmarking opportunities should be explored in the future to 
help drive through improvements in this area.   

 
 

Defining Consultants 
 
35. Members used the findings from the research to develop the next stages of the review.  

The scope of the review had been focused on looking into operational issues around 
commissioning, managing and evaluating consultants to undertake projects within the 
Council.  Early discussion revealed however, that there were differences between 
directorates and teams on what constituted a ‘use of a consultant’, and therefore 
differences in how expenditure was recorded.  This meant that financial data did not 

Expenditure on Consultants Local Authority Financial Year(s) 

Total (m) As % of total 
expenditure** 

Solihull Council 2004/05 £2.304*  >1% 

North Lincolnshire Council 1999/2000 
1998/1999 

£0.500 
£0.500 

Unavailable 

Worcestershire County 
Council 

2003/04 £1.062 0.2% 

Hastings Borough Council 2005/06 
2004/05 
2003/04 

£0.050 
£0.019 
£0.073 

0.3% 
0.1% 
0.4% 

Torbay Council 2003/04 
2002/03 
2001/02 

£2.260  
£1.798 
£1.559 

1.7% 
1.5% 
1.3% 

North East Lincolnshire 
Council 

2006/07 £1.249m 1.1% 

London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets. 

2005/06 
2006/07 
2007/08 (1 Apr – 
31 October) 

£0.836 
£1.290 
£0.703 

0.1% 
0.49% 
 

Page 88



 15

always accurately differentiate between spend on consultants and other expenditure 
such as professional fees for legal or planning services.  Members felt that this was a 
basic but important first step towards clarifying the role of consultants in the Council.  

 
Recommendation 
 
R1 That an agreed criteria or definition of a consultant to be adopted 

across the Council. 
 

Consultants: 

• Have a defined work scope with deliverables 

• Often provide a report as an output that provides 
recommendations for further action but the consultant is not 
contracted to deliver at that time. 

• Have payment contingent upon completion of staged completion 
of the work 

• Do not act as staff members i.e. do not have Tower Hamlets e-
mail addresses, phone numbers or desks. 

• May be able to provide a substitute to undertake the work 

• Are not in a templated position for the purposes of the 
Comensura contract – i.e. they do not relate to standard jobs 
within the Council, which could be provided by either permanent 
or temporary staff 

• Are contractually responsible for their outputs 

• Are liable for their own performance and the content of their work 
 

 
36. During the discussion on draft recommendations Members emphasised the importance 

of highlighting the differences between internal staff and consultancy staff to maintain a 
distance in the client – consultant relationship and that this was important to the 
management role required of officers in using consultants.  Members also raised 
questions about the length of time consultants stayed on in the organisation and a need 
to monitor this carefully.  Officers explained that this was more likely to be an issue with 
interim or agency staff and that extension of contracts beyond the first six-months require 
corporate director sign-off in order to continue to employ staff in this way and would still 
be subject to regular reviews.  In reviewing the definition set out above Members 
welcomed the separation of internal and external staff and that this would help to ensure 
consultants are not used to fill interim vacancies.  

 
37. Working group members were keen that the review should also help to clarify the areas 

where consultants are required for specific roles.  This is true for example for recruitment 
to senior posts where consultants are used because of a need for independent and 
objective advice and to ensure processes are transparent and fair.  Similarly Government 
legislation requires for example sustainability appraisals of Local Development 
Documents to be carried out by independent specialists.  Members requested that a list 
of areas where consultants are needed to be developed as part of the action plan in 
response to the recommendations. 

 
Procurement and Commissioning 
 
38. Working group members received a presentation from officers on the existing 

procurement policies and procedures.  Officers identified a number of key areas for 

Page 89



 16

action to improve how the Council engages and manages consultants as part of the work 
to update the procurement policy. 

 
These are to: 

• ensure that there is no duplication of energy and cost 

• provide VFM with leverage 

• understand success 

• skills transfer to bridge knowledge gap 

• greater knowledge about cost and not just price 

• greater internal capacity 

• ensure that consultancy spend is effectively managed going forward. 
 
39. The Scrutiny Review working group members recognised that use of consultants is 

important in some circumstances to achieve local priorities.  In disseminating updated 
procurement procedures, Members requested that directorates should also be tasked to 
consider targets and measures for reducing dependency on consultants.  Most 
importantly in all instances of engaging consultants procedures should be transparent 
explaining the business case for using consultants and there should be a uniformity of 
approach across the Council.  Members requested that an officer guide or toolkit on how 
to engage consultants should be developed as part of the action plan in response to the 
recommendations. 

 
Recommendations 
 
R 2 That future work on the procurement strategy to include programme 

of activities to help disseminate and embed procurement related 
policies within the organisation, for example presentations at all 
Directorate Management Team meetings and officer training.  

 
R 3 That financial reporting on procurement of consultancy services 

should clearly identify source of funding and ring-fenced funding 
such as Section 106 or Lottery Funds.   

 
 
 
Use of Consultants in Tower Hamlets 
 
40. The extent to which Consultants are used in Tower Hamlets was assessed in two ways.  

Working group members received financial reports on expenditure across directorates 
from 2005/06 through to mid-year results for 2007/08.  Members also requested two 
case studies to explore specific examples of how consultants had been used to improve 
services.  

 
41. Members received the financial reports on use of consultants by the Council at the 

second review meeting.  The reports included information on the type of projects where 
consultants were used, the name of the consultancies used and the cost of the contracts.  
A summary of total expenditure on consultants is included in the table below.  
Expenditure on consultants has therefore been consistently around 0.1% of annual 
expenditure in LBTH for the last few years 

 
Year LBTH Total 

expenditure on 
Consultants 

Page 90



 17

2005/06 £ 836,246.52 
 

2006/07 £ 1,290,929.89 
 

2007/08  
(1 Apr – 31 
October) 

£ 703,918.96 

 
 
42. The working group were joined by Cllr Josh Peck, Lead Member for Resources and 

Performance who introduced the Officer presentation and outlined the current work 
streams for improving procurement processes.  The member led discussion was broadly 
exploratory with requests for further information.   Members’ questions and officer 
responses are summarised below in a table for ease of reference. 

 
Question Response 
Members raised concern over 
increased expenditure in 
Development And Renewal, and 
the reasons behind it? 
What the options were for 
employing staff in house instead 
on a contractual basis? 
What are the barriers to exploiting 
skills amongst existing staff? 
What the options were for reducing 
the amount spent on consultants 
and on tackling a culture of using 
consultants? 
 

Some of the increases in expenditure from 
05/06 to 06/07 has been because of ad hoc 
and new work requirements.  The 
Development and Renewal spend on 
consultants is largely on  
 
Masterplanning, which requires specific 
skills and qualifications and for which there 
is not sufficient capacity in house at the 
point in time when it is required.  The 
Olympics are also generating a lot of 
additional work.   
.  
 

How is success measured in terms 
of procurement? What are the 
levels of success and or non-
delivery?   Are our target setting 
measures robust enough? 
 
 

Measuring success – In addition to delivery 
against targets, procurement of consultants 
is assessed for value for money which 
include arrangements for vetting suppliers 
and only procuring services from the EXOR 
accredited  supplier database.   
Compliance with financial regulations is 
also an important measure of success in 
procurement.  
 

How is the equalities policy applied 
in procuring consultants? 
 

The top 100 suppliers provide equalities 
data and equalities issues are explicit within 
the terms and conditions. 

What happens when the use of a 
consultant goes wrong? 
 

Experience with consultants does vary and 
the key issue is to ensure poor consultancy 
organisations are not used again.  The 
EXOR framework agreement is there to 
ensure that the Council can select 
organisations with a positive track record.   
 

Are there any penalty or get out 
clauses included in contracts for 
consultants? 

Contracts include regular reporting 
mechanisms and there are contractual 
sanctions where failure to deliver results in 

Page 91



 18

 non-payment.   Contractual arrangements 
are all output based and include specific 
terms and conditions 
 

Further clarification sought on the 
procedures for recruiting 
consultants? 
 

The key added elements in addition to 
those outlined in the presentation are: 

• Pre-qualification questionnaire 

• Tender process itself 
 
 

 
 
43. The financial reports were revisited at the final review meeting alongside the two case 

studies of how consultants had been used in different service areas.  Reviewing the full 
set of financial reports Members felt that it was important for directorates to be able to 
take a more strategic view of skills gaps and needs in medium to long-term projects to 
help reduce unnecessary and ad-hoc use of consultants.  They welcomed the overall 
figures indicating that the proportion of spend on consultants was low but were 
concerned that the trend was for a year on year increase.  Members emphasised the 
need to set targets to reduce current levels of use to in order to achieve efficiency gains 
and also because of a sense that it is a public priority for resources to be used differently.   

 
Recommendation 
 
R4 That targets for reducing expenditure on consultants should be 

highlighted as an objective in the Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan 
under the Excellent Public Services Community Plan theme.  The 
Corporate Management Team to set indicative targets to reduce 
expenditure on consultants and for progress to be reported back. 

 
 
44. Members reviewed two case studies of how consultants were being used within the 

Council.  The first case study looked at how the Council was looking to embed business 
process improvement (BPI) techniques to help improve services that faced challenges in 
meeting their performance targets.  The technique itself is a management tool widely 
used in the private sector and increasingly in the public sector to turn around areas of 
poor performance.  In discussing the case study Members noted the good practice 
around ensuring the work with consultants led to the development of an internal staff 
resource to carry out future BPI exercises.  The working group suggested that there were 
areas for improvement and more should be done to assess the value added from 
engaging consultants and the impact it had on the service itself.  This had the potential to 
add to any business case that might need to be made for future projects. 

 
45. The second case study focused on the use of consultants to develop Masterplans, which 

are spatial planning documents that set out a holistic vision for local areas.  The Council 
agreed to test out different approaches to producing Masterplans, retaining one in house 
and using a mix of consultant services and in-house officer support for two others.  As a 
result this case study enabled working group members to make some direct comparisons 
between using internal and external resources to deliver projects.   

 
46. A direct cost comparison suggests that it was more cost effective to use internal staff to 

produce a Masterplan.  However, the evaluation of all three of the different approaches 
adopted by the Council highlight very different costs and benefits which have made a 

Page 92



 19

strong case for contracting out all future Masterplan work, retaining only the project 
management and community engagement and consultation work for Masterplans within 
the Council.  In particular the range and complexity of the number of professionals 
needed to produce a Masterplan make a strong business case for using consultants that 
specialise in this area and are able to lever in additional resources and achieve 
economies of scale based on their wider portfolio of work.  The costs of delivering the 
Masterplan in-house also underestimate the cost in terms of staff resources which has 
been difficult to capture whilst the team project managed all three Masterplans and other 
Major project developments within the borough.   

 
47. Working group members raised questions about the overall high levels of expenditure 

across the Development & Renewal directorate and the need to monitor and plan 
resource requirements in the medium to long-term.  Members also recognised that the 
2012 Olympics were generating a greater demand for planning services, noting that it 
could also be an opportunity to involve local people and further develop existing staff 
resources. 

 
48. Members agreed that it was appropriate to try and achieve efficiency gains that they 

would like to achieve in this area through existing work-streams such as the horizontal 
savings exercise but that there also needed to be a specific focus on reducing reliance 
on and a culture of using consultants.  Members suggested a higher profile of the issue 
was required within key council documents such as the Strategic Plan.  It was agreed tat 
Directorates should retain autonomy and flexibility in procuring consultants but that the 
issue needed to be reviewed at the Directorate level. 

 
Recommendation 
 
R5 That directorates review expenditure on consultants to assess the 

extent to which they are used and to establish a baseline for 
reviewing their use of consultants.  Directorates should identify 
areas and set targets for reducing future spend in alignment with the 
Council’s horizontal savings exercise. 

 
 
 
Reducing Dependency and Using Alternatives 
 
49. Throughout the review working group members have stressed the importance of 

considering internal capacity and resources first before thinking about using consultants.  
Members are keen to see the Council develop methods for auditing and understanding 
the skills amongst existing staff and the possibilities around using these skills to meet 
needs across the organisation.  Members recognised that as a local authority, the 
Council needs to respond to policy developments that take place all the time and 
sometimes deliver unplanned work which may require the use of consultants in the short 
term.  However, improved planning and knowledge of skills sets amongst staff and 
greater flexibility around the use of internal secondments and trainees could help to 
achieve much wider benefits for the Council and employees.  

 
 

Recommendation 
 
R 6 That directorates should increasingly use internal secondments 

and graduate trainees for one-off projects for example to meet 
research needs, tying in with the corporate approach to developing 

Page 93



 20

staff. 
 

 
50. The financial reports showed that there is a significant level of expenditure on using 

consultants to deliver and facilitate consultation work.  As the Council has its own 
Consultation and Involvement Team, options should be explored around rationalising the 
way consultants are used for this type of work and how this can be more effectively 
procured in the future.  This would support the development of good practice and provide 
teams with advice and support on how to get effective consultation services.  

 
 

Recommendation 
 
R 7 That options should be explored to enable the Corporate 

Consultation and Involvement team to become a gatekeeper for 
procuring external consultation services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 94



 21

 
Conclusion 
 
 
51. The working group welcomes the commitment of the Council to improving processes and 

procedures around engaging consultants to ensure value for money and to reduce 
dependency on using consultants.  

 
52. The working group also welcomes the findings which demonstrate that there is no 

evidence of inappropriate use of resources and that expenditure on consultants within 
Tower Hamlets is in line with other authorities and analysis of wider trends. 

 
53. At a strategic level, the Council needs to help coordinate efforts to understand the full 

extent of how and when consultants are used and to improve the levels and type of data 
held on work carried out by consultants.  This would allow sharing of information across 
the organisation and help officers to make informed choices when the use of a consultant 
is required.   

 
54. There are quicker opportunities for reducing use of consultants in some areas more than 

others.  The recommendations have highlighted the potential for using the Consultation 
and Involvement team and the working group would recommend that further similar 
opportunities for collaborative work across directorates are sought out in the future. 

 
55. There are good support services available to officers procuring consultants but more 

needs to be done to systematically embed good practice across the organisation.   
 
56. The working group is particularly keen to see better use of existing staff to meet wider 

organisational needs.  More internal secondments and use of trainees will help to 
achieve ‘Workforce to Reflect the Community’ priorities and has the potential to offer 
skills development and greater job satisfaction for employees.   

 

Page 95



 22

 Scrutiny and Equalities in Tower Hamlets 
 
 
 
To find out more Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets: 
 
 
Please contact: 
 
Scrutiny Policy Team 
Tower Hamlets Council 
6th Floor, Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 
 
scrutiny@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 
020 7364 4548 
 

Page 96



 1 

Committee: 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 

Date: 
 
4th March 
2008 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 
 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 
 

Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive  
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Jebin Syeda  
Scrutiny Policy Officer 

Title:  
 
Scrutiny Challenge Session – Revisiting the 
Youth Services Plan Scrutiny review  
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report updates the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the outcome of the 

scrutiny challenge session held on 11th of December 2007 where the Youth Services 
Plan scrutiny review (undertaken in 2005) was revisited. 

 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 Overview and Scrutiny is asked to note the outcomes of the scrutiny challenge 

session and consider the recommendations put forward in this paper. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) Section 100D 
LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
Background paper 
 
Scrutiny Review of Youth Services  
 

Name and telephone number of and address where 
open to inspection 
 
Jebin Syeda  
020 7364 0941 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10.2

Page 97



 2 

 
2. Introduction 
 
2.1 This report provides a summary of the Scrutiny Challenge Session which considered 

the effectiveness of London Borough of Tower Hamlets Youth Service Plan scrutiny 
review.  

2.2  The session was attended by a group of 6 Members led by the Scrutiny Lead for 
Learning Achievement and Leisure. In addition to the members, Co-optee Hasan 
Mueenuddin attended, he was also involved in the original scrutiny review.  The Lead 
Member for the challenge session invited one of the contracted youth service 
providers to attend and they were able to make useful contributions. 

  

3. Purpose 
  

3.1  Challenge sessions are designed as a quick way for a group of members to get to 
grips with key policy issues and ensure a robust check on the Council’s policies.  The 
purpose of these sessions are for members to consider the effectiveness of a scrutiny 
review by looking at progress made against the recommendations. The challenge 
session also aimed to reflect on the review and consider what worked well for the 
review. The purpose of the scrutiny challenge session was to: 

 

• Assess how well the review on Youth Service worked and what specific 
aspects worked.  

• Enable members to be informed of work developed by Youth Services 
following the review 

 
3.2 At the end of the challenge session it was expected that there would be: 

 

• Increased member understanding and awareness of Youth Service Plan and 
service provision; 

• Member awareness and input in monitoring of progress against the 
recommendations from a previous scrutiny review; 

• Reflection and evaluation of a previous review and capturing key lessons 
around what works and what can be done better on reviews; 

• Member led recommendations for service improvements.  
 

4. Background  
 

4.1 Tower Hamlets is ethnically diverse and has a rich cultural heritage, this sits cheek by 
jowl with the borough featuring some of the most economically disadvantaged parts of 
the country with high levels of unemployment. The young people of the borough are 
no exception to this. Young people make up a significantly high percentage of the 
population with a high number aged between 13 and 19 living in one of the most 
densely populated part of Britain. The Youth Service has a challenging role to play in 
ensuring equality of access to high quality services and to play its role in fostering 
community cohesion. 

 
4.2 During May 2005, a scrutiny review was undertaken and an OFSTED inspection at the 

time graded the service as ‘adequate’.  There were some local concerns about youth 
service provision and a decision was made to undertake a review of the Youth Service 
Plan to be headed by the Lead for Learning, Achievement and Leisure. This review 

Page 98



 3 

was to produce a number of service improvement recommendations as part of its 
findings.  

4.3 The Challenge Session was an opportunity for members and staff involved in the 
review to reflect on and evaluate how the review has worked, looking in particular at 
what has worked well as points for consideration in improving the scrutiny process.  
The Session enabled members to challenge the service on the progress it has made 
against the recommendations from the review as a way of evaluating the impact the 
review has made, focusing on outcomes. 

 
4.4 For effective scrutiny purposes, there is an increased expectation for Members to 

reflect on reviews undertaken and to consider the impact of these reviews. In addition 
to this, one of the recommendations of the review was for increased member 
involvement in monitoring outcomes of the review on Youth Service Plan. 

 
5. Policy Context 
 
5.1 The vision within the Tower Hamlets Children and Young People’s Strategic Plan sets 

out the following: 
 
‘The children and young people of Tower Hamlets should get off to a flying start and 
should continue to learn in a safe, healthy and stimulating environment. These 
foundations will give them the grounding they need for a happy, prosperous life so that 
they can shape their own futures and become creative responsible adults.’ 
 

5.2 The service delivers this vision with provisions of a range of informal education 
 opportunities for young people aged between 11-25 years, it has a particular 
 emphasis on 13- 19 year olds in Tower Hamlets. 

 
5.3 The service is subject to Ofsted inspection and the next Joint Area Review is due in 
 March 2008. The service is monitored through a number of Best Value indicators, 
 these being: 

•  Reach – number of young people who register and use the facilities once 

• Participation  - the number of young people who attend 5 or more sessions 

• Recorded Outcomes – number of young people who develop set skills 
contributing to national outcomes 

• Accredited outcomes – attainment of national certificates 
 
6. Youth Service Plan Scrutiny Review 
 
6.1  The scrutiny review took place during 2005 on the Council’s Youth Service Plan, led 

 by a cross-party Working Group of Councillors and Co-opted Members. The review 
 also involved the youth service contracted providers. At the time, the Working Group 
 visited some of the facilities and spoke to young people as service users and youth 
 workers delivering the service. 

 
6.2  Given the context in Tower Hamlets- a borough which has the highest proportion of 

 young people in the country and many families living in economically disadvantaged 
 circumstances, the need for quality youth service provision is key. The importance of 
 youth  service provision given this context is recognised in the review. 

 
6.3  The Working Group made a number of recommendations to improve 

 accommodation (5), partnership working with contracted service providers (4) and the 
Third Sector (4). Recommendations were also made around Member engagement (4)  

 

Page 99



 4 

 
 
7. Effective scrutiny reviews – what works? 
  
7.1 Overview and Scrutiny tracks progress against review recommendations every 6 
 months. This is to embed the scrutiny process and ensure that the recommendations 
 for service improvements can demonstrate progress; and is reported to the Overview 
 and Scrutiny committee.  It is one way of demonstrating the effectiveness of scrutiny. 
 The reflections and discussions on the effectiveness of the scrutiny process on this 
 particular review from the Working Group point of view concluded with the following 
 areas for consideration as what worked well. It is suggested that these points are 
 noted as forms of good practice in scrutiny and be considered for improving the 
 scrutiny process.  
 
7.2 What worked well: 
 

• Preparing well and having agreed clear expectations 

• Engaging all stakeholders  

• Meetings that take place at local venues 

• Members are interested and are pro-active  

• Members receiving detailed information packs 

• Members meeting service providers, stakeholders/service users and key 
 council officers 

• Members visiting facilities to inform knowledge and understanding through the 
 users perspective 

• Having the right level of challenge and support 

• Good working relationship with those involved with active contributions from all 

• Officers under scrutiny being helpful and open about areas for improvement. 
 
8 Key discussion points and recommendations   
 
8.1 Members were presented with policy and background information on youth services 

and illustrated outcomes against some key recommendations from the  scrutiny 
review. Members found the information to be very useful, and there was 
acknowledgment that good progress had been made in some of the areas. However, 
Members raised a number of additional issues from their direct experience as 
Councillors,  demonstrating the changing nature of youth service provision and the 
challenges it  brings.   

 
9 Recommendations  
 
9.1 Following the session, the Members who attended the challenge session identified 
 areas for further action and the following recommendations are made: 
 
9.2  The need for further information emerged from the discussions that took place and in 

 light of the forthcoming Joint Area Review and Members desire to be further 
 informed, the service offered to hold a Members seminar where the information listed 
 below could be disseminated. Members would like LAP directors and contractors to be 
 in attendance at the seminar. Although the challenge session served its purpose, 
 members felt the following  information would be useful: 

• Funding levered in by contractors 

• Contracting and monitoring arrangements  

• Performance information and comparative data across the LAP areas  

Page 100



 5 

• Accessibility for disabled people and what is being done to encourage 
participation 

• Future developments of youth provision and accommodation across LAP areas  

• Provisions made for girls 
 
R1 That a Members seminar be organised to inform Members about the JAR, giving 

consideration to information request made in 9.2.  
 
9.3 A discussion took place about quality and investment in youth provision, where some 

concerns were raised about this and the monitoring undertaken against the value of 
contracts. In light of the information provided on the different levels of funding to 
different contractors, Members were keen to meet with service providers and users, to 
raise their understanding and knowledge. 

 
R2 That Members be given an opportunity to visit contractor facilities.  
 
9.4 Members would like to see further involvement of the voluntary sector on issues 

 around detached youth service provision to ensure that the provision is informed by 
 local knowledge. In particular Members felt that mother tongue groups would have 
good knowledge and contact with the local community to inform the service on 
reaching out to specific communities.  

 
R3 That the Service should involve and consult local voluntary groups including 

mother tongue groups on issues around detached youth service provision. 
 
9.5 Members raised concerns about access to youth service by disabled young people. 

Some concerns were raised about barriers faced by this group and Members felt that 
an audit of facilities and information on service take-up by this group would assure 
Members and the wider community that the provisions in the contracts were meeting 
the needs of disabled young people.  

 
R4 That the Service explores ways an audit can be undertaken of disabled users of 

youth service and how these services are publicised to the public and Members.  
 
9.6  Members recognised that work that had gone in to engage the Somali community but 

 want to ensure that provisions are going to be made to ensure that the Chinese 
 community and any new emerging communities are actively engaged and access 
 youth services.  

 
R5 That the Service continues working to put in place a mechanism to engage the 

Chinese and any new emerging communities 
 
9.7  A discussion took place about appropriate provisions for those who practice faith; it 

 was felt that more could be done to give consideration to religious and cultural needs 
 to ensure that those who practice their faith can have access to mainstream youth 
 service provision/facilities.  Some concerns were raised that provisions need to be 
 made for young women and that this required understanding of religious and cultural 
 needs.  
 

R6 That in consultation with the Inter-Faith Forum, service users and staff, the 
Service explores how religious needs could be incorporated in youth service 
curriculum. 

 

Page 101



 6 

9.8  Members were keen that the service maximised opportunities for securing youth 
 service provision, it is felt that the stock transfer process is a missed opportunity to 
 secure youth provision to date. The members asked for a proactive approach in 
 identifying need for new facilities/provisions and advising developers and planners to 
 include such provisions/facilities within the developing and planning structures and the 
 stock transfer process.  

 
R7 That the Council and the youth service maximises opporutnites during stock-

transfer and master planning process to secure adequate youth provision.  
 
9.9 Members recognise the important role that youth service plays in the life of the young 
 people of Tower Hamlets. The review was undertaken in 2005, there have been some 
 rapid changes and Members were keen to be continuously involved in the 
 improvement and development of the service. 
 
R8 That Members be involved in the development of the ‘Aiming high for young 

people: a ten year strategy for positive activities’ in Tower Hamlets.  
   
10  Conclusion 
 
10.1 Members felt that the review was effective in scrutinising the Youth Service Plan and 
 coming up with recommendations which were effective and pushed for change. They 
 acknowledge that the service took well to implementing the recommendations and 
 recognise the work that has been put into making good progress. Given the changing 
 nature of youth services, Members have put forward a number of recommendations 
 which would add to the current positive achievements.  
  
11. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
11.1   There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report 
 
 
12. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
12.1 Any financial implications directly arising from this report will be met from within 

existing resources. 
 
13. Equal Opportunity Implications 
 
13.1 Issues were raised in the session around provision for disabled people, young women 

and faith based youth service provision. The information provided to Members at the 
seminar and the implementation of recommendations 4 and 5 would address some of 
the concerns raised.  

 
14. Anti-Poverty Implications 
 
14.1 Tower Hamlets is a very diverse community and has a very young population. Given 

the strengths and the challenges of this, and the changing nature of youth services, 
we must continue to provide an accessible service for all members of the community. 

 
15. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment 
 
15.1  There are no direct risk management implications arising from this report. 
 

Page 102



 7 

16. Risk Management 
 
16.1 There are no direct risk management implications arising from this report.  

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 

 

Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Date 
 
4 March 2008 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 

 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 

 
 

Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Afazul Hoque, Acting Scrutiny Policy 
Manager  
Hannah Bailey, Scrutiny & Equalities 
Support Officer 

Title:  
 
Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking 
Report: Update 
 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report provides a progress report on Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 

recommendations.   
 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the progress in implementing its 

recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
 

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
Background paper 
 
Recommendation Tracking Report – March 2007 

Name and telephone number of and address where open to 
inspection 
 
Kweku Quagraine  
020 7364 4877 

Agenda Item 10.3

Page 105



- 2 - 
 

 

3 Report  
 
3.1 As part of its regular work programme, Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 

receives a regular, 6-monthly, recommendation tracking report to monitor progress in 
implementing past recommendations. This covers all its recommendations since 
2003/04, including those from the Committee and Working Group reviews. 

 
3.2 In considering the monitoring and tracking of scrutiny recommendations it was 

suggested that it may be useful for Members to consider revisiting a review to look at 
progress, its impact and the potential lessons for future reviews.  

 
3.3 In November 2007, it was reported that the Scrutiny Lead Member for Learning 

Achievement and Leisure would revisit the Scrutiny Review on the Youth Services Plan. 
The Challenge Session took place on 11th December 2007. The report on this session 
is attached as a separate item on this agenda for Members’ consideration. To 
summarise, Members found the information presented useful, and there was 
acknowledgment that good progress had been made in some of the areas. However, a 
number of additional issues were raised from their direct experience as Ward 
Councillors in the community, demonstrating the changing nature of youth service 
provision and the challenges it brings. Following the session, Members identified areas 
for further action and made a number of additional recommendations for the directorate 
to take forward to bolster the work of the review.  

 
3.4 Similarly, a Health Scrutiny Challenge Session with the PCT on the Access to GP and 

Dentistry Services review was recently held at the Barkantine Centre. Productive 
discussions were held with the PCT and a number of local GPs about the 
implementation of the recommendations to date and the effectiveness of initiatives to 
cut waiting times and improve customer experience. The results of this session will be 
reported to the next Health Scrutiny Panel in March.    

 
3.5 The tracking report shows that overall services are implementing many of the 

recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny. This takes a number of forms from 
being mainstreamed into ongoing service development through to specific initiatives. 

 
3.6 Appendix 1 provides an update of the tracking system.  It is organised by the broad 

themes from the Strategic Plan with the additional area of health for the Health Scrutiny 
Panel.  Where there are changes since the last update, they are highlighted like this.  

 
3.7 As noted in the report of 6 November 2007 meeting, many of the updates will not 

change significantly from one tracking report to the next given the nature of the 
recommendations.  For each recommendation there is an indication of whether 
monitoring should continue and, if so, when a detailed update will be sought.  

 
3.8 Appendix 1 shows those recommendations that are either outstanding or ongoing.    

Appendices 2, 5, 7, 9 and 13 show recent review and Challenge Session 
recommendations which have been recently agreed by Cabinet and are still in the early 
stages of implementation. For this reason, only the action plan has been attached. A full 
progress report on the reviews and Challenge Session will be given in November 2008. 
A number of the reviews are now monitored on an annual basis and were last 
considered at the March 2007 meeting. Reviews completed before June 2004 only 
provide an update as these were produced under the previous scrutiny arrangements.  

 
3.9 As with other corporate monitoring reports, a traffic light system is used to indicate 

progress.  Red highlights an area where there has been no progress or there is 

Page 106



- 3 - 
 

 

significant delay in implementing the recommendations.  Yellow indicates that the 
recommendation is in the planning stage or that, although there is some progress, this 
is less than satisfactory.  Green shows that the recommendation has been achieved or 
progress in its implementation is satisfactory.  

 
3.10 The report shows that in terms of the 13 issues monitored, 7 are at green with 6 

currently at yellow, due to these reviews being in the early stages of implementation. 
Furthermore, in undertaking the tracking at this stage we are able to identify that with 
many of the recent reviews the Cabinet has responded positively to all the 
recommendations by agreeing to implement the recommendations from the scrutiny 
review. 

 
4 Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
4.1 Under Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council has a duty to deliver 

an effective and robust Overview and Scrutiny function.  Monitoring the progress and 
impact of recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny ensures that this duty is 
discharged effectively. 

 
5 Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
6 Equal Opportunity Implications 
 
6.1 Equal opportunities are central to the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. A 

number of reports and reviews have specific equalities themes including the access to 
GP and dentistry services review, which sought to respond to local health inequalities 
through the issue of local residents’ access to services. 

 
7 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
7.1 Anti-poverty is central to some aspects of the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, particularly within the theme of Creating and Sharing Prosperity, such as 
that on the Fair Shares review, looking into how the local community has benefited from 
high levels of economic development within the Borough. This theme is also reflected in 
the Graduate Unemployment review, which is still in the early stages of implementation 
at present.  

 
8 Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment 
 
8.1 The Committee has considered sustainable action for a greener environment through 

the Improving Recycling review action plan. A full update on progress made in 
implementing the recommendations will be reported to Members in November 2008.  

 
9 Risk Management 
 
9.1 There are no direct risk management implications arising from this report.  Monitoring of 

the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations is important to make sure that 
the Council responds to the suggestions and findings of Overview and Scrutiny’s work.  

 
 
 
 

Page 107



- 4 - 
 

 

Appendix 1 Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking Update 
Appendix 2 Improving Recycling (Action Plan) 
Appendix 3 Domestic Violence  
Appendix 4 Urban Junk or Urban Funk – Street De-clutter – (To be tabled at the meeting) 
Appendix 5 Determination of Major Planning Applications (Action Plan) 
Appendix 6 Fair Shares Review 
Appendix 7 Graduate Unemployment (Action Plan) 
Appendix 8 School Exclusions 
Appendix 9 Tower Hamlets Hostel Strategy (Action Plan) 
Appendix 10 Leaseholders – A Study of Customer Care 
Appendix 11 The role of Ward Councillors in the Tower Hamlets Partnership 
Appendix 12 Access to Services 
Appendix 13 Access to GP and Dentistry Services (Action Plan) 
Appendix 14 Delivering Choosing Health: A Case Study of Obesity 
 

Page 108



- 5 - 
 

 

Appendix 1 
Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking Update 

 
Living Safely 
 
Issue 
Improving Recycling 
 

Recommendation Date 
7 November 2007 Yellow  

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring with update in November 2008  
Recommendation 
This review examined the issue of 
recycling to investigate the measures 
the Council has introduced and may 
introduce in the future and feed into 
the introduction of a new integrated 
waste contract in 2008. The final 
report made 11 recommendations for 
implementation.  
 

Response / Progress 
The report was submitted to Cabinet in December 
2007. All 11 of the recommendations were 
accepted. An action sheet detailing the 
recommendations is attached as appendix 2 for 
Members’ information. A full update will be 
reported in November 2008.  

 
 
Issue 
Review – Domestic Violence  
 

Recommendation Date 
4 April 2006 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring  
Recommendation 
This review considered domestic 
violence in Tower Hamlets and the 
multi-agency response to the issue.  
The report made 12 recommendations 
for action. 
 

Response / Progress  
An update on implementation of the 
recommendations was provided in March 2007.  
All the recommendations have now been 
implemented and a full update is attached at 
appendix 3.  
 

 
 
Issue 
Urban Junk or Urban Funk – Street 
De-clutter 

Recommendation Date 
7 June 2005 Green 

Monitoring Status – No further monitoring  
Recommendation 
This review considered the issue of 
street de-clutter in the borough and 
how it could be reduced. The Working 
Group made 16 recommendations to 
Cabinet. 
 

Response / Progress 
An update on implementation of the 
recommendations was provided in March 2007. A 
further update on the current status of the 
recommendations will be tabled at the meeting as 
a late item.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



- 6 - 
 

 

Creating and Sharing Prosperity 
 
Issue 
The Determination of Major Planning 
Applications 
 

Recommendation Date 
8th January 2008 

Yellow  

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring with update in November 2008  
Recommendation 
This recent Challenge Session 
examined how the Council determines 
major planning applications, with a 
particular focus on new arrangements 
to increase public consultation around 
the pre-application planning process. 
The session resulted in 7 
recommendations.  
 

Response / Progress 
An action plan showing the 7 agreed 
recommendations is attached at appendix 5 for 
Members’ information. A full update on the 
progress made in implementing the 
recommendations will be given in November 
2008. 

 
 
Issue 
Fair Shares Review 
 

Recommendation Date 
10 May 2005 Green 

Monitoring Status – No further monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review considered how local 
communities benefited from the 
borough’s high levels of economic 
development and regeneration. The 
Working Group made 10 
recommendations to Cabinet. 
 

Response / Progress 
An update report showing progress on the 
implementation of the recommendations was 
submitted to the March 2007 meeting. A further 
update is attached at appendix 6 for Members’ 
information. As all the recommendations have 
been implemented it is proposed that there be no 
further monitoring of these recommendations. 
 
 

 

Learning Achievement and Leisure 
 
Issue 
Graduate Unemployment 
 

Recommendation Date 
5 December 2007 Yellow  

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring with update in November 2008  
Recommendation 
This recent review examined the issue 
of the transition from education to 
employment amongst young people in 
the borough. Seven resulting 
recommendations were presented to 
Cabinet. 
 

Response / Progress 
The report was submitted to Cabinet in December 
2007. All 7 of the recommendations were 
accepted. An action sheet detailing the 
recommendations is attached as appendix 7 for 
Members’ information. A full update will be 
reported in November 2008 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



- 7 - 
 

 

Issue 
School Exclusions 
 

Recommendation Date 
4 April 2006 Green  

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring  
Recommendation 
This review looked at school 
exclusions within the borough to 
increase understanding of the issues, 
the support available and action being 
taken to deal with them. It made 10 
recommendations to Cabinet. 
 

Response / Progress 
An update report showing progress on the 
implementation of the recommendations was 
submitted to the March 2007 meeting. A number of 
the recommendations were due for completion 
after the last update and these are shown in the 
latest update, attached as appendix 8 . The 
majority of recommendations have now been 
implemented.   
 

 
 
Living Well 
 
Issue 
Tower Hamlets Hostel Strategy 
 

Recommendation Date 
7 November 2007 Yellow  

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring with update in November 2008 
Recommendation 
This review was conducted in order to 
review the draft Tower Hamlets 
Hostels and Move-On Strategy. 
Twelve recommendations in total were 
presented to Cabinet arising out of the 
review.  
 

Response / Progress 
The report was submitted to Cabinet in November 
2007. All 12 of the recommendations were 
accepted. An action sheet detailing the 
recommendations is attached as appendix 9 for 
Members’ information. A full update will be 
reported in November 2008 

 
 

Excellent Public Services 
 
Issue 
Leaseholders – A Study of Customer 
Care 

Recommendation Date 
3 October 2007 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This recent review was designed as a 
case study of the customer care 
received by people using Council 
services. In total 19 recommendations 
were made as a result, with 15 of 
these specifically for the leaseholder.  
 

Response / Progress 
The report was submitted to Cabinet in October 
2007. All 19 of the recommendations were 
accepted. An action sheet detailing the 
recommendations was submitted in November 
2007 for Members’ information. The information 
attached as appendix 10 gives the latest update on 
progress made implementing the 
recommendations. 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



- 8 - 
 

 

 
 
 
Issue 
The role of Ward Councillors in the 
Tower Hamlets Partnership 

Recommendation Date 
7 February 2006 Green 

Monitoring Status – No further monitoring  
Recommendation 
This review was conducted in 2005/06 
and considered the role of councillors in 
the Partnership.  It resulted in a report 
with 11 recommendations for action. 
 

Response / Progress  
A full update on implementation of the 
recommendations has been provided at appendix 
11. As all the recommendations have now been 
implemented it is proposed that these 
recommendations are no longer subject to 
monitoring.  
 
 

 
 
 
Issue 
Review - Access to Services 
 

Recommendation Date 
1 April 2004 Green 

Monitoring Status – No further monitoring  
Recommendation 
This major review conducted by the 
Excellent Public Services Scrutiny 
Panel in 2003/04 resulted in a report 
with 13 recommendations for action. 
 

Response / Progress  
A full update on implementation of the 
recommendations as of March 2008 is attached as 
appendix 12. It is now proposed to Members that 
there be no further monitoring of these 
recommendations. 
 
 

 
Health 
 
Issue 
Access to GP and Dentistry Services 
 

Recommendation Date 
5 December 2007 Yellow  

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring with update in November 2008 
Recommendation 
This review was conducted by the 
Health Scrutiny Panel and examined 
what level of access residents in the 
borough have to GP and dentistry 
services. Consequently 11 
recommendations were made to the 
PCT.  
 

Response / Progress 
The report was submitted to Cabinet in December 
2007. All 11 of the recommendations were 
accepted. An action sheet detailing the 
recommendations is attached as appendix 13 for 
Members’ information. A full update will be 
reported in November 2008. A Challenge Session 
held on 19th February 2008 examined the 
implementation of the recommendations to date. 
The outcome of this will be reported to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee in due course.  
 

 
 
 

Page 112



- 9 - 
 

 

 
 
 
Issue 
Delivering Choosing Health: A Case 
Study of Obesity 

Recommendation Date 
26 September 2006 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review considered the 
Government’s Delivering Choosing 
Health initiative through a case study of 
services and initiatives aimed at 
tackling obesity.   It made 12 
recommendations to the Council and 
Tower Hamlets PCT.   
 

Response / Progress 
An initial update was submitted to the Health 
Scrutiny Panel in April 2007. The latest update 
from March 2008 charting the progress made in 
implementing the recommendations is attached at 
appendix 14 for Members’ information.  
 

Page 113



- 
1

0
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 I

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 R

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
  

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
1

  
T

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
e
n

d
s
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 

b
e

in
g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 

s
e

c
to

r 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 e
n

te
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 m
u
n

ic
ip

a
l 

w
a

s
te

 s
tr

e
a

m
. 

 I
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

f 
m

a
rk

e
t 

w
a

s
te

 m
u

s
t 
b

e
 

a
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

o
o
d

 w
a

s
te

. 
  

 

T
ra

d
e

 W
a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 c

o
-m

in
g
le

d
 r

e
-c

y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

s
in

c
e

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

0
7
 t

o
 a

ll 
tr

a
d

e
 w

a
s
te

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 
T

h
e

 V
e

o
lia

 
s
a

le
s
 f

o
rc

e
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

n
 e

v
e

ry
 v

is
it
. 

T
ra

d
e

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 

c
o

s
ts

 t
h
e

 s
a
m

e
 a

s
 r

e
s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 b
u

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 t
o

 
s
m

a
lle

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

s
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 m

in
im

u
m

 q
u

a
n

ti
ty

 f
o

r 
a

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 s

a
c
k
s
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t.

  
C

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 f
u

ll 
c
o

-m
in

g
le

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 p

ilo
t 

W
h
it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
M

a
rk

e
t 

 
 E

v
a

lu
a

te
 p

ilo
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

 r
o

ll 
o
u

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

m
a

rk
e

ts
 

 E
v
a

lu
a

te
 f
o

o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 p
o
s
t 

te
n
d

e
r 

o
f 
fo

o
d

 
w

a
s
te

 l
o

t 
in

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 r
e

-c
y
c
lin

g
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

J
o

h
n

 P
a

lm
e

r,
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
, 

S
tr

e
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

  

        O
c
t 

2
0
0

7
 

 J
a

n
 2

0
0

8
 

  A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
R

2
  

T
h
e

 G
ro

u
p

 w
e

lc
o

m
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 w

it
h

in
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

ls
, 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
s
 a

 g
o

o
d
 

c
h

a
n
n

e
l 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

. 
 A

ll 
e
ff

o
rt

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
m

a
d
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 s

e
c
u

re
d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 t
a

k
e
 

p
la

c
e

. 
T

h
e

 G
ro

u
p

 w
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 

E
n

g
a

g
e

 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
b

ri
n

g
in

g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 h

o
s
p

it
a

ls
, 
c
h

a
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

s
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

fr
e
e

 o
f 

c
h
a

rg
e

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
. 

  
 E

n
g
a

g
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

  
 N

e
g
o

ti
a

te
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 M
ild

 M
a

y
, 

M
ile

 E
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

D
e

n
ta

l 
H

o
s
p

it
a

ls
  

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
a

n
d

 o
ff

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 3

5
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

 m
o
n

th
 

F
io

n
a

 H
e

y
la

n
d

, 
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

        

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
7

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
  C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
  O

n
-g

o
in

g
 

Page 114



- 
1

1
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

s
u

g
g
e

s
t 

th
a

t 
a

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 I

d
e

a
 S

to
re

s
 a

n
d

 
le

is
u

re
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 d

o
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 b

e
s
t 

to
 m

in
im

is
e
 w

a
s
te

. 
  

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 r
o

ll 
o
u

t 
o
f 

c
o
-m

in
g
le

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 I

d
e

a
 S

to
re

s
  

 In
s
ta

ll 
c
o

-m
in

g
le

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

 a
ll 

L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 

Y
o

rk
 H

a
ll,

 M
ile

 E
n

d
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 

M
ile

 E
n
d

 S
ta

d
iu

m
, 
S

t 
G

e
ro

rg
e

’s
 P

o
o

l,
 T

ill
e

r 
L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 
W

h
it
e

c
h
a

p
e

l,
 J

o
h

n
 

O
rw

e
ll.

 
  L

a
n

g
d

o
n

 P
a

rk
 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
te

 m
in

im
is

a
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

R
e

m
a
d

e
 A

n
c
h
o

ra
g
e

 H
o

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 M

u
lb

e
rr

y
 P

la
c
e

 

 
 D

e
c
 2

0
0

7
 

    A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
7

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
 D

e
c
 2

0
0

7
 

 O
c
t 

2
0
0

7
 

  
R

3
 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
s
 t

h
e

 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

la
s
ti
c
 i
n

 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
in

a
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 p

la
s
ti
c
s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
is

s
u

e
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 

p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 g

ro
u

p
 

w
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
’s

 c
a

lls
 f

o
r 

to
u

g
h

e
r 

la
w

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
ri
o
u

s
 f

in
e

s
 f

o
r 

e
x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 p

a
c
k
a

g
in

g
. 

 A
t 

a
 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l,
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 

th
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 l
o

c
a

lly
, 

In
c
lu

d
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 
re

-c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

re
q
u

ir
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 b

id
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 R

e
-c

y
c
lin

g
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 (

M
R

F
) 

e
le

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 
to

 
m

a
k
e
 e

ff
o

rt
s
 t
o

 u
s
e

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 w
h

e
re

v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

 
 In

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 i
n

 t
e

n
d
e

r 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
  

 
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f
o

r 
 a

 b
a
n

 o
r 

le
v
y
 o

n
 

‘t
h

ro
w

 o
u

t’
 s

h
o
p

p
in

g
 b

a
g
s
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 1

0
th
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 B

ill
  

 R
e

s
p

o
n
d

 t
o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
 

F
io

n
a

 H
e

y
la

n
d

, 
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

          

S
e

p
 2

0
0
7

 
    S

e
p

 2
0

0
7

 
     O

c
t 

2
0
0

7
 

 

Page 115



- 
1

2
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

e
ri
ts

 o
f 

b
u

y
in

g
 

p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 i
n

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 t

h
e

ir
 p

la
s
ti
c
 b

a
g
s
. 

 I
t 

is
 s

u
g
g
e

s
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
p

u
rs

u
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 

B
ill

 d
e

p
o

s
it
e

d
 

 T
e

s
c
o

, 
W

a
it
ro

s
e

, 
A

S
D

A
, 

S
a

in
s
b

u
ry

 a
n

d
 S

o
m

m
e

rf
ie

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
ll 

s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 t
o

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

ts
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 
C

a
rr

ie
r 

B
a

g
s
 i
n

 F
e

b
 0

7
 a

n
d
 a

re
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 

 In
c
lu

d
e

 p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

.g
. 

‘B
a

g
 f

o
r 

L
if
e

’ 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u

e
 

in
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

   

   

N
o

v
 2

0
0

7
 

      O
n

-g
o

in
g
 

R
4

 
A

 k
e

y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 i
s
 t

h
e

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 b

ri
n

g
 s

it
e

s
. 

 
M

o
re

 w
o

rk
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e
 d

o
n
e

 t
o

 
m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 s
it
e

s
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 a

 m
o

re
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
la

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

. 
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
it
e
s
 m

o
re

 
a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

, 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 e

m
p

ti
e

d
 

m
o

re
 f

re
q
u

e
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

in
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o

n
. 
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
s
ig

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 b
ri
n

g
 s

it
e

s
. 

  

C
o

m
p

le
te

 u
p

g
ra

d
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

5
4

 o
n

 s
tr

e
e
t 

b
ri
n

g
 s

it
e

s
 t

o
 c

o
-m

in
g
le

d
 

1
2

8
0

 l
it
re

 c
o
n

ta
in

e
rs

. 
E

n
s
u

re
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e

 i
s
 d

is
p

la
y
e

d
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 o

n
 b

in
s
. 

  In
c
re

a
s
e
 s

tr
e

e
t 

c
le

a
n

in
g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 s
it
e

s
  

  In
c
re

a
s
e
 f

re
q
u

e
n

c
y
 a

ll 
s
it
e

s
 a

re
 e

m
p

te
d

 t
o
 t

w
ic

e
 w

e
e

k
ly

 
 F

a
c
ili

ta
te

 n
e

w
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

o
in

t 
a

t 
V

ir
g
in

ia
 Q

u
a

y
 

(o
p

p
o

s
it
e

 B
u
d

g
e

n
s
) 

v
ia

  
S

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
0

6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 B
a

rr
a

tt
 

H
o

m
e

s
  

 In
s
ta

ll 
n
e

w
 t

e
x
ti
le

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 b

a
n

k
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 S
C

O
P

E
 

a
t 

K
e

ls
e

y
 S

tr
e

e
t/

C
h
e

s
te

r 
S

tr
e

e
t,
 O

ld
 B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 

F
io

n
a

 H
e

y
la

n
d

, 
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

         K
e

v
in

 C
ro

o
k
, 

W
a
s
te

 P
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 

S
e

p
t 
2

0
0

7
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
  S

e
p

t 
2

0
0

7
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
  O

c
t 

2
0
0

7
 

   N
o

v
 2

0
0

7
 

  A
u

g
 2

0
0
7

 

Page 116



- 
1

3
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
o

a
d

/C
a
n

ro
b
e

rt
 S

tr
e
e

t 
a

n
d
 C

e
p

h
a

s
  

 A
s
s
e

s
s
 a

ll 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
it
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 S
C

O
P

E
 

 In
s
ta

ll 
n
e

w
 m

e
d

ia
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

a
n

k
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 S
C

O
P

E
 

a
t 

N
o

rt
h
u

m
b

e
rl
a

n
d

 W
h
a

rf
, 

A
S

D
A

 o
n
 t

h
e

 I
s
le

 o
f 

D
o

g
s
, 

S
a

in
s
b
u

ry
’s

 W
h

it
e

c
h

a
p
e

l 
a

n
d

 T
e

s
c
o

s
 B

ro
m

le
y
 b

y
 B

o
w

 
 C

o
m

m
u

te
r 

re
-c

y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

t 
B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 a

n
d

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

ill
 T

u
b

e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
s
  

  

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

  D
e

c
 2

0
0

7
 

  J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
7

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 O
c
t 

2
0
0

7
 

R
5

  
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
e

n
d

s
 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

ff
e

re
d

 a
t 

N
o

rt
h

u
m

b
e

rl
a

n
d

 
W

h
a
rf

 r
e

u
s
e
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
y
c
le

 c
e

n
tr

e
, 

it
 

a
ls

o
 n

o
te

s
 t
h

a
t 

it
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 

b
y
 c

a
r,

 w
h

ic
h

 e
x
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 
o
f 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
e
 

g
ro

u
p

 w
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

e
e

 
th

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
m

a
lle

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 c
o
m

p
lim

e
n
t 
s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 a
t 

N
o

rt
h

u
m

b
e

rl
a
n

d
 W

h
a

rf
. 

  

D
e

s
p

it
e

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 s

it
e

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 f
o

r 
lic

e
n
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

. 
 T

h
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
a

 “
m

in
i-
ti
p

” 
a

n
y
w

h
e

re
 

o
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 N
o

rt
h
u

m
b

e
rl
a

n
d

 W
h
a

rf
 a

re
: 
tr

a
ff

ic
 m

o
v
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
b

o
th

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

n
d

 l
o

rr
ie

s
, 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n
o

is
e

, 
d

u
s
t 

d
ir
t 

a
n
d

 
o

d
o
u

rs
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t.
 

In
c
lu

d
e

 o
p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
 

  R
e

v
ie

w
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 d

is
p

o
s
a

l 
o
f 

b
u

lk
y
 

w
a

s
te

 

      F
io

n
a

 H
e

y
la

n
d

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

 J
o

h
n

 P
a

lm
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

a
d

 
S

tr
e

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
 

T
e

rr
y
 D

a
m

ia
n
o

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

a
d

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

      J
a

n
 2

0
0

8
 

   J
a

n
 2

0
0

8
 

Page 117



- 
1

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
6

 
A

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

g
ra

v
e

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
g
ro

u
p

 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 n
e

w
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

s
 t

h
a

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 i
s
 a

b
le

 
to

 p
e

n
a

lis
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 v

ia
 a

 
b

re
a

c
h

 o
f 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 n

o
ti
c
e

. 
 I

t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 m
o

re
 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

te
a
m

 a
n

d
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
n
e

w
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

. 
 

T
h
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

s
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 c

h
e

c
k
 n

e
w

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
b

re
a

c
h

 
o
f 

c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
) 

a
n

d
 s

ig
n

 t
h

e
m

 o
ff

 a
s
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t,
 e

s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 l
a

rg
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 u
n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

. 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 g

iv
e

n
 

g
re

a
te

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 v

it
a

l 
in

 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t.
 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o
f 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 w

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 o

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
  

A
t 

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 p
re

-a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 s
ta

g
e

s
 W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 g
iv

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

  
o

n
 t
h

e
 p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
w

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 T

h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
, 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

in
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 b
in

s
 a

n
d
 s

to
re

s
. 

  
  O

n
c
e

 e
it
h

e
r 

a
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 o
f 

o
c
c
u
p

a
ti
o
n

 o
r 

a
 f

in
a

l 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 a
rr

iv
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
 W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
ff

ic
e

r 
v
is

it
s
 t

h
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

in
s
 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ru

b
b

is
h

 a
re

 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

, 
o
f 

a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d

 k
e
p

t 
c
le

a
n

 a
n
d

 t
id

y
. 

If
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

re
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

 b
re

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 

th
e

 R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly
 r

e
fe

rs
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e

 t
o

 a
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
. 
 

 

O
w

e
n

 W
h
a

lle
y
, 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
, 

M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
/J

o
h

n
 P

a
lm

e
r,

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

a
d

, 
S

tr
e

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

    

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
7

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

    

Page 118



- 
1

5
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

 R
7

  
T

h
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
e

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 

c
e

a
s
e

 d
o

o
r 

to
 d

o
o

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 
h

ig
h

 r
is

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
ti
o

n
, 
b

a
s
e
d

 
o

n
 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 v
a

lu
e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

a
r 

e
n

tr
y
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

, 
a

n
d
 

s
u

g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 p

ro
v
is

o
s
: 

i 
  

a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 r

is
e

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
iv

e
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

a
r 

e
n

tr
y
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 
  

ii 
  

If
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 n
e

a
r 

e
n

tr
y
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 i
s
 

a
d

o
p

te
d
 t

h
a

t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 
e

x
p

la
in

 w
h

y
 i
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
  

iii
 T

h
a

t 
th

is
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 m
u
s
t 

n
o

t 
m

a
k
e

 i
t 

h
a

rd
e

r 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 h
ig

h
 r

is
e

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 r
e

c
y
c
le

, 
w

it
h

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
s
 m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 h

o
m

e
 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
u
n

a
l 
fa

c
ili

ty
. 

  
  

D
e

ta
ile

d
 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
  
h

ig
h

 
ri
s
e

 s
to

c
k
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 

F
ir
e

 B
ri
g
a

d
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 R

e
fo

rm
 (

F
ir
e

 
S

a
fe

ty
) 

O
rd

e
r 

in
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0
6

 (
fu

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 R

O
T

A
T

E
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
d
u

c
te

d
 b

y
 S

N
U

 a
n
d

 L
o
n

d
o
n

 R
e
m

a
d

e
) 

 O
n

e
 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 

s
to

c
k
 (

c
.7

0
0

 b
lo

c
k
s
) 

   C
o

m
p

le
te

 P
h

a
s
e

 1
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 c
o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
 

  C
o

m
p

le
te

 P
h

a
s
e

 2
 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
, 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 c
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
 

            

F
io

n
a

 H
e

y
la

n
d

, 
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

  

      S
e

p
 2

0
0
7

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0
8

 
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
9

 

R
8

 
T

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 g

ro
u

p
 w

o
u

ld
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

th
e

 
In

c
lu

d
e

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 f
o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 ‘
lo

t’
 f

o
r 

s
tr

e
e
t 

b
a
s
e

d
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 i
n

 
 F

io
n

a
 H

e
y
la

n
d
, 

S
e

p
t 
2

0
0

7
 

Page 119



- 
1

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
to

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
re

c
e

n
t 

w
a

s
te

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
to

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

. 
  
T

h
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 w

o
u

ld
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 t

h
e

 r
e

-
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 f
o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
. 

 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
 i
s
 a

w
a

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
ly

 d
o

 s
o

 
fo

r 
s
tr

e
e

t 
le

v
e

l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
, 

th
e

 
re

v
ie

w
 w

o
u

ld
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 a

n
 

in
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
s
 t

o
 h

o
w

 
fo

o
d
 w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 a

ll 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
. 

te
n

d
e

r 
fo

r 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

ili
ty

 
E

v
a

lu
a

te
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
h
ig

h
 r

is
e

 f
o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

it
h

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

               

 O
c
t 

2
0
0

8
 

             

R
9

  
T

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

o
u

ld
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
to

 m
a

k
e

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
e
n

t 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

p
o

lic
y
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o
n

-w
id

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d

. 
 B

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
, 

th
e
 g

ro
u

p
 

w
o

u
ld

 w
e

lc
o

m
e

 a
n

y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e

a
m

 l
in

e
 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

o
re

 c
o

-
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 w
a

s
te

 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f
o

r 
a

 s
in

g
le

 w
a

s
te

 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
y
 t

h
e

 G
L

A
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
. 
 T

h
e

 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 c
o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 w
a

s
te

 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
in

to
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 c

o
n

s
o

rt
ia

 a
n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
. 

 I
n

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

n
ti
m

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 

w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

L
o
n

d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
s
e

 a
n
d

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

h
e

re
v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

  

F
io

n
a

 H
e

y
la

n
d

, 
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 

 

Page 120



- 
1

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

m
in

im
is

a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

S
in

g
le

 W
a
s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
 R

1
0

  
T

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 w
o

u
ld

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

ro
u

n
d

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

ro
u

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

h
a

p
p

e
n

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 w

h
e

n
 i
t 

is
 

p
ic

k
e

d
 u

p
. 
 T

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
 

th
e

 n
e

w
 p

a
m

p
h

le
t 

e
x
p

la
in

in
g
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
 b

u
t 

w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

 t
h

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

m
e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 u
s
in

g
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

m
e

d
ia

. 
 T

h
e

 R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 t

e
a
m

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
 p

re
s
e
n

c
e

 a
t 
th

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

fe
s
ti
v
a

ls
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 
 A

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

p
a

g
e

 o
r 

c
o

lu
m

n
 i
n

 E
a

s
t 
E

n
d
 L

if
e

, 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ti
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
re

 
in

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

A
n

 
e

s
ta

te
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

o
a

d
 s

h
o

w
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

o
p

ti
o
n

. 

T
e
n

d
e

r 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 “

d
o

o
r 

s
te

p
p

in
g
” 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 o
f 

a
ll 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
c
a

n
v
a

s
s
e

rs
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 S
y
lh

e
ti
 a

n
d
 S

o
m

a
li 

s
p
e

a
k
e

rs
. 

(W
R

A
P

 f
u

n
d

e
d

) 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
a

p
p
o

in
te

d
 

 P
h

a
s
e
 1

 D
o
o

r 
s
te

p
p

in
g
 2

1
,2

3
4
 l
o

w
 r

is
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
 R

e
v
is

it
 n

o
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
R

e
 r

u
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 s
u
rv

e
y
 (

b
a

s
e

lin
e

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
7

) 
a
n

d
 

e
v
a

lu
a

te
 

 P
h

a
s
e
 2

 H
ig

h
 R

is
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

 R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
a

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
( 

9
 m

a
jo

r 
fe

s
ti
v
a

ls
 s

e
rv

ic
e

d
 i
n

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
) 

 C
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p
u

b
lic

it
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

a
s
e

 E
n

d
 L

if
e

, 
E

ID
 a

n
d

 C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 

 M
u

s
lim

 W
o
m

e
n

’s
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
C

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

  
in

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 L
S

P
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
: 

 

K
e

v
in

 C
ro

o
k
, 

W
a
s
te

 P
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
                    

   M
a

y
 2

0
0

7
-

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 A
u

g
 2

0
0
7

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
 S

e
p

 2
0

0
7

 
 O

c
t 

2
0
0

7
 

  F
e

b
 2

0
0

8
  

 M
a

c
h

 2
0
0

8
 

 O
n

-g
o

in
g
 

   O
n

-g
o

in
g
 

 

Page 121



- 
1

8
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

B
e
fr

ie
n
d

in
g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 8

0
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 r
e

g
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 l
iv

in
g
. 

 
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 r

a
d

io
 a

n
d

 
a

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
o

 4
0

0
 w

o
m

e
n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

 
a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 l
iv

in
g
. 

 T
h
e

 W
a
s
te

 E
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t 

h
a

s
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
fi
lm

s
 a

n
d

 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
te

 m
in

im
is

a
ti
o

n
 

w
id

e
ly

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 
 W

a
s
te

 E
d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 p

a
c
k
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
  A

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
R

S
L

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

o
o

k
le

t 
in

 n
e
w

 t
e

n
a

n
t 
p

a
c
k
s
  

R
o

b
in

 B
e

a
tt

ie
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
          R

S
L

s
 

 

   J
a

n
 2

0
0

8
 

   O
c
t 

2
0
0

7
 

      S
e

p
t 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 O
n

-g
o

in
g
 

R
1

1
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

c
o

m
p
o

s
ti
n

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
o

lle
d

 o
u
t 

to
 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 h
ig

h
 r

is
e

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 l
o

o
k
 

a
t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
a

y
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v
e

s
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 r
e

c
y
c
le

. 
  

 

R
o

ll 
o

u
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 :

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
a

b
o

u
r 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
s
u

it
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

h
ig

h
-

ri
s
e

 b
lo

c
k
s
. 

It
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 e

n
th

u
s
ia

s
ti
c
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 l
iv

in
g
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 b
lo

c
k
 w

h
e

re
 a

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
. 
S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 a

t:
 M

u
lle

t 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
, 

E
v
e

ly
n

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
C

in
n

a
b

a
r 

W
h
a

rf
 a

n
d

 S
p

e
lm

a
n

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 (

S
p

it
a

lf
ie

ld
s
 H

A
) 

 M
a

ti
ld

a
 H

o
u

s
e

 
  

K
e

v
in

 C
ro

o
k
, 

W
a
s
te

 P
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
 

       J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
7

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
 

Page 122



- 
1

9
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

J
u

b
ile

e
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t 

  D
e

v
e

lo
p

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
e
n

ti
v
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 b
y
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
. 

(S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
).

  
 

    

S
e

p
t 
2

0
0

7
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

  

                   

Page 123



- 
2

0
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 D

o
m

e
s

ti
c

 V
io

le
n

c
e

  
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

  
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
  

R
1

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 t
o

 
re

p
o

rt
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 i
n

te
rn

e
t,

 I
-

k
io

s
k
s
 a

n
d

 o
n
e

 s
to

p
 

s
h

o
p

s
. 

 

T
h
e

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 (
D

V
) 

T
e

a
m

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 F
o

ru
m

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
 a

t 
a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

o
u

tl
e

ts
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

. 
 2

5
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 s
ta

lls
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 h
e

ld
 a

t 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 v

e
n

u
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
it
h

 a
p
p

ro
x
. 

2
,0

0
0
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 p
a

c
k
s
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
. 
 

A
d

v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

M
e

n
u

 G
u

id
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 a
ll 

p
a

re
n

ts
 

e
v
e

ry
 t

e
rm

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 
w

e
b

-p
a

g
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
D

V
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
, 

w
it
h

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

n
e

w
s
 i
te

m
s
 i
n

 E
a

s
t 
E

n
d

 L
if
e
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r.
 

 W
o
rk

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 w

it
h

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 D

V
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 i
f 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
. 
2

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 

th
e

s
e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
: 

•
 
N

C
H

 B
a

ri
k
a

 P
ro

je
c
t:

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 9
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
a

n
d
 p

u
p

il 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
u

n
it
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

ta
ff

 
tr

a
in

in
g
, 

p
a

re
n

ts
’ 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 f

o
r 

p
u

p
ils

. 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
,

w
it
h

 n
e

w
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7
 

a
n

d
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
w

e
b

s
it
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

. 
T

h
e

 D
V

 T
e

a
m

 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 A

M
V

 B
B

D
O

 t
o

 
p

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
 s

h
o

rt
 c

in
e
m

a
 a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

t 
ra

is
in

g
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
ri
o
u

s
n

e
s
s
 o

f
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 

ta
k
e

n
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

s
tr

e
e

t 
w

it
h

 a
 v

a
le

n
ti
n
e

’s
 d

a
y
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

E
n

d
 L

if
e

. 
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 s
ta

lls
 a

t 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 f
e

s
ti
v
a

ls
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
s
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 D

V
 

te
a
m

 h
a

v
in

g
 a

 p
re

s
e

n
c
e

 a
t 
2

0
 e

v
e

n
ts

 s
o

fa
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

–
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g
 o

v
e

r 
2

,0
0
0

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
. 

 T
h
e

 W
a
rr

io
r 

W
o
m

e
n

 h
o

lis
ti
c
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
s
a
fe

ty
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 f
ro

m
 m

ig
ra

n
t,

 
re

fu
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
o

m
e

le
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
, 

a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 a
n

d
 

w
o

m
e

n
 i
n

 r
e
fu

g
e

s
. 

Page 124



- 
2

1
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  

•
 
T

H
P

C
T

 h
a

s
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 N
R

F
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 D
V

. 
T

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

H
e

a
lt
h
 

V
is

it
o

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 t
o

 e
q
u

ip
 t
h

e
m

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 s

k
ill

s
 t

o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
h

e
re

 D
V

 i
s
 

o
c
c
u

rr
in

g
. 

 
 A

n
 L

A
A

 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
d
o

p
te

d
 t
o

 m
e
a

s
u

re
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
: 

L
A

A
s
 1

0
3
 “

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

ti
m

e
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 b
e
fo

re
 

s
e

e
k
in

g
 h

e
lp

 f
ro

m
 a

 s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
”,

 2
0

0
4

-0
5

 
b

a
s
e

lin
e
 4

.6
 y

e
a

rs
. 
T

h
e

 o
u
tt

u
rn

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

r 
in

 
fo

r 
A

p
ri
l 
to

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0
6

 w
a

s
 3

.2
 y

e
a

rs
, 
a

 f
a

r 
g
re

a
te

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
th

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

 

R
2

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

re
g
u

la
rl

y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
m

a
tc

h
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

o
s
e

 o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

g
e

n
d
e

r,
 

e
th

n
ic

it
y
 a

n
d
 a

g
e

 a
re

 
g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
y
 

n
e

e
d

. 

T
h
e

 D
V

 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 
ro

le
 i
n

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 D
V

 t
e

a
m

 t
h

ro
u
g
h

 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 g
a

p
s
 i
n

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
u
n

d
e

r-
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 u

p
 t
o

 d
a

te
 a

n
d

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 n
e
e

d
s
. 

 
 E

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 i
n

 
te

rm
s
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 e

th
n

ic
it
y
, 

a
g
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
n
d

e
r 

w
h

ic
h

 h
e

lp
s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 h

o
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

a
n

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 f
a

c
in

g
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 a
ro

u
n
d

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 o
r 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 c

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
a

tt
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

V
 T

e
a

m
 f

ro
m

 1
/0

4
/0

7
 

1
8

/0
2

/0
8

 w
a

s
: 

 N
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
: 
5

8
0

  
 G

e
n

d
e

r:
 

5
4

8
 f
e
m

a
le

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 (

9
4
%

) 
3

2
 m

a
le

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 (

6
%

) 
 E

th
n

ic
it
y
: 

A
s
ia

n
 2

8
7

 (
4
9

%
) 

Page 125



- 
2

2
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
g
e

n
d

e
r.

  
 T

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 c

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
V

 T
e

a
m

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l-
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6

 w
a

s
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 

 N
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

v
ic

ti
m

s
: 
3

9
9
 

 G
e

n
d
e

r:
  
 

M
a

le
: 

2
9
 (

7
%

) 
  

 
 

 
 

F
e

m
a

le
: 

3
7

0
 (

9
3

%
) 

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 V
ic

ti
m

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
s
 

s
e

c
u

re
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

a
 p

a
rt

-t
im

e
 L

G
B

T
 w

o
rk

e
r 

w
h

o
 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
h

o
m

o
p
h

o
b

ic
 c

ri
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
e

r 
h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 
tr

a
in

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
s
a
m

e
-s

e
x
 D

V
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

a
b

le
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 m

a
le

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
D

V
. 

 A
g
e

: 
 

 
 

1
8

-2
5

: 
1

0
4

 (
2

6
%

) 
 

 
 

2
6

-4
0

: 
1

7
3

 (
4

3
%

) 
 

 
 

4
1

-6
0

: 
7

6
 (

2
0

%
) 

 
 

 
6

0
+

: 
8

 (
2
%

) 
 

 
 

U
n

k
n

o
w

n
: 

3
4

 (
8

%
) 

 D
is

a
b

le
d

: 
 

Y
e

s
: 

2
5

 (
6

%
) 

 
 

 
N

o
: 

3
7
4

 (
9

4
%

) 
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 n

e
e
d

e
d

:  
Y

e
s
: 

8
8

 (
2
2

%
) 

 
 

 
 

 
N

o
: 

3
1
1

 (
7

8
%

) 

W
h
it
e
 1

9
3

 (
3

3
%

) 
B

la
c
k
 5

2
 (

9
%

) 
O

th
e

r 
2
3

 (
4

%
) 

N
o

t 
g
iv

e
n

 (
3

%
) 

S
o

m
a

li 
5

 (
1

%
) 

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

: 
Y

e
s
 3

9
 (

7
%

) 
N

o
 5

4
1

 (
9

3
%

) 
 A

g
e

 r
a

n
g
e

: 
 

u
1

9
 (

2
8

) 
 –

 6
5

+
 (

1
1

) 
 

la
rg

e
s
t 

a
g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 2
6

- 3
4

 y
rs

 (
2

1
9

) 
(3

7
%

)
L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 n

e
e
d

e
d

: 
Y

e
s
: 

1
2

6
 (

2
2

%
) 

N
o

: 
4

5
4

 (
7

8
%

) 
 T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 c

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
V

 
te

a
m

’s
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
, 
b

u
t 

th
e

 
p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 q

u
it
e

 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t,
 w

it
h

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

m
a

le
v
ic

ti
m

s
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 h

e
lp

, 
a
 s

lig
h

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

th
e

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 v

ic
ti
m

s
, 

a
n
d

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
is

 s
u

g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 r
e

a
c
h

 m
ig

ra
n

t 
w

o
m

e
n

, 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 i
s
 p

ro
v
in

g
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l.
 

Page 126



- 
2

3
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
 U

n
fo

rt
u

n
a

te
ly

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 e

th
n

ic
it
y
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 
b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

a
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
 –

 t
h

is
 i
s
 

b
e

in
g
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

. 
R

3
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
o

lic
y
 o

n
 

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 b
e

 
re

v
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 
to

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
lly

, 
a

c
ro

s
s
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 t

o
 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

. 
 

 

A
 p

re
lim

in
a

ry
 p

a
p

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 

b
u

t 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 
d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
ta

l 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

re
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
. 

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
’ 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 b
e

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
, 

w
it
h

 
a

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 t

o
 r

e
-l
a

u
n

c
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

y
 b

y
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7
. 

 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6

 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 p

ro
v
e

d
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 d

u
e

to
 t

h
e

 r
a

p
id

 p
a

c
e

 o
f 

c
h
a

n
g
e

 i
n

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

 p
o

lic
y
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
lly

 a
n

d
 i
n

 
L

o
n
d

o
n

, 
c
o
m

b
in

e
d

 w
it
h

 k
e

y
 s

ta
ff

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

V
 T

e
a
m

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

n
e

w
 A

ll 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u

re
s
 o

n
 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 d

u
e

 t
o
 D

V
 

w
e

re
 d

u
e

 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

, 
b
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri
o

d
 w

a
s
 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 a

n
d

 a
 n

e
w

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 d

a
te

 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e
n

 s
e

t 
s
o

 f
a

r.
 A

ll 
n

e
w

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 u
p
d

a
te

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
D

V
. 

 
In

 M
a

y
 2

0
0
7

 t
h
e

 D
V

 F
o

ru
m

 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d
 

n
e

w
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 
re

s
p

o
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
D

V
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 
n

o
 r

e
c
o
u

rs
e

 t
o

 p
u

b
lic

 f
u

n
d

s
 (

s
u
b

je
c
t 
to

 
im

m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l)
. 
T

h
is

 a
d
d

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

  
w

id
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 D
V

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

n
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 

D
V

 (
c
it
e

d
 a

s
 a

n
 e

x
a

m
p
le

 o
f 

b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

Page 127



- 
2

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

) 
a

n
d

 g
u

id
e
lin

e
s
 f

o
r 

H
o
u

s
in

g
S

ta
ff

. 
 

R
4

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
o

lic
y
 b

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 i
n

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 
F

o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 L
iv

in
g
 

S
a
fe

ly
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

P
la

n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
. 

 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 R
3

 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6

 
S

e
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 

R
5

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

. 
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 R
3

 
T

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 

th
e

 n
e

w
 D

V
 w

e
b

 p
a

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
n

e
w

 p
u
b

lic
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
. 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6

 
S

e
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 

R
6

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
h

o
w

 i
t 

c
a

n
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 
v
ic

ti
m

s
. 

 T
h

is
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 V

io
le

n
t 

C
ri
m

e
 A

c
ti
o
n

 G
ro

u
p

. 
 

T
h
e

 V
io

le
n

t 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 t
h
e

 
is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

o
n

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 m

a
n
a

g
e

 D
V

 c
a

s
e

s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

s
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

a
lly

 e
v
o

lv
in

g
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
, 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 u
s
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
a

 
p

e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 m

a
y
 n

o
ti
c
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
. 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
c
o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 

in
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
V

 
p

o
lic

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 (

s
e

e
 R

3
, 
R

4
,R

5
).

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6

 
S

y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
e
s
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 e

m
b
e

d
d

e
d
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
a
n

c
tu

a
ry

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 w
it
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 3

 m
o

n
th

s
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
T

h
e
 D

V
 t

e
a
m

 i
s
 

p
ilo

ti
n

g
 a

 s
p
o

t 
c
h
e

c
k
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
 u

p
 c

a
lls

 t
o

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 w

h
o

s
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d

v
ia

 t
h

e
 D

V
1

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

u
s
e
fu

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

Page 128



- 
2

5
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

D
V

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 i
s

fo
rw

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

 
R

7
 

A
 s

c
h

e
m

e
, 

m
o

d
e

lle
d

 
o

n
 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

ty
 N

e
t 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 C
a
m

d
e
n

, 
b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
. 

 T
h

is
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 

in
 i
ts

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t.
 

 

T
h
e

 L
iv

in
g
 S

a
fe

ly
 C

P
A

G
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 a

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 s
e

t 
u

p
 s

u
c
h

 a
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 2
0

0
4

. 
W

it
h

o
u
t 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 
th

is
 

le
v
e

l 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
. 
 

 

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 D

V
 m

o
d
e
l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
d

o
p

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
o

m
e

 O
ff

ic
e

 f
o

r 
ro

ll 
o

u
t 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
lly

. 
R

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 f

o
c
u

s
s
in

g
 o

n
 c

o
-

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

th
is

 m
o
d

e
l 
s
e
e

k
s
 t
o

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
a

c
ro

s
s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l,
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

, 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
n

d
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
“o

n
e

 s
to

p
 s

h
o

p
” 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

s
tl
y
,

a
n

d
 i
t 
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

s
u

c
h

 a
n
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 
 

R
8

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
p
e

e
r 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
in

 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
 f

ro
m

 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

c
u

re
s
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 

fo
r 

th
e
 W

a
rr

io
r 

W
o
m

e
n
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 

 

6
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 s

o
 f
a

r 
th

is
 y

e
a

r,
 

w
it
h

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
6

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 e

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0
7

. 
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 M
a

y
o

r 
o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
’s

 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 A
w

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6
. 

F
u

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 t
o

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-2
0
0

8
 w

it
h

 a
 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
1

5
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
3

 c
o
u

rs
e

s
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 

w
o

m
e

n
 (

1
6

-1
8

).
  

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

1
1

 c
o
u

rs
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 s
o

 f
a

r
th

is
 y

e
a

r,
 w

it
h

 1
4

5
 w

o
m

e
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
.

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
4

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
. 

 F
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
e

n
d

s
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0
8

. 
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

 t
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 b
e

in
g
 

s
o

u
g
h

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 L

iv
in

g
 S

a
fe

ly
 C

P
A

G
.

T
h
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 f

o
rm

a
l 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 t

ra
in

in
g
, 

a
n

d
 

e
x
te

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 

Page 129



- 
2

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
is

s
u

e
s
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s

to
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

is
 a

ls
o

 b
e

in
g
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
. 

  
R

9
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 t
o

 
c
h

o
o

s
e

 t
o
 s

ta
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 

o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
 s

a
fe

ly
 i
s
 

im
m

e
n

s
e

ly
 v

a
lu

e
d

 b
y
 

th
o

s
e
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 f

ro
m

 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

s
e

c
u

re
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
S

a
n

c
tu

a
ry

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 
 

F
u

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

a
n

c
tu

a
ry

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n

 
F

u
n

d
 f
o

r 
2
0

0
6

-2
0

0
7

 a
n
d

 2
0
0

7
-2

0
0

8
. 

  
 3

2
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

e
re

 a
c
c
e
p

te
d

 o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 S

a
n

c
tu

a
ry

 
p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 e

n
d

 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0
7

, 
w

it
h

 a
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

4
0

 t
o

 
e

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
. 

 T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 S
a

n
c
tu

a
ry

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 e
n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

c
a

re
 a

la
rm

s
, 

m
o

b
ile

 p
h
o

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
n
e

-t
o

-o
n
e

 s
a
fe

ty
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
. 

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 S
a

n
c
tu

a
ry

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h

a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 

w
it
h

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

8
9

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 n

o
w

 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 t

h
is

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
in

c
e

 t
h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

s
ta

rt
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
5
. 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

u
s
e

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 o

v
e

rw
h

e
lm

in
g
ly

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
, 

w
it
h

 o
n

ly
 1

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

r 
s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 h
o

m
e

 
b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

D
V

, 
a

n
d

 9
4
%

 s
a

y
in

g
 t

h
e

y
 

fe
e

l 
s
a
fe

r 
a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 

R
1

0
 

W
h
e
n
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
re

 
re

-h
o

u
s
e
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
, 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
. 

N
R

F
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

fl
o

a
ti
n
g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 

o
f 

D
V

 p
la

c
e

d
 i
n

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
L

B
T

H
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 

fo
r 

2
0
0

6
-2

0
0

8
. 
 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

W
o
m

e
n

’s
 A

id
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 r
is

k
 a

n
d

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 p

la
n

, 
w

it
h

 w
e

e
k
ly

 h
o

m
e

 v
is

it
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 s
a
fe

, 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 

liv
e

s
 f

o
r 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 p
ilo

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 T

H
W

A
 

c
a

m
e
 t

o
 a

n
 e

a
rl
y
 e

n
d

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 T

H
W

A
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 

th
e

 p
ilo

t 
w

a
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e

 
n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
s
u

c
h

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 b

o
d

y
is

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 h

o
w

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

is
 w

it
h

in
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
F

lo
a

ti
n

g
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

Page 130



- 
2

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 c

h
ild

re
n

. 
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 4
0

 h
o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 a

 y
e

a
r.

 
R

1
1
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

s
 

a
n

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
 

o
f 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
th

e
 w

a
y
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
 

a
re

 d
e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 

o
u

tl
in

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 t
o
 

re
h

a
b

ili
ta

te
 

p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

re
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

o
c
c
u

r.
 

   

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 “
G

e
tt

in
g
 a

w
a

y
 w

it
h

 i
t?

” 
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 
P

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

” 
w

a
s
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 L

iv
in

g
 S

a
fe

ly
 C

P
A

G
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

6
. 
T

h
is

 
re

p
o

rt
 m

a
d
e

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
e

 
a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
 a

re
  

1
. 
T

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 D
V

 
p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
 t
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
ff

 (
fu

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
s
e

c
u

re
d

 t
o

 t
ra

in
 3

2
 k

e
y
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 i
n
 2

0
0

7
-

2
0

0
8

) 
2

. 
T

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

D
V

 
C

o
u

rt
 a

t 
T

h
a
m

e
s
 M

a
g
is

tr
a

te
s
 C

o
u

rt
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 m
o

re
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
in

g
 a

re
a

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 a

s
 i
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

c
ri
m

in
a

l 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 (

P
o

lic
e

, 
C

ro
w

n
 

P
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

, 
T

h
a

m
e

s
 C

o
u

rt
 a

n
d

 
P

ro
b

a
ti
o

n
) 

th
e

re
 a

re
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 i
n

 a
ll 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h

is
. 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 D

V
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 P

a
n
e

l 
h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

a
n

e
l 
n
o

w
 d

e
a

ls
 w

it
h

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 p
ro

lif
ic

 a
n

d
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 

D
V

 p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
rs

 –
 

th
e

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
n

e
l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
p

a
n
d

e
d

 
to

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
s
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
D

ru
g
s
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

s
a
fe

ty
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
o

 c
a

n
 o

ff
e

r 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6

 
T

ra
in

in
g
 o

n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 D
V

 
p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 
a

n
d

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 2

5
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
c
o

u
n

s
e

llo
rs

, 
p

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
is

ts
 a

n
d
 d

ru
g
s
 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

F
u

n
d

in
g
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 L

S
C

P
A

G
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 
p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

r 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

, 
to

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

fo
r 

m
e

n
 o

n
 a

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 b
a

s
is

 (
th

a
t 

is
, 

th
o

s
e
 n

o
t 

c
o
n

v
ic

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 c
o
u

rt
s
 –

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
).

 

Page 131



- 
2

8
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
fo

c
u

s
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 o

ff
e
n

d
e

r.
 

R
1

2
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 b
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
to

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
m

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
e

x
p

e
c
t.

 

A
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 s
e

s
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 F
o

ru
m

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 
F

o
ru

m
’s

 a
g
re

e
d

 g
o

o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
, 

w
it
h

 a
 

v
ie

w
 t

o
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
is

 a
s
 t
h
e

 b
a

s
is

 f
o

r 
a

 D
V

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

“c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
p

ro
m

is
e

” 
th

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
p

u
b

lic
. 

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h
e

s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 D
V

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 (

d
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

u
p

d
a

te
d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
7

).
  

 It
 i
s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
p

o
lic

y
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 t
h

a
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

ill
 a

d
h

e
re

 t
o

 i
n

 D
V

 c
a

s
e

s
. 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6

 
A

 n
e

w
 D

V
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 d
ir
e

c
to

ry
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 

a
n
d

 h
a

s
 n

e
w

 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
o

n
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
 D

V
 

c
a

s
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 n
e

w
 “

s
p

o
t 

c
h

e
c
k
” 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

fo
llo

w
 u

p
 o

n
 D

V
1

 f
o

rm
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 i
f 

b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

a
c
ro

s
s
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n
 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

 
 

 
             

Page 132



- 
2

9
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 -

 R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 S

e
s
s

io
n

 o
n

 D
e

te
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

a
jo

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

  
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
1

  
  

  
T

h
a

t 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l 

s
e

e
k
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 h
o

ld
in

g
 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

e
lp

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

g
iv

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 g
iv

e
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n
c
e

 t
o

 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 i
ts

 f
u

lle
s
t 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l.
  

 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

L
A

P
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 

J
e

rr
y
 B

e
ll 

 
D

u
ri
n

g
 

2
0

0
8

/9
 

 

R
2

  
P

u
b

lic
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 o

n
 P

re
-P

la
n

n
in

g
 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 h

e
ld

 d
u

ri
n

g
  

  
d

a
y
ti
m

e
 a

t 
w

e
e

k
e

n
d

s
 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

. 
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

o
ru

m
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
F

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

o
rm

s
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

re
fe

rr
e

d
 t
im

e
s
 f
o

r 
h

o
ld

in
g
 p

u
b

lic
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 F
u

tu
re

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 F

o
ru

m
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

d
 i
n

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r’
s
 w

is
h

e
s
. 

 

S
te

p
h

e
n
 I

rv
in

e
 

 
V

ie
w

 t
a

k
e

n
 

o
v
e

r 
n

e
x
t 

6
 

m
o

n
th

s
 

 

R
3

 
A

n
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ta
to

r 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
s
k
e

d
 t
o

 c
h

a
ir
 p

u
b

lic
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 i
ts

 s
m

o
o

th
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

 
a

v
o

id
 a

c
c
u

s
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
b

ia
s
. 

    

A
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
d
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
fa

c
ili

ta
to

r 
fr

o
m

 l
is

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 It

 m
u

s
t 
b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
 c

a
n
n

o
t 
b

e
 c

o
m

p
e

lle
d

 t
o

 d
o

 
th

is
 a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

a
n

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
fa

c
ili

ta
to

r 
th

e
s
e

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
le

a
d

in
g
 o

n
 

p
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
in

it
ia

te
 i
n
 e

a
c
h

 
c
a

s
e

 
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g
 –

 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
8

 
 

Page 133



- 
3

0
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

  
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
4

 
L

is
ts

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 f

o
rt

h
c
o

m
in

g
 

M
a

jo
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 A

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 
c
ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

C
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

. 

M
a

n
y
 e

a
rl
y
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 d
o

 n
o

t 
re

s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
n

 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

. 
G

e
n
e

ra
lly

 t
h

e
s
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
lly

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 b
e
 t

re
a
te

d
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n
ti
a

lly
. 

O
n

c
e

 a
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 F

o
ru

m
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
, 
p

re
-a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t
o

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 l
is

t.
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 l
is

t.
  

 

S
te

p
h

e
n
 I

rv
in

e
 

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0

0
8

 

R
5

  
T

h
a

t 
d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 t
o
 g

u
id

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

c
o

n
fr

o
n
te

d
  

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 

w
it
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

 e
n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 o

r 
o
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
  

th
a

t 
a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e
m

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 i
n

 s
im

p
le

 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 o
n
 w

h
a

t 
is

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
, 

h
o

w
 t

o
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
, 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

s
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 e

tc
. 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
’ 

s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
ty

p
e

 o
f 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 m
ig

h
t 

a
s
s
is

t 
c
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n

ts
 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
. 

  

A
 s

u
it
e

 o
f 

s
u

c
h

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

 s
it
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 m

o
n
th

s
. 
W

h
e
n

 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

, 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
’ 

B
u

lle
ti
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

v
is

e
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
o

th
e
r 

m
a

te
ri
a

l 
m

a
y
 

h
e

lp
 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
n

s
ti
tu

e
n

ts
. 

 

M
ic

h
a

e
l 
K

ie
ly

 
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 

n
o

te
s
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 
o

n
 w

e
b

 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
 

Page 134



- 
3

1
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

  
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
6

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 o
th

e
r 

L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 t
a

k
e
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 
s
e

e
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 w
h

e
n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 

w
it
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
is

 m
ig

h
t 

h
e

lp
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

  

T
h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

s
, 
a
s
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 o
f 

L
o
n

d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
w

ill
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
n

 a
u
d

it
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

s
’ 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p

lo
re

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
n

y
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
s
e

. 
 

M
ic

h
a

e
l 
K

ie
ly

 
A

u
d

it
 b

y
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
9

 

R
7

  
  

  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 w

it
h

 a
n
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 n

e
e

d
s
 

th
a

t 
m

a
y
 h

e
lp

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 m

o
re

. 
 

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

 “
c
o

re
” 

tr
a

in
in

g
 i
n

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

b
it
y
 e

a
c
h

 M
a

y
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
, 
a

n
d

 b
e

 
s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 w
it
h

 3
-m

o
n
th

ly
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

0
6

 a
n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

ta
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d

 a
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 L
D

F
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
A

p
ri
l.
 F

u
tu

re
 i
d

e
a

s
 f

o
r 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 U

rb
a

n
 D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 S
e

c
u

re
 

b
y
 D

e
s
ig

n
. 

 

M
ic

h
a

e
l 
K

ie
ly

 
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 –

 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
9

 
 

 
 

         

Page 135



- 
3

2
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

 
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 o

n
 F

a
ir

 S
h

a
re

s
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
  

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

R
1

. 
T

h
e

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

x
p

lic
it
 i
n

 h
o
w

 i
t 

in
te

n
d

s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 
g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 
g
a

in
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

 
 

T
h
e

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 
w

ri
tt

e
n

 a
t 
a

 b
ro

a
d

 l
e

v
e

l.
  

It
 d

o
e

s
 c

o
n
ta

in
 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
: 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

w
o

m
e

n
, 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
5

0
. 

 T
h
e

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
in

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
0
5

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

fo
r 

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
. 

 T
h

is
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 t
h
e

 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
tt

in
g
 u

p
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

u
b

s
 t
o

 d
ra

w
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

to
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 a
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
d

 w
a

y
 a

n
d

 a
 j
o

in
t 

te
a
m

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 S
k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
, 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

C
o

lle
g
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

to
 t

a
rg

e
t 

lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 
u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 p

e
o
p

le
. 
  

It
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

s
 t
o

 
e

v
a

lu
a

te
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

lly
. 

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

 

R
2

. 
 A

n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 a

m
e

n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
 u

p
o
n

 w
id

e
ly

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

re
a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

ro
s
p
e

ri
ty

 C
P

A
G

. 

It
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

is
 u

p
d
a

te
d
 e

v
e

ry
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

ro
s
p

e
ri
ty

 C
P

A
G

. 
 I
n

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e

 C
P

A
G

 w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 a
 l
e
a

d
 r

o
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

M
a

r 
0

6
 

T
h
e

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 (

s
u

b
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 C

P
A

G
) 

h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

p
a

p
e

rs
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 

Page 136



- 
3

3
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

a
s
is

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 

e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t
h

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 c
o
h

e
re

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h
a

t 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 i
s
 n

o
w

 h
o

s
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 2

0
1
2

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
. 

  

w
o

rk
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 a

g
e

n
d

a
. 
 T

h
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u
p

 
h

a
v
e

 a
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

re
p
o

rt
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 C
&

S
P

 C
P

A
G

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
. 
 T

h
e

 L
e

it
c
h

 r
e
v
ie

w
, 

F
re

u
d

 p
a

p
e

r,
 

a
n

d
 a

ll 
g
re

e
n

 a
n

d
 w

h
it
e

 p
a
p

e
rs

 o
n

 W
e
lf
a

re
 

R
e

fo
rm

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 t
a

k
e

n
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 t
h
e

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

R
3

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t

it
le

 o
f 

th
e

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 
 

T
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 c

a
lle

d
 “

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 

P
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

.”
  
T

h
is

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 
th

e
 t

w
o

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
to

 b
o

th
 c

re
a

te
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 s
h

a
re

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

. 
 I

t 
a

ls
o

 
c
o

n
n
e

c
ts

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

h
e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 t

h
e

 V
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
g
re

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
, 

th
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
 t

h
e

m
e

 C
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
S

h
a

ri
n

g
 p

ro
s
p
e

ri
ty

. 
  It

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 s

tr
e

s
s
 t

h
a
t 

in
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 -

 l
o

c
a

lly
, 

re
g
io

n
a

lly
, 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 

a
n

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 –

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 u
s
e

 k
e

y
 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 c

o
n

n
e

c
t 

to
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
u

d
ie

n
c
e

s
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

is
 i
s
 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 
F

o
u

r:
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

 M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
. 

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

 

R
4

. 
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
  

s
h
o

u
ld

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 I
n

d
e

x
 e

v
e

ry
 t

w
o

 m
o

n
th

s
. 
 

E
v
e

ry
 

tw
o

 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 b
i-
m

o
n

th
ly

 

Page 137



- 
3

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
B

V
P

I 
8
 –

 u
n

d
is

p
u

te
d

 
in

v
o

ic
e

s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h

in
 3

0
 d

a
y
s
 -

 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 w

o
rk

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0
0

5
/2

0
0

6
. 

 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 B

V
P

I 
8

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
s
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
F

a
ir
 S

h
a

re
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
. 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 

M
a

rt
in

 
S

m
it
h
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
. 

m
o

n
th

s
 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

R
5

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
in

k
a

g
e
s
 w

it
h

 
s
o

m
e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
k
e

y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

  
 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

 i
s
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
a

t 
g
u

id
e

s
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 F

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 r
e
n

e
w

a
l 
o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 –
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 C

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 

P
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 t
h

e
m

e
 –

 t
h
e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 g
u

id
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
k
e

y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h

e
 T

h
ir
d

 S
e

c
to

r 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

A
s
s
e

t-
B

a
s
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
u
p

d
a
te

s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

 A
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 e
a

rl
ie

r 
it
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
P

A
G

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

re
g
u

la
rl

y
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
 t

o
 ‘
p

la
c
e

 s
h

a
p

in
g
’ 
th

e
re

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 g
re

a
t 
d

e
a

l 
o
f 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 b
ri
n

g
in

g
 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 s

p
a

ti
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
a
k
e

n
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
th

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 s

e
t 

th
e

 3
5

 L
A

A
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 
 A

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 n

o
w

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
p

la
y
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 

C
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
4

 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 h
o

s
t 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

is
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n
to

 k
e

y
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
le

s
s
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
a

re
n

ta
l 
e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 p
la

n
, 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

la
n

. 
 In

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

m
p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 

Page 138



- 
3

5
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 

e
x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 –

 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
r’
s
 –

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
o

lic
ie

s
. 

 

w
o

rk
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 f
a

m
ily

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

 o
f 

th
e

 R
e

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
to

 c
re

a
te

 
a

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 l
in

k
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

m
o

re
 s

tr
o

n
g
ly

 t
o

 
s
p

a
ti
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
. 

R
6

. 
 C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 i
s
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 l
is

t 
o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

rt
is

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 

In
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
g
e

n
c
y
 t

h
a

t 
c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 

fo
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

T
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 d
ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

rt
is

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
o

llo
u

t 
o
f 

th
e

 “
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
” 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
. 

A
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

- 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 
In

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 –

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 a
s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
. 

 
 

M
a

r 
0

6
 

R
e

fe
r 

to
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

R
7

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
e
ff

o
rt

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s
 o

f 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

w
h

e
re

 b
o

th
 f
o

rm
a

l 
a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

l 
s
h

a
ri
n

g
 o

f 
id

e
a

s
 c

a
n
 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

. 
  

S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
v
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 T
h

ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

E
m

p
o

w
e

rm
e

n
t 

N
e

tw
o

rk
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
s
u

e
. 
 D

e
p
u

ty
 

C
h

a
ir
 o

f 
C

P
A

G
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 C
E

N
  

R
8

. 
  

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
s
e
a

rc
h

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 

o
u

t 
to

 e
x
a

m
in

e
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il 
th

e
 

lo
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
m

o
n

g
 B

a
n

g
la

d
e

s
h

i 
w

o
m

e
n

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
lly

 

T
h
e

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

p
ro

m
o

te
s
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 
m

a
x
im

is
e

 i
n

p
u

t 
a

n
d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
s
h

if
t 

in
 t

h
e
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.
 

 

M
a

r 
0

6
 

S
o

m
e

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 
d

a
ta

s
e

ts
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 o

u
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
 

In
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
a

s
 t

h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 

J
o

b
c
e
n

tr
e

 p
lu

s
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

in
te

rr
o

g
a

ti
o

n
. 

Page 139



- 
3

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 h

o
ld

in
g
 l
it
tl
e

 
o

r 
n

o
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
, 

th
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

s
e

 
g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

 Y
e

a
rs

 4
-6

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 b

e
fo

re
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 o

r 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 a

ls
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

s
 

th
a

t 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

re
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 
to

 
p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 a

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
a

t 
is

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

-b
a

s
e

d
. 
 

A
s
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

s
, 

th
is

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

fo
rm

 n
e

w
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
 

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 C
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 p

ilo
t 

th
e

 5
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 a

re
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 b

e
tt
e

r 
w

a
y
s
 t

o
 

s
h

a
re

 t
h

e
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 
o
f 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
D

W
P

 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 

  

R
9

. 
 T

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 L

e
a

d
 f

o
r 

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 

P
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 s
h

o
u

ld
 e

x
a

m
in

e
 

th
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
e

c
to

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o
n

 t
h
e

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 R

e
n
e

w
a

l 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
h

e
n

 f
o

rm
u
la

ti
n

g
 

th
e

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
2

0
0
5

/2
0
0

6
. 

T
h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

e
re

 u
s
e
d

 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
. 
 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 S
k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
 p

ro
je

c
t 
o

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p

e
o
p

le
. 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

 

R
1

0
. 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 b
ro

a
d

ly
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

b
e

 k
e
p

t 
re

g
u

la
rl
y
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d
 o

f 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

a
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 C
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 S
h

a
ri
n

g
 

P
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 C
P

A
G

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

 o
f 

th
e

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 f
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

in
to

 a
 m

o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 

w
o

rk
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

n
d

 

Page 140



- 
3

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

re
a

lis
in

g
 t

h
e

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
is

 m
a

y
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
u
p

d
a
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n
. 

 A
n

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 
S

e
s
s
io

n
 t
o

 m
o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
la

te
r 

in
 

th
e

 M
u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
Y

e
a

r.
 

 D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
, 
th

e
 L

e
a

d
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
w

ill
 a

tt
e

n
d
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 

a
n

 u
p
d

a
te

 o
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

 T
h
e

s
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 m
o

re
 

w
id

e
ly

 a
re

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

 
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

&
S

P
 C

P
A

G
. 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 p

ilo
t 

w
ill

 
a

ls
o

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

P
A

G
 a

n
d

 u
s
e
d

 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
 f
u

tu
re

 p
o

lic
ie

s
. 

 B
o

th
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
le

s
s
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 i
s
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
&

S
P

 C
P

A
G

. 

          

Page 141



- 
3

8
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 G

ra
d

u
a

te
 U

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
 

T
h
e

 W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 a

re
a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 l
o

c
a

l 
g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 i
n

to
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
. 

 I
t 

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 s

tr
e

s
s
 t

h
a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
th

e
ir
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

te
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 l
e

v
e

l 
ro

le
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

o
n

e
 a

g
e

n
c
y
, 

it
's

 s
o

m
e

th
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
 c

a
n

 h
e

lp
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
. 
 T

h
a

t's
 w

h
y
 w

e
'r
e

 d
ir
e

c
ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

re
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
's

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

 A
c
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
s
 (

C
P

A
G

s
).

 
  R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
1

 
T

h
e

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
s
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 t
o

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
a

n
d

 n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
g
ra

d
u

a
te

 u
n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

u
n

d
e

re
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 

fu
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n

. 
 

T
h
e

re
 

is
 

n
o

 
fu

n
d

in
g
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

to
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 

th
is

 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
. 

 
A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 
to

 
b

e
 
m

a
d
e

 
to

 
M

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n

 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 
o

n
 

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 

S
h

a
ri
n

g
 

P
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 
C

P
A

G
 

(J
e

n
n

y
 S

o
m

m
e

rv
ill

e
) 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 

th
e

re
 a

re
 a

n
y
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

r 
fu

n
d

in
g
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
.  

S
u

e
 H

in
d

s
 –

 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
D

&
R

 
L

B
T

H
 

N
o

v
 0

7
 

R
2

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

e
x
p

a
n

d
s
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 
g
ra

d
u

a
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

g
ra

d
u
a

te
s
 t
o

 
g
a

in
 s

k
ill

s
, 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 a
 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e

c
to

r 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
, 

re
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 e

th
n
ic

 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
. 

 

T
h
e

 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 

re
c
e

n
tl
y
 

a
g
re

e
d

 
a

 
re

v
is

e
d

 
a

n
d

 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 

g
ra

d
u

a
te

 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

s
c
h
e

m
e
 

w
h

ic
h

 
h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n
 

re
c
ru

it
e

d
 

to
 

fo
r 

 
0

7
/0

8
. 

  
T

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 a

d
o

p
ti
n

g
 a

 m
o

re
 c

o
h
e

s
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 a
n

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 g

ra
d

u
a

te
s
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

C
T

 o
n

 t
h

is
. 

 I
t 

is
 a

ls
o

 i
n

te
n

d
e
d
 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 
b

e
 u

s
e

d
 i

n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
, 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
e
n

te
re

d
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 

v
ia

 
a

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
 

th
e

ir
 

s
k
ill

s
 

a
n

d
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

. 
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e
d

 t
o

 C
&

S
P

 
C

P
A

G
 e

v
e

ry
 6

 m
o
n

th
s
. 

D
e

b
 C

la
rk

e
 –

 J
o

in
t 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

H
u
m

a
n

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 L

B
T

H
 

a
n

d
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 
C

a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

  

O
c
t 

0
7

 
  

Page 142



- 
3

9
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
3

 
A

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 
c
h

a
m

p
io

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
, 

a
n

d
 t
o

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
, 

u
n

iv
e

rs
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
u
a

te
s
. 

 

T
h
e

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 E

m
p

lo
y
a

b
ili

ty
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 o
n

 
th

is
 r

o
le

. 
 A

 s
m

a
ll 

ta
s
k
 g

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

o
rm

e
d
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
lle

g
e

, 
L

B
T

H
, 

E
L

B
A

 a
n
d

 C
o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s
. 

 E
L

B
A

 h
a

v
e

 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

d
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
C

A
T

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 l
o
c
a

l 
g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 E
L

B
A

. 
 T

a
s
k
 g

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 
th

e
 w

id
e

r 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
a

b
ili

ty
 t

a
s
k
 g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

re
 t
o

 C
&

S
P

 C
P

A
G

 

S
a

lly
 R

o
b

e
rt

s
 -

 
E

L
B

A
 

T
a

s
k
 

G
ro

u
p

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 S

e
p

t 
0
7

 

R
4

 
T

h
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 e

x
p

lo
re

s
: 

 

•
 

u
s
in

g
 S

k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 o

r 
s
e

c
o
n

d
m

e
n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

g
ra

d
u
a

te
s
 

to
 g

a
in

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

•
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 m
e

n
to

ri
n
g
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
g
ra

d
u
a

te
s
. 

 

T
h
e

s
e

 t
a

s
k
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
e
d

 b
a

c
k
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

&
S

P
 C

P
A

G
. 

S
h

e
ila

 B
e

n
th

a
m

 –
 

C
h

a
ir
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
E

m
p

lo
y
a

b
ili

ty
 T

a
s
k
 

G
ro

u
p

 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 t
o

 
C

P
A

G
 

R
5

 
T

h
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 e

x
p

lo
re

s
: 

 

•
 

h
o

w
 t

o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
k
ill

s
 s

h
o

rt
a

g
e

s
 

n
o

w
 a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 l
ik

e
ly

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
la

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ro
je

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

•
 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 
m

e
a

n
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

T
h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

 o
f 

th
e

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

w
ill

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
k
ill

s
 s

h
o

rt
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

s
 
w

e
ll 

a
s
 
th

e
 
re

c
e

n
t 

L
e
a

rn
in

g
 
a

n
d

 
S

k
ill

s
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
s
e
a

r c
h
. 
 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 g

ra
d

u
a

te
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 l
o
c
a

lly
 i

s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

jo
b

 v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
, 

th
e
 c

a
re

e
r 

a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
g
ra

d
u
a

te
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 
w

o
rk

 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
 
e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
to

 
g
a

in
 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 
to

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

c
a

re
e

r 
p
a

th
w

a
y
s
. 

 
 T

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
lo

c
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 

S
h

e
ila

 B
e

n
th

a
m

 –
 

C
h

a
ir
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
E

m
p

lo
y
a

b
ili

ty
 T

a
s
k
 

G
ro

u
p

 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
b

a
s
e

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
  

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 0

8
 

  A
d

v
ic

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 
le

a
fl
e

t 
fo

rm
 

Page 143



- 
4

0
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

th
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 a
n
d

 r
e

le
v
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

c
a

re
e

rs
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
la

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e
t.

 
 

 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

0
8

. 

R
6

 
T

h
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 A

lli
a
n

c
e

 (
E

L
B

A
) 

a
n

d
 Q

u
e
e

n
 M

a
ry

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

G
ra

d
u

a
te

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 p
ilo

t 
to

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

lo
c
a

l 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 

th
is

 c
a

n
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

.  
 

T
o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 b

y
 

E
L

B
A

 a
n
d

 Q
M

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

S
a

lly
 R

o
b

e
rt

s
 -

 
E

L
B

A
 

F
e

b
 0

8
 

R
7

 
T

h
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

th
e

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 b

y
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
fa

c
ili

ta
ti
n

g
 c

a
re

e
rs

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 /
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

ll 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
.  

 

T
im

e
ta

b
le

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 
S

h
e

ila
 B

e
n

th
a
m

 –
 

C
h

a
ir
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
E

m
p

lo
y
a

b
ili

ty
 T

a
s
k
 

G
ro

u
p

 

F
e

b
 0

8
 

 N
o

te
: 

A
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 m

in
u

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

a
c
k
 t
o

 C
P

A
G

 i
n

 
q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 

  

Page 144



- 
4

1
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 8

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
E

x
c

lu
s

io
n

s
 

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
R

1
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g
 t

o
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f
o
r 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
ie

c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 

lo
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
h
o

w
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n
te

rp
re

t 
v
e

rb
a
l 

a
b

u
s
e

 t
o
 a

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 
p

u
p

ils
. 

 T
h

e
 L

E
A

, 
in

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 F

o
ru

m
 (

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 b

o
d

y
) 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

d
ra

w
 u

p
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
s
 t

o
 s

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 o

n
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

a
re

 
p

ro
d
u

c
e

d
 

w
h

ic
h
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 
th

e
 

re
a

s
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

a
n

d
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 

in
 

a
p
p

ro
a

c
h
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

W
h
e
re

 t
h

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
f 

o
n

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 

v
a

ri
e

s
 

fr
o

m
 

o
th

e
r 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
th

is
 

is
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
, 

S
L
T

 a
n

d
 g

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
s
o

c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 l
e
a

d
, 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a

d
v
is

o
r.

  
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 t

h
is

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i

s
s
u
e

 i
n
 o

n
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l,
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
S

L
T

, 
is

 n
o

w
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 i
ts

 
s
h

o
rt

 
te

rm
 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 

p
o

lic
y
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 

th
e
 

o
p

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 t
o

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

  
 

 T
ra

in
in

g
 
in

 
c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 
h
a

s
 
b

e
e

n
 
p

ro
m

o
te

d
 

w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
c
a

n
 

m
o
d

e
l 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

b
y
 

e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 

th
e

 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
o
f 

c
h

o
ic

e
, 

ri
g
h

ts
 

a
n

d
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
. 

 
A

 
c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 
le

d
 

b
y
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 C
o
n
fl
ic

t 
R

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

A
u

tu
m

n
 t

e
rm

. 
 

 T
h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 w
e

re
 

a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r:

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fi
x
e

d
 

te
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 b

u
t 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

a
n

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
fi
x
e

d
 t

e
rm

 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 p

e
r 

th
o

u
s
a

n
d

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e
d

 s
lig

h
tl
y
. 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

T
h

is
 a

c
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 s

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
d

 a
s
 a

 
re

s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
w

e
a

p
o

n
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fi
g
u

re
s
 f
o

r 
0

5
/0

6
. 

 I
n

 0
4

/0
5
 t

h
e

re
 

w
e

re
 5

 w
e

a
p

o
n

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 

 I
n
 0

5
/0

6
 t
h
e

re
 w

e
re

 
2

5
. 

 G
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
v
e

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 r
is

k
 

th
a

t 
th

is
 f

ig
u

re
 s

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ly

, 
th

is
 w

a
s
 d

e
e
m

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 t

h
e

 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
 f

o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 w

it
h

 
re

g
a

rd
 t

o
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

 
 A

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 

a
g
re

e
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 u
s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

 D
V

D
 

b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
a
 l
o

c
a

l 
y
o

u
th

 t
h
e

a
tr

e
 g

ro
u
p

. 
 T

h
e

 p
u

p
ils

 
w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h

 a
 w

ri
te

r 
to

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 
a

 f
ilm

 a
b

o
u

t 
b

u
lly

in
g
, 

p
h

o
n
e

 t
h
e
ft

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

c
a

rr
y
in

g
 k

n
iv

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
. 

  
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
it
h

 t
e

a
c
h

in
g
 n

o
te

s
 a

n
d

 p
o

lic
e
 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

ls
o
 w

o
rk

e
d

 i
n

 
c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u
e

. 
  

 

Page 145



- 
4

2
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
 T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 s
m

a
ll 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 v

e
rb

a
l 
a

b
u

s
e

 t
o

 b
o
th

 o
th

e
r 

p
u

p
ils

 a
n

d
 t
o

 a
d

u
lt
s
. 

  
E

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

b
u

lly
in

g
, 

ra
c
is

t 
o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
, 

s
e

x
u

a
l 

m
is

c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
a

n
d

 d
ru

g
 r

e
la

te
d

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 r
a

re
 

a
n

d
 e

it
h

e
r 

re
d

u
c
e

d
 o

r 
re

m
a

in
e

d
 a

t 
a

 s
im

ila
r 

le
v
e

l 
to

 t
h

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

w
e

a
p
o

n
s
 

re
la

te
d

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 w

e
n

t 
u

p
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
. 

 B
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 w
e

a
p

o
n

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 
o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 a

ls
o

 a
p
p

a
re

n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
, 

th
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
re

m
e

d
ia

l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 m

o
v
e

d
 

a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 v
e

rb
a

l 
a
b

u
s
e

. 
 

IN
C

O
s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
o

 
u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

 d
ir
e

c
t 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 l
a

te
 

a
n

d
 m

id
te

rm
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
b

e
 m

o
re

 o
v
e

rt
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 o

f 
th

e
 w

e
a

p
o
n

s
 i
s
s
u
e

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
in

 o
th

e
r 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 a

s
 t
h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 
c
le

a
r 

c
o

rr
e

la
ti
o
n

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

is
 

g
ro

u
p

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 r
is

e
 i
n

 w
e

a
p
o

n
s
 

re
la

te
d

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 

 
S

o
m

e
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 a
ls

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 t
h

e
 

u
s
e

 o
f 

w
e

a
p

o
n
 d

e
te

c
ti
o

n
 

“w
a

n
d

s
”.

 K
n

if
e

 a
rc

h
e

s
 w

e
re

 u
s
e

d
 

a
t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 c

o
lle

g
e

. 
 

  In
 

0
6

/0
7

 
w

e
a

p
o
n

s
 

re
la

te
d
 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

d
ro

p
p
e

d
 

to
 

5
. 
  

O
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

t 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

d
ro

p
p
e

d
 f

ro
m

 6
2

 t
o

 5
1

. 
R

2
 

A
ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
th

e
 a

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

  
T

h
e

 L
E

A
 s

h
o

u
ld

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 c
a

s
e

 

P
a

re
n

ta
l 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 
a

t 
th

e
 
h

e
a

rt
 
o
f 

o
u
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
  

P
a

re
n

ta
l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
’ 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 v

it
a

l 
in

 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 
p
e

o
p

le
 
w

it
h

in
 

a
n

d
 

o
u

ts
id

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l.
 

T
h

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
 

a
ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
a

re
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

in
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

p
o

lic
ie

s
, 

in
 

lin
e
 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

D
fE

S
 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 
o
n
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 I

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 
A

c
t 

2
0
0

6
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
m

e
 i
n

to
 f
o

rc
e

 
in

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

7
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 g

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 

to
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 o

n
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r,

 w
it
h

 
p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d

, 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 a

s
 

a
 l
e

g
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t,
 w

it
h

 p
u

p
ils

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
s
ta

k
e
h
o

ld
e

rs
 

Page 146



- 
4

3
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

e
 t
o

o
ls

, 
te

c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
 a

n
d

 
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
th

is
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

. 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
  

T
h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 

P
a

re
n

ta
l 

E
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

w
it
h

 
2

4
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 
a

im
e
d

 a
t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
  

�
 

a
n

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
p
a

re
n

ts
 c

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

, 
 

�
 

a
 D

fE
S

 E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 P

a
th

fi
n
d

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

w
h

ic
h

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 

e
x
p

a
n

d
s
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 
u

s
in

g
 
th

e
 
R

a
c
e

 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

U
n

it
’s

 
“S

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

in
g
 

F
a

m
ili

e
s
, 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
” 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

fo
c
u

s
s
in

g
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

o
n

 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 

w
it
h

 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

  
 

�
 

A
 F

a
m

ily
 I

n
te

n
s
iv

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

H
o

m
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
 

R
e

s
p
e

c
t 

A
g
e

n
d
a

 
F

a
m

ily
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

m
o

s
t 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

e
e

d
y
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
. 

 
  A

 p
ilo

t 
S

a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d
 S

t 
P

a
u

l’s
 W

a
y
 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
w

h
ic

h
 
is

 
e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 

lo
c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 p
o

o
r 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r.

  

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
 H

e
a

d
 t
e

a
c
h

e
rs

 
m

u
s
t 
th

e
n

 b
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

p
o

lic
y
 o

n
 t

h
e

s
e

 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
. 

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 v

e
ry

 c
le

a
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 

o
n

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n
g
a

g
e

 
p

a
re

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 T
h

e
 

p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 u

n
d
e

rs
to

o
d
 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
o

s
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
. 
 

It
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 “
ri
g
h

ts
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
” 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r.

  
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 f
o

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 o

n
 t
h

is
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 o
n

 
h

o
w

 p
a

re
n

ts
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
. 

  
 

R
3

.1
  

It
 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n

ti
a

l 
to

 h
a

v
e

 
ro

b
u

s
t 
a

n
d
 t

im
e

ly
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 
tr

e
n

d
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

  
 

T
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 k

e
e

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

re
 k

e
p

t 
to

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
 i

d
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

tr
e

n
d

s
 w

ill
 

e
n

a
b

le
 

th
e
 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
to

 
ta

k
e

 
a

c
ti
o
n
 

b
e
fo

re
 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 a

re
 t

a
k
e

n
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

c
a

n
 b

e
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

g
ro

u
p

 
p

u
p

ils
 

a
t 

a
n

 
e

a
rl
y
 

s
ta

g
e

. 
T

h
e
 

B
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

E
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

re
 r

e
p
o

rt
e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

L
A

 a
n

d
 b

o
th

 L
A

 l
e

v
e

l 
a
n

d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
re

p
o

rt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
d
u

c
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
tr

e
n

d
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
: 

s
e

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
 r

e
: 
w

e
a

p
o

n
s
 

Page 147



- 
4

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
      R

3
.2

  
 T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

s
h
o
u

ld
 

e
x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o
f 

T
H

IS
 C

h
ild

 t
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
th

is
 a

n
d

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

im
e

ly
 e

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 
o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

h
o

lis
ti
c
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 
G

ro
u

p
 
w

ill
 
c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 
te

rm
ly

 
re

p
o

rt
s
 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e
. 

 
 F

ix
e

d
 

te
rm

 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

fr
o

m
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 
a

n
d
 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 d

ro
p

p
e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
5

/2
0

0
6

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

re
 w

e
re

 n
o

 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

. 
  
 

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r  

o
f 
fi
x
e

d
 t

e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 s
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 b

u
t 

b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

a
n

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 t
h

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
fi
x
e

d
 t

e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 

p
e

r 
th

o
u

s
a
n

d
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d

 s
lig

h
tl
y
. 

  
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
e

rm
a
n

e
n
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 

 
 W

e
e
k
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
ir

c
u

la
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
e

 t
o

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 k
e

y
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
in

g
  

a
n

ti
- s

o
c
ia

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 c
ri
m

e
 i
n

 a
n

d
 a

ro
u
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 f
o

r 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 w

a
rn

in
g
. 

 In
 

lin
e

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

v
e

ry
 

C
h

ild
 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 

a
g
e

n
d

a
, 

th
e

 
C

o
m

m
o

n
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
(C

A
F

) 
is

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 a
ll 

th
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
 T

o
 d

a
te

 6
0

0
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

tr
a

in
e

d
 i

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
n
e
e

d
s
 i

n
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
m

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
d

a
te

 f
o

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 i
s
 J

u
ly

 2
0

0
7

. 
 I

n
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 

“t
e

a
m

 a
ro

u
n
d

 t
h

e
 c

h
ild

” 
in

te
g
ra

te
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
a

d
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
is

 
u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 D

fE
S

 G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 i
n

 J
a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

re
la

te
d

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
  

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
d

 i
n

 a
 

D
C

S
F

 e
C

A
F

 p
ilo

t 
(l
o

c
a

lly
 k

n
o

w
n

 
a

s
 T

H
IS

 C
h

ild
).

  
T

h
e

 D
C

S
F

 h
a

s
 

re
c
e

n
tl
y
 m

a
d
e

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

a
 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

C
A

F
 
s
y
s
te

m
 
in

 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 L
A

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
. 

 
 

T
h

is
 

is
 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
u

n
lik

e
ly

 
to

 
c
o

m
e

 
o

n
 
s
tr

e
a

m
 
fo

r 
tw

o
 

y
e

a
rs

 
a

t 
a

 
m

in
im

u
m

 
a
n

d
 

ta
k
in

g
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 

fr
o
m

 
D

C
S

F
 

w
e

 
h

a
v
e

 
d

e
c
id

e
d
 

to
 

p
ro

c
e

e
d
 

w
it
h

 
o

u
r 

lo
c
a

l 
e

C
A

F
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

in
 

th
e
 

in
te

ri
m

 a
s
 t

h
is

 l
e

n
g
th

 o
f 

d
e

la
y
 i

s
 

u
n

te
n

a
b

le
. 

  
 T

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 

w
ill

 
n

e
e

d
 
to

 
d

o
v
e

 
ta

il 
w

it
h

 
 
th

e
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

w
e

 
a

re
 

in
 

a
 

s
tr

o
n

g
 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 

to
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 

to
 

th
is

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

w
it
h

 
tw

o
 

le
a

d
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
te

a
m

s
 

o
n

 
T

H
IS

 
C

h
ild

 
w

ill
 

s
ta

rt
 

in
 

th
e

 
A

u
tu

m
n
 

w
it
h

 
a

 
v
ie

w
 
to

 
ro

lli
n

g
 
o

u
t 

m
o

re
 

b
ro

a
d

ly
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

. 

Page 148



- 
4

5
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
. 

 
 T

H
IS

 C
h

ild
 o

n
lin

e
 (

a
 s

e
c
u

re
 w

e
b

 b
a

s
e

d
 s

y
s
te

m
) 

w
ill

 
b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
e

a
n

s
 

o
f 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 
w

o
rk

 
a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 

w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 o

r 
a
t 

ri
s
k
. 

It
 w

ill
 g

o
 

liv
e

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

7
. 
 

 T
h
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
A

F
 

fo
rm

 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 

a
 

s
c
o

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 
e

n
a

b
le

 
h

o
lis

ti
c
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

o
f 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
. 

 
 

R
4

 
T

h
e

 L
E

A
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 W

h
it
e

 P
a

p
e

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 o

n
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e
, 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 r
e

v
is

it
 t

h
e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 d
e

b
a

te
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 
a

c
c
e

p
ti
n

g
 p

u
p

ils
 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e

e
n

 
e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 
m

u
tu

a
lly

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h
e

 S
te

e
r 

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
is

s
e

m
in

a
te

d
 

to
 

s
e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 

th
e
 

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 A

tt
e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 o

f 
g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
 T

h
e

re
 
is

 
a

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 
to

 
fo

rm
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 

to
 

ta
k
e

 
jo

in
t 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ll 
p

u
p

ils
 

in
 

th
e

ir
 

a
re

a
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

“h
a

rd
 

to
 

p
la

c
e

” 
p

u
p

ils
. 

 
T

h
is

 
w

o
rk

 
is

 
b

e
in

g
 
ta

k
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 
th

ro
u

g
h
 

th
e

 
s
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 
h

e
a

d
s
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
v
e

 
a

n
d

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 
in

 
p

la
c
e

 b
y
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
0
7

. 
  

It
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

s
e

tt
in

g
 u

p
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 

p
u

p
ils

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 6

th
 d

a
y
 o

f 
a

n
y
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

(C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

th
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t 
is

 
fo

r 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
to

 
b
e

 
m

a
d
e

 
o
n

ly
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
In

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 A

c
t 

2
0

0
6

, 
fr

o
m

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

0
7

 s
e

c
o
n

d
a

ry
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 a

tt
e

n
d
a
n

c
e

. 
 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

  
s
h

a
re

d
 

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

a
k
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 

a
re

a
, 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 m

o
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 “
h

a
rd

 t
o

 
p

la
c
e

” 
p
u

p
ils

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
o
f 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
6

th
 d

a
y
 o

f 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

  

Page 149



- 
4

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
 

a
ft

e
r 

1
5

 d
a

y
s
 o

f 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
.)

 
L

o
c
a

lly
 s

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 h

e
a
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 
d

e
c
id

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n

 o
n

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 P

R
U

 a
n

d
 

L
A

) 
a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
 a

n
 i
n

it
ia

l 
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

 o
u

tl
in

in
g
 t

h
e

ir
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 6

th
 d

a
y
 o

f 
a

n
y
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 P

R
U

. 
  

T
h
e

y
 i
n

te
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
th

e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
“h

a
rd

 t
o

 p
la

c
e

” 
a

n
d

 m
a
n

a
g
e

d
 m

o
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
 

th
e

 C
O

M
P

A
C

T
 l
a

te
r 

in
 t
h

e
 

A
u

tu
m

n
 t

e
rm

 t
o
 t

ry
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 
m

o
re

 m
u
tu

a
lly

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
iv

e
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
u

p
ils

. 
 

T
h
e

 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
is

 
lik

e
ly

 
to

 
b

e
 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 1

4
-1

9
 H

U
B

 a
n

d
 

in
v
o

lv
e

 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

a
n

d
 

F
E

 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e

y
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 

a
 s

h
a

re
d

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 

to
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 

b
o

d
ie

s
 
a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
s
 
in

 
d

e
v
is

in
g
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r.

 
R

5
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e
s
 

th
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

IP
 

 T
h
e

 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 l

e
a

rn
t 

a
re

 b
e

in
g
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 r

o
ll 

o
u

t 
g
o

o
d
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

A
re

a
s
 o

f 
ro

llo
u

t 
o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

p
ilo

te
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 B
IP

 t
o

 d
a

te
 

Page 150



- 
4

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
a

n
d

 e
x
a

m
in

e
s
 h

o
w

 k
e

y
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 e
le

m
e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

e
d
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

e
s
 t

o
 a

n
 

e
n

d
 i
n

 2
0
0

8
. 

 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 f
ro

m
 B

IP
 a

c
ro

s
s
 o

th
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 

th
e

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 S

o
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 

P
a

n
e

l 
(t

h
e
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

B
IP

) 
a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
. 

 T
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 
w

ill
 
b

u
ild

 
o

n
 
s
o
m

e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
B

IP
 
g
o

o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 

in
c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

C
o

m
m

o
n
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

h
o

lis
ti
c
a

lly
. 

 

•
 

T
h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 T

e
a
m

 
A

ro
u

n
d

 t
h
e

 C
h

ild
 a

n
d
 

L
e

a
d

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
to

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

•
 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 1
6

th
 d

a
y
 t

o
 t
h

e
 6

th
 d

a
y
 

o
f 

a
n

y
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

 

•
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 
A

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 

in
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 

•
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n
t.

  
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 E

C
M

 e
le

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

 t
h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

g
ra

n
t 

p
o

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
8
 (

e
n

d
 o

f 
B

IP
):

 

•
 

A
n

ti
-B

u
lly

in
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 

Page 151



- 
4

8
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
, 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 

•
 

T
ru

a
n

c
y
 p

a
tr

o
ls

  

•
 

S
IP

 /
 C

A
F

 /
 e

C
A

F
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
  

•
 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u

t 
o
f 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
n

 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 
R

6
 

A
s
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

v
e

s
t 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
in

 
th

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u

t 
o
f 

th
e

 
T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 W

o
rk

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 t

a
rg

e
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 

g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 l
e

s
s
o
n

s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
to

 i
n
fo

rm
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

t 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
. 

T
h
e

 T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 W

o
rk

e
r 

D
V

D
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

o
n

 
g
o

o
d

 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 
to

 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 

fo
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

p
u

p
ils

 
w

a
s
 

la
u

n
c
h
e

d
 
in

 
th

e
 
A

u
tu

m
n

 
te

rm
 
a

n
d

 
th

is
 
w

o
rk

 
w

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

 
n

a
ti
o
n
a

lly
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
a

 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 
a

s
 

p
a

rt
 

o
f 

th
e

 
b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 

E
a

rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 

B
e

a
c
o
n
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
a

y
 i
n

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
. 

 
 A

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 

th
e
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 W

o
rk

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
B

IP
 

a
n

d
 

o
n

c
e

 
th

e
 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 
o
f 

B
IP

 
is

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 l
o

o
k
e
d
 

in
to

. 
 G

o
o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 

w
it
h

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 M

e
n

to
rs

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 
   

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

S
e

e
 
a
b

o
v
e

 
–

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 
a

g
re

e
d
 

fo
r 

o
n

e
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 W

o
rk

e
r 

to
 b

e
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 
to

 
e
a

c
h

 
p
a

ir
e

d
 

L
A

P
 

a
re

a
, 

s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 
c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
o
f 
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 

R
7

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
T

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
L

e
a
d

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
is

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
o

n
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

W
id

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 a
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
to

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
m

u
lt
i-

Page 152



- 
4

9
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 r

o
le

 
o
f 

L
e

a
d
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 w

o
rk

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
c
lo

s
e

ly
 t

h
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

(s
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

) 
  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 a

 p
ilo

t 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 D

fE
S

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
H

o
ld

in
g
 L

e
a
d

 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
p

ilo
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 e

n
a
b

le
d
 u

s
 t
o

 
a

p
p
o

in
t 

a
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a
g
e

r 
(f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

7
) 

to
 l
e

a
d

 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 o
n

 “
te

a
m

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 

c
h

ild
” 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 L

e
a
d

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
. 

  
 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 t

h
e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 D

fE
S

 i
n

 
J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0

7
. 

  

a
g
e

n
c
y
 T

e
a
m

s
 A

ro
u

n
d
 t

h
e

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
  

L
e

a
d

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
 w

a
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
7

. 
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 
a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

. 
 

 M
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g
 o

f 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

s
ta

rt
s
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

. 
 T

h
is

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i
s
 f

o
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. 

 O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

m
u

lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 t

e
a

m
s
 a

re
 t

ra
c
k
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 C

A
F

 r
e

v
ie

w
 f

o
rm

 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 a

 r
e

-s
c
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

in
it
ia

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 

im
p

a
c
t.
  

P
ro

je
c
t 

to
 d

e
v
is

e
 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

o
l 
a

n
d
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
e

a
rl
y
 C

A
F

s
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 

2
0

0
8

. 
R

8
 

T
h
e

 g
o

o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n

 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

B
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
s
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 
is

 
d

is
s
e
m

in
a

te
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

r 
“B

E
H

A
V

E
!”

. 
  

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 r
e

-a
p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
 

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 

Page 153



- 
5

0
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
is

 s
h

a
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 o

th
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t
h

e
 

L
E

A
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
te

a
m

s
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 
m

a
n
a

g
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 c

a
n

 
a

s
s
is

t,
 a

d
v
is

e
 o

r 
m

e
n

to
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t
h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 

T
h
e

re
 

a
re

 
te

rm
ly

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

o
f 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

/ 
a

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a
to

rs
. 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 c

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 o
n

c
e

 a
 t

e
rm

 w
h

e
re

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
h

a
re

d
. 
 

 T
e

rm
ly

 
re

v
ie

w
s
 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

id
e
n

ti
fy

 
th

o
s
e

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
h

e
re

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
re

 o
f 

c
o
n

c
e

rn
 a

n
d
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 
to

 
th

e
m

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 
th

e
 

o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 
b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 

ro
le

 
in

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

a
n

d
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
 

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

is
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
fo

r 
c
le

rk
s
 

to
 

d
is

c
ip

lin
e

 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
 

a
n

d
 

in
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
a

p
p
e

a
l 

p
a
n

e
ls

 
to

 
s
h

a
re

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 

e
n

a
b

le
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 

A
tt

e
n
d

a
n

c
e

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
-e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 o

n
 

a
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 f
ro

m
 J

u
ly

 2
0

0
7

. 
 

T
h
e

s
e

 a
re

 a
 f

o
ru

m
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

s
h

a
ri
n

g
 o

f 
g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 a
re

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 t
u

rn
 b

y
 t

h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 R

e
g
io

n
a

l 
B

&
A

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 e
n

a
b

le
 u

s
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 
s
h

a
re

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
 w

id
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

B
&

A
 l
e

a
d
e

rs
 b

o
th

 a
t 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e

l.
  

 

R
9

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

s
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 i
n

v
e

s
t 

in
 

c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

s
 a

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 
 

A
 c

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

s
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 p

e
e

r 
m

e
d

ia
to

rs
 w

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i

n
 A

u
tu

m
n
 

2
0

0
6

 t
o

 s
h

a
re

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
A

 s
im

ila
r 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e
 

fo
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0
5

. 
 

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
re

 
g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 

to
 

in
v
e

s
t 

in
 

c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
. 

 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

tt
a

c
h
e

d
 p

o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 t

ra
in

e
d
 

in
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

A
 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 
ru

n
 
s
u

c
h
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

fr
o

m
 

th
e

ir
 

d
e

le
g
a

te
d
 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
a

n
d
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

tt
a

c
h

e
d
 

p
o

lic
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

re
 t

ra
in

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

u
s
e

 
o
f 

c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

re
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

. 

Page 154



- 
5

1
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
th

e
s
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

 o
r 

d
if
fu

s
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 i
n

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

. 
 

R
1

0
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

ilo
t,
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e

s
s
 

th
a

t 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 c

a
n
 h

a
v
e

 
a

 p
a

rt
 t
o

 p
la

y
 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

. 
  

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 c

a
n

 h
a

v
e

 
a

 p
a

rt
 t
o

 p
la

y
 i
n

 b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

c
h

ild
re

n
 m

u
s
t 
fe

e
l 
s
a
fe

 a
n

d
 a

b
le

 t
o
 l
e

a
rn

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

l.
  

In
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
te

x
t 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
a
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

s
 a

 
la

s
t 

re
s
o

rt
. 

M
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
th

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 b
o

th
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 p
u
p

il 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
, 
a

n
d

 a
ll 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
. 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
in

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 m

o
v
e

s
 t

o
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
R

U
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
re

s
p

it
e

 
a

n
d

 r
e
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o

n
. 
 

 T
h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

t 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 i
n

 2
0
0
5

/2
0
0

6
 

la
rg

e
ly

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 
c
a

rr
y
in

g
 
o

f 
w

e
a

p
o
n

s
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 
in

 
th

e
 
lig

h
t 

o
f 

re
c
e

n
t 

e
v
e

n
ts

 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

in
 

th
e

 
n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

p
re

s
s
. 
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

e
lt
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 s
e

n
d
 o

u
t 

a
 c

le
a
r 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
is

 i
s
s
u

e
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

fo
c
u
s
 

o
n

 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 
a

c
ti
o
n
 
to

 
re

d
u

c
e
 
w

e
a

p
o
n

s
 
re

la
te

d
 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 
in

v
o

lv
in

g
 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 
p

o
lic

e
. 

 
A

 
jo

in
t 

v
id

e
o

 
o

n
 

th
is

 
is

s
u

e
 

w
a

s
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 

a
n
d
 

la
u

n
c
h
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0
6

 f
o

r 
u

s
e
 i
n

 s
c
h
o
o

ls
. 

  
 K

e
e

p
in

g
 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 
to

 
a

n
 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 
m

in
im

u
m

 
is

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 w

it
h

 
g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
e

y
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 r

o
le

 i
n

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u

ri
n
g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 
u

s
e

 o
f 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

  
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

a
t 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

r 
d

is
c
ip

lin
e

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
e

y
 t

a
k
e

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
u

p
h
o

ld
 o

r 
o

v
e

rt
u

rn
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

th
e

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

a
 j
u

d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 t

h
a

t 
s
ta

te
d

: 
 

 ’A
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 i
s
 a

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

n
o

t 
a

 t
o

k
e
n

 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

th
e
re

 t
o

 
ru

b
b

e
r 

s
ta

m
p

 t
h

e
 h

e
a
d
 t

e
a

c
h

e
r’
s
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

. 
U

n
le

s
s
 i
t 
a

c
ts

 a
s
 a

n
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 b

o
d

y
, 

u
n

le
s
s
 

it
 a

c
ts

 f
a

ir
ly

 a
n

d
 u

n
le

s
s
 i
t 

a
p

p
e

a
rs

 t
o
 a

c
t 
fa

ir
ly

, 
it
 s

e
rv

e
s
 n

o
 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

 w
h

a
ts

o
e

v
e

r’
 

Page 155



- 
5

2
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
k
e

y
 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

 
 

F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

, 
it
 

is
 

e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
th

a
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 

d
o
e

s
 

n
o

t 
m

e
a
n
 

p
u

p
ils

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 
b
e

 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 
w

h
it
e
 
p

a
p

e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e

s
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

to
 

m
a

k
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
th

ro
u

g
h
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 

to
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
to

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 w

h
ile

 p
u
p

ils
 a

re
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
o
 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

te
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 

6
th

 
d

a
y
 
o

f 
a
n

y
 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

 
N

e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 
to

 
e

n
s
u

re
 

th
is

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
is

 
in

 
p

la
c
e

 
b

y
 

S
e

p
t 

2
0
0

7
 

a
re

 
in

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 
T

h
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 

a
ls

o
 

h
a

v
e

 
to

 
a

g
re

e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 
fo

r 
s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 
fo

r 
“h

a
rd

 
to

 
P

la
c
e

" 
p

u
p

ils
 t

a
k
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ll 
p

u
p

ils
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 
                

Page 156



- 
5

3
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
o

s
te

ls
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
1

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
T

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

th
e

 h
o

s
te

ls
 t
o

 
e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

 
S

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 L
o

o
k
 A

h
e

a
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 A
ld

g
a

te
 h

o
s
te

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
b

e
d

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

s
e
q
u

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
. 

 

K
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 
 

1
. 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 a

n
d

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 L
o
o

k
 A

h
e

a
d

 
lin

k
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 b

id
d

in
g
 r

o
u

n
d

 0
8

 –
 

2
0

1
1

. 
 

2
. 

P
u

b
lic

is
e

 a
im

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 

h
o

s
te

ls
 s

e
c
to

r 
m

o
re

 w
id

e
ly

. 
3

. 
D

is
c
u

s
s
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 b
id

s
 (

if
 n

o
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

s
u

b
m

it
 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
m

 
to

 
th

e
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
ti
o
n

),
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 S
P

C
B

. 
  

 

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
),

 w
it
h

 
L

o
o

k
 A

h
e
a

d
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 (

M
a

rk
 

P
h

ill
ip

p
o

) 

(T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h

is
 

c
o
lu

m
n
 b

e
lo

w
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h

e
 s

ta
g

e
s
/ 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
/ 

c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 c
o
lu

m
n
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 r

o
w

).
  

1
. 

J
u

ly
 

(c
o

m
p

le
te

d
) 

2
. 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

 
3

. 
  

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

R
2

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

ro
v
id

e
n

c
e

 R
o

a
d

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 (
P

R
H

A
) 

H
a

c
k
n

e
y
 R

o
a

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

o
p

e
n

e
d

 u
p

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 d
ir
e

c
t 

lo
c
a

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 b

a
s
e
d

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

In
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 P
R

H
A

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 m
a

k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 D

C
L

G
 t

o
 t

h
is

 
e
ff

e
c
t.
  

 

K
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

M
e

e
t 

w
it
h

 P
R

H
A

 a
n

d
 L

B
T

H
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
, 

to
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 
h

o
w

 t
o

 p
re

s
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
h

e
 C

L
G

. 
 

2
. 

D
ra

ft
 l

e
tt

e
r 

a
n
d

 a
g
re

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 o
u

tl
in

in
g
 

re
q
u

e
s
t.

  
3

. 
S

u
b
m

it
 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

 
 D

ra
ft

 l
e

tt
e

r 
a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

.  

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
),

 w
it
h

 
L

B
T

H
 

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 (

D
a

v
id

 
B

a
k
e

r,
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r)
. 

 
  

1
. 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

 
2

. 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
 

3
. 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
 

  

R
3

 
T

h
a

t 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
K

e
y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
1

. 
S

e
p

t 
 

Page 157



- 
5

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 t
o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 

p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
is

s
u

e
s
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 B

M
E

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

ro
u

n
d

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 h

o
s
te

ls
 l
e

a
d
in

g
 t

o
 a

n
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 b
e

in
g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 B
M

E
 a

c
c
e

s
s
. 

 

1
. 

R
e

v
is

it
 t

h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

 H
o

s
te

l 
a

n
d

 M
o

v
e

 o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n

d
 u

p
d
a

te
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 g
a

in
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
o

s
it
io

n
. 

 
2

. 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

a
n

d
 d

ra
w

 o
n

 w
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

r 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n
e

s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

  
3

. 
D

ra
w

 u
p

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
, 

w
it
h

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
B

M
E

 
g
ro

u
p

s
, 
fo

r 
th

e
 H

o
s
te

ls
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 L
B

T
H

, 
d

ra
w

in
g
 o

n
 

g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

. 
 

W
is

h
a

rt
/ 

C
a

rr
ie

 
K

ilp
a

tr
ic

k
).

  
 

2
. 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
 

3
. 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

R
4

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 H

O
S

T
 t

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

s
 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 m
o

re
 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

c
e

n
tr

e
d
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 a

 
p

e
rs

o
n
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
a

ilo
re

d
 t

o
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
lie

n
ts

. 
  

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

H
o

ld
 

a
 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

e
v
e

n
t 

to
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
 

w
id

e
ly

 
o

n
 

th
e
 

H
O

S
T

 m
o
d

e
l 
 

2
. 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
to

 
p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

a
s
k
 

fo
r 

fe
e
d

b
a

c
k
 

fr
o
m

 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

s
 H

O
S

T
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

. 
 C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 f

o
rm

a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 3

 m
o

n
th

s
 a

ft
e

r 
H

O
S

T
 u

p
 a

n
d

 r
u

n
n

in
g
. 

  

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
),

  
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 
L

B
T

H
 

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 (

D
a

v
id

 
B

a
k
e

r,
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r)
. 

1
. 

J
u

ly
 

(c
o

m
p

le
te

d
) 

2
. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
8

 (
b

a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 N
o

v
 0

7
 

H
O

S
T

 s
ta

rt
 

u
p

).
  

 

R
5

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 p
u
b

lic
ly

 
b

a
c
k
s
 t
h

e
 F

o
y
e

r 
F

e
d
e

ra
ti
o

n
’s

 
c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 p
e

rs
u
a

d
e
 t
h

e
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
W

o
rk

 &
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 

to
 w

a
iv

e
 t

h
e

 1
6

-h
o

u
r 

ru
le

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
fo

y
e

rs
.   

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

D
ra

w
 

u
p

 
a

 
le

tt
e

r 
to

 
th

e
 

D
W

P
, 

fo
r 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
a

t 
N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
C

a
b

in
e

t,
 b

a
c
k
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

m
p
a

ig
n
 

–
 d

ra
ft

 a
tt
a

c
h
e

d
 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
e

n
t.
  

 

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
).

  

1
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

  

Page 158



- 
5

5
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
6

  
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
C

it
iz

e
n

s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 S
h

e
lt
e

r’
s
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 s
c
ra

p
 t
h

e
 S

in
g
le

 
R

o
o

m
 R

e
n

t 
R

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

S
h

a
re

d
 R

o
o
m

 r
a

te
 o

f 
L
H

A
. 

  

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

D
ra

w
 

u
p

 
a

 
le

tt
e

r 
to

 
th

e
 

D
W

P
, 

fo
r 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
a

t 
N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
C

a
b

in
e

t,
 b

a
c
k
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

m
p
a

ig
n
 

- 
d

ra
ft

 a
tt

a
c
h

e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
e

n
t.
  

 

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
),

 

1
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

 

R
7

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
T

e
a

m
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 c
lie

n
ts

 t
o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 e
v
ic

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
a

b
a
n

d
o
n

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
a
t 

th
e

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 e
n

s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 
re

fe
rr

a
l 

a
n

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

, 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

re
 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 c

h
o

ic
e

 
fo

r 
c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
h
o

s
te

ls
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
h

o
s
te

l 
s
ta

ff
 

h
a

v
e

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 p

la
n

s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

c
lie

n
ts

. 
  

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

C
o

lla
te

 a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
h
o

s
te

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 e

v
ic

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
b

a
n

d
o

n
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

2
. 

B
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 i
n

 a
n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
L

o
n
d

o
n
. 

3
. 

S
e

t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 w

it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
  

4
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 p

o
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  
5

. 
T

h
o

u
g
h

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
s
 t

o
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
re

fe
rr

a
l,
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 a

ll 
in

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 a
 h

o
s
te

ls
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
p

u
lli

n
g
 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
a
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 v

is
it
s
. 

 
6

. 
In

c
lu

d
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

O
S

T
 s

o
 

th
a

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 s
o
m

e
 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 o

ff
e

re
d

. 
 

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
),

 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 
L

B
T

H
 

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 (

D
a

v
id

 
B

a
k
e

r,
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r)
. 

1
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

 
2

. 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
 

3
. 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

 
4

. 
J
a

n
u
a

ry
 a

n
d

 
A

p
ri
l 
0

8
 

5
. 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 0

8
. 

 
6

. 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
0

7
  

R
8

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
T

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 h
o

s
te

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 
to

 e
x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
s
e

c
o

n
d

 s
ta

g
e

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

  

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

In
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

is
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
n

 R
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

 a
b
o

v
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

ta
k
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h

e
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

D
a

n
ie

l 
G

ilb
e

rt
 

H
o

u
s
e

 (
P

R
H

A
).

  

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
) 

A
s
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 1

 a
b

o
v
e

. 
 

Page 159



- 
5

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

R
9

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
T

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

lie
n

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 
fo

rc
e
d

 t
o

 
m

o
v
e

 i
n

to
 p

ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 a
re

 a
d

e
q
u

a
te

ly
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

liv
e

 i
n

 p
ri

v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 h

e
lp

 w
it
h

 R
e

n
t 

D
e

p
o

s
it
s
, 

H
o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
L

o
c
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

, 
a
n
d

 i
f 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 

D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
b

e
n
e
fi
t 

s
h

o
rt

fa
lls

. 
  

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

S
e

t 
u
p

 a
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 p

ro
je

c
t 
th

o
u

g
h

 
a

p
p
o

in
ti
n

g
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
o

rk
e

r,
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 s
a
fe

 g
u

a
rd

s
 t
h

a
t 
n

e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
m

o
v
e

s
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 P

R
S

. 
 

2
. 

D
ra

w
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
o

lic
ie

s
, 

b
a

s
e
d

 o
n

 f
e

e
d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
re

n
t 

d
e
p

o
s
it
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
. 

 F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 d

e
ta

ili
n

g
 s

c
e

n
a

ri
o

s
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 

m
o

v
e

 w
o

u
ld

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

th
e

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 s

h
o

rt
 a

n
d

 l
o
n

g
 

te
rm

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 H
B

. 
  

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
),

 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 
L

B
T

H
 

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 (

D
a

v
id

 
B

a
k
e

r,
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r)
. 

1
. 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

(c
o

m
p

le
te

d
).

  
2

. 
J
a

n
u
a

ry
 0

8
. 

 

R
1

0
 

T
h
a

t 
th

e
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
T

e
a

m
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 f
lo

a
ti
n

g
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 c
lie

n
ts

 
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 h
o

s
te

ls
 t

o
 p

ri
v
a

te
 

te
n

a
n

c
ie

s
. 

  

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 

1
. 

  
P

ro
p

o
s
e

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

R
S

 b
y
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 F

lo
a

ti
n

g
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 p

e
o
p

le
 m

o
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 h
o

s
te

ls
 t
o

 t
h
e

 P
R

S
 

2
. 

  
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 f

o
rm

a
l 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 h

o
s
te

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d

 
re

n
t 

d
e

p
o

s
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 
3

. 
F

e
e

d
 t
h

is
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
F

lo
a

ti
n

g
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

d
u

e
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

 i
n

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r)

. 
 

 

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
).

 

1
. 

J
u

ly
 

(C
o

m
p

le
te

d
) 

 
2

. 
J
u

ly
 

(C
o

m
p

le
te

d
) 

 
3

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

(C
o

m
p

le
te

d
).

  

 

R
1

1
 

T
h
a

t 
th

e
 L

iv
in

g
 W

e
ll 

C
P

A
G

 
re

v
ie

w
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n
 t

o
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
 

th
e

 H
H

E
L
P

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

C
o

lla
te

 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 H
o

s
te

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
n
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

H
H

E
L

P
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
ta

il 
a

n
y
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 f
e

e
d

 i
n

to
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t.
  

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
).

 

1
. 

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
 

2
. 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

 
3

. 
J
a

n
u
a

ry
. 

 

Page 160



- 
5

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

 
 

h
o

s
te

ls
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 e
x
a

m
in

e
s
 

th
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
it
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

re
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 r
e

a
c
h

in
g
 

h
o

s
te

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

rm
o

re
 t
h

e
 

L
iv

in
g
 W

e
ll 

C
P

A
G

 c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 h
o

w
 

th
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

a
n

 b
e

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 

a
b

o
u

t 
im

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
  

 

2
. 

D
is

c
u

s
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 E
L

M
H

C
T

. 
3
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v
e

, 
p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 f

in
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

L
iv

in
g
 

W
e
ll 

C
P

A
G

 t
h
a

t 
m

a
p

s
 o

u
t 
a

 w
a

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

lo
re

s
 

a
n

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
 

  

R
1

2
 

T
h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 e
x
a

m
in

e
 

th
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
ts

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 D
ru

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

e
a

m
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 
h

a
s
 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

a
te

lli
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
h

o
s
te

ls
. 

  

K
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
: 

1
. 

  
T

o
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 D
A

T
, 

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

D
A

T
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
h

o
s
te

ls
. 

  
2

. 
T

o
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

A
T

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
h
o

s
te

ls
, 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n

y
 

lo
c
a

l 
g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 a
n

y
 g

a
p

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
ra

n
g
e

 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 
e

it
h

e
r 

H
o

s
te

ls
 o

r 
D

A
T

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
a

n
y
 g

a
p

s
 o

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
. 
  

3
. 

D
ra

w
 t

h
e

 f
e

e
d
b

a
c
k
 a

n
d

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
te

p
s
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
in

to
 a

 f
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
, 

w
it
h

 a
 s

e
t 
o
f 

k
e

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
A

T
 a

n
d

 S
P

C
B

. 
  

4
. 

D
is

c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

 s
m

a
ll 

d
ru

g
s
 a

n
d

 h
o

s
te

l 
h

a
lf
 d

a
y
 c

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

, 
e
n

d
o

rs
e
d

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 j
o
in

tl
y
 b

y
 

th
e

 D
A

T
 a

n
d

 S
P

 (
w

ill
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

lit
ie

s
),

 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 

h
o

s
te

ls
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 w
o

rk
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 

S
P

T
M

 (
P

a
u

l 
W

is
h

a
rt

/ 
C

a
rr

ie
 

K
ilp

a
tr

ic
k
).

  

1
. 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
 

2
. 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

3
. 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 0

8
  

4
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

0
7

  

Page 161



- 
5

8
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

D
a

te
 

a
b

o
v
e

. 
 

 

  A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
: 

 
 S

P
  

 
=

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o
p

le
  

S
P

T
M

  
=

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o
p

le
 T

e
a

m
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
 

C
L

G
  

 
=

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 L
o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
(p

a
y
 S

P
 G

ra
n

t 
to

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

w
h

ic
h

  
 

 
  

 S
P

 o
p
e

ra
te

s
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
).

  
 

S
P

C
B

  
=

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o
p

le
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
d

y
 (

S
P

C
B

),
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 g

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 f
o

rm
a

l 
 

 
 

  
  

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

P
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 L
B

T
H

. 
 I

t 
is

 c
h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 J

o
h
n

 G
o

ld
u

p
. 
  

P
R

H
A

  
=

 P
ro

v
id

e
n

c
e

 R
o

w
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

. 
 

P
R

S
  

 
=

 P
ri
v
a

te
 R

e
n

te
d

 S
e

c
to

r 
 

E
L

M
H

C
T

 
=

 E
a

s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 

 
             

Page 162



- 
5

9
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

0
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

a
re

 
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

R
1

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
x
p

lo
re

 t
h
e

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
m

e
ri
t 

o
f 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 
n

e
w

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

-w
id

e
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r’
s
 f
o

ru
m

. 
T

h
e

 
W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 w

o
u

ld
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

th
a

t 
a

n
y
 n

e
w

 f
o

ru
m

 s
h
o

u
ld

 s
e

e
 

a
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
, 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

, 
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 
B

o
d

ie
s
. 
 F

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

is
 

fo
ru

m
 m

ig
h

t 
in

c
lu

d
e
; 

in
te

ra
lia

, 
  

•
 

U
s
e

r 
te

s
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
  

•
 

U
s
e

r 
te

s
t 

a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
  

•
 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

a
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 s
e

t 
o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
  

•
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

ll 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

w
it
h

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 i
n

 a
n
 e

ff
o

rt
 

to
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

n
d
 m

in
im

is
e

 t
h
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

w
it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t.
  
T

h
is

 
w

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 m
o

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 

T
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 t

h
e

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
m

e
ri
t 

o
f 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

-w
id

e
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 f
o

ru
m

. 
 I

n
 

d
o

in
g
 t

h
is

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 r

o
le

 
o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 w

it
h

 
te

n
a
n

ts
 a

n
d
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
n

d
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
th

o
s
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
o
n

 t
o

 b
o

th
 

te
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 e
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
o

s
e

 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 t
o

 l
e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 e

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
, 

le
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 e

tc
. 

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 
o
f 

th
e

 l
e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

th
e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

-w
id

e
 C

o
m

p
a

c
t 

G
ro

u
p
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

th
e

 R
e

s
id

e
n

t 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

w
h

e
re

 
re

c
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 
te

n
a
n

ts
 a

n
d
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 o
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 e
s
ta

te
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
. 

 T
h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 t
a
k
e

 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

H
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 

                          

T
h

re
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

f 
te

n
a
n

ts
 a

n
d
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 l
o
o

k
 

a
t:

  
R

e
p

a
ir
s
 a

n
d

 I
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t;

 
R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.
  
T

h
e

 
g
ro

u
p

 a
d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
m

e
th

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 
fu

tu
re

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
s
e

p
a
ra

te
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
. 

 T
w

o
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 o
f 

T
H

H
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 a
 d

ir
e

c
t 
in

p
u

t 
in

to
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 w

h
e

n
 T

H
H

 
g
o

e
s
 l
iv

e
. 

 A
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
fo

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t
o

 i
n

it
ia

lly
 l
o

o
k
 

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

c
h

a
rg

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

Page 163



- 
6

0
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
a

c
tu

a
l 
b

ill
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
y
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 

b
lo

c
k
 m

a
y
 b

e
 p

a
y
in

g
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
c
h

a
rg

e
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
a

n
d

 C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

b
o

a
rd

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 T

e
n

a
n

t 
C

o
m

p
a

c
t.

 
 It

 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
a

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

re
g
is

te
r 

is
 h

e
ld

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

o
s
e
 

is
s
u

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
e

q
u

a
lly

 a
ff

e
c
t 

b
o

th
 t
e

n
a
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
. 

 

        
 

 A
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 
b

e
e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
o

 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
th

e
 c

a
re

ta
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

fu
tu

re
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
. 

 T
H

L
A

 h
a

v
e

 
a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 t
h

is
 g

ro
u
p

. 
 A

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
re

s
id

e
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

 i
s
 

lo
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 A
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

r 
to

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
n

 e
d

it
o

ri
a

l 
p

a
n
e

l 
o
f 

le
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 i
s
 

p
la

n
n
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 h
o

m
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t
e

a
m

 
h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n

tl
y
 b

e
e
n

 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 a

n
d

 a
 p

o
s
t 

o
f 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
c
re

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
is

 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t.
  

T
h

is
 p

o
s
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

s
p
o
n

s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
p

ro
fi
le

, 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 

Page 164



- 
6

1
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

s
e

tt
in

g
 u

p
 

th
e
m

e
d
 f

o
c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
. 

 A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fo

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 ‘
R

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 

B
a

c
k
’ 
a

 n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r 
is

s
u
e

d
 t
o

 
th

o
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 R
e

s
id

e
n

t 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

g
is

te
r.

 
 

R
2

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 d
e

liv
e

r 
g
re

a
te

r 
tr

a
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

d
e

lib
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
D

u
e

 R
e

g
a

rd
 P

a
n

e
ls

 (
fo

r 
M

a
jo

r 
W

o
rk

s
) 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 g

iv
in

g
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 p

re
s
e

n
t 

th
e

ir
 

c
a

s
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

p
a

n
e

l,
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 f

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 t

o
 

lo
c
a

l 
le

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 o
n
 t
h

e
 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

it
s
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
. 

T
h
e

 D
u

e
 R

e
g
a

rd
 P

a
n

e
ls

 a
re

 a
n

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 
a

re
a

 o
f 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
e
n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

 f
o

ru
m

 w
h

e
re

 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 v

ie
w

s
 o

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 o

n
 a

n
y
 

m
a

jo
r 

w
o

rk
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
c
a

n
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
. 

 T
h

is
 a

re
a

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 m

a
d

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
b

y
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 

th
e

 d
u

e
 r

e
g
a

rd
 p

a
n

e
ls

, 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 h

o
w

 
d

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
r 

w
o

rk
s
 p

a
c
k
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
e

n
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

s
 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
R

e
p

a
ir
 a

n
d

 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
P

a
n
e

l 
is

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 m
a

jo
r 

w
o

rk
s
 

Page 165



- 
6

2
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

, 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
m

a
k
in

g
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 

a
n

d
 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
s
 t

o
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
u

e
 r

e
g
a

rd
 p

a
n

e
ls

. 
 W

h
e
re

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 e
x
is

ts
 

o
b

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
a

k
in

g
 

ri
g
h

ts
 t

o
 a

 P
a

n
e

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

ill
 

n
o

rm
a

lly
 b

e
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
. 

R
3

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

k
e

y
 l
e

s
s
e

e
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

s
e
e

k
in

g
 

m
a

x
im

u
m

 e
s
ta

te
 c

o
v
e

ra
g
e

, 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 t
h

e
 o

n
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

C
it
y
 W

e
s
t 

H
o

m
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 k

e
e

n
 t
o

 e
x
p

lo
re

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
a

y
s
 o

f 
e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 i
n

 
a

ll 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h

is
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
it
h

 C
it
y
 W

e
s
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

g
a

in
 a

 b
e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

le
s
s
e

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
, 

th
e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
is

, 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
. 

 T
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h
e

 
e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
is

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 l
in

k
e

d
 

to
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 R

e
s
id

e
n
t 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

g
is

te
r.

 
 It

 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

 b
y
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7
. 

  
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
  

T
h

is
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
w

it
h

 C
it
y
 

W
e
s
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
p
o

rt
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 o
v
e

rs
e

e
 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

o
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 a
 

k
e

y
 l
e

s
s
e

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

re
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
w

it
h

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

G
e

tt
in

g
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

d
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

b
e

in
g
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

. 
 

A
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 W
e
s
tm

in
s
te

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

Page 166



- 
6

3
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

w
it
h

 p
re

lim
in

a
ry

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

o
n

 b
lo

c
k
 r

e
p
a

ir
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

ra
is

e
 a

n
y
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 b

e
fo

re
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
is

s
u

e
. 

 T
h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

 i
n

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 
s
e

t 
u
p

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

te
n

a
n

ts
, 
to

 a
g
re

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 o
f 

a
 

k
e

y
 l
e

s
s
e

e
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 t

o
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
 m

o
d
e

ls
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
, 

e
x
te

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e

 
W

e
s
tm

in
s
te

r 
m

o
d

e
l.
  

E
x
a

m
p

le
s
 g

iv
e

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
. 

 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
, 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

re
 p

la
n
n

e
d
. 

R
4

 
T

h
e

 k
e

y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
t 

a
 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l,
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 c

le
a
n

in
g
, 

n
e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 g

re
a

te
r 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n
t 
q
u

a
lit

y
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

le
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 i
n

 
e

s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 W
o
rk

in
g
 

G
ro

u
p

 b
e

lie
v
e

s
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 l
e

s
s
e

e
 

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
e

s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t.
  
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
w

h
o

 
a

tt
e
n

d
s
 e

s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

w
h

a
t 

is
 l
o
o

k
e

d
 

a
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

e
s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
, 

w
h

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 f

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 w
o

rk
. 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
 

A
n

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

to
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
c
a

re
ta

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 
e

s
ta

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 L
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

e
s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

Page 167



- 
6

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

s
y
s
te

m
 w

o
u

ld
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
. 

  
R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 E
s
ta

te
 

In
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

L
H

O
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e
tu

rn
s
. 

 
 T

h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

re
g
is

te
r 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 
a

n
d

 m
a
d

e
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

e
n

h
a

n
c
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
. 

 T
h
e

 e
s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t,

 t
h

is
 i
s
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

  
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 g
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

c
a

re
ta

k
in

g
/c

le
a
n

in
g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
; 

h
o

rt
ic

u
lt
u

re
; 
c
o
m

m
u

n
a

l 
re

p
a

ir
s
. 

 E
s
ta

te
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 u

s
in

g
 

m
o

b
ile

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

is
s
u

e
d

 o
n

 s
it
e
. 

 A
 r

e
la

u
n

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 e
s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 f
o

r 
la

te
r 

in
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
is

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

 
th

is
 r

e
la

u
n

c
h

. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

p
 t
o

 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

e
s
ta

te
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

le
a

n
in

g
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
re

p
a

ir
s
, 

b
u

lk
 

ru
b

b
is

h
 e

tc
. 

 S
c
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 p

ilo
t 
o
f 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 

is
 

s
c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 f
o

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
 R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

G
ro

u
p

. 
 T

h
e

 e
s
ta

te
 I

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

. 
 

In
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
d
u

le
s
 a

n
d

 a
 

n
e

w
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 a

re
 s

c
h
e

d
u

le
d

 
fo

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
t 

th
e

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0
8

 R
e

s
id

e
n

t 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

G
ro

u
p

. 
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
/r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d

 f
o

r 
M

a
rc

h
. 

 

Page 168



- 
6

5
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

E
s
ta

te
 I

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 
b

e
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

K
e

y
 L

e
s
s
e

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 (

R
3

).
 

R
5

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o
n

d
u
c
t 

a
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
it
s
 l
e
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 
p

a
c
k
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 p

e
n
e

tr
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

T
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
in

g
 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 

a
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

le
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
te

n
a
n

ts
. 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 d
ra

w
n

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
re

g
is

te
r 

b
e

 a
s
k
e
d

 t
o

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

to
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
  

a
n

d
 t

a
k
e

 a
n

 
a

c
ti
v
e

 r
o

le
 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 
re

v
ie

w
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
     

A
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 f
o

c
u

s
 g

ro
u
p

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
o

 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
. 

 T
h
e

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 g

u
id

e
 i
s
 t

o
 

b
e

 u
p

d
a
te

d
, 

re
p

ri
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 

re
is

s
u

e
d

 t
o

 l
e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

. 
 A

 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r 
is

 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n
 e

d
it
o

ri
a

l 
p

a
n
e

l.
 

 A
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 s
c
o

p
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 f
o

c
u

s
 g

ro
u
p

.  
R

6
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 m

u
s
t 

p
u

b
lis

h
 t
h

e
 

“a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

ti
m

e
” 

d
a

ta
 

th
a

t 
in

fo
rm

e
d
 t

h
e

 H
o

u
s
e

m
a

rk
 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
. 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

, 
in

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

, 
a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o
c
u

s
e

d
 

T
h
e

 a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e
 d

a
ta

 t
h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

 b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

la
c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 

d
o

m
a

in
. 
 T

h
e
 a

p
p

o
rt

io
n

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

ti
m

e
 d

a
ta

 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 a

n
d

 r
o

u
ti
n

e
ly

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 

fr
o
m

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

w
a

y
 o

f 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
 

T
h
e

 t
im

e
 a

p
p
o

rt
io

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
0

7
/0

8
 t
o

 
in

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

 
d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 a
s
 i
t 
re

la
te

s
 t

o
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
. 

Page 169



- 
6

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

o
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

tr
a

n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
 

ro
u

ti
n

e
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

n
 t
h

is
. 

T
h
e

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 w
ill

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 w

h
e

re
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 d
a

ta
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
. 

 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

b
e

in
g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
w

it
h

 T
H

L
A

 
in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

a
p
p

o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
a

re
ta

k
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 t
im

e
 a

p
p
o

rt
io

n
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 W

e
s
tm

in
s
te

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

. 
 T

h
e

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
 

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 i
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

c
h

a
rg

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
n

te
n
t,

 
h

o
w

 m
u

c
h

 e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o
n

 o
r 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
, 

in
 

w
h

a
t 

fo
rm

a
t,

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 h

o
w

 
e

a
s
y
 i
t 

is
 t

o
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

.  
R

7
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
e
n

d
 a

ll 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 –

 a
n
d

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 –
 

th
e

 c
a

re
ta

k
in

g
 s

c
h
e

d
u

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 b

lo
c
k
, 
d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
h
o

rt
ic

u
lt
u

ra
l 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a

n
d

 
c
la

ri
fy

 w
h

ic
h

 o
th

e
r 

b
lo

c
k
s
 a

re
 

M
a

n
y
 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 w

ill
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

c
o

p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
a

re
ta

k
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 b

lo
c
k
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
w

e
 w

ill
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

x
te

n
d

 
th

is
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

c
o

v
e

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
rt

ic
u

lt
u

re
 

a
n

d
 m

a
p

 s
it
e
 a

re
a

s
. 

 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
8

 
 

N
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

b
e

in
g
 e

re
c
te

d
 o

n
 a

ll 
e

s
ta

te
s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
c
a

re
ta

k
in

g
 s

c
h
e

d
u

le
s
 a

n
d

 
e

s
ta

te
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
h
e

 c
a

re
ta

k
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 

Page 170



- 
6

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

te
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

. 
 T

h
e

 W
o
rk

in
g
 

G
ro

u
p

 w
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

fu
ll 

d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

s
 

c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 b
lo

c
k
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 
‘A

c
tu

a
l’.

 

W
e
 w

ill
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
a

ll 
o
ff

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
n
 

th
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

/T
o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 H

o
m

e
s
 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

r.
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 d
e
ta

il 
o
f 

th
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 r
e
g
a

rd
in

g
 b

lo
c
k
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
n
d

 e
x
p

lo
re

  
th

e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

is
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
  

w
it
h

 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
b

ill
s
. 

  

n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 a

re
 t

o
 

b
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
v
is

e
d

 w
o

rk
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

s
; 

a
n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n

in
g
. 

 
T

h
e

s
e

 n
e

w
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

ill
 

b
e

 a
c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 b
y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 o

n
 

th
e

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

a
n

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 b

lo
c
k
 n

o
ti
c
e
 b

o
a
rd

s
. 

 A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

lo
c
k
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 m
a

k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 

c
h

a
rg

e
 a

re
 p

o
s
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t
o

 e
a

s
ily

 s
e

e
 t
h

e
 

m
a

k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
. 

 I
n

 t
h
e

 
in

te
ri
m

 h
a

rd
 c

o
p

ie
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
h

e
n

 q
u

e
ri
e

s
 a

re
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
. 

 
R

8
 

T
h
e

 W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 

th
e

 s
te

p
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
o

p
e

n
 d

a
y
s
. 

 

T
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g
 i
ts

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
o

p
e

n
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 
a

re
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

is
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 

3
1

.0
3

.0
8

 
 

T
h
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

fo
r 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 o

n
 

Page 171



- 
6

8
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

T
h
e

s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 a
n

d
 e

m
b

e
d
d

e
d

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t.
  

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
c
tu

a
l 
b

ill
s
. 

 A
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

O
p

e
n

 D
a

y
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 w
ill

 
b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
. 

 S
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

n
 l
e
a

s
e
h

o
ld

 
is

s
u

e
s
 n

o
w

 f
o

rm
 a

 c
o

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

la
n

. 
  

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
is

s
u
e

s
. 

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

o
m

e
 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

re
 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 
e

n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
le

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

o
p

e
n

 d
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

tt
e
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

in
 H

o
m

e
 O

w
n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

ff
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
m

o
s
t 

q
u

e
ri
e

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

. 
 

T
h
o

s
e

 l
e
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
tt
e

n
d

in
g
 

th
e

 o
p

e
n

 d
a

y
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t
o

 j
o

in
 t
h

e
 G

IR
. 

 
T

h
e

s
e

 e
v
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

u
b

lic
is

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 E
E

L
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 M

a
tt

e
rs

, 
b

lo
c
k
 n

o
ti
c
e
 

b
o

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 l
e

tt
e

rs
. 

R
9

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 e

m
b

e
d

s
 f

u
lly

 
a

ll 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

, 
in

 b
o

th
 

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 
re

c
e

n
t 
m

o
n

th
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 c

o
re

 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
. 

 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 

3
1

.0
3

.0
8

 
  

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
p

ro
m

is
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

a
re

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 s

ta
ff

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

re
 t

ra
in

in
g
. 

 

Page 172



- 
6

9
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 c
u

lt
u

re
. 

A
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a
re

 e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

fr
o
n

t 
lin

e
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

ta
k
e

rs
, 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
s
ta

ff
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 e

a
c
h

 a
re

a
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

m
e

e
ts

 t
h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

is
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d
 i
n

 a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
m

is
e
. 

 T
h
e

 m
o

v
e

 t
o

 
c
o

n
s
o

lid
a
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 
th

is
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
ly

 c
re

a
te

d
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

a
n

d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
te

a
m

 i
n

 
H

o
m

e
 O

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 b
e

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

d
ri
v
in

g
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

re
. 

 S
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 
fr

e
q
u

e
n

tl
y
 a

s
k
e

d
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

a
d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 b

ill
in

g
 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
, 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

p
e

e
d

 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

. 

R
1

0
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 c

le
a

r 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h
a

t 
a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 l
a

c
k
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 
in

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
D

is
p

u
te

 R
e

s
o

lu
ti
o
n

 (
A

D
R

) 
s
c
h

e
m

e
’s

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 
fa

ir
n

e
s
s
. 

 T
h

e
 W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 

b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h

a
t 
3

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 
C

a
b

in
e

t,
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
w

it
h

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
: 

T
h
e

 t
h

re
e

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 p

u
t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 w

ill
 b

e
 

e
v
a

lu
a

te
d

 a
n
d

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t.
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 t
o

 e
x
p

lo
re

 h
o

w
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

c
h
e

m
e
 c

le
a

re
r,

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o

re
 s

tr
e
a
m

lin
e

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 

fo
r 

s
ta

g
e

 1
 a

n
d

 2
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 A

D
R

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

m
e

c
h
a

n
is

m
s
 t

o
 r

e
p

la
c
e

 t
h
e

 s
ta

g
e

 3
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

D
R

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 

T
H

L
A

. 
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 d
a

te
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ts

 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 d

e
s
ir
e
 t

o
 

re
ta

in
 a

 D
is

p
u

te
 R

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 b

u
t 
th

a
t 

s
o
m

e
 

re
v
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 n

e
e
d

e
d

. 
 T

H
L

A
 

a
re

 s
e

e
k
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
y
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 a

t 
a

rm
s
 

le
n

g
th

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

Page 173



- 
7

0
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

i.
 

R
e

la
u

n
c
h
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

A
D

R
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

o
u

ld
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 

b
e

 c
le

a
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 

h
a

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e
d

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
c
le

a
re

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
tr

a
n

s
p

a
re

n
t 
A

D
R

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
; 

- 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 A

D
R

 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

p
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
c
le

a
rl
y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
, 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 e

a
c
h

 o
n
e

 i
s
 

m
o

s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

 
- 

C
le

a
re

r 
g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h
e

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h

ts
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
b
o

th
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

  
ii.

 
D

is
b

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 A

D
R

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 
m

a
k
e
 a

ll 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 g
o
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
. 
 I
f 

th
is

 
o

p
ti
o
n

 w
a

s
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

a
n

 o
p

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
rb

it
ra

ti
o

n
/ 

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 
p

la
c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
ta

g
e

 t
w

o
 a

n
d

 
th

re
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
. 

 
iii

. 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
w

 A
D

R
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

 In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

d
o

e
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
s
u

g
g
e

s
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
s
c
h
e

m
e

 a
re

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 
th

a
t 

it
: 

 
- 

is
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 d

is
p

u
te

 a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 

- 
o
ff

e
rs

 a
 t

h
re

e
 s

ta
g
e

 r
e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

- 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

in
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
ro

u
te

s
 f
o

r 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
h

a
rt

e
re

d
 I
n

s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
A

rb
it
ra

to
rs

. 
 It

 A
n

y
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 o

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
d
 b

y
 c

le
a

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 r
o

le
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

  

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h

:-
 

 - 
L

e
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 
G

e
tt

in
g
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

d
 R

e
g
is

te
r.

 
 

- 
R

S
L

 F
o

ru
m

 
- 

D
C

L
G

 
- 

L
a

w
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

 A
 p

ro
je

c
t 
P

la
n
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 T

H
L
A

 i
n

 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
. 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

a
re

 b
e

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

d
 w

it
h

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 S

u
b
 G

ro
u
p

 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
la

n
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 i
n

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0
8

. 
  

Page 174



- 
7

1
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

re
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
in

d
u

s
tr

y
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
R

1
1
 

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

re
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 A

D
R

 s
c
h

e
m

e
, 
th

e
 

u
s
e

 o
f 

a
 L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
V

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 

T
ri
b

u
n

a
l 
a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 P

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
le

a
r.

 A
s
 a

 m
a

tt
e

r 
o
f 

u
rg

e
n

c
y
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

, 
in

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

c
le

a
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 t
o
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 o

n
 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

It
 i
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

c
la

ri
ty

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

ro
u

te
s
, 

a
n

d
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 l
in

k
e
d

 t
o
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 1

0
. 

 C
le

a
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
. 

   

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
T

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

D
R

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

ro
u

te
s
 t
o

 
p

ro
b

le
m

 r
e

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
. 

 A
n

y
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

ill
 

s
e

e
k
 t
o

 s
im

p
lif

y
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

le
a

r 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

. 
 T

h
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

e
a
m

 
w

it
h

in
 h

o
m

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 
a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

s
s
is

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
re

s
o

lv
in

g
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

c
h

a
n
n

e
ls

. 
R

1
2
 

T
h
e

 W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 w

o
u

ld
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
o
p

t 
a
 

m
o

d
e

l 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
: 
 

•
 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
te

a
m

 
b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e

n
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
p

a
tc

h
e

s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
o

re
 

c
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

  

•
 

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 L
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

O
ff

ic
e

, 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 

T
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 e
x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
. 

  
T

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

s
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
c
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
 

re
c
o

n
fi
g
u

ra
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o

u
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 c

o
n

c
e
n
tr

a
te

s
 o

n
 

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a
ti
n

g
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 
re

c
o

n
fi
g
u

ra
ti
o

n
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
w

h
a

t 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 e

le
m

e
n

t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
T

h
e

 r
e

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

o
m

e
 

O
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 h

a
s
 

e
n

a
b

le
d

 p
a

tc
h

 b
a

s
e

d
 t
e

a
m

s
 

to
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
b
o

th
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 t

e
a
m

s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e

 
p

a
tc

h
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
lig

n
e

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 
n

a
m

e
d

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t
o

 b
e

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

g
iv

e
n

 

Page 175



- 
7

2
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 

•
 

M
o

re
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
. 
  

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 s
e

c
o

n
d
 s

ta
g
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 f
u

tu
re

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

h
o

m
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

b
e

in
g
 r

e
a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d
  
a

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

e
a

m
  
w

it
h

 a
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
fo

c
u

s
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
  

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

 T
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

to
 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
n
s
w

e
r 

a
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

q
u

e
ri
e

s
 o

n
 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
a

lly
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

s
 

w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 m

o
v
e

 t
o

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

o
-l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
n

e
 s

to
p

 
s
h

o
p

s
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 a

 b
ro

a
d

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 

to
 b

e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 

p
o

in
t 
o
f 

a
c
c
e

s
s
. 

g
e

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 l
ia

is
o

n
 

a
n

d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

R
1

3
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

w
it
h

 C
it
iz

e
n

s
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u

 (
C

A
B

) 
s
o

 t
h
a

t 
it
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
d

e
a

ls
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 w
it
h

 m
a
n

a
g
in

g
 t

h
e

 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
is

s
u
e

s
 f
a

c
e

d
 b

y
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

w
it
h

 t
h
e

 C
it
iz

e
n

s
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u

 d
o

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

w
it
h

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 f
a

c
e

d
 b

y
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
re

n
e

w
a

l 
n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
 r

e
-t

e
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
w

it
h

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

, 
v
a

lu
e

 
fo

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
A

n
 i
n

it
ia

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

A
B

 o
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
 A

n
 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

A
B

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 d
a

te
. 

 T
h
e

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

Page 176



- 
7

3
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

b
e

in
g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 

a
n

d
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 S

L
A

s
 f

ro
m

 
o

th
e

r 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
. 

 A
 s

a
m

p
le

 s
u

rv
e

y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 w
it
h

 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 
w

h
o

 u
s
e

 t
h
e

 C
A

B
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 
a

s
c
e

rt
a

in
 c

o
s
t 
b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o

r 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 
 

R
1

4
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 m
e

e
t 
w

it
h

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

C
re

d
it
 U

n
io

n
 t
o

 e
x
p

lo
re

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 l
o

a
n
s
. 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

w
it
h

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

re
d

it
 U

n
io

n
 

to
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 c
re

d
it
 u

n
io

n
 

c
a

n
 o

ff
e

r 
in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 t
o
 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 a
d

v
ic

e
 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
e
n
c
e

 t
o

 l
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

. 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 C
re

d
it
 

U
n

io
n

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 f
o

r 
b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
  

R
1

5
  

H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

le
a

r 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 l
e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 o

n
 

th
e

 l
a

w
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g
 s

ta
tu

te
 

b
a

rr
e

d
 d

e
b

t.
  

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 s
ta

tu
te

 
b

a
rr

e
d

 d
e

b
t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 s

h
o

rt
 

te
rm

 i
s
s
u
e

 a
s
 o

ld
 d

is
p

u
te

s
 a

re
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h

ic
h

 a
n
y
 d

e
b

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 

s
ta

tu
te

 b
a

rr
e

d
 i
s
 d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 d
a
te

 
th

e
 d

e
b
t 

w
a

s
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
, 
th

e
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
D

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

d
e

b
t 
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

re
v
e

n
u

e
s
 t

e
a
m

. 
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 

Page 177



- 
7

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

d
e

b
t,
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 d
a

te
s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 a
le

rt
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
m

in
d

e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
b
t.

 
 T

h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
o

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 i
n

 
re

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

a
rr

e
a

rs
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u
e

 
ra

is
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
. 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 l
e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

rs
. 

  

R
1

6
  

  
C

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

s
 h

o
w

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

d
e

a
ls

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 
 I

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 ,

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 i
n
v
e

s
t 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
s
o

 t
h
a

t 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

is
 c

le
a

r,
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 T
h

is
 

is
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

in
 

e
x
p

la
in

in
g
 t

h
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
w

a
y
 t

h
a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 w

h
e

re
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

ra
is

e
d

. 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
s
 t
e

a
m

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

it
h

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

c
h

a
n
n

e
ls

 a
n

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

fu
tu

re
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 p

ro
p
e

rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
, 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
, 

c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

c
is

e
. 

 
  

B
y
 e

a
rl
y
 

A
u

tu
m

n
 2

0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

e
a
m

 e
n

a
b

le
s
 

c
le

a
re

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
. 

 T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
fo

c
u

s
 g

ro
u
p

s
 a

re
 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 k

e
y
 

is
s
u

e
s
 f

o
r 

le
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 b
e

 b
e

s
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

. 
 T

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

g
u

id
e

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 r

e
a

d
e

rs
 p

a
n

e
l 
is

 a
im

e
d
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

R
1

7
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

n
e
e

d
s
 t
o

 e
x
p

lo
re

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

h
o

w
 i
t 

c
a

n
 g

e
t 

c
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 

 F
o

r 
fr

o
n

t-
lin

e
 h

ig
h

 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 f

ro
n
t 

lin
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

ill
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f
o

r 
L
o

c
a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
, 

th
e

 r
e
v
is

e
d

 
c
a

re
ta

k
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

Page 178



- 
7

5
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

v
o

lu
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

it
 w

o
u

ld
 s

e
e
m

 
b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
to

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g
 

c
o

n
n
e

c
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
. 

 T
h

is
 

s
e

e
m

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 g
re

a
te

s
t 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 b
u

ild
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

a
s
e
d

 
a

ro
u

n
d

 b
o

th
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

. 
 

fr
o
n

t 
lin

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 O
n

e
 

S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 c

a
ll 

c
e

n
tr

e
. 

B
y
 0

1
.0

4
.0

8
 

It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 c
a

n
 b

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
fr

o
m

 h
a

v
in

g
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
w

h
a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

ta
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 
A

S
B

. 
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 w

h
e

re
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

 
is

 n
o

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 
te

a
m

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 p
a

tc
h
 b

a
s
e

d
 

to
 g

iv
e

 g
e

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
a

lig
n

m
e

n
t.
 

re
v
is

e
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

H
o

m
e

 O
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

 
a

ll 
a

im
e
d

 a
t 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
in

g
 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

R
1

8
 

T
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

P
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
s
 a

 c
ru

c
ia

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
p

ro
m

is
e

. 
 T

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

it
s
 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 o

r 
n

o
n

-s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 

m
a

y
 u

s
e

 i
s
 c

le
a

r 
to

 b
o

th
 s

ta
ff

 
a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

. 

L
e

a
fl
e

ts
 o

n
 t
h

e
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
. 

 T
h
e

 l
e

a
fl
e

t 
a

n
d
 

p
u

b
lic

it
y
 o

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
, 

c
le

a
rl
y
 

s
ta

te
s
 t
h

is
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

re
p

la
c
e

 a
n

y
 

fo
rm

a
l 
a

p
p

e
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 l
e
a
fl
e

t 
a

n
d

 
a

c
c
o

m
p

a
n

y
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 

to
 c

h
e

c
k
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
la

ri
ty

. 
 

T
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t

e
a

m
 p

a
s
s
e

s
 

o
n

 a
n

y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

th
a

t 
h

a
s
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 
b

y
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

p
e

rs
o

n
/t
e

a
m

. 
 R

e
g
u

la
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 o

n
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
A

n
y
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

lin
k
a

g
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
d

is
p

u
te

 r
e

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
p

u
te

 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 T
h
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
le

a
fl
e

t 
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
is

p
u

te
 

re
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
fl
e

t 
a

s
 a

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
x
e

m
p

ti
o
n

. 

Page 179



- 
7

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 i
s
 h

e
ld

, 
in

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

re
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

. 
 E

a
c
h
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 h
a

s
 a

 d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
w

h
o

 a
d

v
is

e
s
 s

ta
ff

 o
n
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
/r

e
a

c
h
 o

f 
th

is
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 w
ill

 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

. 
 

R
1

9
 

T
h
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

 i
s
 a

 
v
it
a

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

c
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
E

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 c
le

a
re

r 
m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
s
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 b

o
th

 
th

e
 s

p
ir
it
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

 a
re

 b
e

in
g
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
. 

  

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

re
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 h
ig

h
 

v
o

lu
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
n

ta
c
t 

C
e
n

tr
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 n

e
a

rl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 o

n
 b

e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

c
o

s
ts

 p
e

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

 a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 
ro

b
u

s
t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 r
a

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 j
u

s
t 

s
p

e
e
d

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 V
a

rn
e

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
o

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

P
ro

m
is

e
  
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

ty
p

e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 i
t,

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 m
e

a
n

in
g
fu

l 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

 
fu

tu
re

..
 W

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 l
o
o

k
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
T

h
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

 i
s
 t

o
 

b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

8
 

w
it
h

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 b

e
tt

e
r 

re
fl
e

c
t 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

, 
e

g
 %

 c
a

lls
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
, 
fi
rs

t 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

re
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
, 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

. 
 A

u
to

m
a
te

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 f

o
r 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n

tr
e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e

d
 i
n

 
J
a

n
 0

8
, 

O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

s
 t

o
 

fo
llo

w
 i
n

 F
e

b
 0

8
. 

 E
x
te

rn
a

l 
m

y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o

p
p

in
g
 o

f 
p

h
o
n

e
 c

a
lls

, 
u

s
in

g
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d

 
c
a

lls
, 

in
 p

la
c
e

. 
 

Page 180



- 
7

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 /
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

  
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 d

iv
is

io
n

, 
a

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 

b
e

n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n
d

 b
e

in
g
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

a
lly

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
iv

is
io

n
. 

 
 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 
c
e

n
tr

e
 i
s
 f

u
lly

 
e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

 V
a

rn
e

y
 

tr
a

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

                       

Page 181



- 
7

8
 -

 
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

1
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 R
o

le
 o

f 
W

a
rd

 C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
D

e
fi

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
w

a
rd

 c
o

u
n

c
il
lo

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

R
1

 
A

 j
o

b
 d

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
‘c

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
s
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

’ 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
fo

rm
u

la
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

b
o

th
 c

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 f

o
ru

m
s
, 
c
a
b

in
e

t,
 

o
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 
c
a

s
e

w
o

rk
. 

  

A
 r

o
le

 d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
d

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
T

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
. 
It

 c
o

v
e

rs
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
d
u

ti
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 r

o
le

 a
s
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

, 
o

n
 C

a
b

in
e
t,

 o
n

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 o
n

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
b

o
d

ie
s
. 

 It
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 a
ll 

c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 t

h
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 I

n
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 M
a

y
 

e
le

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
h
e

 J
o
b

 D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o
n

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 w
ill

: 

•
 

A
tt

e
n
d

 L
A

P
 a

n
d
 L

A
P

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 

a
re

 i
n

v
it
e

d
 

•
 

L
e

a
d

 a
n
d

 m
e
d

ia
te

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
ir
 L

A
P

 

•
 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
 t
o

 
m

a
k
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 v

a
lu

e
d

, 
tr

u
s
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
, 

re
c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

fr
o
m

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
. 
E

m
p

o
w

e
ri
n

g
 

o
th

e
rs

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

. 
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 f
o

r 
In

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 M

a
y
 2

0
0

6
 

e
le

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

 S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
n
 t
h

e
 

e
n

a
c
tm

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 H

e
a

lt
h
 A

c
t 

2
0
0

7
, 

a
n

d
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
(i
) 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

C
a

ll 
fo

r 
A

c
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 (

ii)
 P

e
ti
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

a
n

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e
d

 r
o

le
b

o
th

 f
o

r 
w

a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
L

A
P

s
. 
 C

o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
o

b
 

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
lig

h
t 

o
f 

th
is

 o
n

c
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 
(i
n

d
ic

a
ti
v
e

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0

8
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s
).

 

Page 182



- 
7

9
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
R

2
 

T
h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 C
h

a
rt

e
r.

 

T
h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 C

h
a

rt
e

r 
is

 a
g
re

e
d

 
fo

r 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 i
s
 s

e
e

n
 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 a
ll 

re
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 o

r 
s
e

c
to

r 
th

e
y
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
t.

  
T

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 C
h

a
rt

e
r 

fo
r 

c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 m
a

y
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
p

ri
v
ile

g
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 
ru

n
s
 c

o
u
n

te
r 

to
 a

 f
u
n

d
a

m
e
n

ta
l 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

. 
 Im

p
o

rt
a

n
tl
y
, 

th
e

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
a

rt
e

r 
e

c
h

o
 t
h

o
s
e

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 f
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
  

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y
, 

s
k

il
ls

, 
e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 a
n

d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
w

a
rd

 c
o

u
n

c
il

lo
rs

 
 R

3
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

s
k
ill

s
 o

f 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 
th

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
w

a
rd

s
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

n
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
a

c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

, 
p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.
  

 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 L
A

P
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 e

v
e

n
ts

 
in

 J
u

n
e

/J
u

ly
 2

0
0
6

. 
 T

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 w
a

rd
 b

a
s
e
d

 
in

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 w
a

s
  

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

it
h

: 

•
 

A
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
w

it
h

 k
e

y
 w

a
rd

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 S
a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
 T

e
a
m

, 
P

C
T

, 
a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 
s
e

c
to

r,
 p

lu
s
 A

re
a

 D
ir
e

c
to

rs
, 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d

 L
A

P
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

•
 

A
n

 o
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 L

A
P

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

a
n

d
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

•
 

K
e

y
 f

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 d

a
ta

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 w

a
rd

 

•
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
b

o
u
t 

L
A

P
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
; 
a

n
d

 

•
 

A
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
’ 
ro

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
e

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
in

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 n
e

e
d

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 b

th
e

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 L

&
D

 W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

a
n

d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
C

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

. 
  
T

h
e

 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

in
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 r

o
o
f 

w
a

rd
 c

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

. 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
C

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 
a

tt
e
n

d
in

g
 I

D
e

A
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
a

c
a

d
e

m
y
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
a

p
it
a

l 

Page 183



- 
8

0
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
L

A
P

  
 

A
m

b
it
io

n
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
e

c
u

re
d

 f
o

r 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y

fo
r 

b
o

th
 e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 b

a
c
k
b
e

n
c

c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

. 
  

R
4

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

 c
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

e
m

p
h
a

s
is

 o
n

 h
o

w
 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

ir
 r

o
le

 a
t 
L

A
P

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

s
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

 –
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 

 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

r'
s
 e

n
q
u

ir
ie

s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 w

a
rd

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 
n

e
e
d

s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
llr

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
n

e
w

 p
o

w
e

rs
 f

o
r 

w
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
W

h
it
e

 P
a
p

e
r.

  
 

  

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
’ 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
M

e
m

b
e

rs
’ 
E

n
q
u

ir
ie

s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

is
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 a
re

 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 e
n

a
c
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 H

e
a

lt
h
 A

c
t 

2
0
0

7
 

a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 w
a

rd
 c

o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

ro
le

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

C
a

ll 
fo

r 
A

c
ti
o

n
. 

R
5

 
W

a
rd

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 r
e

g
u

la
rl
y
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 i
n

 
a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 f
o

rm
a

t 
to

 e
n
a

b
le

 
th

e
m

 t
o
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

-b
a

s
e

d
 

ju
d

g
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

T
H

IS
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 a
ll.

  
W

a
rd

-b
a

s
e
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 s

e
tt

in
g
 a

 d
a

te
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
’ 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

fo
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

ro
u

n
d
 t

h
is

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

 
 

P
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
w

a
rd

 b
a

s
e
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

e
re

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h
 L

A
P

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
. 

 T
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

v
ia

 t
h

e
 T

H
IS

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

 T
h
e

 w
a

rd
 d

a
ta

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
 

Page 184



- 
8

1
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
re

p
o

rt
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
is

s
e

m
in

a
te

d
 t
o

 w
a

rd
 c

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 m
o

re
 w

id
e

ly
. 

 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 l

in
k

a
g

e
s

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 w
a

rd
 c

o
u

n
c

il
lo

rs
 

 R
6

 
T

h
e

 f
iv

e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 l
e

a
d

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 
a

 s
ta

n
d

in
g
 i
n

v
it
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n

 G
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d
 

b
e

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t
o

 a
tt
e
n

d
 a

n
d

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

. 
 

C
P

A
G

 p
a

p
e

rs
 a

re
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 L

e
a

d
s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

e
ir
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e

 C
P

A
G

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 o

p
e
n

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

P
o

lic
y
 T

e
a
m

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 t

h
e

 C
P

A
G

s
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 L

e
a

d
s
. 

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 L

e
a

d
s
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 
e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
P

A
G

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 

w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 L

e
a
d

 f
o

r 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
L

e
is

u
re

 h
a

s
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 t
h

e
 C

P
A

G
s

o
n

 h
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

  
R

7
 

T
h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

A
re

a
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

c
la

ri
fi
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
L
A

P
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

 

T
h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 A
re

a
 

D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 f

o
rm

 a
 p

a
rt

, 
is

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
E

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

 A
c
ti
o

n
 

G
ro

u
p

, 
w

it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 R
e

v
ie

w
, 

w
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 

c
la

ri
fy

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 A

re
a

 D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 

c
a

n
 a

c
t 

a
s
 a

 b
ri
d

g
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 L

A
P

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
w

id
e

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 

L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
w

h
it
e

 p
a
p

e
r 

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 
b

e
s
t 

to
 l
in

k
 a

re
a

 b
a

s
e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0
6

 
P

a
rt

ia
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

A
re

a
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
s
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 

w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
L

A
P

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h
e

ir
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
e

a
d
e

rs
h

ip
ro

le
. 

 T
h

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
o

le
, 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

re
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
 

b
e

t w
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
tr

a
n

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 T

H
P

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g
is

la
ti
v
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
L

o
c
a

l 

Page 185



- 
8

2
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 l
a

te
s
t 
p

o
lic

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 a

n
d
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 w
h

it
e

 p
a
p

e
r 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

. 
 

 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 H

e
a

lt
h
 A

c
t 

2
0
0

7
) 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

  
 

R
8

 
T

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 p

la
y
 a

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
in

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 
 

T
h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

 w
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 t

e
a
m

 t
h

a
t 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
In

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 L

A
P

 
in

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 r

o
le

 o
f 

b
e

in
g
 a

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r.

 
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
is

 e
le

m
e

n
t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 b
u

ilt
 i
n

t
th

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

In
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e

r
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
0

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

e
le

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

R
9

 
A

 m
a

jo
r 

ro
le

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a

m
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
o

 
e

n
h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 
L

A
P

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

. 
T

h
is

 
w

o
u

ld
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
th

e
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
ir
 w

o
rk

 a
s
 

w
a

rd
 c

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 

T
h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 L
A

P
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

).
  

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
o

le
 

d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 p

la
c
e

s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 e
m

p
h
a

s
is

 o
n
 t

h
e

 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 d
u

ti
e

s
 t
o

 n
o
t 

o
n

ly
 a

tt
e
n

d
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 
e

v
e

n
ts

 b
u
t 

to
 a

c
t 
a

s
 a

n
 a

d
v
o

c
a

te
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
. 

 
 T

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

s
 f

o
u

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

 y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 

b
y
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

w
a

y
d

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 

w
it
h

 L
A

P
s
. 

 F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 a

d
v
o

c
a

c
y
 a

n
d
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
  

 It
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 d
e

e
p
e
n

 a
ll 

c
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 T

H
P

 w
ill

 
e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

te
a
m

 t
o
 a

d
o

p
t 
re

d
e
fi
n

e
d

 r
o

le
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
e

 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g
 o

f 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
e

a
d
e

rs
h

ip
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 
s
h

a
p

in
g
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
. 

Page 186



- 
8

3
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 w

it
h

in
 i
t,

 s
o
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
ir
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d
 a

c
t 
a

s
 

a
d

v
o

c
a

te
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 w

a
rd

 a
n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
w

o
rk

. 
 T

h
e

 f
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

 p
la

c
e

, 
a

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 
in

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
W

h
it
e

 P
a

p
e

r,
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 t

h
e

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

w
a
rd

 c
o

u
n

c
il

lo
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
  

 R
1

0
 

A
 L

A
P

 b
a

s
e

d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ilo
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 h
o

w
 ‘
c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
p

e
rs

o
n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
’ 
o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 a
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

. 
 

T
h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
W

h
it
e

 P
a
p

e
r 

h
a

s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 

th
e

 c
o

n
te

x
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n

e
w

 p
o

w
e

rs
 f

o
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

a
ll 

fo
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
, 

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 b

e
s
t 

th
is

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
. 

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 y
e

a
r’
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

W
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

L
e

a
d

 f
o

r 
L

iv
in

g
 W

e
ll 

is
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

n
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

fo
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 w
a

rd
 b

a
s
e
d

 d
a
ta

 a
s
 w

e
ll

a
s
 p

ilo
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 ‘
C

o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

C
a

ll 
fo

A
c
ti
o

n
’ 
m

o
d
e

l.
 T

h
is

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e

a
s
 m

o
d

e
l 
to

 r
o

ll 
o
u

t 
w

a
rd

 b
a

s
e
d

 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
 

R
1

1
 

T
h
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 L
A

P
-b

a
s
e
d

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 
 

A
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0
6

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
rs

t 
y
e

a
r’
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
h

a
s
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 t

h
e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
la

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 W
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

fu
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

O
S

C
 i

Page 187



- 
8

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
 

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

 
    

Page 188



- 
8

5
 -

 
 

 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
2

 
E

x
c

e
ll

e
n

t 
P

u
b

li
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l:

 A
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

R
1

. 
T

h
e

 E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 

th
e

 e
-g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 o
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

(N
o

te
: 
W

o
rk

 o
f 

E
P

S
 n

o
w

 
s
u

b
s
u
m

e
d

 i
n

to
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

it
h

 E
P

S
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 L

e
a

d
 h

o
ld

in
g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

ro
le

).
 

 

N
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
 

R
2

. 
IT

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

d
o
u

b
le

 k
e
y
in

g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
. 

 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fl
o

w
 t

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 C
R

M
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e

 
re

m
o

v
e

d
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
d

o
u
b

le
-e

n
te

ri
n

g
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

. 

R
3

. 
T

h
e

 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

L
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 
a

n
d
 

T
ra

n
s
la

ti
o

n
 

P
o

lic
y
 

a
n

d
 

T
h

ir
d
 

S
e

c
to

r 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 m

ig
h

t 
h

e
lp

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 
(a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 
to

 
a
 

T
h
e

 T
h

ir
d

 S
e

c
to

r 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 (

T
S

S
) 

is
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 r
e
m

a
in

 a
t 

th
e

 f
o

re
fr

o
n

t 
in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 o
f 

w
o

rk
. 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
’s

 5
 k

e
y
 a

im
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

‘P
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u

it
y
, 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
, 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
e

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

w
it
h

 N
e

w
h

a
m

 L
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
S

h
o

p
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d

 i
n

 u
s
e
. 

Page 189



- 
8

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 P

o
lic

y
).

 
 

B
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 M
in

o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
, 
th

o
s
e

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
w

o
m

e
n

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
o

c
ia

lly
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 g

ro
u
p

s
; 

a
n

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
e

y
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
t.

’ 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

T
ra

n
s
la

ti
o

n
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
is

s
u

e
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t.
  

T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 

N
e

w
h

a
m

 L
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
h
o

p
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

t 
is

 w
o

rk
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
. 

 
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 p

h
o
n

e
 a

n
d

 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
a

rd
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o
 a

ll 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
o

in
ts

 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
in

 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

. 
  

R
4

. 
 A

 T
e

le
p
h

o
n
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

p
o

lic
y
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
la

u
n

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

tl
in

e
s
 i
n

 2
0

0
5

, 
w

h
e

n
 t

w
e

lv
e

 
e

a
s
ily

-m
e

m
o

ra
b

le
 p

h
o
n

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 

re
p

la
c
e

d
 t

h
e

 1
2

0
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 
to

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 e
a

s
ie

r 
a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h

-
d

e
m

a
n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 
n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
in

to
 t
h

e
 H

o
tl
in

e
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 w
id

e
ly

 
p

u
b

lic
is

e
d

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
m

in
e

n
tl
y
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

w
e

b
 s

it
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
e

k
ly

 i
n

 E
a

s
t 
E

n
d
 L

if
e
. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
e

 H
o

t 
L

in
e
 p

o
lic

y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 e

a
s
e

 o
f 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 v

ia
 e

a
s
ily

-
m

e
m

o
ra

b
le

 s
in

g
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
. 

N
e

w
 

H
o

t 
L

in
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 
H

o
m

e
s
 A

L
M

O
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

T
ru

s
t 
a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 i
n

 s
p

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

8
. 

Page 190



- 
8

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
T

h
e

 H
o

tl
in

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
re

e
p
h

o
n
e

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 j
u

s
t 
o

v
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

c
a

lls
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
n

th
. 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 

in
to

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d

. 
R

5
. 

 B
o
th

 t
h

e
 O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o

p
s
 a

n
d
 

C
a

ll 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

in
g
le

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n

d
 

p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
le

a
d

. 
 

T
h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 

d
iv

is
io

n
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0
5

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
th

e
 

O
n

e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o

p
s
, 
C

C
C

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 H

e
lp

 C
e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
T

e
a

m
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r,
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
fa

c
in

g
 t
e

a
m

s
. 

S
u

b
s
e

q
u
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

 S
o

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 T

e
a

m
, 

C
a

re
 A

la
rm

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
in

to
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 
c
re

a
te

 a
 s

in
g
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e
m

it
 

o
f 

th
e

 H
e
a

d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 D
e
p

u
ty

 L
e
a

d
e

r,
 t

o
 m

a
n
a

g
e

 a
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
’s

 c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

  
  

  
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
In

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

R
6

. 
O

p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
h

o
m

e
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
d

 
s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

o
re

 f
u

lly
 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
h

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 
te

s
te

d
 f

o
r 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
. 

 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

h
o

m
e

 
v
is

it
s
 a

s
 a

 w
a

y
 o

f 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

th
o

u
g
h

 b
e

n
e
fi
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 b

y
 

b
ri
e

fi
n

g
 s

ta
ff

 w
h

o
 d

o
 v

is
it
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 d

a
y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 r

o
le

 o
n
 b

ro
a

d
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

  

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 

th
is

. 

R
7

. 
A

n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
s
 

T
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
 m

u
lt
i 
a

g
e
n

c
y
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
T

h
e

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
 o

f 
jo

in
t 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 

Page 191



- 
8

8
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
g
n

is
a

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 s
h

o
p

 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 m

ig
h

t 
b
e

 c
o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 t
o

 
in

fo
rm

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
ty

p
o

lo
g

y
, 

d
é

c
o

r,
 

e
tc

.,
 o

n
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

b
a

s
is

 a
s
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 I
d

e
a

 S
to

re
s
. 

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 O
n

e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o

p
s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
, 

w
it
h

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 

th
a

t 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
d

e
s
ig

n
 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
n

e
e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e
 

in
 c

lo
s
e

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 b
o
th

 t
h

e
 I
d

e
a

 
S

to
re

s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
s
. 

In
it
ia

l 
c
o
n

ta
c
t 
h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 P

C
T

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
c
o

-
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
n
d

 t
h

is
 s

tr
a

n
d

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
F

in
a

l 
d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

2
0

0
7

 
O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
s
 a

n
d
 I
d

e
a

 S
to

re
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 i
n

 
fu

tu
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 R

u
s
h

m
e

a
d

/B
e

th
n
a

l 
G

re
e
n

 s
it
e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
 

R
8

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

s
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 
o
f 

p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 

a
n

d
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f

ro
m

 o
u

ts
id

e
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

lo
c
a

lly
. 

 

T
h
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 d

iv
is

io
n

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 a
 l
e

a
d

in
g
 r

o
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
C

a
ll 

C
e

n
tr

e
 B

e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

 G
ro

u
p

 
w

h
ic

h
 f

o
c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 b

o
th

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
a

n
d

 b
e

s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 K

P
I 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
/p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 f
o

ru
m

s
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
a

m
in

e
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 G

ro
u

p
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 c

a
ll 

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 a

n
d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
. 

T
h

e
 

d
iv

is
io

n
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d
 o

n
 

th
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

L
o
n

d
o

n
 

G
ro

u
p

 w
h

ic
h

 h
o

ld
s
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

b
e

s
t 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 s

ta
ff
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 
ru

n
n

in
g
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 L

A
 C

o
n

ta
c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

B
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

 G
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 G
ro

u
p

, 
a

n
d
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 i
n

 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 V

a
rn

e
y
 R

e
p

o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

fo
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
. 

  

Page 192



- 
8

9
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 s
e
m

in
a

rs
 a

n
d

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 n

e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

o
u

t-
o
f-

h
o

u
rs

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
R

9
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

s
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
n

e
e
d

s
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
s
te

p
s
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
ri
p

t,
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 s

ta
ff

 
to

 o
b

ta
in

 t
h
e

 I
n

s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

ra
in

in
g
, 

d
is

s
e

m
in

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

c
o
n

ta
c
t 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

) 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 l
o
n

g
-t

e
rm

 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
).

 
 

P
u

tt
in

g
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 f

ir
s
t 
is

 t
h

e
 

c
o

rn
e

rs
to

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

c
o

m
in

g
 y

e
a

r 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
 T

h
e

 d
iv

is
io

n
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 t
ra

in
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 m

o
re

 
g
e

n
e

ri
c
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 t
h

e
 I

n
s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

w
a

rd
s
. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

n
e

w
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 f

o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 i
n

tr
a
n

e
t 
w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

is
 

w
o

rk
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

lia
is

o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 b
a

c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
W

o
rk

 o
n

 a
ll 

th
e

s
e
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 t

e
le

p
h
o

n
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
c
e

-t
o

-
fa

c
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 w

e
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 i
n

 
J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
, 

g
e
n

e
ri
c
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
th

e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 f
o

r 
fr

o
n
t-

lin
e

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 a

 
g
ro

w
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 I

n
s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 i
n

tr
a

n
e

t 
w

a
s
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 l
a

u
n

c
h
e

d
 i
n

 2
0
0

7
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
n

e
w

 e
x
te

rn
a

l-
fa

c
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
e

b
 s

it
e

, 
w

it
h

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
, 

w
ill

 f
o

llo
w

 
in

 2
0
0

8
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 a

n
d

 
lia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 b
a

c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t.
  
  

 

R
1

0
.T

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

e
n

s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 b

o
th

 r
e
a

lis
ti
c
 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
a

la
n

c
e

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

 i
s
 

n
o

w
 w

e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
n

d
 c

re
a
te

s
 a

 f
ir
m

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 d

iv
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 H

o
tl
in

e
s
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

in
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 r

e
la

u
n

c
h

e
d
 f

o
r 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

8
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 l
a

te
s
t 

th
in

k
in

g
 o

n
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 V
a

rn
e

y
 R

e
p

o
rt

 a
n
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

Page 193



- 
9

0
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 m

e
e

t 
b

o
th

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 c

le
a

rl
y
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 
w

id
e

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
P

ro
m

is
e

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 B

V
P

I 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
lly

. 
A

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t
o

 f
in

e
 

tu
n

e
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 t
o
 

e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

o
f 

c
o
n

ta
c
t 
a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

  

R
1

1
.T

h
e
 P

a
n

e
l 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 

fo
r 

a
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 P

o
lic

y
. 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 m

u
s
t 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 i
ts

 f
o
rm

u
la

ti
o
n

 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
: 

•
 

T
h
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
w

in
g
 

s
h

if
t 

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

o
le

 f
ro

m
 

‘s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

r’
 t

o
 ‘
e
n

a
b

le
r’
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
in

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 
c
re

a
te

s
 

•
 

T
h
e

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

th
e

 2
4

/7
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 

w
h

ic
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

o
u

ld
 

o
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 f

o
llo

w
 s

u
it
 

•
 

T
h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 

T
h
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

t 
th

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

s
ta

g
e

. 
T

h
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

re
e

 
k
e

y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r’
s
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
; 

C
h

o
ic

e
  

- 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
h

o
o

s
e

s
 h

o
w

 
a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 c

h
a

n
n
e

ls
, 

ie
 f
a

c
e

 t
o

 
fa

c
e

, 
te

le
p

h
o
n

e
, 

in
te

rn
e

t 
a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
e

lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
. 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 –

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 h

ig
h

-q
u

a
lit

y
, 

‘f
ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 f

ix
’ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
ll 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 c

h
a

n
n
e

ls
 a

n
d

 a
t 

a
ll 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

ti
m

e
s
. 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
T

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
it
h

 i
ts

 k
e

y
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 o

f 
C

h
o

ic
e

/Q
u

a
lit

y
/E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 

w
a

s
 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
fo

rm
e
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 i
n

to
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 w

it
h

 a
 

re
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 

y
e

a
r.

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 
w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

A
 m

a
jo

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
2
4

/7
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
0
8

/0
9
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
lo

s
e

r 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
a

rk
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 

Page 194



- 
9

1
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

i.
e

. 
m

u
lt
ili

n
g
u

a
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 n
e

e
d

s
 e

tc
. 

•
 

B
a

la
n

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 h

ig
h

 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

•
 

D
e

te
rm

in
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
O

n
e

-S
to

p
 

S
h

o
p

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 l
o

c
a

te
d

, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
f 

th
e

y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 

•
 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 r
a

ti
n

g
s
 

•
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 s

ta
ff

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
in

in
g
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

a
g
e

n
d

a
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 G
e

rs
h

o
n
 a

n
d

 
V

a
rn

e
y
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
, 
e

lim
in

a
ti
n

g
 

u
n

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 c

a
lls

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

b
a

c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

, 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

e
lf
-

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
s
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n

g
. 

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 r

o
le

 i
s
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
m

a
n

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 r
a

th
e

r 
th

a
n
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

it
s
e

lf
. 

  

fo
r 

2
0
0

8
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 

th
e

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 
s
y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 t
e

le
p
h

o
n
e

 a
n

d
 

fa
c
e

-t
o

-f
a

c
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t,

 e
n

a
b

lin
g
 t

re
n
d

s
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 
  

  
  

 
 

R
1

2
.T

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 l
e

a
d

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 C

P
A

G
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 

m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 m

a
x
im

is
e

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 t
h
e

 
w

h
o

le
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 

A
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 d

ri
v
e

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 

a
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 f

a
c
e

-
to

-f
a

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

is
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

in
te

g
ra

l 
to

 t
h

e
 f
u

tu
re

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
s
. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
2

0
0
7

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 n

o
w

 w
o

rk
s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 

w
it
h

 T
H

 P
C

T
 t
o

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

jo
in

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

A
 j
o

in
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
k
io

s
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

t 
B

a
rk

a
n

ti
n

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
e
n
tr

e
, 

a
n
d

 a
 P

C
T

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 H
o

t 
L

in
e

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 j
o

in
tl
y
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 
C

e
n

tr
e
. 

  
 

R
1

3
.T

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 L

e
a

d
 f

o
r 

E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 

Page 195



- 
9

2
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 
P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 

a
s
 a

 k
e

y
 l
in

k
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 P

o
lic

y
. 

 

o
f 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8
. 

 T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

s
 a

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

a
re

 
C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
 w

ill
 a

s
s
is

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

is
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 

s
c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 t
o

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
7

. 

2
0

0
7

 
P

la
n

 s
h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 2
0

0
8
/0

9
. 

 

       

Page 196



- 
9

3
 -

 
 

 

    
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
3

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 A

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 G

P
 /

 D
e

n
ti

s
tr

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
L

e
a

d
 

D
a

te
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

C
T

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 
m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
 t
o

 s
h
a

re
 m

o
d

e
ls

 o
f 

g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 

s
o

 t
h
a

t 
G

P
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 p

o
o

rl
y
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 G
P

s
 

th
a

t 
a

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 w

e
ll.
 

  
 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 w
id

e
 

v
a

ri
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
G

P
A

Q
 s

c
o

re
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
. 

S
o

m
e

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 s
c
o

re
d

 b
e

lo
w

 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

, 
h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 c

o
n

ta
c
te

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 h

ig
h

e
r 

ra
ti
n

g
s
 

a
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 s
im

ila
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 t
h
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 

th
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 a

n
d
 b

e
g
u

n
 t

o
 

a
p

p
ly

 t
h

e
s
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
. 
T

h
e
 P

C
T

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

s
 t

h
is

 s
h

a
ri
n
g
 o

f 
g
o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 
b

y
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
c
o
m

p
a

ra
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
. 

P
C

T
 M

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 

re
v
ie

w
 e

a
c
h

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e

’s
 G

P
A

Q
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 a

t 
re

g
u

la
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 v
is

it
s
. 

 
 T

h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 i
n

v
it
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

a
b

o
v
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 s
c
o

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 G

P
A

Q
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

o
 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
 t
h

e
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
e

x
is

t 
in

 t
h

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 f

e
e

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t
h

is
 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 r

a
ti
n

g
, 

a
n
d

 i
f 

th
e

y
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 h

a
p

p
y
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 o

th
e

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

s
e

 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
lla

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 P
C

T
 i
n

to
 a

 

L
u

c
y
 G

it
ti
n

s
, 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
&

 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

T
H

 P
C

T
 

         L
u

c
y
 G

it
ti
n

s
, 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
&

 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

T
H

 P
C

T
 

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

              M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

Page 197



- 
9

4
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

L
e

a
d

 
D

a
te

 
w

ri
tt

e
n

 g
u

id
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
e

n
t 
to

 a
ll 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
. 

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

C
T

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n
e

l 
w

it
h

 a
 

c
o

m
p
a

ra
ti
v
e

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘
Y

o
u
r 

D
o

c
to

r,
 

Y
o

u
r 

E
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

, 
Y

o
u

r 
S

a
y
’ 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 G

e
n
e

ra
l 

P
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

, 
th

e
 P

C
T

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 
 

 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
–

 G
P

A
Q

 (
re

s
u

lt
s
 w

e
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

in
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

0
7

) 
a

n
d
 t
h

e
 I
p

s
o

s
-M

o
ri
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

“Y
o

u
r 

d
o

c
to

r,
 y

o
u

r 
e

x
p
e

ri
e

n
c
e

, 
y
o

u
r 

s
a

y
” 

(r
e

s
u

lt
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

le
a

s
e

d
 e

n
d

 J
u

ly
 2

0
0

7
).

  
 T

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 I

p
s
o
s
-M

o
ri
 s

u
rv

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 

b
e

e
n

 a
n
a

ly
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
C

T
 a

n
d
 a

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 
A

n
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 

S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

C
T

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 

 
T

h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n
e

l.
 

 T
h
e

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 M

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 

w
ill

 a
s
k
 I

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

u
p

d
a

te
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

in
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 G

P
A

Q
 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
. 

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
lla

te
d

 i
n

to
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

re
p

o
rt

. 
 T

h
e

 2
0

0
7
 G

P
A

Q
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d
 t

o
 

p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 d

u
ri
n

g
 A

u
g
u

s
t,
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d
 

D
a

v
id

 G
ro

o
m

, 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 R

e
-

D
e

s
ig

n
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

  D
a

v
id

 G
ro

o
m

, 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 R

e
-

D
e

s
ig

n
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

     V
iv

ie
n

n
e

 
C

e
n

c
o

ra
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

te
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

  L
u

c
y
 G

it
ti
n

s
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
     J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

         A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
      A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
 

Page 198



- 
9

5
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

L
e

a
d

 
D

a
te

 
O

c
to

b
e

r.
 R

e
s
u

lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 

2
0

0
8

. 
A

 s
u
m

m
a

ry
 r

e
p

o
rt

 c
o

m
p

a
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 
re

s
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l.
  

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
&

 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

T
H

 P
C

T
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 3

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

C
T

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 t

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 G
P

s
 a

n
d
 D

e
n

ta
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 r
e

c
e

p
ti
o
n

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 a

n
d
 B

M
E

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

. 
  

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

fr
o
n
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o

: 

•
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

re
 

•
 D

e
a

lin
g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
fl
ic

t 

•
 V

a
lu

in
g
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

•
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 
c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e

 
 F

o
r 

D
e

n
ta

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
: 

 T
h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 
a

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

tr
a

in
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 r

e
c
e

p
ti
o
n

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 a
ll 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
D

e
n

ta
l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

re
, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
. 

 
 T

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 m

o
d

u
le

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 f
o

r 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 s
ta

ff
, 
a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
w

ill
 

th
e

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
n

ta
l 
re

c
e

p
ti
o
n

 
s
ta

ff
. 

 
 A

 d
ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
d
e

n
ta

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 d
e

n
ta

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 
th

e
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e
s
 s

p
o

k
e
n

 b
y
 s

ta
ff

, 
a
n

d
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
ro

o
m

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

ile
ts

 a
re

 

D
a

v
id

 G
ro

o
m

 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 R

e
-

D
e

s
ig

n
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

    S
a

jid
 S

h
a

h
, 

D
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

     S
a

jid
 S

h
a

h
, 

D
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
, 
T

H
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 

        N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
   N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
8

 
  O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 

Page 199



- 
9

6
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

L
e

a
d

 
D

a
te

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
 u

s
e

rs
. 

P
C

T
 

  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 4

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 

w
o

rk
s
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

G
D

P
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

g
in

 
c
o

m
p

ila
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 a
b
o

u
t 

lo
c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
s
 o

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
d

e
n

ta
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 
 

 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 h

a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
b
o

u
t 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 o
ra

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
t 

a
g
e

s
 5

 y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 1

2
 

y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 P
C

T
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
n

ta
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 d

e
n
ta

l 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
w

h
e

re
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
h

a
v
e

 g
iv

e
n

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t,
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

e
p

id
e
m

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 
s
tu

d
y
 i
n

to
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 d

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

. 
 

 T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
n

ta
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 p
ilo

ti
n

g
 

a
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

in
 t

w
o

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
d

e
n
ta

l 
d
e

c
a

y
. 

T
h

is
 p

ilo
t 

w
ill

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
n

ti
s
ts

 a
n

d
 l
in

k
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
n

ta
l 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 P

ro
je

c
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 e
a

c
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
a

re
n
ta

l 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 i
n

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
it
h

 d
is

e
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 d

o
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 c
a

re
. 
It

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

o
ff

e
r 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fl
u
o
ri
d

e
 v

a
rn

is
h

 2
-3

 t
im

e
s
 

p
e

r 
y
e

a
r,

 t
o

 a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 5

 o
r 

u
n

d
e

r,
 w

h
o

s
e

 
p

a
re

n
ts

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t 
to

 t
h

is
 t

re
a

tm
e
n

t.
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
c
re

e
n

in
g
, 

th
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 
g
e

tt
in

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t.

  

U
rs

u
la

 B
e

n
n

e
tt

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
D

e
n

ti
s
tr

y
, 

T
H

 
P

C
T

 
     U

rs
u

la
 B

e
n
n

e
tt

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
D

e
n

ti
s
tr

y
, 

T
H

 
P

C
T

 
            

O
n

g
o

in
g
  

        S
e

p
t 
2

0
0

7
 –

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
 

              

Page 200



- 
9

7
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

L
e

a
d

 
D

a
te

 
 T

h
e

 P
C

T
 D

e
n

ta
l 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
is

 
c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 d

a
ta

 o
n

 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
e

a
c
h

 L
A

P
 w

h
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 d

e
n

ta
l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 
a

n
a

ly
s
e

 t
re

n
d

s
 i
n

 u
p

ta
k
e

, 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0
8

. 
 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 o

ra
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 
s
y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
ir
 o

ra
l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 n

e
e

d
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
n

ta
l 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 T

e
a
m

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 u
s
e

 o
f 
m

o
b

ile
 d

e
n

ta
l 
c
lin

ic
s
 d

o
e

s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

l 
tr

e
a

tm
e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
b

ile
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e
e

d
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 
 

 D
e

s
m

o
n

d
 

W
ri
g
h

t 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
n

t 
in

 
D

e
n

ta
l 
P

u
b

lic
 

H
e

a
lt
h

  
U

rs
u

la
 B

e
n
n

e
tt

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
D

e
n

ti
s
tr

y
, 

T
H

 
P

C
T

 
   

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

    M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 5

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

s
 a

 
c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 d
e

n
ta

l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
a

n
d

 c
h
a

rg
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
d

in
g
 t

o
 

th
e

 H
e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l.
 I
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

e
 T

ru
s
t 

is
 

a
s
k
e

d
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 D
e

n
ta

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
d

o
 n

o
t 

w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 N
H

S
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 j
u

s
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 
p

ri
v
a

te
 p

a
ti
e
n

ts
. 
 

 
 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 d

e
n

ta
l 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 t

e
a
m

 m
o
n

it
o

rs
 

N
H

S
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 w
it
h

 D
e

n
ta

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 t
o

 c
h

e
c
k
 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
y
p

e
s
 o

f 
p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 b

e
in

g
 

s
e

e
n

 o
r 

in
 t
h

e
 t

re
a

tm
e
n

ts
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 P

C
T

 o
n

 U
n

it
s
 o

f 
D

e
n

ta
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

, 
p

a
ti
e
n

ts
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
D

u
ri
n

g
 m

id
-y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

w
it
h

 D
e

n
ta

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
th

e
 P

C
T

 h
a

s
 t
a

k
e

n
 t

h
e

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 

S
a

jid
 S

h
a

h
, 

D
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

      

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
8

 
          

Page 201



- 
9

8
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

L
e

a
d

 
D

a
te

 
a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

. 
T

h
e

 P
C

T
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 P

A
L

S
 t
o

 g
e

t 
a
 

b
e

tt
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
p

a
ti
e

n
t 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

. 
A

 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n
e

l.
 

 T
h
e

 P
C

T
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 r

o
le

 
w

it
h

 p
ri

v
a

te
 d

e
n

ta
l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 h
a
s
 

n
o

 l
e

g
it
im

a
te

 w
a

y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
m

. 
A

  
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

d
e

n
ta

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 N
H

S
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 N

H
S

 c
a

re
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 

a
re

 e
x
e

m
p

t 
fr

o
m

 p
a

y
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
. 
W

h
e

re
 a

n
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 a

ri
s
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
n

e
g
o

ti
a

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

, 
th

e
 P

C
T

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 N
H

S
 c

h
a

rg
e

-
p

a
y
in

g
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 P

C
T

 w
ill

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 a

n
y
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 m

e
n
ti
o

n
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 

      S
a

jid
 S

h
a

h
, 

D
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
, 
T

H
 

P
C

T
 

 

      J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
8

 
   

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 6
 

T
h
a

t 
a

ll 
d

is
a
b

le
d

 p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 d

e
n

ta
l 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
n

e
a

r 
th

e
ir
 
h

o
m

e
 
b
e

 
o
ff

e
re

d
 
th

e
 
o
p
ti
o

n
 
to

 
b

e
 

re
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 M
o
b

ile
 D

e
n

ta
l 
U

n
it
. 

 

 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 

w
id

e
ly

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

b
o

u
t 
d

e
n

ta
l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
. 

 
 T

h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
 t

h
e

 r
o
u

te
 w

h
e

re
b

y
 

p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 b
e

 r
e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 d

e
n

ta
l 
m

o
b

ile
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r,
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 n
e
e

d
s
, 
to

 
th

e
 P

C
T

 d
o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 d
e

n
ta

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 

S
a

jid
 S

h
a

h
, 
, 

D
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
, 
T

H
 

P
C

T
 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 7

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 M

o
b

ile
 D

e
n

ta
l 
U

n
it
 v

is
it
s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 l
o

c
a

l 

T
h
e

 m
o

b
ile

 d
e
n

ta
l 
u

n
it
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 v

is
it
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

, 
e

.g
. 

L
A

P
 a

re
a
 e

v
e

n
ts

, 
S

a
jid

 S
h

a
h

, 
D

e
n

ta
l 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

 

Page 202



- 
9

9
 -

 
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

L
e

a
d

 
D

a
te

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

o
re

 v
is

ib
le

 
a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 a
 y

o
u

n
g
 a

g
e

. 
 

w
h

e
n

e
v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 p

o
p
u

la
r.

 
T

h
e

 s
c
h
e

d
u

le
 o

f 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
m

o
b

ile
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
u

b
lic

is
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 M
o

b
ile

 U
n

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 v

is
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
ilo

t 
m

e
n

ti
o

n
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 4

. 
 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 

M
o

b
ile

 U
n

it
s
 h

a
v
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l.
 

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
, 
T

H
 

P
C

T
 

  S
a

jid
 S

h
a

h
, 

D
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
, 
T

H
 

P
C

T
 

     M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 8

 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

C
T

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
o

n
 

h
o

w
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

tr
y
 -

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

re
a

s
 t
h

a
t 
fa

c
e
 s

im
ila

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

s
 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 -
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 O
ra

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
o

n
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 t
h

a
t 
w

a
s
 

u
s
e

d
 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 O
ra

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

D
e

s
m

o
n

d
 

W
ri
g
h

t,
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

t 
in

 
D

e
n

ta
l 
P

u
b

lic
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 ,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 9

 
T

h
a

t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

C
T

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

p
u

b
lic

it
y
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 t
h
a

t 
e

x
p

la
in

s
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
G

P
s
, 
D

e
n

ti
s
ts

 a
n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 P

h
a
rm

a
c
y
 F

ir
s
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 W

a
lk

-I
n

 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 P
C

T
 s

h
o
u

ld
 w

o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 t
h

is
 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 
c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 e
x
p

la
in

in
g
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n
t 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ty

p
e

s
 

o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h
e
 P

C
T

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

 
L

e
a
d

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
, 

to
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
is

in
g
 t

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
, 

th
ro

u
g
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 

J
e

re
m

y
 

G
a

rd
n

e
r 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

te
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
H

e
a

d
 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
      

Page 203



- 
1

0
0

 -
 

 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

L
e

a
d

 
D

a
te

 
c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

. 
T

h
e

 W
o

rk
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h
a

t 
E

a
s
t 

E
n

d
 

L
if
e

 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 p
u

b
lic

is
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o
u

t 
h

o
w

 t
o

 j
o

in
 a

 
G

P
 a

n
d

 D
e
n

ta
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

h
e

 r
o

ta
 f

o
r 

th
e

 M
o
b

ile
 

D
e

n
ta

l 
U

n
it
. 

 T
h
e

 M
o

b
ile

 D
e

n
ta

l 
U

n
it
 r

o
ta

 s
h
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 a

ll 
G

P
s
, 
D

e
n

ta
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
a

n
d

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ie
ld

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
C

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

. 
 

 

a
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
n

d
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

  T
h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 D

e
n

ta
l 
M

o
b

ile
 r

o
ta

 
is

 m
o

re
 w

id
e

ly
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 –

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
h

a
rm

a
c
ie

s
, 

d
e

n
ta

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 

h
e

a
lt
h

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
, 

G
P

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
, 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
, 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 a
n
d

 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
. 

 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 

S
a

jid
 S

h
a

h
, 

D
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
, 
T

H
 

P
C

T
 

S
a

jid
 S

h
a

h
, 

D
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
, 
T

H
 

P
C

T
 

 

      E
n

d
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

 
  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

0
  

T
h
a

t 
th

e
 P

C
T

 w
o

rk
s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 ‘
L

IN
k
s
’ 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
to

 m
o
n

it
o

r 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

s
k
in

g
 L

IN
k
s
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 v

is
it
s
 

to
 G

P
s
 a

n
d

 D
e

n
ta

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
. 

 

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
s
 t

h
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 
c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 L
IN

k
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

P
a

n
e

l 
in

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 
is

 h
a

p
p

y
 t

o
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
te

 v
is

it
s
 t

o
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 
a

n
d

 D
e

n
ta

l 
S

u
rg

e
ri
e

s
. 
P

C
T

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

u
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
C

T
 L

e
a
d

 f
o

r 
P

a
ti
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic
 I
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t,

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t
h

e
 

m
o

s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 w

a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 L
IN

k
s
. 

  
 

A
b

b
a

s
 M

ir
z
a

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

te
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

 

W
h
e
n
 L

IN
K

S
 

a
re

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

1
 

T
h
a

t 
th

e
 P

C
T

 w
o

rk
s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
. 
In

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

u
s
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ra

in
e

rs
 t

o
 l
in

k
 u

p
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
, 
P

C
T

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

  

T
h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 H
e

a
lt
h

 
G

u
id

e
s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ra

in
e

rs
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

th
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 s
ig

n
p

o
s
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
te

 p
a
ti
e

n
t 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 

A
b

b
a

s
 M

ir
z
a

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

te
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

   

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

Page 204



- 
1

0
1

 -
 

 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

L
e

a
d

 
D

a
te

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

im
e
d

 a
t 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h
e
ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
, 
e

.g
. 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 E

x
p

e
rt

 P
a

ti
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 
 T

h
e

 c
o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 
c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 o
u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 9

 w
ill

 b
e

 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 
to

 t
h

is
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

 A
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 e

n
d

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 i
s
 a

 l
o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 P

C
T

. 
  

        A
b

b
a

s
 M

ir
z
a

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

te
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 T

H
 

P
C

T
 

  
               

Page 205



- 
1

0
2

 -
 

 

 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
4

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 D

e
li

v
e

ri
n

g
 C

h
o

o
s

in
g

 H
e

a
lt

h
 

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
  

R
1
 

T
h
e

 d
ri
v
e

 t
o

 p
la

c
e

 l
o

c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

t 
th

e
 

h
e

a
rt

 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

a
n

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 p

ilo
t 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
T

h
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
e

x
p

e
ri
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

in
n

o
v
a

te
 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 

v
e

n
tu

re
s
 

to
 

h
e

lp
 

re
d

u
c
e

 o
b
e

s
it
y
 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 

A
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 R
2

, 
ta

c
k
lin

g
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a

n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
tt

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

H
e

a
lt
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

x
e

rc
is

e
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

ilo
ts

 (
L

E
A

P
) 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
e
s
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

t 
a

 l
o
c
a

l 
le

v
e

l.
 

E
x
p

e
ri
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
 d

ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
s
 

c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 w

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

s
. 

T
h

e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 u

n
d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 v
it
a

l 
to

 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

. 
T

h
e
 N

R
F

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

T
ra

in
e

rs
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
if
e

s
ty

le
s
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 k

e
y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t
o

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

lo
c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
. 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

(C
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

 
o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h
 

tr
a

in
e

rs
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
)  

 T
h
e

re
 a

re
 

a
ls

o
 r

a
n

g
e

 
o
f 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 
a

n
d

 r
a
n

g
e

 
o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
. 

T
h
e

 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
k
e

p
t 
a

w
a

re
 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 o
n

 
a

n
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 

b
a

s
is

 

T
h
e

 N
R

F
 H

e
a

lt
h
 T

ra
in

e
rs

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 l
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
. 
 

F
o

u
r 

3
rd

 S
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 (
o
n

e
 p

e
r 

lo
c
a

lit
y
) 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 
T

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

p
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

C
T

 
h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

  
 T

h
e

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

m
o

re
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

‘H
e

a
lt
h

y
 W

e
ig

h
t,

 H
e
a

lt
h

y
 L

iv
e

s
 i
n

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
th

a
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

b
e

in
g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 
 P

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 
fu

n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 L
A

P
 

S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

s
. 

R
2

 
T

h
a

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e
 

A
g
re

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

n
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

Page 206



- 
1

0
3

 -
 

 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
  

g
iv

e
n

 
to

 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

a
 

ro
b

u
s
t 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 o

b
e

s
it
y
. 

 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
e

 c
o
m

p
o

n
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 
o

b
e

s
it
y
. 

 T
h

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 t
o

 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 i
n

te
rp

la
y
 o

f 
fa

c
to

rs
 

im
p

a
c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 b

y
 s

y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

tt
in

g
s
 

(e
.g

. 
p

re
s
c
h

o
o

l,
 s

c
h
o

o
l,
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
, 

w
o

rk
p

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
),

 a
g
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

(e
.g

. 
u

n
d
e

r 
fi
v
e

s
, 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

, 
a

d
o

le
s
c
e

n
ts

) 
a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
fa

c
to

rs
 (

e
.g

. 
e

th
n

ic
it
y
, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

) 
th

a
t 

a
re

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
. 

 
 K

e
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 s

u
c
h

 a
n

 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 a
re

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d

 e
n

s
u

ri
n
g
 t

h
a

t 
e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

a
n

 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
c
o

m
p

o
n
e

n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 

‘H
e

a
lt
h

y
 W

e
ig

h
t,

 H
e
a

lt
h

y
 L

iv
e

s
 i
n

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 g
o

in
g
 o

u
t 
fo

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 l
a

te
r 

th
is

 m
o

n
th

 w
it
h

 a
 

S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 C
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 
fo

r 
1

9
th

 M
a

rc
h

. 
 T

h
e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 s
e

t 
o
f 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

a
n

d
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 b

u
ilt

 
in

 a
t 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 

R
3

  
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

h
a

re
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

a
lli

a
n

c
e

 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 W
e
 f

e
e
l 

th
a

t 
th

is
 f

o
s
te

rs
 

a
n

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

-b
a

s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 

a
n

d
 

is
 

c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
in

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 

le
s
s
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
re

a
d

in
g
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

. 

 

A
 C

h
ild

h
o
o

d
 O

b
e

s
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

o
u

ld
 n

e
e

d
 

to
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 a

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 

g
ro

u
p

 (
a

n
 a

lli
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
).

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 m

u
lt
i 

a
g
e

n
c
y
 w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
g
ro

u
p
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 n
e

e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

o
re

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
o

c
u

s
. 
T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
h

e
 

fo
ru

m
 f

o
r 

c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 
b

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 c
h

ild
h
o

o
d
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

W
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 

s
h

a
re

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

Page 207



- 
1

0
4

 -
 

 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
  

o
b

e
s
it
y
. 

R
4

 
T

h
a

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e
 

g
iv

e
n

 o
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 u

s
e

 t
h

is
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fo
c
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

t 
a
n

 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l,
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
o
r 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

le
v
e

l 
a

n
d

 
fo

r 
tr

a
c
k
in

g
 

th
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o
n

. 

 

A
n

 O
b
e

s
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 G

ro
u

p
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
h

e
 

fo
c
u

s
 f
o

r 
a

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 c

h
ild

h
o
o

d
 o

b
e

s
it
y
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 f
o

r 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

s
 

a
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l,
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
o

r 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
le

v
e

ls
. 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
7

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 a

 b
a

s
e

lin
e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

w
h

a
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 N
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
In

s
ti
tu

te
 f
o
r 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

C
lin

ic
a

l 
E

x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

 (
N

IC
E

) 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 o
b

e
s
it
y
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

u
s
e

d
 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 
T

h
e

 S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 o
n

 
1

9
th

 M
a

rc
h

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

w
id

e
r 

in
p

u
t 

in
to

 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

 

R
5
 

T
h
a

t 
e

x
p

lo
ra

ti
o

n
 
o
f 

th
e

 
p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 l

if
e

s
ty

le
s
 "

lo
y
a

lt
y
" 

c
a

rd
 t

h
a

t 
g
iv

e
s
 

"r
e

w
a

rd
s
" 

p
o

in
ts

 
o

r 
c
re

d
it
s
 

to
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 

o
r 

e
a

ti
n

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

ily
. 

 

T
h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 c
a
n

 b
e

 e
x
p

lo
re

d
. 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
7

 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h

is
 i
s
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 L
B

T
H

 L
e

is
u

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

R
6
 

T
h
a

t 
a

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

lli
a

n
c
e

 b
e

 f
o

rm
e

d
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
b

e
s
it
y
. 

 

A
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 (
s
e

e
 R

3
),

 O
b

e
s
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u

p
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

n
 o

v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
lli

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 c
h

ild
h

o
o

d
 

o
b

e
s
it
y
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 w
o

u
ld

 
n

e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
n

e
d

 b
y
 a

 w
id

e
r 

n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

A
 s

m
a

ll,
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
, 

O
b

e
s
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

 w
a

s
 s

e
t 

u
p

 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
0
7

, 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 m

o
n

th
ly

 a
n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

L
iv

in
g
 W

e
ll 

C
P

A
G

. 
 L

in
k
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 

b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
P

A
G

. 
  

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 

w
ill

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 2
 

w
id

e
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 t

h
e

 

Page 208



- 
1

0
5

 -
 

 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 (
C

S
P

A
N

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 E

a
ti
n

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

. 
 S

p
e

c
if
ic

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e
 s

e
t 
u

p
 

to
 t

a
k
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

  

R
7
 

T
h
a

t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
e
ff

o
rt

 
is

 
m

a
d

e
 

to
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

p
ri
v
a

te
 

s
e

c
to

r 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

g
y
m

s
, 

d
ie

ti
n

g
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

. 

 

T
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
is

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

. 
It

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
to

 h
a

v
e

 
th

e
ir
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
a

t 
th

e
 o

u
ts

e
t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 G
ro

u
p

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
s
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
S

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 C
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e

 o
n
 1

9
th

 
M

a
rc

h
. 

R
8
 

T
h
a

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

b
e

 
in

v
e

s
te

d
 

in
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 

to
 

b
ri
n

g
 

th
e
 

a
lli

a
n

c
e

 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 
n

e
tw

o
rk

, 
m

a
in

ta
in

 
m

o
m

e
n

tu
m

 
a

n
d
 

e
x
p

lo
re

 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 

to
g
e

th
e

r.
 

 
W

e
 

fe
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
w

ill
 

h
e

lp
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
o

rk
in

g
, 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

 
w

id
e

r 
s
p

e
c
tr

u
m

 
o
f 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 

b
e

tt
e

r 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 
a

c
ti
o

n
. 

W
e
 
a

ls
o

 
fe

e
l 

th
a

t 
th

is
 

w
ill

 
g
e

n
e

ra
te

 
th

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
le

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
a

n
d

 
a

c
ti
o
n

 
a

ro
u
n

d
 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 

th
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 d

e
m

a
n

d
in

g
. 

 

S
e

e
 R

6
. 

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

ill
 o

n
ly

 
e

m
e

rg
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 c

re
a
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
h

e
a
lt
h

 s
e

c
to

r,
 t

h
ir
d

 
s
e

c
to

r,
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

It
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
th

a
t 

a
n

y
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
re

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
 i
n

 a
 w

a
y
 t

h
a

t 
g
e

n
e

ra
te

s
 g

e
n

u
in

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

 
d

ia
lo

g
u

e
. 
T

h
e

 f
o

rt
h

c
o
m

in
g
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

H
e

a
lt
h

 s
o

c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 p

ro
m

is
e

s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 t
o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 s
u

c
h
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
T

h
e

 P
C

T
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 n

e
w

 
(r

e
c
u

rr
e

n
t)

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 t
a

c
k
le

 
o

b
e

s
it
y
 i
n

 2
0
0

7
/0

8
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 2

 n
e

w
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
D

ie
ti
ti
a

n
 p

o
s
ts

, 
s
e

tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 n
e

w
 

c
h

ild
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 j
o

in
tl
y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 P

h
y
s
io

th
e

ra
p

y
 a

n
d

 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 D
ie

te
ti
c
s
, 
p

h
a

s
e

 o
n

e
 

o
f 

a
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 o
b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d

 
p

ilo
ti
n

g
 a

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 c

a
re

 
p

a
th

w
a

y
 i
n

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
. 

 T
h
e

 P
C

T
 

h
a

s
 m

a
d
e

 a
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 a
n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 2
0
0

8
/0

9
 t
o

 
ta

k
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

Page 209



- 
1

0
6

 -
 

 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
  

C
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f

ro
m

 L
B

T
H

 
is

 a
ls

o
 n

e
e

d
e

d
. 

R
9
 

If
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 t
o

p
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
th

e
n

 
th

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

's
 

k
e

y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 m

u
s
t 

re
fl
e

c
t 

th
is

. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 

w
e

 
fe

e
l 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

L
o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
O

p
e
n

 
S

p
a

c
e

s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 

P
la

y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 
C

a
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

a
ll 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 e
x
p

lic
it
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 h

e
lp

 
re

d
u

c
e

 o
b
e

s
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 

 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
p

o
in

t.
 I
t 

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

 a
ls

o
 t
h

e
 r

a
n
g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

re
a

 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 
ta

c
k
lin

g
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 e

.g
. 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
. 

T
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 c

a
ta

lo
g
u

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 a

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

. 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 (

a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
) 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 e

x
p

lic
it
 a

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 i
s
 s

tr
o

n
g
ly

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d

 
re

fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h
e

 
d

ra
ft

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 o
n

 g
e

tt
in

g
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 o

th
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

is
 w

ill
 

b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 f
o

rm
a

l 
s
ig

n
 u

p
 

to
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
, 

T
H

P
C

T
 

a
n

d
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

P
M

G
. 

R
1

0
 
 

T
h
a

t 
m

o
re

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
-

a
c
ti
v
e

 
m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
s
 
b
e

 
u

s
e
d

 
- 

s
u

c
h

 
a

s
 

c
ro

s
s
-c

u
lt
u

ra
l 

c
o
o

k
in

g
 
- 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
th

e
 

k
e

y
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 
m

e
s
s
a

g
e
s
. 

 
A

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

b
e

n
e
fi
t 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

to
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
. 

 

T
h

is
 l
in

k
s
 b

a
c
k
 t
o

 R
1
. 
T

h
e

 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

 
(e

.g
. 

a
ro

u
n
d

 c
o
o

k
in

g
 c

la
s
s
e

s
) 

a
n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

 m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

tt
in

g
 (

th
a

t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 y
e

t 
e

x
p

lo
it
e
d

 e
.g

. 
h
e

a
lt
h

 e
a
ti
n

g
 

in
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
) 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

T
w

o
 n

e
w

 p
o

s
ts

 o
f 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 
D

ie
ti
ti
a

n
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

h
is

 
y
e

a
r 

to
 t

a
k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h

is
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 
u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
 w

it
h

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 

lin
k
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

x
te

n
d
e

d
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

R
1

1
 

 
 

T
h

a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
b

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

A
 s

te
p
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 i
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

T
h
e

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r’
s
 c

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 o
n

 

Page 210



- 
1

0
7

 -
 

 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

D
a

te
 

U
p

d
a

te
: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

  
  

s
h

o
w

in
g
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
s
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 c

a
n

 b
e
 

u
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 c
a

ta
ly

s
t 

fo
r 

a
 s

te
p

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 

a
n
d

 
s
u

s
ta

in
in

g
 

c
o

lle
c
ti
v
e

 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

o
n

 
o

b
e

s
it
y
. 

 
A

s
 

p
a

rt
 

o
f 

th
is

, 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

g
iv

e
n

 
to

 
th

e
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 
h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 
b

y
 
th

e
 

fo
c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
m

in
a

r.
 

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

t 
a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e

v
e

l 
th

a
t 

c
a

n
 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

tt
in

g
s
 (

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l,
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l,
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

s
c
h

o
o

l,
 h

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
, 
p

re
s
c
h
o

o
l)
 

a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

is
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 n
o
t 

o
n

ly
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 b
u

t 
a

ls
o
 b

y
 t

h
e

 v
o

ic
e

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e
 i
n

p
u

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e

 
fo

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 i
n

to
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 

b
e

 c
ru

c
ia

l.
 

1
9

th
 M

a
rc

h
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

w
id

e
n

in
g
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t.
 

R
1

2
  

 T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

fe
e

ls
 

th
a

t 
th

is
 

is
 

a
 

c
ru

c
ia

l 
is

s
u

e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
a
n

d
 

to
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

b
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 

th
a

t 
a

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
b

e
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 

to
 

th
e

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

t 
a

 
fu

tu
re

 
h

e
a

lt
h
 

s
e

m
in

a
r.

 
 

T
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
d

e
lig

h
te

d
 t
o

 l
e
a

d
 t
h

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

W
e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 

p
re

s
e

n
t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
r 

d
e

b
a

te
 a

n
d

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
. 

  

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	9.1 Youth Justice Plan
	Youth Justice Plan 2008 09 Key Proposals Appx B
	Youth Justice Plan 2008 09 Key Proposals Appx C

	10.1 Use of Consultants Scrutiny Review Report
	10.2 Revisiting Youth Services Scrutiny Review Challenge Session
	10.3 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation Tracking Report

